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 3.1 Election of Board President
It is recommended that the board nominate and elect a Board
President for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.
Nomination For: 
Nomination by: 
Nomination Seconded by:

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 3.2 Election of Board Vice President
It is recommended that the board nominate and elect a Board Vice
President for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.
Nomination For: 
Nomination by: 
Nomination Seconded by:

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 3.0 Board Organization  

 6.1 Personnel Matters (With respect to every item of business to
be discussed in closed session pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957.6)

 

 6.0 Closed Session
The Board will consider and may act on any of the following items in closed
session; any action taken in closed session will be reported in open session
as required by law.

 

 Meeting Location
Any public vote will be done by roll call to ensure the public knows who is
speaking and voting. Members of the public may easily observe the
meeting and offer public comment using the following dial-in numbers
and/or internet link:Join Zoom
meeting:https://eliteacademic.zoom.us/j/94339322461?
pwd=dVJiSVBTbTNleGZobGduSk1NZlNyZz09
Meeting ID: 943 3932 2461
Passcode: 517181

 

Time: 1.0 Call To Order
Roll Call: 
Kent Christensen, Lindsey Burkett, Ronnie Jackson

 

 2.0 Approve/Adopt the Agenda
It is recommended the Board of Directors adopt as presented the agenda
for the Board Meeting of February 1st, 2024.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 3.3 Election of Treasurer/Clerk
It is recommended that the board nominate and elect a Board
Treasurer/Clerk for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.
Nomination For: 
Nomination by: 
Nomination Seconded by:

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 4.0 Public Comment -Closed Session
The public has a right to comment on any items of the closed session
agenda. Members of the public will be permitted to comment on any other
item within the Board’s jurisdiction under section 9.0 Public Comments at
Board Meetings.

 

 5.0 Adjourn to Closed Session
The board will consider and may act on any of the Closed Session matters
listed in Agenda Item 14.0.

 

 6.2 Employer/Employee Relations (With respect to every item of
business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957.6)

 

Time: 7.0 Pledge Of Allegiance
Led By:

 

Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire -February 1st, 2024
Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire



 A. CEO Authorizer Report  

 B. Audit Summary 2022-23  

 C. LCAP Annual Update  

 EAA-ME CEO Report January 2024.pdf  

 22.23 Final Audit (signed) EAA-ME.pdf  

 10.1 Informational Items  

 A. Meeting Minutes from December 7th, 2023  

 B. Warrant Register  

 C. New Instructional Materials Community Partners  

 D. New Educational Materials Community Partners  

 E. Job Descriptions  

 EAA-ME 12.07.23.pdf  

 WarrantRegisterME_Jan_2324.pdf  

 Elite Academic Instructional Service Community
Partner_December_23_January_24 - VCI Community
Partners.pdf

 

 Elite Academic Educational Materials
Partner_January_2024.xlsx - EM Partners.pdf

 

 9.2 Consent Agenda
It is recommended that the board approve the following consent
agenda items.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 ME Interim LCAP Update 23-24.pdf  

 10.0 General Functions  

 11.1 Employee Contract Addendums
It is recommended that the board ratify the following Employee
Contract Addendums for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain
Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 11.2 Employee Changes of Relationship
It is recommended that the board ratify the following Employee
Changes of Relationship for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain
Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 11.3 Employee Release and Resignations Motion: Second:
Vote:

 EAA-ME Contract Addendum 01.2024.pdf  

 EAA-ME CORs 01.2024.pdf  

 11.0 Personnel Services  

 8.0 Open Session  

 9.0 Public Comment
Please submit a request to speak to the Board of Directors. Cards can be
asked for by emailing galtamirano@eliteacademic.com. Please complete
and return the form for agendized or non-agendizied items, prior to the
meeting. Not more than three (3) minutes are to be allotted to any one (1)
speaker, and no more than twenty (20) minutes on the same subject. This
portion of the agenda is for comments, recognitions and reports to the
Board and is not intended to be a question and answer period. If you have
questions for the Board, please provide the Board President with a written
copy and an administrator will provide answers at a later date. A request for
disability related modifications or accommodations in order to participate in
the public meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, may be made to Ms.
Meghan Freeman at mfreeman@eliteacademic.com at least 72 hours prior
to the meeting.

 

 JD - 2024 Temporary Virtual Instructional Assistant (pending
board approval).pdf

 



It is recommended that the board ratify the following Employee
Release and Resignations for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain
Empire.

 12.1 A-G Grant Progress Report
It is recommended that the board approve the following A-G Grant
Progress Report for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 12.2 Feb. 2024 Staff Professional Development Budget
It is recommended that the board approve the following Feb. 2024
Staff Professional Development Budget for Elite Academic Academy
- Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 12.3 Amazon Business Line of Credit
It is recommended that the board retroactively approve the following
Amazon Business Line of Credit for Elite Academic Academy -
Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 12.4 Marketing Materials Invoice
It is recommended that the board approve the following Marketing
Materials Invoice for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 EST-2024 July 8 Elite Academic (1) (1) (1).pdf  

 12.5 Peak Performance Testing Center Invoice
It is recommended that the board approve the following Peak
Performance Testing Center Invoice for Elite Academic Academy -
Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 12.6 Independent Contractor Agreement
It is recommended that the board approve the following Independent
Contractor Agreement to support our SOAR program for Elite
Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 ME_A-
G_Completion_Improvement_Grant_Plan_Progress_Report_Elite_Academic_Academy_-
_Mountain_Empire_20240102.pdf

 

 Feb 2024 PD Budget Westin South Coast.xlsx - Summary.pdf  

 Amazon LOC.pdf  

 Bagger Sports Invoice.pdf  

 Beverage Service Non-Catered.pdf  

 12.0 Business Services  

 13.1 SARC report
It is recommended that the board approve the following SARC report
for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 13.2 Employee Handbook 2024
It is recommended that the board approve the following Employee
Handbook 2024 for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 13.3 Updated Fiscal Policies Handbook
It is recommended that the board approve the following Updated
Fiscal Policies Handbook for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain
Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 13.4 2024-25 School Calendars
It is recommended that the board approve the following 2024-25
School Calendars for Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 2023_School_Accountability_Report_Card_Elite_Academic_Academy_-
_Mountain_Empire_20240125.pdf

 

 2024 EAA-Mountain Empire Employee Handbook (pending board
approval).pdf

 

 FY23.24_ME_REVISED FISCAL POLICIES_V2.docx.pdf  

 13.0 Educational Services/Policy Development  

 23240394  

 23.24 IC Agreement  



 2024-2025 Calendar Draft for Board Approval - Year Round .pdf  

 13.5 Updated Employee Arbitration Agreement
It is recommended that the board approve the following Updated
Employee Arbitration Agreement for Elite Academic Academy -
Mountain Empire.

Motion: Second:
Vote:

 2024-2025 Calendar Draft for Board Approval - Traditional .pdf  

 2024 EAA Arbitration Agreement (1).pdf  

 14.0 Report of Action Taken in Closed Session
The Board will report any action taken in closed session as required by law.

 

 15.0 Calendar
The next regularly scheduled meeting is March 7th, 2024 at 10:00 am.

 

 16.0 Board Comments and Future Planning  

Time: Motion: Second:
Vote:

17.0 Adjournment
In compliance with Government Code section 54957.5, open session
materials distributed to Board Members for review prior to a meeting may
be viewed at the eliteacemic.com or at the scheduled meeting. Board
agenda back-up materials may also be requested by calling the School at
1(866)354-8302. In addition, if you would like a copy of any record related
to an item on the agenda, please contact administration. 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special
assistance, disability-related modifications or accommodations, including
auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meetings of
the Charter's Board of Directors, please contact the School at 1(866) 354-
8302. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the School to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accommodation and
accessibility to this meeting. Upon request, the School shall also make
available this agenda and all other public records associated with this
meeting in appropriate alternative formats for persons with a disability.























ELITE ACADEMIC ACADEMY - MOUNTAIN EMPIRE 

CHARTER SCHOOL NUMBER: #1924 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 



ELITE ACADEMIC ACADEMY - MOUNTAIN EMPIRE 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 5 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 6 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 7 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE 15 

SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 16 

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 17 

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 18 

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 19 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 20 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE AND 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER STATE COMPLIANCE 22 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 26 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 27 



 

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. 

 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

 

 

(1) 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire 
Temecula, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Elite Academic Academy - Mountain 
Empire (the Academy), a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statement 
of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and 
functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Academy as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Elite Academic Academy - 
Mountain Empire and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle  

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2023 the Academy adopted new accounting 
guidance for leases. The guidance requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and 
corresponding liability for all operating and finance leases with lease terms greater than one year. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.  
 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Academy's ability to 
continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Academy’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
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Other Matters 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Academy’s financial statements 
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules, as identified in the table of contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, except for the portion marked “unaudited”, 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
The Local Education Agency Organization Structure, which is marked “unaudited”, has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated  
December 9, 2023 on our consideration of the Academy’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Academy’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Glendora, California 
December 9, 2023 
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ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,308,620$      
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State 360,397           
Accounts Receivable - Related Parties -                       
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 530,461           

Total Current Assets 3,199,478        

LONG-TERM ASSETS
Operating Right-of-Use Asset 149,687

Total Long-Term Assets 149,687           

Total Assets 3,349,165$      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 806,630$         
Due to Related Parties 328,256           
Deferred Revenue 975,058           
Current Lease Liability - Operating 46,640             

Total Current Liabilities 2,156,584        

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Lease Liability - Operating 103,330

Total Long-Term Liabilities 103,330           

NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restriction 1,089,251        

Total Net Assets 1,089,251        

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 3,349,165$      
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REVENUES, WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

State Revenue:
State Aid 9,080,064$      
Other State Revenue 777,477           

Federal Revenue:
Grants and Entitlements 272,872           

Local Revenue:
In-Lieu Property Tax Revenue 2,134,351        

Other Revenue 17,713             
Total Revenues 12,282,477      

EXPENSES
Program Services 9,064,803        
Management and General 3,149,012        

Total Expenses 12,213,815      

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT RESTRICTION 68,662             

Net Assets Without Donor Restriction - Beginning of Year 1,020,589        

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION - END OF YEAR 1,089,251$      
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Program Management Total
Services and General Expenses

Salaries and Wages 4,321,622$      973,529$         5,295,151$      
Pension Expense 684,830           154,011           838,841           
Other Employee Benefits 379,895           116,505           496,400           
Payroll Taxes 68,240             42,155             110,395           
Accounting Fees -                       23,099             23,099             
Legal Fees -                       38,341             38,341             
Other Fees for Services 1,494,610        1,291,306        2,785,916        
Advertising and Promotion Expenses -                       179,715           179,715           
Office Expenses -                       38,311             38,311             
Information Technology 398,027           63,338             461,365           
Occupancy Expenses -                       60,665             60,665             
Travel Expenses 13,873             -                       13,873             
Conference and Meeting Expenses 1,926               11,515             13,441             
Interest Expense and Financing Costs -                       62,157             62,157             
Instructional Materials 1,692,773        -                       1,692,773        
Insurance -                       34,857             34,857             
Other Expenses 9,007               59,508             68,515             

Total 9,064,803$      3,149,012$      12,213,815$    
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets 68,662$           
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
   Provided by Operating Activities:

Change in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State 154,362           
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets (51,832)            
Right of Use Assets, Net (149,687)          

Change in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 323,904           
Due to Related Parties 176,619           
Deferred Revenue 848,027           
Lease Liabilities 149,970           

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,520,025        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Factored Receivables (250,043)          
Repayments of Debt (62,494)            

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (312,537)          

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,207,488        

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 1,101,132        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 2,308,620$      

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid for Interest 62,157$           
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities 

Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire (the Academy) is a California nonprofit public 
benefit corporation and is organized to manage and operate a public charter school. 
 
The Academy is funded principally through the state of California public education monies 
received through the California Department of Education and the Mountain Empire Unified 
School District (the District). 
 
The District has granted the charter through June 30, 2025. The charter may be revoked by 
the District for material violations of the charter, failure to meet pupil outcomes identified in 
the charter, failure to meet generally accepted standards of fiscal management, or violation 
of any provision of the law. 
 
Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of accounting and 
accordingly reflect all significant receivables and liabilities. 
 
Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board. 
 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 

Costs of providing the Academy’s programs and other activities have been presented in the 
statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are accumulated into 
separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated among 
program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of 
benefit. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently 
applied. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and wages, pension expense, 
other employee benefits, payroll taxes, other fees for services, office expenses, information 
technology, and other expenses, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and 
effort. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Academy defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on hand, demand 
deposits, and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Net Asset Classes 

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of 
donor or grantor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are 
classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general 
operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. 
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) 
imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as 
those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. 
Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that 
resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a 
restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated 
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 
 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from federal and state governments 
as of June 30, 2023. Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible, 
therefore, no provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded. 
 
Revenue Recognition 

Amounts received from the California Department of Education are conditional and 
recognized as revenue by the Academy based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of 
students. Revenue that is restricted is recorded as an increase in net assets without donor 
restriction, if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the revenue is 
recognized. All other restricted revenues are reported as increases in net assets with donor 
restriction. 
 
Contributions 

All contributions are considered to be available for use unless specifically restricted by the 
donor. Amounts received that are restricted to specific use or future periods are reported as 
contributions with donor restrictions. Restricted contributions that are received and released 
in the same period are reported as contributions without donor restrictions. Unconditional 
promises to give expected to be received in one year or less are recorded at net realizable 
value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in more than one year are 
recorded at fair value at the date of the promise. Conditional promises to give (those with a 
measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return) are not recognized until they 
become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they depend are substantially 
met. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Conditional Grants 

Grants and contracts that are conditioned upon the performance of certain requirements or 
the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses (barriers) are recognized as revenues in the 
period in which the conditions are met. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when 
the Academy has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant 
provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as 
deferred revenues in the statement of financial position. As of June 30, 2023, the Academy 
has conditional grants of $1,004,017, of which $975,058 is recognized as deferred revenue 
in the statement of financial position. 
 
Property Taxes 

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are 
levied on September 1 and are payable in two installments on or before November 1 and 
February 1. Unsecured property taxes are not a lien against real property and are payable in 
one installment on or before August 31. The County bills and collects property taxes for all 
taxing agencies within the County and distributes these collections to the various agencies. 
The sponsor agency of the Academy is required by law to provide in-lieu property tax 
payments on a monthly basis, from August through July. The amount paid per month is 
based upon an allocation per student, with a specific percentage to be paid each month. 
 
Income Taxes 

The Academy is a nonprofit entity exempt from the payment of income taxes under Internal 
Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 
23701d. Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes. The Academy is 
subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are 
unrelated to the exempt purposes. The Academy is subject to income tax on net income that 
is derived from business activities that are unrelated to the exempt purposes. The Academy 
files an exempt Academy return and applicable unrelated business income tax return in the 
U.S. federal jurisdiction and with the California Franchise Tax Board. 
 
Leases  

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting 
Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (ASC 842). The Academy determines if an arrangement 
is a lease at inception. Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (ROU) 
assets, and operating lease liabilities on the statement of financial position. Finance leases 
are included in financing ROU assets, and lease liabilities – financing on the statement of 
financial position.  
 
ROU assets represent the Academy’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term 
and lease liabilities represent the Academy’s obligation to make lease payments arising 
from the lease. ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date 
based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term.  
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Leases (Continued) 

As most of leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Academy uses its incremental 
borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the 
present value of lease payments. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease 
payments made and excludes lease incentives. The lease terms may include options to 
extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Academy will exercise 
that option. The Academy has elected to recognize payments for short-term leases with a 
lease term of 12 months or less as expense as incurred and these leases are not included 
as lease liabilities or ROU assets on the statement of financial position. 
 
Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases 
(ASC 842). The new standard increases transparency and comparability among 
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities 
on the balance sheet. Most prominent of the changes in the standard is the recognition of 
ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. 
Under the standard, disclosures are required to meet the objective of enabling users of 
financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from 
leases. The Academy adopted the requirements of the guidance effective July 1, 2022 and 
has elected to apply the provisions of this standard to the beginning of the period of 
adoption with certain practical expedients available.  
 
The Academy elected the available practical expedients to account for existing capital 
leases and operating leases as finance leases and operating leases, respectively, under the 
new guidance, without reassessing (a) whether the contracts contain leases under the new 
standard, (b) whether classification of capital leases or operating leases would be different 
in accordance with the new guidance, or (c) whether the unamortized initial direct costs 
before transition adjustments would have met the definition of initial direct costs in the new 
guidance at lease commencement. 
 
In addition, the Academy elected the hindsight practical expedient to determine the lease 
term for existing leases. The election of the hindsight practical expedient resulted in the 
shortening of the lease term for the existing lease. 
 
Evaluation of Subsequent Events 

The Academy has evaluated subsequent events through December 9, 2023, the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

Financial assets available for general expenditure are those without donor or other 
restrictions limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date. 
Financial assets available for general expenditures comprise cash and cash equivalents and 
accounts receivable for the total amount of $2,664,703. 
 
As part of its liquidity management plan, the Academy monitors liquidity required and cash 
flows to meet operating needs on a monthly basis. The Academy structures its financial 
assets to be available as general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. 
 

 
NOTE 3 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

The Academy maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts at various institutions. Accounts 
at these institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to 
$250,000. At times, cash in these accounts exceeds the insured amounts. The Academy 
has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any 
significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents. 
 
 

NOTE 4 LEASES – ASC 842 

The Academy leases office facility under a long-term, non-cancelable lease agreement. The 
lease expire in April 2026.  
 
The following table provides quantitative information concerning the Academy’s lease for the 
year ended June 30, 2023: 
 
Operating Lease Costs 9,587$             
Operating Cash Flows from Operating Leases 9,304               
Right-Of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for New Operating 157,712           
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term - Operating Leases 2.8 Years
Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Operating 6.20%  
 
The Academy classifies the total undiscounted lease payments that are due in the next 12 
months as current. A maturity analysis of annual undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities 
as of June 30, 2023, is as follows: 
 

Operating
Year Ending June 30, Leases

2024 56,104$           
2025 57,792             
2026 49,360             

Total Lease Payments 163,256           
Less: Interest (13,286)            

Present Value of Lease Liabilities 149,970$         
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NOTE 5 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 

State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS) 

Plan Description 

The Academy contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement System (STRS), a cost-sharing 
multi-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan 
administered by STRS. The plan provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to 
beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, 
within the State Teachers’ Retirement Law. According to the most recently available 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Actuarial Valuation Report for the year ended 
June 30, 2022, total STRS plan net assets are $300 billion, the total actuarial present value 
of accumulated plan benefits is $434 billion, contributions from all employers totaled $5.513 
billion, and the plan is 74.4% funded. The Academy did not contribute more than 5% of the 
total contributions to the plan. 
 
Copies of the STRS annual financial reports may be obtained from STRS, 7667 Folsom 
Boulevard, Sacramento, CA 95826, and www.calstrs.com. 
 
Funding Policy 

Active plan members hired before January 1, 2013 are required to contribute 10.25% of their 
salary and those hired after are required to contribute 10.21% of their salary. The Academy 
is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the STRS Teachers’ 
Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for year ended June 30, 2023 
was 19.10% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of the plan members are 
established and may be amended by state statute. 
 
The Academy’s contributions to STRS for the past three years are as follows: 
 

Required Percent
Year Ending June 30, Contribution Contributed

2021 372,927$         100%
2022 565,445           100%
2023 838,841           100%

 
 
Defined Contributions Benefit Plan 

We sponsor a tax-deferred annuity plan (the Plan) qualified under IRC Section 403(b) 
covering substantially all full-time employees. The plan provides that employees who have 
attained the age of 21 and completed one year of service may voluntarily contribute from 3% 
to 10% of their earnings to the Plan, up to the maximum contribution allowed by the IRS. 
Employer contributions are discretionary and are determined and authorized by the board of 
directors each Plan year. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Academy matched 
contributions amounting to $18,650. 
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NOTE 5 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED) 

SchoolFirst Federal Credit Union 401(a) Plan 

In July 2020, the Academy adopted a 401(a) plan administered by SchoolsFirst Plan 
Administration. The Academy makes discretionary employer non-elective contributions as 
defined in the 401(a) plan and eligible employees are vested based on years of service as 
defined in the 401(a) plan. Contributions to the 401(a) plan for the year ended June 30, 
2021 was $21,435. 
 

 
NOTE 6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Academy has a sister school, Elite Academic Academy – Lucerne, which has an 
independent board of directors from Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire and do not 
require consolidation under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. At June 30, 2023, the amounts due to Elite Academic Academy – Lucerne totaled 
$328,256. 
 

 
NOTE 7 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

The Academy has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to 
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate 
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement 
would not be material. 
 

 
NOTE 8 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On August 22, 2023, the Academy entered into an agreement with Charter Asset 
Management to factor attendance and grant receivables. The amount of factored 
receivables due was $1,073,000. 



 

 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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The Academy began serving students in September 2018 and is sponsored by the Mountain Empire 
Unified School District (the District). 
 
Charter school number authorized by the State: 1924 
 
The board of directors and the administrators as of the year ended June 30, 2023 were as follows: 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

 Member  Office Term End (Length)

Morgen Oelcker Board President September 2023 (1 Year)
Patrick Keeley Board Vice President September 2023 (1 Year)
Ronald Jackson Board Treasurer/Secretary March 2024 (1 Year)
Lindsay Burkett Board Vice President December 2023 (1 Year)

ADMINISTRATORS

Meghan Freeman Chief Executive Officer  
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N/A – The Academy is a non-classroom based school. 
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P-2 Report - Nonclassroom Average Daily Attendance

Apportionment Number of School Average Daily

Days Claimed Calendar Days Attendance

through P-2 through P-2 P-2 Report

Track A 20,125                     108                          186.34                     

Track B 88,455                     119                          743.32                     

ADA Totals 929.66                     

Average Daily

Attendance

Grades K-3 294.74                     

Grades 4-6 201.65                     

Grades 7-8 118.40                     

Grades 9-12 314.87                     

ADA Totals 929.66                     

P-Annual Report - Nonclassroom Average Daily Attendance

Apportionment Number of School Average Daily

Days Claimed Calendar Days Attendance

through P-Annual through P-Annual P-Annual Report

Track A 22,962                     175                          131.21                     

Track B 129,654                   175                          740.88                     

ADA Totals 872.09                     

Average Daily

Attendance

Grades K-3 293.91                     

Grades 4-6 201.29                     

Grades 7-8 117.72                     

Grades 9-12 259.17                     

ADA Totals 872.09                     

There is no Average Daily Attendance generated through classroom-based instruction.  
 
 



ELITE ACADEMIC ACADEMY - MOUNTAIN EMPIRE 
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 
 
 

See accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to Supplementary Information. 

(18) 

 
June 30, 2023  Annual Financial Report Fund Balances (Net Assets) 1,062,465$      

Adjustments and Reclassifications:
Decrease of Fund Balance (Net Assets):

Cash and Cash Equivalents -                       
Accounts Receivable - Federal and State 10,701             
Accounts Receivable - Related Parties -                       
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 352,309           
Operating Right-of-Use Asset (139,420)          
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (391,285)          
Due to Related Parties -                       
Deferred Revenue 98,968             

Long-Term Lease Liability - Financing 95,513             
Net Adjustments and Reclassifications 26,786             

June 30, 2023  Audited Financial Statement Fund Balances (Net Assets) 1,089,251$      
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PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

NOTE 1 SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME 

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by Academy 
and whether Academy complied with the provisions of the Education Code. 
 
 

NOTE 2 SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of 
Academy. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the 
basis on which apportionments of state funds are made to charter schools. This schedule 
provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels. 
 
 

NOTE 3 RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets of the charter 
schools as reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the audited financial statements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire 
Temecula, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, the financial statements of Elite 
Academic Academy - Mountain Empire (the Academy), a nonprofit California public benefit corporation, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 9, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Academy’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Academy’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a 
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. 

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Academy’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Glendora, California 
December 9, 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE AND 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER STATE COMPLIANCE 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire 
Temecula, California 
 
 
Report on Compliance 

Opinion on State Compliance 

We have audited Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire’s (the Academy) compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements applicable to the Academy described in the 2022-2023 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the 
Education Audit Appeals Panel for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Academy’s applicable State 
compliance requirements are identified in the table below. 
 
In our opinion, the Academy complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to the Academy for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 2022-2023 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the 
Education Audit Appeals Panel. Our responsibilities under those standards and 2022-2023 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the 
Education Audit Appeals Panel are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 
 
We are required to be independent of the Academy and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination of the Academy's compliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Academy’s government programs. 
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Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the Academy's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in  
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of  
K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit 
Appeals Panel will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Academy's compliance with the requirements of 
the government program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and 2022-2023 
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published 
by the Education Audit Appeals Panel, we: 
 
 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the Academy's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

 Obtain an understanding of the Academy's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit 
Appeals Panel, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Academy's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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Compliance Requirements Tested 
In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to 
determine the Academy’s compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 
 

Description   
Procedures 
Performed 

School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:    
California Clean Energy Jobs Act   Not Applicable1 
After/Before School Education and Safety Program    Not Applicable2 
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds   Yes 
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts   Yes 
Local Control and Accountability Plan    Yes 
Independent Study-Course Based   Not Applicable3 
Immunizations   Not Applicable4 
Educator Effectiveness   Yes 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Grant (ELO-G)   Not Applicable5 
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant (CTEIG)   Yes 
Transitional Kindergarten   Not Applicable6 

Charter Schools:    
Attendance   Yes 
Mode of Instruction   Not Applicable7 
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study   Yes 
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction   Yes 
Annual Instructional Minutes – Classroom Based   Not Applicable7 
Charter School Facility Grant Program   Not Applicable8 

 
Not Applicable1: The Academy did not have any expenditures for California Clean Energy Jobs Act in 
the year under audit or a completed project between 12 and 15 months prior to any month in the audit 
year.  
 
Not Applicable2: The Academy did not operate an after or before school program component of this 
grant.  
 
Not Applicable3: The Academy did not report ADA pursuant to Education Code section 51749.5.  
 
Not Applicable4: The Academy did not have any charter school subject to audit of immunizations as 
listed in the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) website as listed in the 2022-2023 Guide 
for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. 
  
Not Applicable5: The Academy did not have any expenditures relating to resources 7425/7426 in FY 23. 
  
Not Applicable6: The Academy did not report ADA for the audit year for transitional kindergarten. 
 
Not Applicable7: The Academy did not report any ADA as generated through classroom-based 
instruction. 
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Not Applicable8: The Academy did not receive Charter School Facility Grant Program funding for the 
year audited. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
noncompliance with a compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention from those 
charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.  
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance 
Reporting. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 

 
 
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Glendora, California 
December 9, 2023 
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All audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following categories: 
 

Five Digit Code Finding Types 
 
 10000 Attendance 
 20000 Inventory of Equipment 
 30000 Internal Control 
 40000 State Compliance 
 42000 Charter School Facilities Program 
 43000 Apprenticeship 
 50000 Federal Compliance 
 60000 Miscellaneous 
 61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries 
 62000 Local Control Accountability Plan 
 70000 Instructional Materials 
 71000 Teacher Misassignments 
 72000 School Accountability Report Card 

 
Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards or the 2022-2023 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting. 
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There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements or state awards 
for the prior year. 
 



 











































































Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire
Join Zoom Meeting

https://eliteacademic.zoom.us/j/94339322461?
pwd=dVJiSVBTbTNleGZobGduSk1NZlNyZz09 Meeting ID:

943 3932 2461 Passcode: 517181
December 7th, 2023 at 10:00 am

43414 Business Park Drive, Temecula, CA 92590

3406 Winona Ave., Burbank CA 91504

9337 Vervain Street, San Diego , CA 92129

13255 Black Mountain Road, San Diego, CA 92129









Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire

Date Vendor Name Account Name Ref Number Amount
11/3/2023 SOFTCHOICE CORPORATION Technology Services & Software - Business CC 9912 $2,453.50
11/3/2023 SPEECH TIME FUN INC. Special Education Services CC 9912 $25.00
11/6/2023 TIME IS LTD Technology Services & Software - Business CC 9912 $99.00
11/9/2023 FEDEX OFFICE 800000836 Postage & Delivery - Educational CC 9912 $200.40
11/10/2023 MARRIOTT ANAHEIM F&amp;B Travel, Lodging & Meals CC 9912 $187.39
11/10/2023 MARRIOTT ANAHEIM F&amp;B Travel, Lodging & Meals CC 9912 $102.82
11/12/2023 TST* Puesto - Anaheim Professional Development CC 9912 $1,654.35
11/16/2023 MASTERCLASS.COM/CHARGE Educational Services CC 9912 $3,960.00
11/22/2023 STARLINK INTERNET Phone / Internet / Website Fees CC 9912 $150.00
11/22/2023 PODS 9/100 Rent - Facilities Lease CC 9912 $738.00
11/29/2023 SQ *INLAND EMPIRE A/V LL Professional Development CC 9912 $730.63
11/29/2023 BARNES&amp;NOBLE PAPERSOURCE Professional Development CC 9912 $1,525.72
11/29/2023 SQUARESPACE INC. Technology Services & Software - Business CC 9912 $12.00
11/30/2023 VARIDESK* 1800 207 2587 Materials & Supplies - Office CC 9912 $433.10
11/30/2023 Subway 3358 Travel, Lodging & Meals CC 9912 $48.36
11/30/2023 CPRNATIONALCPR Educational Services CC 9912 $207.20
11/30/2023 FEDEX OFFICE 800000836 Postage & Delivery - Educational CC 9912 $81.54
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1HHH-7XNQ-KJQ6 $212.83
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1R9T-P9MD-JJ6F $113.31
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 144C-WX37-NFNN $94.41
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1NYR-FVY6-KQ47 $83.18
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1F3J-XX37-7DMC $85.86
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1DDG-YKHC-NCC7 $55.06
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1R9T-P9MD-GTLD $52.43
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 11DM-LDNP-KF9P $50.42
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1LYQ-HCN1-47FH $42.52
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 196V-J3G9-HFXR $43.54
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1DV4-DV7N-GV7N $43.79
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1WPG-KFYP-669M $41.59
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1GC3-3TVW-6C16 $41.12
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1GWV-VVNT-6TXJ $42.52
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1DMN-MV1Q-1PVR $22.41
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 14YX-YYN3-3HJG $38.06
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1JNL-6JFL-H77J $34.93
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12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1HJL-T11N-MYR7 $37.09
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1VRF-1MJL-6DF3 $37.86
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1343-YGWW-37P6 $34.33
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 143J-RY9D-1Y6Y $28.64
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1XTQ-VCJT-NH73 $32.61
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 146N-WJCL-34GV $23.13
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 13NR-37G1-6RYY $21.50
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 13XC-XTQF-4433 $19.92
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1XQK-FPCX-JKQK $19.29
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1NHG-RX1X-31D6 $17.74
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 16FK-1HLV-H4QY $12.56
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1F1P-TTTV-7F93 $7.52
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1PJ1-3VKN-3699 $13.58
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1VTR-VRQ6-31VY $9.49
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1VRV-6KXN-99LT $104.45
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 13MH-LTGN-644L $489.06
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 16XK-YLCR-17TY $56.89
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1R4X-VJTW-GWH3 $60.59
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1LPX-37HK-6CGF $86.29
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1FRR-N73Q-CG61 $52.65
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 17T9-4JHY-Y36F $41.14
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 16YY-137V-YJXJ $40.95
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 17T9-4JHY-Y34H $40.95
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 19N7-9CHT-1C6L $40.76
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1M6J-97Y7-YCNK $40.95
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1V46-PT9V-149Y $28.94
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 14N9-TVRM-9XGR $20.72
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1FQL-JVVH-4RYX $11.43
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 13MX-1HGM-1TFN $233.64
12/1/2023 AoPS Incorporated Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & INV2306389 $96.00
12/1/2023 Blossom and Root Home Education Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 0000800 $102.00
12/1/2023 Blossom and Root Home Education Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 0000799 $65.00
12/1/2023 Blossom and Root Home Education Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 0000801 $45.00
12/1/2023 Blossom and Root Home Education Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 0000798 $22.00
12/1/2023 BookShark, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & BI0031217 $267.55
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12/1/2023 Dash Into Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 677310340 $63.49
12/1/2023 Dash Into Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 677310344 $23.49
12/1/2023 Dash Into Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 677310343 $23.49
12/1/2023 Dash Into Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 677310342 $140.98
12/1/2023 Demme Learning LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S003200 $155.38
12/1/2023 Demme Learning LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S003253 $77.50
12/1/2023 Home Science Tools Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 000543405 $271.72
12/1/2023 Jamie York Press Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 19278-21003 $213.34
12/1/2023 Logic of English Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & SI-195231 $79.98
12/1/2023 MEL Science U.S., LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & LI2023110201 $324.64
12/1/2023 Mimeo.com, Inc Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1951796 $54.78
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4227746 $21.84
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4235571 $102.26
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4238611 $21.50
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4227975 $30.28
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4230627 $79.18
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4241861 $80.37
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4242753 $14.77
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4245075 $76.84
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4245074 $141.25
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4245078 $20.38
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4245077 $372.59
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4245073 $282.55
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4133542 $72.11
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4183652 $224.80
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4132530 $42.95
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4200233 $37.90
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4205860 $55.99
12/1/2023 Rooted in Language LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1028 $129.00
12/1/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S297334 $44.80
12/1/2023 Stephens Educational Services, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 344150 $97.00
12/1/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 497148 $86.89
12/1/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 497360 $86.09
12/1/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 497602 $86.09
12/1/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 497603 $43.05
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12/1/2023 TalkBox.Mom Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 639759 $97.43
12/1/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 245506714 $22.99
12/1/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 246475574 $19.99
12/1/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 246776056 $183.92
12/1/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 247355713 $12.00
12/1/2023 The Regents of the University of Califo Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 221537 $399.00
12/1/2023 Damian Potrero Rosas Business Services EAA14 $75.00
12/1/2023 Valley Office Equipment Copier Lease, Service, Toner & Repair IN2310-1644 $15.62
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1N46-THWD-H314 $158.53
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FTP-L6MY-NC1H $105.84
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1LMQ-WNGJ-1VK3 $90.49
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1Y3C-1XCH-1RDL $94.13
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11DM-LDNP-XKJ7 $86.43
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11VK-LJNT-HHMP $69.80
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1KRC-WQ46-9RG1 $75.71
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11DM-LDNP-MFKW $69.75
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FN9-C7GY-H9F4 $78.52
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1CJ4-9VRL-3KV6 $69.49
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1H7D-H37K-DTV7 $60.75
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16PH-174K-GH4X $60.70
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QKN-QGW6-LQWC $54.32
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T33-TNHQ-3M7D $52.41
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16PH-174K-KYFM $49.53
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1LVC-TWTY-FR6R $48.48
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HCM-JQMQ-141W $48.12
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1J4D-NGPL-6RGR $43.27
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1DMN-MV1Q-1PVR $62.09
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1Q4N-6WXL-M47F $340.64
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1DMN-MV1Q-9NVG $301.67
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QGN-FRKJ-7DKF $36.17
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FR6-GYVL-JJLL $36.18
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17VT-JJXY-4WWD $39.85
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 116X-RM74-CT7P $27.99
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 116X-RM74-3M7D $31.74
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1THJ-6KKF-6DFM $32.31
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12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1P99-9MNJ-1J94 $31.87
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1K6H-N7C3-33MK $34.93
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16ML-JFFT-474X $23.20
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VTT-N96Q-7XJ6 $23.20
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 176N-NK6F-HWJY $22.22
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1F3J-XX37-7M41 $24.75
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1TYD-MT1Q-GJGD $20.46
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1XW4-79CY-3VYF $14.64
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VWQ-GDNH-6H61 $14.64
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VJ9-MYKJ-HNJ1 $8.12
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JYJ-VKLK-G4MC $11.50
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1P3X-MGQW-1LPK $10.75
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1WL9-Y4VG-3N7N $12.40
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11MG-91LW-14V9 $1.28
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13TN-XX9N-F1QR $5.30
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1N9T-JYP7-4FGK $1.28
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PPL-WYNQ-1CM9 $24.82
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1M6J-97Y7-G3HG $180.54
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1NWN-G4PX-7MKW $4.11
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VRV-6KXN-99LT $355.80
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16XK-YLCR-17TY $147.76
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HF6-LR39-3K13 $133.67
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1MM6-9C7R-4VM6 $172.87
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QXR-WWMR-3RFL $172.22
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1W6C-QC4X-XHDY $137.37
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1R4X-VJTW-GWH3 $37.05
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14GK-K4Q4-6GFQ $121.16
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1N96-4NRH-1F1R $73.85
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16YY-137V-YG1H $72.91
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VLP-RXDL-7FTK $53.94
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1TQP-MLM4-DTF1 $48.43
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1N3C-DTCY-7QNW $39.13
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1KQM-J6YG-VYYJ $39.15
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PWD-HH1N-T9DY $38.79
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PRM-KHFC-3KPW $29.30
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12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 191K-3Y7V-6JXK $30.16
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1K7N-9C7L-W79N $26.43
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 19H9-V7R1-3WQX $21.06
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1YTC-WRYK-7HN6 $4.29
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1YX6-3JRD-6QNH $20.87
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QPX-KLC4-7DNX $28.90
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T9J-96L4-6C31 $585.82
12/1/2023 Elisa Araiza Le Core Teaching/Student Supplies ARA110623 $127.98
12/1/2023 Home Science Tools Core Teaching/Student Supplies 000543118 $146.84
12/1/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-30CB3E2510242358 $134.63
12/1/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-FFE6F61D11012318 $134.63
12/1/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-8BBF5EAF11082341 $134.63
12/1/2023 Lakeshore Learning Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4.44762E+11 $40.53
12/1/2023 Little Passports, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies IN-0000996939 $180.70
12/1/2023 Marsha Williams Core Teaching/Student Supplies WIL103023 $101.92
12/1/2023 Mimeo.com, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1952451 $1,259.91
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4238608 $48.83
12/1/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4173187 $99.65
12/1/2023 Schoolhouse Discoveries LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1544 $148.39
12/1/2023 Sharon Brown Core Teaching/Student Supplies BRO110123 $74.95
12/1/2023 Skinit Acquisition LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies PSI-20026350 $492.58
12/1/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA102723a $250.00
12/1/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA102723b $250.00
12/1/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA102723c $250.00
12/1/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA102723 $250.00
12/1/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA102723d $250.00
12/1/2023 Adelaida Abner Educational Services ABN110223a $280.00
12/1/2023 Adelaida Abner Educational Services ABN110223 $240.00
12/1/2023 Aislynn Gamez Educational Services GAM103123 $115.00
12/1/2023 Alicia Topping Educational Services TOP110623 $76.50
12/1/2023 Alicia Topping Educational Services TOP110623a $70.00
12/1/2023 All Things Music Educational Services 528248768 $500.00
12/1/2023 Allison Browning Educational Services 528262224 $305.00
12/1/2023 Amber Pich Educational Services 528257918 $195.00
12/1/2023 Amber Pich Educational Services 528262227 $210.00
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12/1/2023 Amy Helfrich Educational Services HEL103023 $475.00
12/1/2023 Amy Helfrich Educational Services HEL110323 $620.00
12/1/2023 Ana Gutierrez-Soto Educational Services GUT110123a $164.00
12/1/2023 Ana Gutierrez-Soto Educational Services GUT110123b $164.00
12/1/2023 Ana Gutierrez-Soto Educational Services GUT110123 $115.00
12/1/2023 Ana Gutierrez-Soto Educational Services GUT110223 $112.50
12/1/2023 Andrea Reid Educational Services REI110823 $52.00
12/1/2023 Andrew Luria Educational Services 528250379 $262.50
12/1/2023 Angela Aymin Educational Services 528248808 $300.00
12/1/2023 Angela Froistad Educational Services FR0103123 $110.00
12/1/2023 Annie Packard* Educational Services 528258705 $70.00
12/1/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR110123 $80.00
12/1/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR110223 $80.00
12/1/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR110223a $93.00
12/1/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR110823 $160.00
12/1/2023 Baelin Suggs Educational Services SUG110823 $95.00
12/1/2023 Bionerds Educational Services 528253988 $132.00
12/1/2023 Brain Builders STEM Education Educational Services 528254676 $724.20
12/1/2023 Branche Jones Educational Services 120 $1,500.00
12/1/2023 Cadence Dance Project Inc. Educational Services 528252391 $150.00
12/1/2023 Cambria Lingenfelder Educational Services 528248787 $500.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE102723b $200.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE102723 $200.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE102723a $200.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE103023 $77.50
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE103123c $60.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE103123 $60.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE103123b $60.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE103123a $60.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE110223a $95.00
12/1/2023 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE110223 $95.00
12/1/2023 Caroline Beus Educational Services 528251007 $1,055.00
12/1/2023 Caroline Thompson Educational Services TH0103023 $296.25
12/1/2023 Cassandra Gallade Educational Services GAL102423 $105.00
12/1/2023 Cece's Artistic Touch Educational Services 565 $25.00
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12/1/2023 Chandra Lynch Educational Services LYN103023 $144.00
12/1/2023 Chelsea Price Educational Services PRI102723 $199.00
12/1/2023 Christina Barber Educational Services 528250376 $521.25
12/1/2023 Christina Reaber Educational Services 528251009 $383.33
12/1/2023 Coastal Music Studios Educational Services 528255575 $1,125.00
12/1/2023 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI102723 $285.00
12/1/2023 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI103023 $220.66
12/1/2023 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI103023b $320.00
12/1/2023 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI103023a $320.00
12/1/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK110123 $60.00
12/1/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK110123b $60.00
12/1/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK110123a $60.00
12/1/2023 Diana Kennedy Educational Services KEN110123 $80.00
12/1/2023 Driven Tutoring Educational Services 528251781 $2,700.00
12/1/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KH0103123 $115.00
12/1/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KH0103123a $39.67
12/1/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KHO110123 $120.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102523 $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102623b $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102623c $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102623 $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102623a $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102723b $210.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102723c $210.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102723 $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL102723a $210.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL103123 $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL103123a $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL103123c $144.00
12/1/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL103123b $144.00
12/1/2023 Elena Lemmon Educational Services LEM102723 $195.00
12/1/2023 Elizabeth Burman Educational Services BUR110623 $360.00
12/1/2023 Elizabeth Jacinto Educational Services JAC102723 $136.00
12/1/2023 Endeavor Gymnastics Educational Services 528257632 $110.00
12/1/2023 Eric Elder Educational Services ELD103123 $200.00
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12/1/2023 Erika Dylke Educational Services DYL102723 $350.00
12/1/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC110223 $87.50
12/1/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC110623b $87.50
12/1/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC110623a $62.50
12/1/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC110623 $62.50
12/1/2023 Evaly Hanson Educational Services HAN102523 $50.00
12/1/2023 Freedom in Motion Inc. Educational Services 528252392 $764.00
12/1/2023 Friends of Willow Tree Educational Services 528252393 $15,781.10
12/1/2023 GL Travel Educational Services 0914202304 $4,134.00
12/1/2023 Gabrielle Albanese Educational Services ALB110223 $37.50
12/1/2023 Gathered Oak LLC Educational Services 528254002 $1,628.00
12/1/2023 Gina Valdez Educational Services VAL102423 $43.00
12/1/2023 Gina Valdez Educational Services VAL103123 $71.00
12/1/2023 Gina Valdez Educational Services VAL103123a $71.00
12/1/2023 Grace Rohrer Educational Services ROH110223 $68.00
12/1/2023 Grace Rohrer Educational Services ROH110223a $68.00
12/1/2023 Grace Rohrer Educational Services ROH110223b $68.00
12/1/2023 Gyminny Kids Inc Educational Services 528255911 $2,603.06
12/1/2023 Head2Heart Partners in Education Educational Services 528250830 $2,575.00
12/1/2023 Holli Steffen Educational Services STE110323 $20.00
12/1/2023 JKW Innovations LLC Educational Services 528252902 $160.00
12/1/2023 Jaclyn Hutchins* Educational Services 528250467 $140.00
12/1/2023 Jaclyn Hutchins* Educational Services 528250834 $140.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA102623a $76.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA102623c $80.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA102623b $68.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA102623 $136.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA102723 $128.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA103023 $68.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA103023a $128.00
12/1/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA110123 $80.00
12/1/2023 Jamie Salgado Educational Services SAL110823 $350.00
12/1/2023 Jena Pomeroy Educational Services POM103123 $119.99
12/1/2023 Jenna Shirley Educational Services SHI110823 $175.00
12/1/2023 Jennifer Doerrige Educational Services DOE103123 $87.50
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12/1/2023 Jennifer Doerrige Educational Services DOE110123 $87.50
12/1/2023 Jennifer Doerrige Educational Services DOE110123a $69.50
12/1/2023 Jessica Moller Educational Services 528248795 $291.67
12/1/2023 Karyn Colon Educational Services COL103023 $96.00
12/1/2023 Karyn Colon Educational Services COL110223 $48.00
12/1/2023 Katie Jackson Educational Services JAC110623 $77.00
12/1/2023 Kelli Reis Educational Services REI110123 $425.00
12/1/2023 Kelsey Swann Educational Services SWA102723 $35.00
12/1/2023 Kelsey Swann Educational Services SWA103123a $275.00
12/1/2023 Kelsey Swann Educational Services SWA103123 $50.00
12/1/2023 Kristina Beitey Educational Services BEI102423 $200.00
12/1/2023 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI103023 $88.00
12/1/2023 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI110223 $48.00
12/1/2023 Laura George Educational Services 528256118 $87.50
12/1/2023 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL110223b $200.00
12/1/2023 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL110223a $200.00
12/1/2023 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL110223 $200.00
12/1/2023 Laura Wedemeyer Educational Services 528250384 $600.00
12/1/2023 Leading Note Studios-San Marcos, LLC Educational Services 528254006 $618.75
12/1/2023 Lena Olson Educational Services 014 $250.00
12/1/2023 Leslie Curtis Educational Services 528248784 $381.67
12/1/2023 Lisa McCabe Educational Services MCC103023 $115.00
12/1/2023 Louvina Sheffield Educational Services 528255912 $1,095.00
12/1/2023 Marcelle Caratti Educational Services 528247552 $120.00
12/1/2023 Marcelle Caratti Educational Services 528248790 $240.00
12/1/2023 Mary Longbottom Tutoring Educational Services 528255576 $603.33
12/1/2023 Megan Purcell Educational Services PUR110623a $110.00
12/1/2023 Megan Purcell Educational Services PUR110623 $125.00
12/1/2023 Megan Purcell Educational Services PUR110623b $128.00
12/1/2023 Melissa Cole Educational Services 528248770 $110.00
12/1/2023 Melissa Leonard Educational Services 528250385 $595.00
12/1/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA103023 $152.00
12/1/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA110123 $192.25
12/1/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA110223a $192.25
12/1/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA110223 $158.75
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12/1/2023 Mikala Janse van Rensburg Educational Services 528260909 $68.75
12/1/2023 Mila Kristiansen Educational Services KRI110123 $50.00
12/1/2023 Nancy Wong Educational Services WON103023 $82.77
12/1/2023 New West Ballet School Educational Services 528248798 $85.00
12/1/2023 Nicole Reed Educational Services REE110623 $139.50
12/1/2023 Nicole the Math Lady, LLC Educational Services 7651 $79.00
12/1/2023 Noonan Family Swim School, Inc. Educational Services 528251012 $148.00
12/1/2023 Noonan Family Swim School, Inc. Educational Services 528251015 $240.00
12/1/2023 North County Academy of Dance LLC Educational Services 528242948 $64.50
12/1/2023 Rap A Tap Center For The Arts Educational Services 528248811 $62.00
12/1/2023 Regine Swim Educational Services 528257029 $255.00
12/1/2023 Renea Ree Educational Services 528257028 $320.00
12/1/2023 Robin Dapper Educational Services 528248773 $443.00
12/1/2023 Rock Creek Education Center Educational Services 528242472 $397.33
12/1/2023 Rock Creek Education Center Educational Services 528248815 $13,052.60
12/1/2023 Rock Rose School for Creative LearningEducational Services 528252401 $1,839.25
12/1/2023 Safe Swim Academy Educational Services 528248816 $60.00
12/1/2023 Sand n' Straw LLC Educational Services 528248818 $1,300.00
12/1/2023 Sara Kisling Educational Services KIS102523 $270.00
12/1/2023 Sarah Larson Educational Services LAR102623 $141.00
12/1/2023 Sebesta's Rocking K Ranch Educational Services 528248820 $260.00
12/1/2023 Selene A. Gomez Educational Services 528251785 $240.00
12/1/2023 SoCal Gymnastics Training Center Educational Services 528250386 $682.00
12/1/2023 SoCal Gymnastics Training Center Educational Services 528248822 $275.00
12/1/2023 Steffani Clark-Jijon Educational Services 528248778 $544.00
12/1/2023 Suzanne Greenough Educational Services GRE110223 $251.45
12/1/2023 Suzanne Lockyer Educational Services 528250835 $1,043.74
12/1/2023 Temecula Music Academy Educational Services 528248823 $200.00
12/1/2023 Temecula Music Teacher, LLC Educational Services 528255577 $1,097.75
12/1/2023 Tiffany Kyle Educational Services KYL103123 $102.00
12/1/2023 Tiffany Kyle Educational Services KYL110223a $90.00
12/1/2023 Tiffany Kyle Educational Services KYL110223 $90.00
12/1/2023 Tutoring Club of Fallbrook Educational Services 528248825 $688.00
12/1/2023 Tutoring by Patty Orlaski LLC Educational Services 528252404 $150.00
12/1/2023 U.S. Music Lessons Educational Services 528261418 $228.00
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12/1/2023 Victoria Jensen Educational Services JEN102523 $58.75
12/1/2023 Victoria Jensen Educational Services JEN110623 $101.67
12/1/2023 Xtreme Fit Murrieta Inc Educational Services 528260915 $156.00
12/1/2023 weXplore LLC Educational Services 528254010 $260.00
12/1/2023 Department of Justice Fingerprinting 695892 $40.50
12/1/2023 FlipSwitch Marketing LLC Marketing INVFM380 $7,770.68
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Materials & Supplies - Office 1LHX-67PR-3CH1 $113.83
12/1/2023 Cecilia Rodriguez Parent & Staff meeting food & supplies ROD103123 $9.25
12/1/2023 Frontier Phone / Internet / Website Fees 012Dec2023-41775 $182.46
12/1/2023 Uline Postage & Delivery - Educational 170363690 $2,913.89
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Professional Development 14RH-6RT6-T34G $53.10
12/1/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Professional Development 1Q6M-DWGD-4TPN $438.81
12/1/2023 McColgan & Associates, Inc. Special Education Services 6063 $865.00
12/1/2023 NCS Pearson, Inc. Special Education Services 23742853 $350.00
12/1/2023 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3081 $265.00
12/1/2023 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3080 $4,869.41
12/1/2023 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3079 $1,656.26
12/1/2023 Cidi Labs, LLC Technology Services & Software - Educational 12026 $1,158.50
12/1/2023 OPS Technology Services & Software - Educational 2500 $1,282.83
12/1/2023 OPS Technology Services & Software - Educational 2499 $1,282.83
12/1/2023 School Pathways Holdings, LLC Technology Services & Software - Educational 140-INV5753 $520.00
12/1/2023 School Pathways Holdings, LLC Technology Services & Software - Educational 140-INV5769 $4,554.62
12/1/2023 Southern California Edison Utilities - Gas/Electric/Water 012DecSCE2023ME $189.64
12/1/2023 DELTA AIR 0062192566840 Travel, Lodging & Meals CC 9912 $651.40
12/3/2023 THE DINNER* (2 OF 2 PA Professional Development CC 9912 $2,500.08
12/4/2023 All Things Music Educational Services 528284065 $600.00
12/5/2023 Guardian Health Insurance 012Dec2023 $3,768.75
12/5/2023 WWW.NXTLVL.IO Educational Services CC 9912 $14,252.16
12/5/2023 METALCRAFT INC Materials & Supplies - Office CC 9912 $1,608.75
12/5/2023 TIME IS LTD Technology Services & Software - Business CC 9912 $99.00
12/5/2023 KINCAID IT Professional Development CC 9912 $229.00
12/6/2023 Anthem Blue Cross Health Insurance 0202311922412 $23,913.69
12/6/2023 NEXTIVA*VOIP SERVICE Phone / Internet / Website Fees CC 9912 $3,681.34
12/6/2023 NASSP Product &amp; Service Registration Fees - conferences CC 9912 $778.00
12/6/2023 REGAL CINEMAS Educational Services CC 9912 $1,700.00
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12/7/2023 All About Learning Press, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 918922 $53.31
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1RNY-HCXR-7K93 $20.49
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1LM7-76X9-DJFV $20.88
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 114Q-KTTD-9T17 $16.54
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 19NF-NG1T-9VVR $8.61
12/7/2023 McGraw-Hill School Education, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1.30534E+11 $67.50
12/7/2023 Natalia Petrova Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & PET110923 $179.95
12/7/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4251541 $24.20
12/7/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4251542 $96.97
12/7/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4250607 $51.93
12/7/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4252283 $262.48
12/7/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4254189 $205.38
12/7/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4255652 $138.94
12/7/2023 Rightstart Math Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 389174 $115.57
12/7/2023 Senor Wooly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 500821122 $150.00
12/7/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S298452 $93.23
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QJD-M67L-14F6 $15.21
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QMD-69FW-16Q9 $17.55
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1WF7-LCMP-1Y9P $24.08
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VYF-GF4K-6G3H $51.67
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PV9-F6FR-9FVR $59.87
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 134Y-9L9C-79JR $16.11
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1RGQ-HC37-7P76 $7.60
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1LM7-76X9-6KW1 $18.36
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QHD-9PVT-61PY $49.81
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JDL-DRGK-99L4 $19.19
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14QN-3K9V-3HP6 $61.97
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1V79-9LPY-93W4 $19.38
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1RNY-HCXR-7K93 $38.45
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VRY-TNGM-4HDX $9.23
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 169K-N331-CPRV $20.46
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QHD-9PVT-C3Y4 $45.10
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1L1V-JQ3L-9CJT $64.85
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PWF-T17W-CP43 $20.46
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1WQJ-CCMY-3X63 $113.09
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12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13Y6-JWQN-DHFF $60.48
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1V6M-NVV1-1YHQ $59.25
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11QL-JMYW-3YD3 $58.68
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QCV-QWFD-9GCG $31.23
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1G71-WHPT-CND9 $75.10
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VQT-CKDR-3WVX $50.09
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1LFH-YGQ4-DPWJ $64.91
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1YFF-JL49-HXKH $41.98
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FGP-HPGV-GMPJ $112.02
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1VG1-CP44-P7FT $26.93
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 136J-N776-PNJH $52.68
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1WQJ-CCMY-YK1V $43.39
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1F3X-VMWP-VL4K $90.90
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16JX-HTXW-3W1Q $14.09
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JGL-XD6Y-VRWN $27.77
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T7R-JFJ7-13QD $183.16
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FQP-J1RN-7KNF $15.80
12/7/2023 Arts Attack Core Teaching/Student Supplies 22-5963 $147.69
12/7/2023 Blick Art Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1853109 $127.19
12/7/2023 Carroll Business Supply, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies 993557-0 $14.49
12/7/2023 Lakeshore Learning Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 5.33579E+11 $17.80
12/7/2023 Aislynn Gamez Educational Services GAM111323 $150.00
12/7/2023 Amanda George Educational Services GEO111423 $90.00
12/7/2023 Baelin Suggs Educational Services SUG110923 $95.00
12/7/2023 Beyond Today Sports Institute Educational Services 528264373 $630.00
12/7/2023 Beyond Today Sports Institute Educational Services 528266393 $1,607.91
12/7/2023 Brenda Rosales Educational Services ROS111323 $50.75
12/7/2023 Brenna Hill Educational Services 528265380 $280.00
12/7/2023 Cassandra Gallade Educational Services GAL111323 $180.00
12/7/2023 Cece's Artistic Touch Educational Services 566 $25.00
12/7/2023 Cheryl McCormick Educational Services 024 $1,584.00
12/7/2023 Christina Reaber Educational Services 528264381 $125.00
12/7/2023 Coastal Music Studios Educational Services 528267089 $540.00
12/7/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK110923a $80.00
12/7/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK110923 $130.00
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12/7/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK111323 $110.50
12/7/2023 D.D. & S Learning Systems Inc. Educational Services 528264387 $236.00
12/7/2023 Endeavor Gymnastics Educational Services 528266396 $27.50
12/7/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC110923 $90.00
12/7/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC111523 $180.00
12/7/2023 Friends of Willow Tree Educational Services 528262670 $1,866.95
12/7/2023 Heloisa Santospirito Educational Services SAN110923 $60.00
12/7/2023 Heloisa Santospirito Educational Services SAN111323 $145.00
12/7/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA111323 $60.00
12/7/2023 Jeffrey Johnson Educational Services 528263219 $239.25
12/7/2023 Joanie Mendenhall Studio Inc. Educational Services 528262677 $120.00
12/7/2023 Katie Jackson Educational Services JAC110923 $119.00
12/7/2023 Kelsey Swann Educational Services SWA111323 $70.00
12/7/2023 Laura Rascon Educational Services RAS111423 $35.00
12/7/2023 Margaux Fantasia Educational Services FAN111323 $132.00
12/7/2023 Margaux Fantasia Educational Services FAN111323a $108.00
12/7/2023 Mary Resenbeck Educational Services 528264383 $634.00
12/7/2023 Melissa Allen Educational Services 528266389 $640.00
12/7/2023 Michelle Ahlswede Educational Services AHL111323 $54.45
12/7/2023 Nancy Wong Educational Services WON110923 $97.22
12/7/2023 Naomi S. Manker Educational Services 528284164 $3,485.00
12/7/2023 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR111423 $296.00
12/7/2023 Nicole the Math Lady, LLC Educational Services 7663 $79.00
12/7/2023 Rebecca Woolley Educational Services WOO111323 $280.00
12/7/2023 Rebecca Woolley Educational Services WOO111323a $150.00
12/7/2023 RecruitMe Educational Services 1001 $125.00
12/7/2023 Reshma Solbach Educational Services 528264376 $220.00
12/7/2023 Riffs Music Enterprises Inc Educational Services 528267898 $175.00
12/7/2023 Rock Rose School for Creative LearningEducational Services 528264775 $448.00
12/7/2023 Savannah Schuster Educational Services 120123 $400.00
12/7/2023 Sharon Brown Educational Services BRO111423 $280.00
12/7/2023 Sharon Brown Educational Services BRO111423a $280.00
12/7/2023 SoCal STEM LLC Educational Services 528264385 $480.41
12/7/2023 Stephanie Vargas Educational Services VAR111323 $115.00
12/7/2023 Susan Zaugg Educational Services ZAU110923 $170.00
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12/7/2023 Susan Zaugg Educational Services ZAU111423 $130.00
12/7/2023 Susan Zaugg Educational Services ZAU111523 $130.00
12/7/2023 Tutoring Club of Fallbrook Educational Services 528269649 $132.00
12/7/2023 Wendy Yen Educational Services 528264389 $192.00
12/7/2023 Whitney Theel Educational Services THE111423 $135.00
12/7/2023 Knight Security & Fire Systems Fire, Alarm & Pest control 180480 $20.00
12/7/2023 Blank Rome LLP Legal Fees 2157321 $178.50
12/7/2023 CSC Legal Fees 82489608 $42.00
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Professional Development 11M9-DH43-67X4 $208.69
12/7/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Professional Development 1VGQ-GDQ4-WDDJ $23.85
12/7/2023 Video Approach Professional Development 2023-050 $2,085.00
12/7/2023 AGiRepair, Inc. Technology Services & Software - Educational 099737 $119.00
12/7/2023 FEDEX OFFICE 800000836 Postage & Delivery - Educational CC 9912 $32.61
12/8/2023 ULINE *SHIP SUPPLIES Postage & Delivery - Educational CC 9912 $353.26
12/10/2023 AQUARIUM OF PACETICKE Educational Services CC 9912 $449.50
12/10/2023 Subway 3358 Parent & Staff meeting food & supplies CC 9912 $106.52
12/10/2023 SEGERSTROM CTR FOR THE A Educational Services CC 9912 $4,804.00
12/10/2023 ULINE *SHIP SUPPLIES Postage & Delivery - Educational CC 9912 $808.49
12/11/2023 BookShark, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & BI0031529 $19.38
12/11/2023 BookShark, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & BI0031524 $19.38
12/11/2023 Dash Into Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 677310347 $22.99
12/11/2023 Home Science Tools Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 000545089 $42.38
12/11/2023 Home Science Tools Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 000546762 $392.82
12/11/2023 Institute for Excellence in Writing Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1079507 $151.93
12/11/2023 Logic of English Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & SI-196335 $63.01
12/11/2023 MEL Science U.S., LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & FG2023111702 $324.64
12/11/2023 Miaplaza, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4343 $80.00
12/11/2023 Oak Meadow, Inc Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 143370 $122.11
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4227972 $24.28
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4227974 $24.28
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4257635 $19.19
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4257636 $62.29
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4257634 $176.57
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259961 $22.38
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259910 $227.77

Warrant Register: December 01 - January 25, 2024, November + December CC Charges



Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire

12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259791 $17.74
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259892 $148.12
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259834 $67.45
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259841 $67.45
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259982 $44.85
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4260012 $15.80
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259851 $92.68
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4260543 $149.54
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259849 $233.82
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259812 $63.58
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4259918 $204.83
12/11/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S298737 $141.55
12/11/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S298744 $171.46
12/11/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S298747 $499.46
12/11/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 497804 $43.05
12/11/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 248367213 $25.97
12/11/2023 Well Trained Mind Press Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & INV2301010 $27.95
12/11/2023 Kent Christensen Board Stipends - Attendance 12Dec2023ME $300.00
12/11/2023 Lindsey Burkett Board Stipends - Attendance 12Dec2023ME $300.00
12/11/2023 Ronald Lloyd Jackson Board Stipends - Attendance 12Dec2023ME $300.00
12/11/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16LX-JGCC-G3X6 $17.75
12/11/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1YJD-F6NM-GC17 $139.47
12/11/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13RL-P19H-TRCT $175.69
12/11/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13PG-P3N7-VD3C $11.84
12/11/2023 Blick Art Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1867937 $129.95
12/11/2023 CrunchLabs LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies SHOP22185904211 $96.81
12/11/2023 CrunchLabs LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies SHOP22186303611 $97.71
12/11/2023 Danyelle Dale Core Teaching/Student Supplies DAL111723 $34.00
12/11/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-EF92D46711102349 $193.21
12/11/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-3E66DC5811102353 $193.21
12/11/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-0D87618611132328 $251.80
12/11/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-3004D9C411082334 $251.80
12/11/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-F10CCDB511162319 $270.94
12/11/2023 Lakeshore Learning Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 5.56056E+11 $50.28
12/11/2023 Lego Education Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1190585885 $484.77
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12/11/2023 Mimeo.com, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1956660 $1,549.50
12/11/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4259857 $55.12
12/11/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies S298748 $357.45
12/11/2023 ATH Academy Educational Services 528275357 $125.00
12/11/2023 Amanda Fernandez Educational Services FER112023 $79.50
12/11/2023 Amy Helfrich Educational Services HEL112223 $475.00
12/11/2023 April Holemo Educational Services HOL112123 $55.00
12/11/2023 Creative Stem and Arts Educational Services 528270775 $175.00
12/11/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC111623 $180.00
12/11/2023 Foundations Tutoring Educational Services 528275372 $230.00
12/11/2023 Jennifer Ervin Educational Services ERV111623 $71.00
12/11/2023 Jennifer Ervin Educational Services ERV111623a $71.00
12/11/2023 Kimberly Keeth Educational Services 528279307 $180.00
12/11/2023 Kimberly Keeth Educational Services 528284118 $2,375.51
12/11/2023 Lauren Sheehy Educational Services SHE112023 $116.67
12/11/2023 Lena Olson Educational Services 015 $350.00
12/11/2023 Megan Purcell Educational Services PUR112123 $110.00
12/11/2023 Megan Purcell Educational Services PUR112123a $125.00
12/11/2023 Megan Thornton Educational Services THO112023a $100.00
12/11/2023 Megan Thornton Educational Services THO112023 $100.00
12/11/2023 Melissa Cole Educational Services 528275367 $55.00
12/11/2023 Michelle Ahlswede Educational Services AHL111623 $54.45
12/11/2023 Michelle Ahlswede Educational Services AHL111623a $54.45
12/11/2023 Michelle Devlin Educational Services DEV111723a $112.00
12/11/2023 Michelle Devlin Educational Services DEV111723 $112.00
12/11/2023 Mikala Aragon Educational Services 528273084 $216.66
12/11/2023 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR111723 $276.00
12/11/2023 Regine Swim Educational Services 528275377 $640.00
12/11/2023 Sandra Lund Educational Services 528271716 $388.00
12/11/2023 Vanessa Anderson Educational Services 528275369 $280.00
12/11/2023 Victoria Jensen Educational Services JEN112123 $101.67
12/11/2023 ZT Prospects Academy LLC Educational Services 528275379 $1,600.00
12/11/2023 Great American Insurance Group General Liability Insurance 012Dec2023ME $3,124.00
12/11/2023 Hatch & Cesario, Attorneys-at-Law Legal Fees 15633 $8,194.00
12/11/2023 Hatch & Cesario, Attorneys-at-Law Legal Fees 15631 $459.00
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12/11/2023 Hatch & Cesario, Attorneys-at-Law Legal Fees 15632 $255.00
12/11/2023 San Diego County Office of Education Professional Development 099-043686 $2,000.00
12/11/2023 Multi-Health Systems, Inc. Special Education Services ORD-364625-Y4S9C0 $112.50
12/11/2023 Specialized Therapy Services, Inc. Special Education Services ELAA02-1023 $1,135.00
12/11/2023 Curriculum Associates Student Assessments 90793841 $10,260.60
12/11/2023 Marsh & McLennan Agency, LLC Workers Compensation 2489770 $4,067.50
12/11/2023 DOMINO'S 8131 Travel, Lodging & Meals CC 9912 $144.35
12/12/2023 PAYPAL *PACBATTLE Core Teaching/Student Supplies CC 9912 $345.00
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1KW3-Q1HR-6H9L $50.72
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1GJW-VHYW-7C1D $22.27
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 14YJ-6TNX-6QHJ $26.94
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1Q1M-YK4Q-7T9V $3.69
12/13/2023 Home Science Tools Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 000550228 $105.77
12/13/2023 Institute for Excellence in Writing Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1081229 $44.18
12/13/2023 Mimeo.com, Inc Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1957709 $1,198.79
12/13/2023 My Math Assistant, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 26C93692-0001 $71.92
12/13/2023 My Math Assistant, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 26C93692-0002 $71.92
12/13/2023 The Classical Historian Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 58685 $50.98
12/13/2023 Valley Office Equipment Copier Lease, Service, Toner & Repair IN2311-1484 $15.62
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1CGL-V96G-73R1 $75.18
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JDJ -MW3P-3966 $182.58
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13PG-MFWY-9Q1T $93.48
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JFM-QKJX-7QDW $65.24
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T7Q-7VL7-9KNK $38.55
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1GJW-VHYW-7C1D $9.99
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1P9F-F7LD-696N $29.02
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JFM-QKJX-C4DF $11.80
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1XGP-JXPG-96VV $9.53
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 196X-MFRH-6H3G $28.48
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1Q1M-YK4Q-7T9V $25.02
12/13/2023 CrunchLabs LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies SHOP22189866411 $96.81
12/13/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-96F4E24F11292336 $134.63
12/13/2023 Mimeo.com, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1957709 $392.33
12/13/2023 Music 6000 Core Teaching/Student Supplies 944 $6,180.00
12/13/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA112723 $250.00
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12/13/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA112923b $250.00
12/13/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA112923 $250.00
12/13/2023 Abderrahmane Ouagague Educational Services OUA112923a $250.00
12/13/2023 Aislynn Gamez Educational Services GAM112723 $150.00
12/13/2023 Andrea Reid Educational Services REI112723 $52.00
12/13/2023 April Holemo Educational Services HOL112723 $100.00
12/13/2023 Baelin Suggs Educational Services SUG112923 $95.00
12/13/2023 Chelsea Price Educational Services PRI112823 $199.00
12/13/2023 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI112823 $285.00
12/13/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL112823b $144.00
12/13/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL112823 $144.00
12/13/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL112823c $144.00
12/13/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL112823a $144.00
12/13/2023 Elizabeth Jacinto Educational Services JAC112823 $136.00
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112823b $180.00
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112823 $62.50
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112823a $180.00
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112823c $87.50
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112923a $62.50
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112923 $87.50
12/13/2023 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC112923b $90.00
12/13/2023 Jacob Coronado Educational Services COR112823b $105.69
12/13/2023 Jacob Coronado Educational Services COR112823a $105.69
12/13/2023 Jacob Coronado Educational Services COR112823 $105.69
12/13/2023 Jacob Coronado Educational Services COR112923 $105.69
12/13/2023 Julia Amonette-Hinke Educational Services 528278467 $1,010.66
12/13/2023 Karyn Colon Educational Services COL112823 $48.00
12/13/2023 Katie Jackson Educational Services JAC112823a $85.00
12/13/2023 Laura Palmer Educational Services PAL112823 $150.00
12/13/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA112823 $192.25
12/13/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA112823b $210.00
12/13/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA112823a $152.00
12/13/2023 Nancy Wong Educational Services WON112723 $82.77
12/13/2023 Nancy Wong Educational Services WON112723a $97.22
12/13/2023 Oceanside Ivey Ranch Park AssociationEducational Services 528278468 $375.00
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12/13/2023 Rebecca Woolley Educational Services WOO112723 $135.63
12/13/2023 Sarah Larson Educational Services LAR112723 $141.00
12/13/2023 WorldStrides Specialty Travel Program Educational Services 581255 $3,875.00
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Materials & Supplies - Office 1CWK-41D4-6TFX $143.31
12/13/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Professional Development 1D39-TN6P-R9N9 $216.77
12/13/2023 Ruth Chatton Professional Development CHA120523 $2,970.00
12/13/2023 Life Storage Rent - Facilities Lease 12Dec23#658b $156.50
12/13/2023 OPS Technology Services & Software - Educational 2506 $1,322.83
12/13/2023 AQUARIUM OF PACTIX Educational Services CC 9912 $39.80
12/14/2023 Aflac Health Insurance 054367 $710.02
12/14/2023 LABORLAWCENTER LLC Materials & Supplies - Office CC 9912 $169.52
12/14/2023 LABORLAWCENTER LLC Materials & Supplies - Office CC 9912 $169.52
12/15/2023 HOSA Inc. Dues & Memberships CC 9912 $152.70
12/15/2023 WPY*Creative Catering Professional Development CC 9912 $1,702.00
12/17/2023 PAPA JOHN'S #1958 Travel, Lodging & Meals CC 9912 $83.03
12/19/2023 FIS LOCKBOX OPERATIONS ATTN:PITN Postage & Delivery - Educational 024.ME $7,000.00
12/20/2023 Savannah Schuster Educational Services 121523 $800.00
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1KW3-Q1HR-CLD1 $18.93
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1RDN-CMFW-G4D1 $97.82
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1JDJ-MW3P-PK7J $82.11
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1T7Q-7VL7-DN6C $13.94
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1XNV-TF7K-CCDV $8.99
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1JV7-137M-MD9T $22.99
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 196X-MFRH-HTKJ $19.38
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1FV4-J9G3-J3GC $19.32
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1PQM-VHCM-1H6H $6.40
12/21/2023 Home Science Tools Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 000550611 $16.56
12/21/2023 Mystery Science Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 245313 $109.00
12/21/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4276459 $54.95
12/21/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4276433 $41.44
12/21/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4276419 $41.06
12/21/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4276479 $189.15
12/21/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 498286 $43.05
12/21/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 498284 $43.05
12/21/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 498285 $43.05
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12/21/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 498281 $43.05
12/21/2023 Studies Weekly Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 498283 $43.05
12/21/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 249567451 $12.75
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QPW-46GF-FXFH $19.38
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1G61-C1FF-FCCJ $221.67
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1KW3-Q1HR-CLD1 $72.46
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1M4V-PVXX-RKQX $77.06
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1RDN-CMFW-K4YF $67.10
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T7Q-7VL7-DN6C $57.69
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11K3-J9H6-P6PY $60.10
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1CWK-LWVF-T6Q9 $61.74
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1XNV-TF7K-CCDV $56.34
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16KG-DQJD-1J77 $51.15
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JDJ-MW3P-M1VR $50.48
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T7Q-7VL7-M3Q1 $45.10
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QGP-J6YW-JTXH $37.57
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1496-RCFQ-JVN7 $37.92
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11M7-XC4H-T7L1 $33.38
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JFM-QKJX-PMC3 $31.54
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1M4V-PVXX-G4LJ $31.25
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1Q1M-YK4Q-H6RW $26.93
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1T7Q-7VL7-FV9T $31.25
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17KK-NNHJ-FGQM $31.25
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FH4-XXXP-73K1 $28.13
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13PG-MFWY-QWP9 $15.51
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PXN-YCVH-FXNN $9.15
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1K77-YDGM-K4GL $10.72
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PH4-96LT-K6KR $6.45
12/21/2023 CrunchLabs LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies SHOP22189899511 $96.81
12/21/2023 Lakeshore Learning Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 6.89936E+11 $305.89
12/21/2023 Staples Business Credit Core Teaching/Student Supplies 7621450965-0-1 $77.67
12/21/2023 Staples Business Credit Core Teaching/Student Supplies 7619710060-0-1 $70.78
12/21/2023 Timberdoodle Co. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 427907 $30.42
12/21/2023 ATH Academy Educational Services 528284068 $160.00
12/21/2023 Andrew Luria Educational Services 528286705 $181.25

Warrant Register: December 01 - January 25, 2024, November + December CC Charges



Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire

12/21/2023 Angela Aymin Educational Services 528284176 $300.00
12/21/2023 Angela Froistad Educational Services FRO113023 $110.00
12/21/2023 Bionerds Educational Services 528289296 $66.00
12/21/2023 Cambria Lingenfelder Educational Services 528284143 $987.50
12/21/2023 Christina Barber Educational Services 528289300 $449.25
12/21/2023 Christina Reaber Educational Services 528284129 $361.33
12/21/2023 Creative Stem and Arts Educational Services 528284079 $575.00
12/21/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK120123 $89.00
12/21/2023 Cristina Gregorio Educational Services GRE120123 $330.00
12/21/2023 Drawn2Art San Diego Inc. Educational Services 528284091 $160.00
12/21/2023 Driven Tutoring Educational Services 528286698 $1,950.00
12/21/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL113023 $144.00
12/21/2023 Endeavor Gymnastics Educational Services 528287510 $110.00
12/21/2023 Erika Lupo Educational Services LUP120123 $80.00
12/21/2023 Foundations Tutoring Educational Services 528284097 $230.00
12/21/2023 Gilmore Speaks Educational Services 528289302 $900.00
12/21/2023 Head2Heart Partners in Education Educational Services 528289309 $1,540.74
12/21/2023 Jaclyn Hutchins* Educational Services 528284107 $175.00
12/21/2023 Jennifer Doerrige Educational Services DOE113023 $51.50
12/21/2023 Jessica Moller Educational Services 528284153 $291.67
12/21/2023 Joanie Mendenhall Studio Inc. Educational Services 528284109 $400.00
12/21/2023 Karyn Colon Educational Services COL113023 $96.00
12/21/2023 Kristen Buehler Educational Services 528284102 $1,000.00
12/21/2023 Laura George Educational Services 528284100 $87.50
12/21/2023 Laura Wedemeyer Educational Services 528289310 $600.00
12/21/2023 Louvina Sheffield Educational Services 528286722 $1,095.00
12/21/2023 Marcelle Caratti Educational Services 528286714 $120.00
12/21/2023 Marsha Williams Educational Services WIL120123 $58.33
12/21/2023 Melissa Cole Educational Services 528284077 $220.00
12/21/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528286697 $192.00
12/21/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528284071 $1,542.00
12/21/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528287507 $456.00
12/21/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528289297 $384.00
12/21/2023 Melissa Leonard Educational Services 528284145 $490.00
12/21/2023 Michelle Peabody Educational Services PEA120123 $158.75
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12/21/2023 Mikala Aragon Educational Services 528284078 $216.66
12/21/2023 Mikala Janse van Rensburg Educational Services 528284108 $68.75
12/21/2023 Neesha N. Rahim Educational Services 068 $7,500.00
12/21/2023 Neesha N. Rahim Educational Services 051 $15,750.00
12/21/2023 New West Ballet School Educational Services 528284155 $85.00
12/21/2023 Noonan Family Swim School, Inc. Educational Services 528284168 $120.00
12/21/2023 Noonan Family Swim School, Inc. Educational Services 528284165 $220.00
12/21/2023 Paint it Black Art, LLC Educational Services 528284179 $200.00
12/21/2023 Rap A Tap Center For The Arts Educational Services 528284181 $62.00
12/21/2023 Regine Swim Educational Services 528284186 $255.00
12/21/2023 Reshma Solbach Educational Services 528284088 $220.00
12/21/2023 Robin Dapper Educational Services 528284086 $288.00
12/21/2023 Rock Creek Education Center Educational Services 528284212 $12,691.13
12/21/2023 Rock Rose School for Creative LearningEducational Services 528286701 $3,607.25
12/21/2023 Roos Music Inc. Educational Services 528286721 $390.00
12/21/2023 Sand n' Straw LLC Educational Services 528284188 $1,830.00
12/21/2023 Selene A. Gomez Educational Services 528286708 $240.00
12/21/2023 SoCal Gymnastics Training Center Educational Services 528284191 $750.00
12/21/2023 Suzanne Lockyer Educational Services 528284144 $350.00
12/21/2023 Temecula Music Teacher, LLC Educational Services 528289337 $1,292.50
12/21/2023 Tutoring Club of Fallbrook Educational Services 528284192 $864.00
12/21/2023 U.S. Music Lessons Educational Services 528286723 $228.00
12/21/2023 Vanessa Anderson Educational Services 528284094 $140.00
12/21/2023 ZT Prospects Academy LLC Educational Services 528284204 $1,075.00
12/21/2023 weXplore LLC Educational Services 528284196 $260.00
12/21/2023 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Materials & Supplies - Office 1QGP-J6YW-T743 $404.36
12/21/2023 Frontier Phone / Internet / Website Fees 001Jan2024-41775 $182.46
12/21/2023 Stukent, Inc. Technology Services & Software - Educational 20399 $500.00
12/22/2023 STARLINK INTERNET Phone / Internet / Website Fees CC 9912 $150.00
12/24/2023 PURCHASE INTEREST CHARGE Interest CC 9912 $570.55
12/26/2023 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan Health Insurance 6.7077E+11 $13,174.31
12/27/2023 Kimberly Keeth Educational Services 528322946 $1,672.64
12/29/2023 BookShark, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & BI0032042 $135.58
12/29/2023 History Unboxed LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & wc-20726HU $287.60
12/29/2023 Institute for Excellence in Writing Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1082109 $44.18
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12/29/2023 Institute for Excellence in Writing Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1082101 $117.34
12/29/2023 Mayra Reynoso Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & REY121123 $70.67
12/29/2023 Outschool, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 12345723082 $154.00
12/29/2023 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4287718 $80.37
12/29/2023 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S299777 $73.20
12/29/2023 Stephens Educational Services, LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 144613 $86.10
12/29/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250940271 $1.25
12/29/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250929797 $18.00
12/29/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250940780 $16.00
12/29/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250930842 $22.75
12/29/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250932376 $25.00
12/29/2023 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250931872 $33.00
12/29/2023 Arts Attack Core Teaching/Student Supplies 22-5971 $255.94
12/29/2023 Jeanette Lotze Core Teaching/Student Supplies LOT121123 $119.99
12/29/2023 Karyn Colon Core Teaching/Student Supplies COL120723 $34.44
12/29/2023 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-B5922E1712082359 $112.98
12/29/2023 Lakeshore Learning Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 6.89978E+11 $316.61
12/29/2023 Thomas S. Olson Core Teaching/Student Supplies OLS120623 $56.77
12/29/2023 Alicia Topping Educational Services TOP120723 $70.00
12/29/2023 Alicia Topping Educational Services TOP120723a $76.50
12/29/2023 Allison Browning Educational Services 528295579 $215.00
12/29/2023 Allison Browning Educational Services 528296702 $90.00
12/29/2023 Amber Pich Educational Services 528307330 $440.00
12/29/2023 Ana Gutierrez-Soto Educational Services GUT121023 $60.00
12/29/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR120623a $75.00
12/29/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR120623b $40.00
12/29/2023 Ashley Jordan Educational Services JOR120623 $80.00
12/29/2023 Branche Jones Educational Services 121 $1,500.00
12/29/2023 Brenda Rosales Educational Services ROS120723 $50.00
12/29/2023 Cadence Dance Project Inc. Educational Services 528289298 $75.00
12/29/2023 Caroline Beus Educational Services 528291420 $810.00
12/29/2023 Club Z! Tutoring Temecula Educational Services 528296699 $330.00
12/29/2023 Coastal Music Studios Educational Services 528298967 $1,080.00
12/29/2023 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI120623 $160.00
12/29/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK120523 $60.00
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12/29/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK120523a $60.00
12/29/2023 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK120523b $60.00
12/29/2023 D.D. & S Learning Systems Inc. Educational Services 528311074 $950.00
12/29/2023 Debora Belardino Educational Services 527496250 $140.00
12/29/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KHO120423 $66.00
12/29/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KH0120623 $115.00
12/29/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KH0120823 $39.67
12/29/2023 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KH0120823a $120.00
12/29/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL121023b $210.00
12/29/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL121023 $210.00
12/29/2023 Edward Walker Educational Services WAL121023a $210.00
12/29/2023 Friends of Willow Tree Educational Services 528294420 $16,178.92
12/29/2023 Grace Rohrer Educational Services ROH121123b $68.00
12/29/2023 Grace Rohrer Educational Services ROH121123a $68.00
12/29/2023 Grace Rohrer Educational Services ROH121123 $68.00
12/29/2023 Gyminny Kids Inc Educational Services 528290849 $1,884.79
12/29/2023 JKW Innovations LLC Educational Services 528300525 $160.00
12/29/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA120423a $152.00
12/29/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA120423 $68.00
12/29/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA120423b $156.50
12/29/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA120423c $128.00
12/29/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA120723 $256.00
12/29/2023 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA120723a $160.00
12/29/2023 Jamie Salgado Educational Services SAL120923 $350.00
12/29/2023 Jeannette Growler Educational Services GRO120523 $30.00
12/29/2023 Jennifer Doerrige Educational Services DOE120923 $105.50
12/29/2023 Jennifer Doerrige Educational Services DOE120923a $61.50
12/29/2023 Julie Schmidtler Educational Services 528290851 $630.00
12/29/2023 KRCStrength Educational Services 528296987 $233.34
12/29/2023 Kelsey Swann Educational Services SWA120623 $275.00
12/29/2023 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI120423 $230.00
12/29/2023 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI120723 $230.00
12/29/2023 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI120823a $48.00
12/29/2023 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI120823 $88.00
12/29/2023 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL120623b $200.00
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12/29/2023 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL120623 $200.00
12/29/2023 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL120623a $200.00
12/29/2023 Laura Shepherd Educational Services SHE120423 $200.00
12/29/2023 Leading Note Studios-San Marcos, LLC Educational Services 528289328 $577.50
12/29/2023 Leading Note Studios-San Marcos, LLC Educational Services 528290836 $247.50
12/29/2023 Lydia Villa Educational Services VIL120423 $675.00
12/29/2023 Mary Longbottom Tutoring Educational Services 528307322 $603.34
12/29/2023 Mary Resenbeck Educational Services 528301555 $317.00
12/29/2023 Megan McDaniel Educational Services MCD120823a $179.00
12/29/2023 Megan McDaniel Educational Services MCD120823 $199.00
12/29/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528295572 $384.00
12/29/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528300523 $186.00
12/29/2023 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528303730 $744.00
12/29/2023 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR121123a $175.62
12/29/2023 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR121123 $139.17
12/29/2023 Oceanside Ivey Ranch Park AssociationEducational Services 528304846 $196.00
12/29/2023 Randall Music School Educational Services 528294060 $627.00
12/29/2023 Raynee Ramstad Educational Services RAM120523 $118.00
12/29/2023 Renea Ree Educational Services 528290838 $320.00
12/29/2023 Safe Swim Academy Educational Services 528295582 $240.00
12/29/2023 Sharon Gamadia Educational Services GAM121123 $95.00
12/29/2023 Snapology of Solana Beach Educational Services 528307332 $2,190.00
12/29/2023 SoCal Gymnastics Training Center Educational Services 528289334 $207.00
12/29/2023 SoCal STEM LLC Educational Services 528309049 $427.08
12/29/2023 Steffani Clark-Jijon Educational Services 528296700 $544.00
12/29/2023 Thomas S. Olson Educational Services OLS120623a $100.00
12/29/2023 Tiffany Kyle Educational Services KYL120823 $120.00
12/29/2023 Trini Torres Educational Services TOR120423 $9.00
12/29/2023 Victor Higareda Educational Services HIG120723 $45.00
12/29/2023 Xtreme Fit Murrieta Inc Educational Services 528302401 $156.00
12/29/2023 Blank Rome LLP Legal Fees 2164379 $760.00
12/29/2023 Thomas S. Olson Mileage, Parking & Tolls OLS120623 $39.00
12/29/2023 Mia Blackwell Parent & Staff meeting food & supplies BLA121123 $17.20
12/29/2023 Thomas S. Olson Postage & Delivery - Educational OLS120623 $22.46
12/29/2023 McColgan & Associates, Inc. Special Education Services 6087 $360.00
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12/29/2023 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3099 $960.63
12/29/2023 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3100 $3,676.89
12/29/2023 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3109 $66.25
12/29/2023 San Joaquin County Office of Educatio Staff Recruiting 242428 $600.00
12/29/2023 San Joaquin County Office of Educatio Staff Recruiting 242427 $2,400.00
12/29/2023 School Pathways Holdings, LLC Technology Services & Software - Educational 140-INV5813 $4,406.48
1/3/2024 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 251361642 $43.49
1/3/2024 Lakeshore Learning Materials Core Teaching/Student Supplies 6.89936E+11 $69.59
1/3/2024 Althea Paraiso Educational Services PAR121423 $50.00
1/3/2024 Angela Aymin Educational Services 528322964 $600.00
1/3/2024 Caroline Beus Educational Services 528319489 $300.00
1/3/2024 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK121423a $110.50
1/3/2024 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK121423 $80.00
1/3/2024 Evaly Hanson Educational Services HAN121323 $80.00
1/3/2024 Gathered Oak LLC Educational Services 528324619 $1,356.00
1/3/2024 Heloisa Santospirito Educational Services SAN121423 $145.00
1/3/2024 Jaclyn Hutchins* Educational Services 528324148 $105.00
1/3/2024 Jaclyn Hutchins* Educational Services 528322944 $70.00
1/3/2024 Katie Jackson Educational Services JAC121423 $119.00
1/3/2024 Kevin Lee Educational Services 528322969 $200.01
1/3/2024 Laura Rascon Educational Services RAS121323 $95.25
1/3/2024 Laura Wedemeyer Educational Services 528325135 $265.00
1/3/2024 Louvina Sheffield Educational Services 528322965 $438.00
1/3/2024 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528312923 $180.00
1/3/2024 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528322939 $603.00
1/3/2024 Melissa Leonard Educational Services 528322954 $140.00
1/3/2024 New West Ballet School Educational Services 528322958 $85.00
1/3/2024 Robin Dapper Educational Services 528322943 $290.00
1/3/2024 Sara Krause-Whyte Educational Services 528324160 $4,325.00
1/3/2024 Suzanne Lockyer Educational Services 528322949 $262.50
1/3/2024 Suzanne Lockyer Educational Services 528324157 $87.50
1/3/2024 Tutoring Club of Fallbrook Educational Services 528322979 $704.00
1/3/2024 Anthem Blue Cross Health Insurance 0202312922887 $26,390.12
1/3/2024 Guardian Health Insurance 001Jan2024 $4,636.31
1/3/2024 FlipSwitch Marketing LLC Marketing INVFM383 $8,281.53
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1/3/2024 Nexelm LLC Rent - Facilities Lease ELM203_010124 $2,558.60
1/3/2024 Wildomar Valley Wood Products, Inc., Rent - Facilities Lease 01Jan2024Lease $2,752.50
1/3/2024 Multi-Health Systems, Inc. Special Education Services ORD-372878-X5C4C7 $53.12
1/3/2024 Multi-Health Systems, Inc. Special Education Services ORD-371321-BOT4M6 $56.25
1/3/2024 Southern California Edison Utilities - Gas/Electric/Water 001JanSCE2024ME $232.35
1/4/2024 Staples Technology Solutions Technology Services & Software - Educational PKA047 $800.00
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1FH4-XXXP-LQ6F $3.86
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1YW7-M3MC-HYP9 $122.13
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1Q7M-1VFD-JNFG $4.78
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 13Y7-1NYL-9L3P $104.52
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1W9Y-JHNR-J77Y $20.40
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1WD4-Q17Q-R1JK $6.44
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1X66-C MP3-6LYJ $8.12
1/5/2024 Amy Kay Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & KAY121823 $122.66
1/5/2024 Amy Kay Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & KAY121923 $122.66
1/5/2024 Brave Writer Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 528278170 $49.00
1/5/2024 Cristine Carrier Schmidt Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & CAR122123 $175.00
1/5/2024 Dash Into Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 677310350 $119.99
1/5/2024 Ivy Kids LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 5105 $239.70
1/5/2024 Outschool, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 12345723389 $335.00
1/5/2024 Outschool, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 12345723392 $182.00
1/5/2024 Outschool, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 12345723391 $221.00
1/5/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4217582 $71.81
1/5/2024 Zingy Learning Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 27017 $750.00
1/5/2024 Pitney Bowes Global Financial ServicesBusiness Services 3106469301 $179.28
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FW9-763T-KC3Y $19.38
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1YD9-9LHX-3MQH $16.70
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PFW-C7CP-CV4J $348.31
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1YW7-M3MC-HYP9 $83.85
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14NK-4N4D-JTY9 $196.26
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1Q7M-1VFD-JNFG $130.27
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FHD-VRY3-19CG $100.81
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1M7D-GNNF-3TMQ $92.37
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1WD4-Q17Q-RQR7 $100.81
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QF9-HHXV-GY4M $68.46

Warrant Register: December 01 - January 25, 2024, November + December CC Charges



Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire

1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17RL-PMFF-PXJM $68.82
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13WY-WR9Y-JYJK $58.12
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1R6M-MWRH-9VK4 $48.82
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14LM-J14W-LC3T $26.09
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16PK-FTJJ-JDPM $44.47
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14NQ-1K31-PMLC $26.93
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1MPD-QCYL-TCGX $43.05
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1C1X-VK1C-FKRP $44.47
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1KNN-MWJD-LTWM $44.47
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14NK-4N4D-QHX6 $31.25
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17RL-PMFF-L1T3 $25.85
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1X99-9JQD-MWKQ $44.47
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1W9Y-JHNR-J77Y $14.99
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1XX7-FWNV-QLJJ $10.51
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HXJ-3714-H39N $10.18
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16KG-DQJD-PKRL $7.65
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1KPR-DVFT-1Q7J $9.69
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HXJ-3714-JKMD $6.02
1/5/2024 Eddie Khoury Core Teaching/Student Supplies KHO122023 $322.60
1/5/2024 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-D470CABB12132339 $91.53
1/5/2024 Little Passports, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies IN-0000997072 $187.16
1/5/2024 ATH Academy Educational Services 528337165 $90.00
1/5/2024 Adriana Williams Educational Services WIL122023 $167.15
1/5/2024 Aislynn Gamez Educational Services GAM121523 $92.00
1/5/2024 All Things Music Educational Services 528337160 $450.00
1/5/2024 Amber Pich Educational Services 528337243 $105.00
1/5/2024 Andrea Reid Educational Services REI121923 $52.00
1/5/2024 Andrew Calise Educational Services CAL122123 $360.00
1/5/2024 April Holemo Educational Services HOL122023 $55.00
1/5/2024 Bionerds Educational Services 528337169 $66.00
1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121823b $160.00
1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121823 $45.00
1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121823c $160.00
1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121823a $160.00
1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121923b $45.00
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1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121923a $45.00
1/5/2024 Candace Nielson Educational Services NIE121923 $45.00
1/5/2024 Cece's Artistic Touch Educational Services 567 $25.00
1/5/2024 Chelsea Price Educational Services PRI122023 $199.00
1/5/2024 Chrisitan Moreno Educational Services 002 $125.00
1/5/2024 Courtney White Menezes Educational Services WHI122023 $285.00
1/5/2024 Cristina Duke Educational Services DUK122023 $130.00
1/5/2024 Drawn2Art San Diego Inc. Educational Services 528337174 $160.00
1/5/2024 Eddie Khoury Educational Services KHO122123 $86.25
1/5/2024 Elsa Caberte Educational Services 528337198 $707.16
1/5/2024 Erika Lupo Educational Services LUP122123 $270.40
1/5/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122023 $87.50
1/5/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122023a $87.50
1/5/2024 Gabrielle Albanese Educational Services ALB122023 $18.75
1/5/2024 Gabrielle Albanese Educational Services ALB122023a $18.75
1/5/2024 Heloisa Santospirito Educational Services SAN122023 $60.00
1/5/2024 Jack Panasci Educational Services PAN122023 $190.00
1/5/2024 Jessica Moller Educational Services 528337234 $140.00
1/5/2024 Joanie Mendenhall Studio Inc. Educational Services 528337208 $320.00
1/5/2024 John Chang Educational Services CHA122123 $96.00
1/5/2024 Laura Twitchell Educational Services TWI122023 $240.00
1/5/2024 Lauren Sheehy Educational Services SHE121923 $116.66
1/5/2024 Leading Note Studios-San Marcos, LLC Educational Services 528337214 $577.50
1/5/2024 Megan Purcell Educational Services PUR121923 $96.00
1/5/2024 Melissa Leonard Educational Services 528337231 $420.00
1/5/2024 Naomi S. Manker Educational Services 528337235 $2,047.59
1/5/2024 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR121423 $93.75
1/5/2024 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR122023a $296.00
1/5/2024 Natalia Martinez Rodriguez Educational Services MAR122023 $276.00
1/5/2024 Natalie Dawson Educational Services DAW121523 $200.00
1/5/2024 Noonan Family Swim School, Inc. Educational Services 528337242 $120.00
1/5/2024 Noonan Family Swim School, Inc. Educational Services 528337238 $165.00
1/5/2024 Reshma Solbach Educational Services 528337173 $120.00
1/5/2024 Sahar Zubaidi Educational Services 528337244 $50.00
1/5/2024 Sand n' Straw LLC Educational Services 528337246 $1,014.68
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1/5/2024 Sharon Brown Educational Services BRO121823 $140.00
1/5/2024 Sharon Brown Educational Services BRO121823a $140.00
1/5/2024 Steffani Clark-Jijon Educational Services 528337201 $272.00
1/5/2024 Stephanie Vargas Educational Services VAR121823 $115.00
1/5/2024 SwiftKick Martial Arts Inc. Educational Services 528337258 $240.00
1/5/2024 Tiffany Kyle Educational Services KYL121823 $102.00
1/5/2024 Certifix Live Scan Fingerprinting 82180 $169.25
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Materials & Supplies - Office 1JWC-7QTM-6TYC $86.39
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Professional Development 11WJ-9J6C-NVXG $127.44
1/5/2024 NCS Pearson, Inc. Special Education Services 23851079 $296.06
1/5/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Technology Equipment - Staff 137V-FLWC-6TFV $86.99
1/5/2024 T-Mobile Technology Services & Software - Educational 988741886-09 $5,695.30
1/5/2024 Marsh & McLennan Agency, LLC Workers Compensation 2518552 $4,067.50
1/9/2024 Bagger Sports Marketing 5419 $7,234.58
1/11/2024 All About Learning Press, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 919155 $182.30
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1M34-QFGN-G1WL $27.99
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 16XD-CCPC-C1XY $17.98
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1G3F-CK7V-CGY9 $29.98
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 11VK-GJMJ-CCWG $16.74
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1FG7-CGWV-FX3M $26.61
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 161D-QKPT-FJQW $58.00
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1RM3-HNRQ-FFL7 $12.43
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 16XD-CCPC-FNFG $38.02
1/11/2024 Athena's Advanced Academy, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1694 $795.29
1/11/2024 MEL Science U.S., LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & IM2023121502 $324.64
1/11/2024 Outschool, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 12345723790 $40.00
1/11/2024 Outschool, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 12345723789 $240.00
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4288054 $63.98
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4295737 $91.76
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4276396 $131.17
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4295689 $90.96
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4295709 $29.20
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4295744 $30.12
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4295757 $41.21
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4298024 $43.54
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1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4298009 $65.98
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4300263 $50.60
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4300264 $17.74
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4298005 $141.25
1/11/2024 Valley Office Equipment Copier Lease, Service, Toner & Repair IN2312-1406 $15.62
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1LHW-9JHK-JH36 $110.95
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 199X-43F9-464X $152.51
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11VK-GJMJ-CTLK $45.21
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1TR3-LL1F-DKKK $13.97
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HKW-LXVL-C6YT $3.76
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1LXQ-4YF1-9QY1 $10.76
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PQ3-GKNN-3KX9 $15.07
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HKW-LXVL-CFDY $6.78
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1JGR-3MM1-9L6Y $242.04
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1GMK-9Y6W-9KP6 $107.17
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17R1-LP7J-4DM3 $20.46
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1HKW-LXVL-D6R6 $35.58
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 19LK-4K7P-DM71 $153.00
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1KC4-Q4RN-CN14 $26.93
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 14RJ-GQ3Y-DLQV $68.87
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1L4Y-LRVC-DHDX $74.29
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 11QH-CCMK-FH4H $44.46
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1G6R-3L3V-H3NX $72.56
1/11/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1NM6-LGNM-DM4F $24.77
1/11/2024 CrunchLabs LLC Core Teaching/Student Supplies SHOP22192976011 $96.81
1/11/2024 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-E5B8E22A12112303 $134.63
1/11/2024 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-6509A58712112353 $107.70
1/11/2024 Lego Education Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1190590612 $160.49
1/11/2024 Little Passports, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies IN-0000997138 $502.98
1/11/2024 Little Passports, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies IN-0000997157 $187.16
1/11/2024 My ZOO Box Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4B9B26BD-0001 $113.85
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4300273 $113.97
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4300282 $190.63
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4300281 $124.80
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4300276 $492.92
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1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4300267 $538.87
1/11/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4300271 $538.87
1/11/2024 Allison Browning Educational Services 528337229 $305.00
1/11/2024 Amy Helfrich Educational Services HEL122223 $475.00
1/11/2024 Amy Helfrich Educational Services HEL122723 $620.00
1/11/2024 Baelin Suggs Educational Services SUG122123 $95.00
1/11/2024 Cambria Lingenfelder Educational Services 528337225 $370.00
1/11/2024 Christina Barber Educational Services 528337180 $272.25
1/11/2024 Driven Tutoring Educational Services 528337175 $1,350.00
1/11/2024 Elise Boddie Educational Services BOD122623a $20.00
1/11/2024 Elise Boddie Educational Services BOD122623 $93.00
1/11/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122223a $180.00
1/11/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122223 $180.00
1/11/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122623 $90.00
1/11/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122823 $62.50
1/11/2024 Jacquelynn Hoare Educational Services HOA122723 $120.00
1/11/2024 Jennifer Farris Educational Services FAR121823 $241.99
1/11/2024 Kelsi Rossi Educational Services ROS122223 $88.00
1/11/2024 Laura Palmer Educational Services PAL122623 $48.94
1/11/2024 Laura Rascon Educational Services RAS122223 $70.00
1/11/2024 Laura Twitchell Educational Services TWI122123 $240.00
1/11/2024 Laura Twitchell Educational Services TWI122623 $250.00
1/11/2024 Lauren Hernandez Educational Services HER122023 $226.10
1/11/2024 Lauren Hernandez Educational Services HER122023a $373.00
1/11/2024 Leslie Curtis Educational Services 528337219 $1,153.33
1/11/2024 Melissa J. Diwa Enterprises Educational Services 528337171 $3,981.00
1/11/2024 Michelle Ahlswede Educational Services AHL122823 $54.43
1/11/2024 Michelle Ahlswede Educational Services AHL122823b $54.43
1/11/2024 Michelle Ahlswede Educational Services AHL122823a $54.43
1/11/2024 Rock Rose School for Creative LearningEducational Services 528337192 $2,746.22
1/11/2024 Russell Glenn Educational Services GLE122823 $210.00
1/11/2024 SoCal STEM LLC Educational Services 528337249 $197.08
1/11/2024 Vanessa Anderson Educational Services 528337176 $210.00
1/11/2024 Victor Higareda Educational Services HIG122623 $45.00
1/11/2024 Knight Security & Fire Systems Fire, Alarm & Pest control 183083 $20.00
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1/11/2024 Great American Insurance Group General Liability Insurance 001Jan2024ME $3,124.00
1/11/2024 Life Storage Rent - Facilities Lease 001Jan24#658b $156.50
1/11/2024 AGiRepair, Inc. Technology Services & Software - Educational 105724 $240.75
1/11/2024 AGiRepair, Inc. Technology Services & Software - Educational 106408 $307.00
1/11/2024 OPS Technology Services & Software - Educational 2512 $1,282.83
1/12/2024 Wildomar Valley Wood Products, Inc., Rent - Facilities Lease 01Jan2024Lease $64.00
1/16/2024 Mimeo.com, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1956660 $47.63
1/16/2024 Class Technologies Inc. Prepaid Expense INV3312 $20,000.00
1/17/2024 Savannah Schuster Educational Services 011224 $800.00
1/18/2024 Aflac Health Insurance 404583 $710.02
1/18/2024 Jaime Glantz UNALLOCATED WAGES 011924 $4,864.08
1/19/2024 T-Mobile Technology Services & Software - Educational 011Nov2023-981231998 $1,149.22
1/23/2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP Accounting Fees / Audit L241009714 $3,150.00
1/23/2024 All About Learning Press, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 919154 $53.10
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1GHC-RHPW-Y173 $68.18
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 17L1-YC3H-XJ1P $57.33
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1FHF-H4V7-3L6V $7.89
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1YKT-KPWP-31RH $46.28
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1XNK-1CR4-WJ7V $38.21
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1KQX-JTLY-GYIN $41.46
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1QDJ-YTKH-VYRV $37.70
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1QT7-XHM9-R4K6 $20.14
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1T1N-3J6L-T4P7 $17.28
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1DPH-CJLC-T1W7 $11.84
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1NLH-H4HF-1PHC $12.08
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 19FG-VTCY-YXV9 $10.76
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1GFL-FCT3-3DWP $15.56
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 16MP-KPGF-V1YL $9.54
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1X3W-Q39M-RX7V $9.69
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 1MX1-WP17-JY13 $12.43
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 11VK-GJMJ-KFYM $12.43
1/23/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4295763 $101.16
1/23/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4300255 $105.50
1/23/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 4300248 $40.90
1/23/2024 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S300505 $158.04
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1/23/2024 Singapore Math Inc. Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & S300506 $74.60
1/23/2024 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 250938858 $21.00
1/23/2024 Teacher Synergy LLC Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & 252973367 $109.40
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FHF-H4V7-63DV $17.20
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1NQD-1MFT-CGMK $289.81
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1CJM-9GPY-DQ1V $165.34
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 16CC-H6FD-1KD6 $118.51
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1P33-3FL9-T9R4 $98.03
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1GHC-RHPW-Y173 $21.99
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1M7N-FT3T-V99T $77.36
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 19WM-G716-63K3 $58.71
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QK6-LWJX-6CRC $53.86
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17DD-7VFJ-11MJ $59.14
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FHF-H4V7-3L6V $45.63
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1XNK-1CR4-CNFN $68.96
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1P3H-CHQ9-376R $43.40
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1PVR-KNYK-17WT $42.27
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QT7-XHM9-NG6W $41.45
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 174T-YCDM-331G $36.61
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1Q3W-YKHY-WJ1V $19.55
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1CPY-QQG1-J4YL $21.50
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QT7-XHM9-R4K6 $6.99
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1DPH-CJLC-RHVX $28.04
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1X4H-FTP9-RGDY $19.37
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1K4X-4F74-GCXN $17.23
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17RG-3Q6K-TYLP $19.31
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1CPY-QQG1-4X4C $16.15
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17DD-7VFJ-13PC $11.25
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 17DD-7VFJ-3XHV $10.76
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 13KV-DCXW-RW6V $9.19
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1QK6-LWJX-46KY $9.15
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1G3Y-TYCY-MNNH $137.37
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1XX6-HWH4-HJL3 $92.83
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 199X-43F9-MD9J $40.91
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1MX1-WP17-HQJJ $18.39
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1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1RM3-HNRQ-JYM9 $20.68
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1FGQ-KGK7-VTVG $35.33
1/23/2024 Kids Art Box Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1E+11 $48.00
1/23/2024 Kids Art Box Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1E+11 $48.00
1/23/2024 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-5E9017C112142311 $268.09
1/23/2024 KiwiCo, Inc. Core Teaching/Student Supplies KE-3CDCEE8812142333 $173.97
1/23/2024 Little Passports, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies IN-0000997139 $438.65
1/23/2024 Mimeo.com, Inc Core Teaching/Student Supplies 1963855 $1,303.82
1/23/2024 Rainbow Resource Center Core Teaching/Student Supplies 4295703 $135.93
1/23/2024 Rosetta Hurtado Core Teaching/Student Supplies HUR041323 $51.69
1/23/2024 Carina Gregg Educational Services GRE061822 $31.00
1/23/2024 Caroline Beus Educational Services 528337167 $650.00
1/23/2024 Cheryl McCormick Educational Services 025 $2,448.00
1/23/2024 Colina Carothers Educational Services CAR120122 $10.00
1/23/2024 Elizabeth Blackmore Educational Services 528337170 $693.00
1/23/2024 Elizabeth Jacinto Educational Services JAC010623 $160.00
1/23/2024 Erin Packard Educational Services PAC122923 $62.50
1/23/2024 Friends of Willow Tree Educational Services 528337178 $940.44
1/23/2024 Head2Heart Partners in Education Educational Services 528337196 $138.00
1/23/2024 Kylie Bridgford Educational Services BRI122923 $88.00
1/23/2024 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL122923a $200.00
1/23/2024 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL122923 $200.00
1/23/2024 Laura Saldana Educational Services SAL122923b $200.00
1/23/2024 Neesha N. Rahim Educational Services 052 $15,750.00
1/23/2024 Neesha N. Rahim Educational Services 070 $7,500.00
1/23/2024 Shaun Kennard Educational Services 527499460 $284.66
1/23/2024 Shaun Kennard Educational Services 527503085 $180.00
1/23/2024 Waterworks Aquatics CB Educational Services 528337259 $526.40
1/23/2024 Xtreme Fit Murrieta Inc Educational Services 528337267 $156.00
1/23/2024 Hatch & Cesario, Attorneys-at-Law Legal Fees 15710 $68.00
1/23/2024 Hatch & Cesario, Attorneys-at-Law Legal Fees 15711 $831.00
1/23/2024 Hatch & Cesario, Attorneys-at-Law Legal Fees 15709 $1,522.00
1/23/2024 Samuel Keeley Mileage, Parking & Tolls KEE081123 $17.36
1/23/2024 Frontier Phone / Internet / Website Fees 002Feb2024-41775 $182.64
1/23/2024 Samuel Keeley Professional Development KEE081123 $60.19
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1/23/2024 Sara Wing Professional Development WIN010824 $55.00
1/23/2024 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3120 $2,053.78
1/23/2024 TSW Therapy, Inc. Special Education Services 3119 $728.77
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Technology Equipment - Staff 1CJM-9GPY-TJFG $155.84
1/23/2024 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. Technology Equipment - Staff 1QT7-XHM9-GC3Q $145.06
1/23/2024 AGiRepair, Inc. Technology Services & Software - Educational 107382 $35.87
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Elite Academic Academy - Instructional Service Community Partner - December 2023-January 2024

New Instructional Service Community Partners - December 2023-January 2024

Partner Name Description of Services Link to EAA VCI 2023-2024 Applications

KidsArt Claremont Inc. Weekly drawing and painting fine art classes for ages 4 to adult KidsArt Claremont Inc._EAA VCI 23-24 Application

Mathnasium of Cerritos Math tutoring, learning and education Mathnasium of Cerritos_EAA VCI 23-24 Application

United Studios of Self Defense - Newport Beach Private and group martial arts lessons United Studios of Self Defense - Newport Beach_EAA VCI 23-24 Application

Literacy Lane Tutoring Reading intervention tutoring Literacy Lane Tutoring_EAA VCI 23-24 Application

Rebekah Hyde's Piano Studio Piano lessons Rebekah Hyde's Piano Studio_EAA VCI 23-24 Application

WM Music Lessons, Inc.
Music lessons and fundamentals (guitar, ukulele, piano, drums, cajon, 
bass guitar, voice and more). WM Music Lessons, Inc._EAA VCI 23-24 Application



Elite Academic Academy - Eduational Material Partners - January 2024

New Educational Material Partners - January 2024

Partner Name Product Description Link to EAA EMR 2023-2024 Applications
Rolling Hills Publishing, LLC Automotive curriculum Rolling Hills Publishing, LLC_EAA EMR 23-24 Application
Marcy Cook Math Math tiling activities + books for elementary and middle school Marcy Cook Math_EAA EMR 23-24 Application
Creating A Masterpiece LLC Online fine art courses Creating A Masterpiece LLC_EAA EMR 23-24 Application

Denison Algebra
Video-based math courses with a physical, consumable 
textbook Denison Algebra EAA EMR 23-24 Application



Temporary Virtual Instructional Assistant - Job Description

Position Title: Temporary Virtual Instructional Assistant
Position Type: Temporary
Reports To: Credit Recovery/Acceleration Coordinator
FLSA Status: Non-Exempt
School Classification: Classified
Pay Range: $18 per hour
Work Schedule: Varies
Location: Remote

Position Summary: The Temporary Virtual Instructional Assistant supports the staff and students by

completing various duties outlined in this job description to support student engagement and learning.

Qualifications:

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily.

The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required.

● Any combination equivalent to: graduation from high school and at least one year of experience
related to the duties and responsibilities specified.

● State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No

prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and the Human

Resources Manager notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.

● Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment

and thereafter updated every four years.

Essential Duties:

● Carry out tasks assigned by the admin/teacher of record.

● Provide support to the teacher to ensure students are engaged in their academics.

● Contact students via phone, text, or zoom to help keep them engaged.

● Collect student work samples, and required signed documents for the teacher of record.

● Assist students in uploading work and required documents

● Follow up on emails written by the teacher of record.

● Assists students and/or parents, individually or in groups, with lesson assignments to present or

reinforce learning concepts.

● Assist students and/or parents in connecting with the proper support needed by their teachers

of record, academic support, and content teachers.

Temporary Virtual Instructional Assistant Job Description
Pending Board Approval
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● Assist in the maintenance/preparation of instructional materials.

● Assist in the maintenance of student attendance and achievement.

● Assist students in attending enrichment webinars.

Other Duties

● Respond to all school-related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails within

24 business hours.

● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving

students; support management with addressing and resolving complaints from students and

parents in a timely manner; and ensure compliance with the provisions of California Penal Code

Section 11166 (Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act).

● Perform other duties as assigned.

Knowledge and Abilities:

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily.

The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required.

● Effective written and oral communication form.

● Ability to understand and follow safety procedures.

● Develop and maintain effective working relationships.

● Display sensitivity, tact and responsiveness in various situations and needs.

● Handle public contact and relations effectively.

● Ability to understand and follow specific instructions and procedures.

● Analyze and resolve problems.

● Ability to work independently and coordinate with others.

● Maintain accurate and orderly records.

● Ability to work collaboratively with a team.

● Maintain a high level of confidentiality.

● Handle feedback and constructive criticism.

Use of Computer Technology:

To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software, how

to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing systems,

spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire and maintain

a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.

Physical Demands:

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to

successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to

enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
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● Hearing and speaking to exchange information.

● Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities.

● Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery.

● Seeing to read a variety of materials.

● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching.

● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time.

● Lifting objects up to 50 pounds.

● Close vision and ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment:

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee

encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be

made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

● Office environment.

● Work remotely.

● Noise level is generally moderate.

● Work conducted in a public setting.

● Indoor and outdoor in varying temperatures.

● Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day.

Hazards:

● Contact with dissatisfied individuals

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________ ____________________________ _______________

Employee Signature Printed Name Date
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Employee Code Position Payroll Profile Desc
Contract Addendum 
Date

23.24 Stipend 
Amount

23240516 Teacher of Record-Virtual Elite Academic Academy -Mountain Empire 1/19/2024 $6,000.00



Employee Code Position Payroll Profile Desc
Contract Addendum 
Date

Annual Salary 
Amount

23240409 CTE Teacher Elite Academic Academy -Mountain Empire 1/9/2024 $37,520.00



 
January 16, 2024 

Re:    Employment Status 

, 

Per your email correspondence of January 12, 2024, you are resigning from your current 
position of Lead Teacher of Record-Virtual with Elite Academic Academy - Mountain 
Empire, effective January 19, 2024.   
 
Please return all company-owned property on, or before, January 30, 2024.  You can hand-

deliver these items to our Temecula business office:  43414 Business Park Drive, Temecula, CA 

92590.  Please advise if you would prefer we send you a FedEx label which you can use to mail 

in your equipment. 

Attached to this letter, please find the following: 

1.      Notice to Employee as to Change in Relationship 

2.      Final Paycheck Acknowledgment (and paystub) 

3.      Company Property Return Form 

4.      For Your Benefit (Form 2320) 

5.      Notice to Terminating Employees- Health Insurance Premium Notice  

Thank you for your service.  We wish you nothing but the best in your future endeavors.   

Sincerely,

________ ______ 

, Esq. - Chief Personnel Officer 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 98D4C579-9BE0-4C62-B9FC-0E7010243C87



A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan Progress Report 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Total Grant Allocation 

Elite Academic Academy-Mountain Empire $29,967 
 
Plan Descriptions 
 
A description of how the funds will be used to increase or improve services for foster youth, low-income students, and English learners to improve 
A-G eligibility 
The A-G Completion Improvement Grant Plan allocates funds to enhance A-G support and eligibility for all students in grades 9-12, including 
unduplicated pupils. The funds will be utilized for the following initiatives: 
 
Professional Development 
Professional Development is crucial for enhancing A-G completion. The funds will be utilized for educators, administrators, and counselors to 
participate in various training opportunities, workshops, and ongoing programs. The aim is to support student learning and improve A-G eligibility, 
especially for foster youth, low-income students, and English language learners. The initiatives include: 
Induction programs for new teachers facilitated by the San Diego County Office of Education. 
Professional Development with the Marzano Institute to align and enhance Professional Learning Communities, addressing academic gaps with an 
action plan. 
Universal Design for Learning Professional Development to support effective instruction and learning. 
4-year Planning sessions for student academic achievement and future college and career planning. 
Advanced Placement summer workshops in collaboration with the College Board, covering a variety of AP courses and the 4-module training for 
AP Classrooms. 
Professional Development through the University of California Curriculum Integration (UCCI) for Integrated Career Technical Education (CTE) and 
Core courses/Course Development. 
Ongoing professional development for teachers focused on English Language Learners' support. 
 
Student Support Systems & Tutoring System 
Funds will be directed toward developing and supporting an ongoing student support system, incorporating a Multi-tiered System of support for 
academic, behavioral, and emotional needs. This includes weekly small group sessions with academic acceleration coaches, individual counseling 
sessions with school counselors or social workers, and live and synchronous sessions with credentialed educators. A robust tutoring platform will 
be established to provide additional support, ensuring that all students receive assistance to reengage and succeed in their A-G courses. 
 
Year-Round Credit Recovery Track 
Students will have the opportunity to participate in a year-round track of school, allowing them to retake failed A-G courses or accelerate their 
learning. The block scheduling approach enables students to concentrate on two courses at a time, facilitating focused exploration and 
individualized teaching. Longer class times provide teachers with the opportunity to address specific student needs for support. 



 
Curriculum Development & Expansion 
Funds will be utilized to expand coursework and develop A-G courses to increase student access and achievement. The initiatives include: 
Development of engaging and rigorous A-G-approved integrated Core courses with Career Technical Education courses. 
Adoption of UCCI Integrated A-G courses and their integration into CTE pathways, preparing students for A-G completion while exploring potential 
career paths. 
Adoption of various vendor-approved A-G or AP courses to align with student interests and best practices for learning. 
Funding for curriculum development and educational tools necessary for rigorous course development. 
Implementation of dual enrollment options. 
 
Overall, these initiatives aim to create a comprehensive framework for A-G support, emphasizing professional development, student support 
systems, credit recovery, and curriculum development to enhance student access and achievement. 
 
 
 
 
 
How is this descriptor being measured? 
In the 21/22 school year,73. 61% of students were enrolled in A-G courses required for CSU/UC entrance and 29.27% were graduates who 
completed all courses needed for CSU/US entrance. We are looking forward to seeing the improvement of those percentages because of the 
plans and measurements listed below. 
 
The descriptor above is being measured by: 
Attendance tracking: 
Monitoring the attendance of teachers, administrators, and counselors in professional development opportunities, workshops, and ongoing training 
and the assessment of Skill Acquisition by evaluating the acquisition of skills and knowledge through professional development programs, 
ensuring that educators are equipped to support A-G eligibility for targeted students. 
 
Student Support Systems & Tutoring System: 
Utilization Rates: Track the usage of the multi-tiered system of support, including small group sessions, individual counseling, and live learning 
sessions, to assess how well students engage with the support services. 
Academic Progress Monitoring: Regularly monitor the academic progress of students who receive support through the tutoring system to measure 
the impact on achievement within their courses. 
 
Year-Round Credit Recovery Track: 
Attendance and Participation: Track student attendance and participation in the year-round credit recovery track to ensure that students take 
advantage of the opportunity to retake failed A-G courses or accelerate their learning. 
Course Completion Rates: Monitor the completion rates of courses in the year-round track to assess the effectiveness of the focused approach 
and individualized teaching. 



 
Curriculum Development & Expansion: 
Course Enrollment Rates: Track the enrollment rates of students in newly developed and expanded A-G courses to measure the level of interest 
and accessibility. 
Assessment Results: Evaluate student performance in the adopted courses, looking at assessment results to ensure the rigor and effectiveness of 
the curriculum. 
Dual Enrollment Participation: Monitor the participation of students in dual enrollment options to gauge the success of providing additional 
pathways for A-G completion. 
 
Overall Program Evaluation: 
A-G Completion Rates: Assess the overall A-G completion rates for the targeted student populations to determine the program's success in 
improving eligibility. 
Feedback and Surveys: Collect feedback from students, educators, and administrators through surveys to understand the qualitative impact of the 
implemented strategies. Regular assessments and feedback loops will help in adjusting strategies and ensuring continuous improvement in 
supporting foster youth, low-income students, and English language learners in achieving A-G eligibility. 
 
Financial Accountability: 
Budget Reporting: Regularly report on the allocation of funds to the school board, ensuring that the budget aligns with the planned activities and 
that resources are distributed effectively. 
 
 
What are the outcomes based on those measurements? 
The intended outcomes for students and staff based on these measurements are: 
Positive Attendance Trends: Improved attendance among at-risk students, indicating their active participation in professional development 
opportunities. 
Enhanced Educator Competence: Evidence of increased skill acquisition among teachers, administrators, and counselors, leading to better 
support for A-G eligibility among targeted students. 
Increased Utilization Rates: Higher utilization rates of the multi-tiered support system, demonstrate that foster youth, low-income students, and 
English learners students are actively engaging with small group sessions, counseling, and live learning opportunities. 
Improved Academic Progress: Positive trends in academic progress, indicate that students receiving support through the tutoring system are 
making strides in their courses and achieving higher levels of success. 
Higher Attendance and Participation Rates within the Year-Round Credit Recovery track: Increased attendance and participation in the year-round 
credit recovery track, showcasing a proactive approach by foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students in retaking A-G 
courses and accelerating their learning. 
Improved Course Completion Rates: Higher completion rates in year-round courses, reflecting the effectiveness of the focused approach and 
individualized teaching for foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students. 
Elevated Course Enrollment Rates: Growing enrollment rates in newly developed and expanded A-G courses, suggest heightened interest and 
improved accessibility for foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students. 



Positive Assessment Results: Improved performance in adopted courses, indicating that the curriculum is rigorous and effective in supporting 
foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students. 
Increased Dual Enrollment Participation: Growing participation in dual enrollment options, signaling success in providing additional pathways for A-
G completion among foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students. 
Enhanced A-G Completion Rates: Positive trends in A-G completion rates among the targeted student populations, demonstrate the program's 
success in improving eligibility for foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students. 
Positive Feedback from Stakeholders: Favorable feedback from students, educators, and administrators through surveys, indicating a qualitative 
impact and satisfaction with implemented strategies. 
Financial Accountability: Transparent Budget Reporting: Regular and transparent reporting on fund allocation to the school board, ensuring that 
resources are effectively distributed and aligned with planned activities for foster youth, low-income students, and English learners students. 
Once we have access to the 22/23 data on the intended outcomes, we will be able to compare measurements and growth against the previous 
year's data. 
 
 
Expenditures to Date 
1000 - Certificated Teachers                  10,322.66 
3000 - Certificated Teacher Benefits 2,726.76 
4000 - Core Curriculum                    1,934.08 
 

 
 
 
A description of the extent to which all students, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners, will have access to A-G courses 
approved by the University of California. 
Every student will be granted access to University of California-approved A-G courses through their Master Schedule course selections and via the 
Canvas Learning Management system. Our Canvas platform seamlessly integrates multiple A-G-approved curricula from various vendors. Elite 
ensures equitable access to A-G materials and teacher support by providing computers and Wi-Fi to students without their own online platform 
access. The school counselor collaborates with all students, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners, ensuring they have 
access to A-G course selections, pathways, and guidance to stay on track for A-G graduation requirements. 
 
How is this descriptor being measured? 
The initiative is being measured through several key components aimed at ensuring equitable access to A-G courses and supporting students in 
staying on track for graduation: 
Master Schedule Course Selections: 
Monitoring Course Offerings: Regularly review the Master Schedule to ensure that a diverse range of A-G courses approved by the University of 
California is available. Writing and approving our own Elite curriculum through the UC/CSU system. 
 



Course Enrollment Data: Track the enrollment data to ensure that students, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners, are 
actively selecting A-G courses. 
Canvas Learning Management System: 
Usage Metrics: Monitor the usage of the Canvas Learning Management System to assess how many students are actively accessing A-G course 
materials and utilizing teacher support and instruction. 
Integration Effectiveness: Evaluate the effectiveness of integrating various A-G approved curricula vendors within the Canvas system to ensure a 
seamless learning experience. 
 
Technology Access and Support: 
Distribution of Computers and WiFi: Track the distribution of computers and WiFi to students who do not have their own access, ensuring that all 
students, regardless of socioeconomic status, have the necessary tools to engage with online A-G materials. 
Technical Support Requests: Monitor and address technical support requests to ensure students can effectively use the online platform. 
 
School Counselor Engagement: 
Individual Student Counseling and 4 Year Planning: Maintain records of individual counseling sessions with the school counselor to ensure that 
each student, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners, receives personalized guidance on A-G course selections and 
pathways. 
Progress Monitoring: Regularly monitor the progress of students to confirm they are staying on the A-G track for graduation. 
 
Equity and Inclusion Metrics: 
Demographic Analysis: Analyze demographic data to ensure that the initiative is effectively reaching and benefiting all student groups, including 
traditionally underserved populations. 
Feedback from Underrepresented Groups: Collect feedback specifically from foster youth, low-income students, and English learners to assess 
their experience with accessing and participating in A-G courses. 
 
Graduation Tracking: 
A-G Graduation Rates: Regularly track and analyze graduation rates specifically related to A-G completion, ensuring that the initiative is 
contributing to higher graduation rates among all students. 
 
Continuous Improvement and Feedback: 
Feedback Mechanisms: Establish mechanisms for continuous feedback from students, teachers, and administrators to identify areas for 
improvement and refine the initiative over time. 
 
 
What are the outcomes based on those measurements? 
The outcomes based on the above measurements are: 
Student Outcomes: 
Increased A-G Course Enrollment Rates: 
Indicator: Higher enrollment rates in A-G courses, especially among traditionally underserved students. 



Impact: Increased exposure to a diverse range of A-G courses, providing students with a broader educational experience. 
 
Enhanced Technology Access and Usage: 
Indicator: Successful distribution of computers and WiFi, coupled with increased usage of the Canvas Learning Management System and access 
to curriculum and teacher live sessions and support. 
Impact: Improved accessibility to online A-G materials, ensuring that students, regardless of socioeconomic status, can actively engage in their 
coursework. 
 
Improved Academic Progress and Graduation Rates: 
Indicator: Positive progress monitoring outcomes and higher A-G graduation rates. 
Impact: Demonstrates that students are not only enrolling in A-G courses but are also successfully progressing through the curriculum, ultimately 
leading to higher graduation rates. 
 
Personalized Counseling and Planning: 
Indicator: Records of individual counseling sessions and documented 4-year plans for each student. 
Impact: Students, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners, receive tailored guidance and planning, promoting a clearer 
path to A-G completion and graduation. 
 
Positive Feedback from Underrepresented Groups: 
Indicator: Collected feedback from underrepresented groups, including foster youth, low-income students, and English learners. 
Impact: Ensures that the initiative is meeting the unique needs and experiences of traditionally underserved populations, leading to a more 
inclusive and effective program. 
 
Staff Outcomes: 
Diverse Course Offerings and Integration Success: 
Indicator: Successful integration of various A-G approved curricula vendors in the Canvas system, aligned with a diverse Master Schedule. 
Impact: Provides teachers with a rich toolkit and varied resources, enhancing their ability to deliver engaging A-G courses. 
 
Enhanced Counseling and Progress Monitoring Skills: 
Indicator: Documentation of individual counseling sessions and accurate progress monitoring records. 
Impact: Demonstrates the school counselor's effectiveness in providing personalized guidance and tracking student progress towards A-G 
completion. 
 
 
Expenditures to Date 
SAME EXPENDITURES AS ABOVE. 
1000 - Certificated Teachers                  10,322.66 
3000 - Certificated Teacher Benefits 2,726.76 
4000 - Core Curriculum                    1,934.08 



 
 
The number of students who were identified for opportunities to retake A-G approved courses in which they received a “D”, “F”, or “Fail” grade in the 
2020 spring semester or the 2020-21 school year and a description of the method used to offer the opportunity retake courses. 
Number of Students: 185 

Students had the opportunity to retake courses through a six-week credit recovery program conducted during the summer months. This program 
allowed students to re-enroll in two A-G courses, structured in a block schedule, with guidance and support from their highly-qualified educator and 
assistance from the school counselor. Additionally, students benefited from tutoring resources provided by hired tutors, as well as live instruction 
and tutoring hours conducted by our credentialed teachers. 
 
How is this descriptor being measured? 
The Year Round track implemented for students to re-take courses during the summer months involves a structured and supportive approach to 
facilitate their academic progress. Here's a detailed description: 
 
Duration: 
The credit recovery program spans six weeks during the summer months, providing students with an intensive and focused period to re-take A-G 
courses. 
 
Course Offerings: 
Students have the opportunity to re-take two A-G courses during the program, allowing them to concentrate on specific subjects and address 
areas where they may need additional support. 
 
Block Schedule: 
The program utilizes a block schedule, allowing students to concentrate on a limited number of subjects during each session. This approach 
enhances focus and facilitates more in-depth exploration of course content. 
 
Highly-Qualified Educator: 
A highly-qualified educator is assigned to instruct and support students during the credit recovery program. These educators possess expertise in 
the subject matter and are equipped to provide targeted assistance to students seeking to improve their understanding and performance. 
 
Guidance from School Counselor: 
The school counselor plays a crucial role in guiding students through the credit recovery process. They provide counseling on course selection, 
academic planning, and overall support to ensure students stay on track for A-G completion. 
 
Tutoring Access: 
Students have access to tutoring services provided by hired Elite tutors and credentialed teachers. This additional support is available to help 
students grasp challenging concepts, complete assignments, and prepare for assessments. 
 



Live Instruction Hours: 
The live instruction hours delivered by credentialed teachers are carefully measured. This involves tracking the number of hours dedicated to direct 
instruction, ensuring that students receive a substantial amount of face-to-face learning and guidance. 
 
Tutoring Hours: 
The tutoring hours provided by hired tutors and credentialed teachers are also measured. This includes both group and individual tutoring sessions 
aimed at addressing specific student needs. 
 
Attendance Records: 
Attendance records are maintained to track student participation in live instruction and tutoring sessions. This ensures that students actively 
engage with the support provided during the credit recovery program. 
 
Student Progress Monitoring: 
Regular assessments and progress monitoring are conducted to track individual student progress throughout the credit recovery program. This 
helps identify areas of improvement and ensures that students are making significant strides in their retaken courses. 
 
Feedback from Participants: 
Soliciting feedback from students, educators, and counselors provides valuable insights into the program's strengths and areas for enhancement. 
This feedback is crucial for refining future iterations of the credit recovery initiative. 
 
Success Metrics: 
Success metrics include comparing pre-program assessments with post-program assessments, analyzing completion rates, and evaluating any 
improvements in A-G course performance among participating students. 
 
 
 
What are the outcomes based on those measurements? 
Student Outcomes Based on Measurements: 
 
Improved A-G Course Completion: 
Measurement: Completion rates and assessments before and after the program. 
Outcome: Increased completion rates and improved performance in A-G courses, indicating successful academic progress and mastery of course 
content. 
 
Enhanced Subject Mastery: 
Measurement: Pre- and post-program assessments and progress monitoring. 
Outcome: Students demonstrate a deeper understanding of specific subjects as evidenced by improved assessment scores and progress 
monitoring results. 
 



Focused Academic Progress: 
Measurement: Attendance records and progress monitoring. 
Outcome: Higher attendance rates and consistent academic progress, indicating a focused commitment to learning and successful engagement in 
the credit recovery program. 
 
Individualized Support Utilization: 
Measurement:Tutoring hours and participation in live instruction. 
Outcome: Increased utilization of tutoring services and live instruction hours, demonstrating that students actively seek and benefit from 
individualized support. 
 
Effective Block Schedule Implementation: 
Measurement: Program participation and feedback. 
Outcome: Positive feedback on the block schedule structure, indicating that students find the approach conducive to concentrated learning and in-
depth exploration of course content. 
 
Positive Educator and Counselor Impact: 
Measurement: Feedback from participants. 
Outcome: Positive feedback on the contributions of the highly-qualified educator and school counselor, suggesting that their support significantly 
influences students' academic success and overall experience. 
 
Successful Guidance and Planning: 
Measurement: Feedback from participants and progress monitoring. 
Outcome: Students, with the guidance of the school counselor, effectively plan their academic journey, leading to improved course selection and 
progression towards A-G completion. 
 
Increased Confidence and Self-Efficacy: 
Measurement: Feedback and success metrics. 
Outcome: Positive feedback and improved success metrics indicate that students gain confidence in their academic abilities and develop a sense 
of self-efficacy in their ability to succeed in A-G courses. 
 
Effective Use of Feedback Mechanisms: 
Measurement: Feedback from participants. 
Outcome: Evidence of adjustments and improvements based on feedback, indicating a responsive and adaptive credit recovery program that 
addresses the evolving needs of students and educators. 
 
Quantifiable Success Metrics: 
Measurement: Completion rates, pre- and post-program assessments, and A-G course performance analysis. 
Outcome: Tangible evidence of program success, providing a comprehensive view of the impact on student academic achievement and progress 
toward A-G completion. 



 
Continuous Program Enhancement: 
Measurement: Feedback from participants. 
Outcome: Ongoing refinements to the program based on continuous feedback, ensuring that the credit recovery initiative evolves to meet the 
changing needs of students and educators. 
 
 
 
Expenditures to Date 
1000 - Certificated Teachers                  7,225.86 
3000 - Certificated Teacher Benefits      1,908.74 
4000 - Core Curriculum                          1,353.85 
 

 
A description of how the plan and described services, and associated expenditures, if applicable, supplement services in the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan and Learning Recovery Plan. 
The description and plan complement services outlined in both the Local Control and Accountability Plan and the Learning Recovery Plan by 
aligning with multiple goals and action plans. 
 
Goal #1: Improve Academic Achievement for ALL Students 
Evaluate students' academic performance through local assessments and provide targeted interventions, including meetings with the guidance 
and curriculum directors, participation in the RTI process, tutoring from approved vendors, and providing test-taking strategies and time 
management training for students and parents. 
Monitor proficiency levels of Low-Income pupils, Foster Youth, English Learners, and Students with Disabilities on state and local assessments, 
ensuring academic success or referring them to the RTI, SST, or IEP teams. 
Ensure all students have access to materials and learning experiences aligned with common core standards through various channels, including 
online courses, credit recovery, core programs, supplemental curriculum, extended school year, digital curriculum, and services from vendors 
offering educational opportunities across geographical areas. 
Provide professional development and ongoing training on remote teaching, the use of rubrics, and utilizing student academic achievement data to 
inform instruction. Implement effective targeted interventions for students struggling to meet grade-level proficiency, with follow-up reviews of 
professional development results. 
Conduct teacher and staff professional development on the implementation of the EL Master Plan, ELD Instruction, SDAIE strategies, ELD 
progress, reclassification, and inform adult students. Follow up with a PD effectiveness survey and results review. 
Implement processes for curricular review, including course rubrics and evaluation, graduation requirements, credits, and grading policies, within 
the Elite Academic Academy program. 
Equip students with instructional strategies connected to the grade-level curriculum, fostering confident thinkers, educational communicators, 
involved community members, empowered independent learners, and college and career-minded individuals. 
 



Goal #2: Promote High ADA and Climate Outcomes 
Focus on school climate and student engagement, maintaining a high ADA. Provide RTI at all levels, support student engagement by emphasizing 
time management and organization, offer access to guidance counselors, and provide credit recovery options for secondary-level students. 
Ensure appropriate assignment and professional development of fully credentialed teachers in subject areas, along with highly qualified classified 
staff. Include training effectiveness surveys and follow-through on results. 
Offer excess tutoring for students struggling to complete courses or falling behind academically. 
 
Goal #4: Ensure Secondary Students Are On-Track 
Develop a comprehensive college and career readiness program for middle and high school students aligning student strengths and interests with 
post-secondary goals. Increase Career Technical Education opportunities to prepare students for the 21st-century workforce and global 
competencies. 
Improve instructional practice through the recruitment and retention of multiple-subject and single-subject highly qualified teachers, as well as 
highly qualified classified staff. 
Cover Advanced Placement exam costs for low-income and foster youth pupils who cannot afford to take the exam. 
 
 
How is this descriptor being measured? 
Academic Performance Evaluation: 
Measurement Tool: Local assessments aligned with common core/state standards within courses. 
Monitoring Process: Regular reviews of assessment results to evaluate students' academic performance. 
Intervention Strategies: Targeted interventions, such as guidance director and curriculum director meetings, MTSS process, tutor support, test-
taking strategies, and time management training. 
 
Monitoring Proficiency in State and Local Assessments: 
Measurement Tool: State and local assessments such as iReady and CAASP. 
Monitoring Process: Regular tracking of proficiency levels for Low-Income pupils, Foster Youth, English Learners, and Students with Disabilities. 
Intervention Strategies: Referral to MTSS, SST, or IEP teams for students who require additional support. 
 
Access to Common Core Aligned Learning Experiences: 
Measurement Tool: Tracking the utilization of various channels for common core-aligned content. 
Monitoring Process: Ensuring all students have access to online courses, credit recovery, core programs, supplemental curriculum, extended 
school year, and digital curriculum. 
Intervention Strategies: Providing professional development for teachers on virtual teaching, rubric use, and effective interventions for struggling 
students. 
 
Professional Development Effectiveness: 
Measurement Tool: Surveys on professional development effectiveness. 
Monitoring Process: Administering surveys to assess the impact of professional development on teachers. 
Intervention Strategies: Adjusting professional development based on survey results and ongoing discussions. 



 
 
School Climate and Student Engagement: 
Measurement Tool: Surveys and assessments focused on school climate and student engagement. 
Monitoring Process: Regular surveys to gauge school climate and student engagement. 
Intervention Strategies: Implementing initiatives to improve time management, organization, and access to guidance counselors. Providing credit 
recovery options for secondary-level students falling behind. 
 
Teacher Credentialing and Professional Development: 
Measurement Tool: Review of teacher credentialing and professional development records. 
Monitoring Process: Ensuring teachers are fully credentialed in relevant subject areas and have access to ongoing professional development. 
Intervention Strategies: Conducting training effectiveness surveys and making adjustments based on results. 
 
Excess Tutoring for Struggling Students: 
Measurement Tool: Tutoring attendance records and student progress. 
Monitoring Process: Tracking student participation in excess tutoring programs and assessing progress. 
Intervention Strategies: Providing additional support for students struggling academically such as tutoring, opportunitites for peer to peer 
collaboration and tutoring, and whole group instruction. 
 
College and Career Readiness Program Evaluation: 
Measurement Tool: Assessment of the comprehensive college and career readiness program. 
Monitoring Process: Evaluating the effectiveness of the program in aligning student strengths and interests with post-secondary goals-align the 
current CTE program offerings and work-cased learning opportunities. 
Intervention Strategies: Refining the program based on evaluation results. 
 
Teacher Recruitment and Retention: 
Measurement Tool: Review of teacher recruitment and retention efforts. 
Monitoring Process: Ensuring the recruitment and retention of highly qualified teachers and staff. 
Intervention Strategies: Addressing any gaps or challenges in the recruitment and retention process. 
 
Advanced Placement Exam Cost Coverage: 
Measurement Tool: Records of covered Advanced Placement exam costs. 
Monitoring Process: Confirming low-income and foster youth pupils have their exam costs covered by waivers. 
Intervention Strategies: Ensuring financial barriers are addressed for eligible students. 
 
 
 
What are the outcomes based on those measurements? 
Academic Performance Evaluation: 



Outcome: Improved academic performance among students as evidenced by increased scores on local assessments. 
Impact: Targeted interventions, including meetings with guidance and curriculum directors, RTI processes, and tutoring support, contribute to 
enhanced understanding and mastery of academic content. 
 
Monitoring Proficiency on State and Local Assessments: 
Outcome: Increased proficiency levels for Low-Income pupils, Foster Youth, English Learners, and Students with Disabilities on state and local 
assessments. 
Impact: Early identification of students needing support, leading to timely referrals to RTI, SST, or IEP teams and tailored interventions. 
 
Access to Common Core Aligned Learning Experiences: 
Outcome: Enhanced access to diverse learning channels, including online courses, credit recovery, core programs, supplemental curriculum, 
extended school year, and digital curriculum. 
Impact: Increased exposure to varied educational resources, contributing to improved content understanding and alignment with common core 
standards. 
 
Professional Development Effectiveness: 
Outcome: Improved teaching methodologies and strategies as measured by positive professional development survey results. 
Impact: Teachers gain valuable insights and skills from professional development, resulting in more effective remote teaching, better utilization of 
rubrics, and targeted interventions for struggling students. 
 
School Climate and Student Engagement: 
Outcome: Positive changes in school climate and increased student engagement. 
Impact: Initiatives focused on time management, organization, and access to guidance counselors contribute to a more supportive environment, 
leading to higher student engagement. 
 
Teacher Credentialing and Professional Development: 
Outcome: Maintenance of highly qualified and credentialed teachers and staff. 
Impact: Effective teaching practices are sustained, ensuring that students benefit from a high-quality education. Positive training effectiveness 
survey results confirm the ongoing professional development impact. 
 
Excess Tutoring for Struggling Students: 
Outcome: Improved academic performance and progress among students receiving excess tutoring. 
Impact: Additional support provided through excess tutoring helps struggling students catch up academically and fosters a positive learning 
experience. 
 
 
College and Career Readiness Program Evaluation: 
Outcome: Enhanced alignment of student strengths and interests with post-secondary goals. 



Impact: The comprehensive college and career readiness program contributes to informed post-secondary decision-making, better-preparing 
students for future endeavors. 
 
Teacher Recruitment and Retention: 
Outcome: Sustained recruitment and retention of highly qualified teachers and staff. 
Impact: The continuity of highly qualified educators ensures a stable learning environment, positively impacting student outcomes. 
 
Advanced Placement Exam Cost Coverage: 
Outcome: Increased participation in Advanced Placement exams among low-income and foster youth pupils. 
Impact: Financial barriers are addressed, providing equal opportunities for all eligible students and promoting access to advanced coursework. 
 
 
 
Expenditures to Date 
1000 - Certificated Teachers                  3,096.80 
3000 - Certificated Teacher Benefits      818.03 
4000 - Core Curriculum                          580.22 
 

 
Plan Expenditures 
 
Programs and services to increase or improve A-G completion Planned Expenditures Expenditures to Date 

1000 - Certificated Teachers 2,000 20,645.32 

3000 - Certificated Teacher Benefits 3,000 5,453.53 

4000 - Core Curriculum 5,000 3,868.16 
 



Projection Budget

Rooms/Hotel Fees 47,122.00 55,000
Parking 2,500 5500
Food and Beverage 78,118 80,000
Additional Staff 
Meal/s 6000 6000
Misc 1500 2,000
Audio Visual 37,200 37200

TOTAL 172,440 185,700

Split By School

LU ME

Rooms/Hotel Fees 23,561 23,561
Parking 1,250 1,250
Food 39,059 39,059
Additional Staff 
Meal/s 3000 3000
Misc 750 750
Audio Visual 18,000 18,000

TOTAL 82,620 85,620































From: Amazon Business <no-reply@amazon.com>
Date: Fri, Sep 4, 2020 at 5:29 PM
Subject: Change to your Pay by Invoice account
To: <vendors@eliteacademic.com>

PAY BY INVOICE

Change to your Pay by Invoice account
We have increased the credit limit of your Pay by Invoice account for Elite
Academic Academy to $15,000.00.

For questions, please contact Business Customer Service.

Help & Customer Service

Thank you for choosing Amazon Business.



From: Amazon Business <no-reply@amazon.com>
Date: Tue, Feb 23, 2021 at 4:17 PM
Subject: Change to your Pay by Invoice account
To: <vendors@eliteacademic.com>

PAY BY INVOICE

Change to your Pay by Invoice account
We have increased the credit limit of your Pay by Invoice account for Elite
Academic Academy to $30,000.00.

For questions, please contact Business Customer Service.

Help & Customer Service

Thank you for choosing Amazon Business.



From: Amazon Business <no-reply@amazon.com>
Date: Wed, Apr 28, 2021 at 11:02 AM
Subject: Change to your Pay by Invoice account
To: <vendors@eliteacademic.com>

PAY BY INVOICE

Change to your Pay by Invoice account
We have increased the credit limit of your Pay by Invoice account for Elite
Academic Academy to $40,000.00.

For questions, please contact Business Customer Service.

Help & Customer Service

Thank you for choosing Amazon Business.







ROSE BOWL OPERATING COMPANY

Estimate of Expenses

Elite Academic Event

Event Date: July 8, 2024

Load-in/out: 9am - 4pm (7hrs)

Event Hours: 4pm-7pm (3hrs)

Load-out: 8:30 pm (1.5hrs)

Estimated Attendance: 1,200 - 1,500

DESCRIPTION HR/ HOURLY DEPT

QTY UNIT RATE TOTAL TOTAL

License Fee (Event Day) Field 1.00 25,000.00$  25,000.00$   

Loge Lounge 1.00 9,000.00$    9,000.00$     

Third Space Discount 1.00 12,000.00$  1,500.00$     

License Fee (Load In/Load Out) N/A

35,500.00$   

ROSE BOWL STAFF

Event Day

Event Manager Manager 1 8.00 50.00$         400.00$        

Event Assistants Staff 2 8.00 30.00$         480.00$        

Field/Stadium Maintenance Staff 4 12.00 35.00$         1,680.00$     2,560.00$     

Field Painting Football Lines 5,000.00$     TBD

ELECTRICAL

Electrical Hook-ups (prep/event day/strike) 2 2,500.00$     TBD

PASADENA FIRE

Paramedics Firefighter 2 4.00 95.00$         760.00$        TBD

SECURITY 

Event Day

Autogate (load in/load out Gate A) 1 12.00 34.00$         408.00$        

Event Manager Director 1 12.00 54.00$         648.00$        

Supervisors Supervisors 2 5.00 52.65$         526.50$        

Gate A - Guest Entrance Staff 1 5.00 29.00$         145.00$        

Concourse Barricade (secure 

concourse; non restricted area) Staff 2 5.00 29.00$         290.00$        

Roamers/Tunnels (Field) Staff 4 5.00 29.00$         580.00$        

Pavilion Access Security Staff 1 5.00 29.00$         145.00$        

Parking Access -  West Extension Staff 2 5.00 29.00$         290.00$        3,032.50$     

CLEANING SERVICES 

Stands Sections 18-21

TOTAL LICENSE FEE:



DESCRIPTION HR/ HOURLY DEPT

QTY UNIT RATE TOTAL TOTAL

Event Day

Supervisor Supervisor 2 6.00 33.00$         396.00$        

Restroom Standby/ Trash Pick-up Staff 8 6.00 30.00$         1,440.00$     

Pavilion Staff Staff 2 6.00 33.00$         396.00$        

Post Clean - Supervisor Supervisor 1 4.00 33.00$         132.00$        

Post Clean - Staff Staff 1 4.00 30.00$         120.00$        2,484.00$     

OTHER VENDORS & SERVICES

Levy Restaurants - Ice Order 3,000.00$      TBD 

ATK 

Pending exact 

needs 1 4,100.00$     4,100.00$     

EVENT ENHANCEMENTS

Video Board Rental 1 5,000.00$     5,000.00$     

Educational Tours 1500 9.00$           13,500.00$   13,500.00$   

51,836.50$   30,676.50$   

66,176.50$   

NOT INCLUDED INCLUDED

Additional overtimes due to load in & load out Guest Parking

Additional spaces 8ft tables/ 6ft tables (pending needs)

Field and/or Facility Damages Black mesh chairs (100)

Rentals (Stage,chairs, tables, etc.) Team benches

Building Permits (stages over 29" require) Yard Markers

Ticketing/Box office/scanners

Ice

ABC License Buyout

TOTAL LICENSE FEE + EXPENSES:

TOTAL EXPENSES:



ELITE Beverages - Monday, July 8, 2024 Page 1 of 2
Event #: RBOWL-413310-1 Last Updated: 01/23/2024 01:06 PM PST

Levy 
Rose Bowl Stadium 
1001 Rose Bowl Drive, Pasadena, CA 91103

EVENT ORDER #: RBOWL-413310-1-1
Event Name:  ELITE Beverages

Event Date: Monday, July 8, 2024
Salesperson: Erika Castillo

Email: ecastillo@Levyrestaurants.com
Phone: 

Contact Information 
 Contact:
Address:

Ashly (AJ) Steele

  

Work Phone: 
Mobile Phone: 

Email:
Onsite Contact:

asteele@eliteacademic.com

OPTION A
Date Time Location Function #

Mon, 07/08/2024 4:00pm-7:00pm Field OPTION A 1

Service Details Menu Qty Price Total
Non-Alcoholic Beverages

GATORADE
Assorted gatorade sold by the case

125 $45.00 $5,625.00Beverage Service

2000LBS OF ICE
24LB bags of ice

84 $7.50 $630.00

Setup and Service Details
Equipment Rental ROLLING BEVERAGE COOLERS

R2D2
12 $25.00 $300.00

Serviceware 12-14oz CLEAR COMPOSTABLE CUPS
1,000 cups per case

2 $175.00 $350.00

CHARGES
Charges Service Charge

(21 %)
Sales Tax Total

Beverage $6,255.00 $1,313.55 $775.78 $8,344.33
Set-Up $650.00 $136.50 $80.62 $867.12
Totals $6,905.00 $1,450.05 $856.40 $9,211.45

Payments Received $0.00
Balance Due $9,211.45

Payment Arrangements



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made, effective as of February 1, 2024 between Mr. Colin
Cooper(“Contractor”) and Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire (“Company” or
“EAAL”) (individually a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”).

WHEREAS, Company desires to retain the services of Contractor, and Contractor desires to
provide services to Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreement hereinafter set
forth the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Engagement. Company hereby retains Contractor to serve as the Company’s SOAR
Contracted support to perform the following duties for Company and such other services as
Company may from time to time request: (1) Support in the creation of our SOAR program;, and
(2) Fulfill the “Essential Duties and Responsibilities set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto,
which may be modified by the Company from time to time.

2. Commissions. Company will pay Contractor the $4,000 monthly to be paid net 15
upon receiving the contractors invoice for services after the end of each month ,

3. Regulatory Compliance. As the contractor is currently residing outside the country,
they may face challenges in meeting all the necessary qualifications required for working in
proximity to students. This includes, but is not limited to, compliance with state and federal
fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) as per Cal. Ed. Code § 44237, providing evidence of a clear TB
test within 60 days from the Effective Date (as defined below) and updating it every 4 years, and
possessing a valid California driver's license. In order to address these qualifications, we kindly
request the contractor to furnish appropriate legal identification, such as a passport or driver's
license. While the contractor is welcome to engage with any adult within the organization, it's
important to note that when interacting in any capacity with children, the Contractor must be
accompanied by an Elite employee who is both fingerprinted and credentialed.

4.
5. Expenses. Contractor will be responsible to bear his own costs and expenses, unless

agreed to in advance by the Company and Contractor provides proper documentation for the
expense.

6. Acknowledgements. Contractor acknowledges and understands that he is an
independent contractor, and that he is not forming a traditional employer-employee relationship
with the Company. Contractor is not entitled to participate in any plans, arrangements or
distributions pertaining to or connected with any compensation plan, health, dental, life or
disability insurance programs or any other fringe benefits which Company, from time to time,
may provide for its owners and/or employees, if any. Contractor shall be solely responsible for
all costs incurred for health, dental and/or life insurance on his behalf. Contractor shall be solely



responsible for making all federal, state and local tax deposits relating to compensation received
as a result of his relationship with the Company and shall hold the Company harmless from and
against any and all tax liability relating thereto. Contractor further agrees he is solely responsible
for workers’ compensation insurance for himself and any subcontractors she may hire, if any,
and agrees to indemnify and hold the Company harmless for any workers’ compensation claim
of loss or damage arising in connection with Contractor’s performance of services under this
Agreement.

7. Term. Contractor’s engagement shall be effective February 1, 2024 (the “Effective
Date”) and shall end June 30, 2024, unless extended in writing by mutual agreement

8. Modification of this Agreement. No waiver or modification of this Agreement, in
whole or in part, will be valid unless it is made in writing and duly executed by the Parties. Any
waiver of any term, condition or provision of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any
other term, condition or provision hereof, nor will a waiver or any breach of any term, condition
or provision constitute a waiver of any subsequent or succeeding breach.

9. Assignment. This Agreement, the services to be performed, and all rights hereunder
are personal to the Contractor and may not be transferred or assigned by the Contractor at any
time. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Company’s successors
and assigns. In the event of Contractor’s death, inability to perform his duties, or his breach of
this Agreement, Company shall have no further obligations hereunder other than to pay him or
his estate any fees or expenses that are payable hereunder which are accrued and unpaid as of the
date of either his death, disability, or breach.

10. Confidentiality. Contractor acknowledges that Company is in a highly competitive
industry, and that during the term of this Agreement, Contractor will have access to, receive,
learn, and/or develop information that is proprietary, trade secrets and/or confidential to the
Company, including, but not limited to information about customers, prospects, financials, and
marketing. Additionally, Contractor will have access to and maintain, develop and initiate
customer relationships and goodwill that are value to the Company and which it has a legitimate
interest in protecting.

At all times during and after the term of Contractor’s engagement with Company,
Contractor shall not, except with Company’s prior written consent, or except in the proper course
of his performance of services for the Company, directly or indirectly, disclose, communicate, or
divulge to any individual or entity, or use for his own benefit or the benefit of any other
individual or entity, any confidential or proprietary knowledge or information concerning the
conduct or details of Company’s business, including without limitation, names of customers and
prospects, details of contracts, technical know-how, methods of operation, marketing methods,
other trade secrets, pricing, or other policies, prospects, and financial information. Contractor
acknowledges that these provisions apply even to information that is developed or conceived by
his alone or with others at the Company’s direction, as well as to confidential and/or proprietary
information received from any customer or other person or entity who does business with the
Company; however, the Contractor will retain the ownership of his original proprietary
resources, and content created prior to the contract with the Company, and will share ownership
of any proprietary resources created with the Company.



Upon termination of Contractor’s engagement with Company for any reason, Contractor
shall immediately return to Company all correspondence, files, customer and prospect lists,
notes, technical data, and other materials which contain any such confidential or proprietary
knowledge or information, and Contractor shall not retain any copies of such materials. A
violation of this paragraph shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement.

11. Work Product. The product of all work performed under this Agreement (“Work
Product”), including without limitation all notes, reports, documentation, drawings, computer
programs, inventions, creations, works, devices, models, work-in-progress and deliverables
which is conceived, made, reduced to practice, or learned by Contractor, solely or in conjunction
with others, in the course of any work performed for the Company, will be the sole property of
the Company, and Contractor hereby assigns to the Company all right, title and interest therein,
including but not limited to all audiovisual, literary, moral rights and other copyrights, patent
rights, trade secret rights and other proprietary rights therein. Contractor retains no right to use
the Work Product and agree not to challenge the validity of the Client’s ownership in the Work
Product.

12. Choice of Law and Forum. This Agreement and the performance of services
hereunder will be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any lawsuit filed by either
Contractor or Company shall be filed in the Superior Court for the State of California in Los
Angeles. Contractor and Company herein each consent to the personal jurisdiction and venue of
said court over them and agree not to contest jurisdiction or the application of California law.

13. Attorneys’ Fees. Contractor agrees to indemnify the Company for its reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in enforcing the terms of this Agreement should Contractor
violate any of its terms.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the complete agreement of the Parties
and will supersede any and all other agreements, understandings and representations, whether
oral or written, by and between the Parties hereto.

15. Relationship of the Parties. Contractor is an independent contractor, not a
Company employee. This Agreement does not constitute a joint venture, partnership, merger,
acquisition or employment relationship. Contractor does not have any authority to bind the
Company or enter into any contract on the Company’s behalf (with the exception of routine
purchase orders). Contractor is solely responsible for its debts, liabilities and obligations,
including obligations for income or other taxes, and Contractor shall hold Company harmless for
the same. Contractor shall prepare and file all tax returns required under applicable law.
Contractor shall not incur any expense on behalf of Company, shall not enter into any contract or
agreement on behalf of Company without prior written consent from Company, and shall not
represent to any other person or entity that Contractor is authorized to enter into any contract or
agreement on behalf of Company or bind Company in any way unless she has prior written
consent. Nothing herein requires Company to offer services and work opportunities to
Contractor, and nothing herein requires Contractor to accept work opportunities. Nothing herein
requires Contractor to work exclusively for Company. Contractor may not hire any employees or
engage any Contractors to assist in the performance of his duties hereunder, without the prior
written consent of an Owner of the Company. Contractor shall fully indemnify and hold



Company completely harmless for any and all expenses, costs, liabilities, and losses, including
attorneys’ fees, as a result of Contractor’s violation of any provision of this paragraph.

16. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement is construed to be invalid, illegal
or unenforceable, then the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected thereby and shall be
enforceable without regard thereto.

17. Binding Authority: The Company and its representative signing this Agreement
agree and confirm that the undersigned individual has the right, power, and authority to sign this
Agreement on behalf of the Company and to legally bind the Company to this Agreement with
his signature.

18. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which will be deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken
together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. The exchange of copies of
this Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile or electronic transmission shall constitute
effective execution and delivery of this Agreement as to the Parties and may be used in lieu of
the original Agreement for all purposes. Signatures of the Parties transmitted by facsimile or
e-mail shall be deemed to be their original signatures for all purposes.

IN WITNESS THEREOF and intending to be legally bound, the Parties have executed
this Agreement as of the date set forth above on the below written date.

ELITE ACADEMIC ACADEMY-Mountain Empire Independent Contractor

By:_
Its: Mr. Colin Cooper
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2023-24 School Contact Information 

School Name Elite Academic Academy- Mountain Empire         

Street 43414 Business Park Dr.         

City, State, Zip Temecula, CA 92590         

Phone Number (866) 354-8302 Ext. 704         

Principal Meghan Freeman         

Email Address mfreeman@eliteacademic.com         

School Website www.eliteacademic.com         

County-District-School (CDS) Code 37682130136978         

 
    

2023-24 District Contact Information 

District Name Elite Academic Academy-Mountain Empire         

Phone Number 8663548302         

Superintendent  Meghan Freeman         

Email Address mfreeman@eliteacademic.com         

District Website https://www.eliteacademic.com/ 

 
      

2023-24 School Description and Mission Statement 
Mission 
Elite Academic Academy is committed to pursuing and maintaining educational excellence and unparalleled flexibility to 
achieve academic distinction in an independent study platform. 
 
Vision 
Elite Academic Academy harnesses the power of flexible learning environments to provide a superior education for our 
students. Working with all stakeholders, we create an individualized learning environment designed to enable each student to 
gain the skills necessary to achieve their long-term educational, professional, and personal goals and dreams. 
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About this School  
      

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Grade Level 

Grade Level Number of Students 
Kindergarten 105        
Grade 1 62        
Grade 2 65        
Grade 3 71        
Grade 4 72        
Grade 5 69        
Grade 6 62        
Grade 7 69        
Grade 8 56        
Grade 9 51        
Grade 10 52        
Grade 11 40        
Grade 12 43        
Total Enrollment 817        

 
      

2022-23 Student Enrollment by Student Group 

Student Group Percent of Total Enrollment 
Female 54.6%        
Male 45%        
American Indian or Alaska Native  0.6%        
Asian  2.3%        
Black or African American  2.4%        
Filipino  0.6%        
Hispanic or Latino 39.4%        
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander  0.1%        
Two or More Races  10.2%        
White  42.2%        
English Learners 2.7%        
Homeless 1.7%        

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 41%        
Students with Disabilities 10.5%        
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A. Conditions of Learning State Priority: Basic 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Basic 
(Priority 1): 
 
• Degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the 

subject area and for the pupils they are teaching; 
• Pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
• School facilities are maintained in good repair. 
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2020-21 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

30.25 100 131.90 60.46 228366.10 83.12 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 0.00 0.00 0.70 0.34 4205.90 1.53 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 11.50 5.27 11216.70 4.08 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 54.10 24.82 12115.80 4.41 

Unknown         0.00 0.00 19.80 9.10 18854.30 6.86 
Total Teaching Positions         30.25 100.00 218.20 100.00 274759.10 100.00 

 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 

     
2021-22 Teacher Preparation and Placement 

Authorization/Assignment School 
Number 

School 
Percent 

District 
Number 

District 
Percent 

State 
Number 

State 
Percent 

Fully (Preliminary or Clear) Credentialed 
for Subject and Student Placement 
(properly assigned) 

40.15 100 135.90 58.44 234405.20 84.00 

Intern Credential Holders Properly 
Assigned 0.00 0.00 1.90 0.86 4853.00 1.74 

Teachers Without Credentials and 
Misassignments (“ineffective” under 
ESSA) 

0.00 0.00 10.60 4.59 12001.50 4.30 

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-
Field (“out-of-field” under ESSA)        0.00 0.00 64.70 27.82 11953.10 4.28 

Unknown         0.00 0.00 19.20 8.28 15831.90 5.67 
Total Teaching Positions         40.15 100.00 232.60 100.00 279044.80 100.00 

 
The CDE published the first year of available teacher data for the 2020-21 SARC in June 2022, and the CDE published the 
second year of data for the 2021-22 SARC in June 2023. The EC Section 33126(b)(5) requires the most recent three years of 
teacher data to be requested in the SARC, as data is available. The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available 
prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 
 
Note: The data in this table is based on Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) status. One FTE equals one staff member working full time; 
one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. Additionally, an assignment is defined as 
a position that an educator is assigned based on setting, subject, and grade level. An authorization is defined as the services that 
an educator is authorized to provide to students. 
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Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments (considered “ineffective” under ESSA) 

Authorization/Assignment 2020-21 2021-22 

Permits and Waivers          0.00 0.00 
Misassignments           0.00 0.00 
Vacant Positions          0.00 0.00 
Total Teachers Without Credentials and Misassignments 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
        

Credentialed Teachers Assigned Out-of-Field (considered “out-of-field” under ESSA) 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Credentialed Teachers Authorized on a Permit or Waiver 0.00 0.00 
Local Assignment Options 0.00 0.00 
Total Out-of-Field Teachers 0.00 0.00 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the template. 

 
  

Class Assignments 

Indicator 2020-21 2021-22 

Misassignments for English Learners 
(a percentage of all the classes with English learners taught by teachers that are 
misassigned) 

0 0 

No credential, permit or authorization to teach 
(a percentage of all the classes taught by teachers with no record of an 
authorization to teach) 

0 0 

 
The teacher data for the 2022-23 SARC will not be available prior to February 1, 2024, and therefore is not included in the 
template. 
 
Note: For more information refer to the Updated Teacher Equity Definitions web page at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/teacherequitydefinitions.asp. 

 
          

2023-24 Quality, Currency, Availability of Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials 

Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved Common Core Aligned Curriculum in all core academic subject 
areas. We do not adopt one/two curriculum options, as many traditional schools do,  but work to know our students and match 
a state approved curriculum to them.  This allows for students to find the best curriculum for their specific needs. Teachers 
have curriculum guides, training manuals and there are a variety of choices for our families.Credentialed experts also create 
proprietary courses for our students to ensure relevancy in today's world. Please see our chartering petition and website for a 
list of the curriculum. Please note that as the state approved additional textbooks and instructional materials, this list grows.  
We are a WASC Accredited and NCAA school of choice. Our curriculum choices ensure rigor and ample opportunity for all 
students who want to pursue a four year degree and a college athletic scholarship. We also offer many CTE Pathways and 
ensure that our students who are interested in college/career have curriculum that allows for career advancement.        

Year and month in which the data were collected January 2024 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 7 of 25 Elite Academic Academy- Mountain Empire 

Subject Textbooks and Other Instructional Materials/year of 
Adoption 

From 
Most 

Recent 
Adoption

? 

Percent 
Students 

Lacking Own 
Assigned 

Copy 
Reading/Language Arts Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 

Common Core Aligned Curriculum for ELA. We do not adopt 
one/two curriculum options, as many traditional schools do,  
but work to know our students and match a state approved 
curriculum to them.  This allows for students and families to 
find the best curriculum for their specific needs. Teachers 
have curriculum guides and training manuals to support the 
curriculum. Credentialed experts also create proprietary 
courses for our students to ensure relevancy in today's world. 
Please see our chartering petition and website for a list of the 
curriculum. Please note that as the state approves additional 
textbooks and instructional materials, this list grows.        

Yes 0 

Mathematics Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 
Common Core Aligned Curriculum for Mathematics. We do 
not adopt one/two curriculum options, as many traditional 
schools do,  but work to know our students and match a state 
approved curriculum to them.  This allows for students and 
families to find the best curriculum for their specific needs. 
Teachers have curriculum guides and training manuals to 
support the curriculum. Credentialed experts also create 
proprietary courses for our students to ensure relevancy in 
today's world. Please see our chartering petition and website 
for a list of the curriculum. Please note that as the state 
approves additional textbooks and instructional materials, this 
list grows.        

Yes 0 

Science Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 
Common Core Aligned Curriculum Science. We do not adopt 
one/two curriculum options, as many traditional schools do,  
but work to know our students and match a state approved 
curriculum to them.  This allows for students and families to 
find the best curriculum for their specific needs. Teachers 
have curriculum guides and training manuals to support the 
curriculum. Credentialed experts also create proprietary 
courses for our students to ensure relevancy in today's world. 
Please see our chartering petition and website for a list of the 
curriculum. Please note that as the state approves additional 
textbooks and instructional materials, this list grows.        

Yes 0 

History-Social Science Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 
Common Core Aligned Curriculum for History and Social 
Science. We do not adopt one/two curriculum options, as 
many traditional schools do,  but work to know our students 
and match a state approved curriculum to them.  This allows 
for students and families to find the best curriculum for their 
specific needs. Teachers have curriculum guides and training 
manuals to support the curriculum. Credentialed experts also 
create proprietary courses for our students to ensure 
relevancy in today's world. Please see our chartering petition 
and website for a list of the curriculum. Please note that as 
the state approves additional textbooks and instructional 
materials, this list grows.        

Yes 0 

Foreign Language Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 
Common Core Aligned Curriculum for Foreign Languages. 
We do not adopt one/two curriculum options, as many 
traditional schools do,  but work to know our students and 
match a state approved curriculum to them.  This allows for 

Yes 0 
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students and families to find the best curriculum for their 
specific needs. Teachers have curriculum guides and training 
manuals to support the curriculum. Credentialed experts also 
create proprietary courses for our students to ensure 
relevancy in today's world. Please see our chartering petition 
and website for a list of the curriculum. Please note that as 
the state approves additional textbooks and instructional 
materials, this list grows.        

Health Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 
Common Core Aligned Curriculum for Health. We do not 
adopt one/two curriculum options, as many traditional schools 
do,  but work to know our students and match a state 
approved curriculum to them.  This allows for students and 
families to find the best curriculum for their specific needs. 
Teachers have curriculum guides and training manuals to 
support the curriculum. Credentialed experts also create 
proprietary courses for our students to ensure relevancy in 
today's world. Please see our chartering petition and website 
for a list of the curriculum. Please note that as the state 
approves additional textbooks and instructional materials, this 
list grows.        

Yes 0 

Visual and Performing Arts Elite Academic Academy uses a variety of state approved 
Common Core Aligned Curriculum for Visual Performing Arts. 
We do not adopt one/two curriculum options, as many 
traditional schools do,  but work to know our students and 
match a state approved curriculum to them.  This allows for 
students and families to find the best curriculum for their 
specific needs. Teachers have curriculum guides and training 
manuals to support the curriculum. Credentialed experts also 
create proprietary courses for our students to ensure 
relevancy in today's world. Please see our chartering petition 
and website for a list of the curriculum. Please note that as 
the state approves additional textbooks and instructional 
materials, this list grows.        

Yes 0 

 
      

School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
Elite Academic Academy is a non-classroom based charter school. It does not currently have any resource centers. We meet 
with you families and students in mutually agreed upon public locations. We do have a central administrative office located in 
Temecula. It is very rare that we hold a parent meeting in this facility. It is meant for the operation and administrative purposed 
to ensure proper secure storage of business and student files.        

Year and month of the most recent FIT report 1/2024 

System Inspected Rate 
Good 

Rate 
Fair 

Rate 
Poor Repair Needed and Action Taken or Planned 

Systems: 
Gas Leaks, Mechanical/HVAC, Sewer  

X    

Interior: 
Interior Surfaces 

X    

Cleanliness: 
Overall Cleanliness, Pest/Vermin Infestation 

X    

Electrical X    

Restrooms/Fountains: 
Restrooms, Sinks/ Fountains 

X    

Safety: 
Fire Safety, Hazardous Materials 

X    
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School Facility Conditions and Planned Improvements 
Structural: 
Structural Damage, Roofs 

X    

External: 
Playground/School Grounds, Windows/ 
Doors/Gates/Fences 

X    

 
   

Overall Facility Rate 

Exemplary Good Fair Poor 

X      X                  

 
       

B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Pupil Achievement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4): 
 
Statewide Assessments 
(i.e., California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress [CAASPP] System 
includes the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments for students in the general 
education population and the California Alternate Assessments [CAAs] for English language 
arts/literacy [ELA] and mathematics given in grades three through eight and grade eleven. 
Only eligible students may participate in the administration of the CAAs. CAAs items are 
aligned with alternate achievement standards, which are linked with the Common Core State 
Standards [CCSS] for students with the most significant cognitive disabilities). 
 
The CAASPP System encompasses the following assessments and student participation 
requirements: 
 
1. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for ELA in grades three 

through eight and grade eleven. 
2. Smarter Balanced Summative Assessments and CAAs for mathematics in grades 

three through eight and grade eleven. 
3. California Science Test (CAST) and CAAs for Science in grades five, eight, and once 

in high school (i.e., grade ten, eleven, or twelve). 
 
College and Career Ready 
The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses that satisfy the 
requirements for entrance to the University of California and the California State University, 
or career technical education sequences or programs of study. 
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Percentage of Students Meeting or Exceeding the State Standard on CAASPP 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA and mathematics for all students grades three through eight and grade eleven 
taking and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Percentages are not calculated when the number of students tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
ELA and mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or 
Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced 
Summative Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs 
divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

English Language Arts/Literacy 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

63 60 40 40 47 46 

Mathematics 
(grades 3-8 and 11) 

47 47 25 25 33 34 

 



2023 School Accountability Report Card Page 11 of 25 Elite Academic Academy- Mountain Empire 

         
2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in ELA by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in ELA by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
ELA test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA.  The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated 
by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment plus 
the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of 
students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students         429 410 95.57 4.43 59.51 

Female         226 215 95.13 4.87 66.51 

Male         201 193 96.02 3.98 51.30 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         171 164 95.91 4.09 50.00 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         58 53 91.38 8.62 56.60 

White         175 170 97.14 2.86 67.06 

English Learners         12 11 91.67 8.33 9.09 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         171 166 97.08 2.92 52.41 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 0 0 0 

Students with Disabilities          60 51 85.00 15.00 29.41 
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2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Math by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 
 
Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
Double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 

CAASPP 
Student Groups 

CAASPP 
Total  

Enrollment 

CAASPP 
Number  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent 

Not Tested 

CAASPP 
Percent  
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students         429 411 95.80 4.20 47.20 

Female         226 216 95.58 4.42 46.30 

Male         201 193 96.02 3.98 48.19 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         171 164 95.91 4.09 36.59 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         -- -- -- -- -- 

Two or More Races         58 53 91.38 8.62 52.83 

White         175 171 97.71 2.29 55.56 

English Learners         12 11 91.67 8.33 18.18 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         -- -- -- -- -- 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         171 167 97.66 2.34 37.13 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 0 0 0 

Students with Disabilities          60 51 85.00 15.00 19.61 
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CAASPP Test Results in Science for All Students 

This table displays the percentage of all students grades five, eight, and High School meeting or exceeding the State Standard. 
 
Science test results include the CAST and the CAA. The “Percent Met or Exceeded” is calculated by taking the total number of 
students who met or exceeded the standard on the CAST plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved 
Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the total number of students who participated in both assessments. 
 
The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated using only students who received scores. 
 

Subject School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Science  
(grades 5, 8 and high school) 

38.07 48.39 16.48 15.00 29.47 30.29 

 
         

2022-23 CAASPP Test Results in Science by Student Group 

This table displays CAASPP test results in Science by student group for students grades five, eight, and High School.  Double 
dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category 
is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

Student Group Total  
Enrollment 

Number  
Tested 

Percent  
Tested 

Percent 
Not Tested 

Percent 
Met or 

Exceeded 
All Students         199 186 93.47 6.53 48.39 

Female         100 95 95.00 5.00 48.42 

Male         98 90 91.84 8.16 47.78 

American Indian or Alaska Native         -- -- -- -- -- 

Asian         -- -- -- -- -- 

Black or African American          -- -- -- -- -- 

Filipino         -- -- -- -- -- 

Hispanic or Latino         84 80 95.24 4.76 36.25 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0 0 0 

Two or More Races         30 27 90.00 10.00 66.67 

White         72 67 93.06 6.94 58.21 

English Learners         -- -- -- -- -- 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0 0 

Homeless         0 0 0 0 0 

Military         0 0 0 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         78 74 94.87 5.13 40.54 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 0 0 0 

Students with Disabilities          29 25 86.21 13.79 36.00 
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2022-23 Career Technical Education Programs 
Career Technical Education (CTE) is an academic program designed to prepare students for postsecondary education and 
various College and Career options. This program offers students a distinctive chance to blend fundamental academic courses 
with practical technical skills and knowledge relevant to specific occupations. Elite Academic presents students with a range of 
pathways, allowing them to tailor their educational experience and prepare for their chosen field in post-secondary education or 
career. Graduates from Elite Academic CTE programs emerge well-equipped with 21st-century skills and industry certifications. 
 
Sectors 
Arts, Media, & Entertainment 
Education 
Hospitality, Tourism, & Recreation 
Marketing, Sales, and Service 
Health Science and Medical Technology 
 
CTE Pathways 9-12th 
Game Development and Animation 
Professional Dance 
Education 
Recreation 
Wilderness Adventure Recreation 
ESports 
Marketing 
Production Arts 
Mental and Behavioral Health 
Patient Care 
Visual Arts 
 
CTE Staff 
CTE Associate Director (1) 
CTE Arts, Media, & Entertainment Teachers (2) 
CTE Education Teacher (2) 
Hospitality, Tourism, & Recreation Teachers (1) 
Marketing, Sales, and Service Teachers (2) 
Health Science and Medical Technology (1) 

 
 

      
2022-23 Career Technical Education (CTE) Participation 

Measure CTE Program Participation 

Number of Pupils Participating in CTE 50 

Percent of Pupils that Complete a CTE Program and Earn a High School Diploma 2 

Percent of CTE Courses that are Sequenced or Articulated Between the School and 
Institutions of Postsecondary Education 

20% 

 
  

Course Enrollment/Completion 

This table displays the course enrollment/completion of University of California (UC) and/or California State University (CSU) 
admission requirements. 

UC/CSU Course Measure Percent 

2022-23 Pupils Enrolled in Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 73.61 

2021-22 Graduates Who Completed All Courses Required for UC/CSU Admission 29.27% 
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B. Pupil Outcomes State Priority: Other Pupil Outcomes 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Other Pupil 
Outcomes (Priority 8): Pupil outcomes in the subject area of physical education. 
 

        
      

2022-23 California Physical Fitness Test Results 

This table displays the percentage of students participating in each of the five fitness components of the California Physical Fitness 
Test Results.   The administration of the PFT during 2021-22 and 2022-23 school years, only participation results are required for 
these five fitness areas.  Percentages are not calculated and double dashes (--) appear in the table when the number of students 
tested is ten or less, either because the number of students in this category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student 
privacy. 

Grade Level Component 1: 
Aerobic Capacity 

Component 2: 
Abdominal 

Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 3: 
Trunk Extensor 

and Strength and 
Flexibility 

Component 4: 
Upper Body 
Strength and 
Endurance 

Component 5: 
Flexibility 

Grade 5 91 91 91 91 91 

Grade 7 93 93 93 93 93 

Grade 9 91 91 91 91 91 

 
      

C. Engagement State Priority: Parental Involvement 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Parental 
Involvement (Priority 3): Efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making 
decisions regarding the school district and at each school site. 
 

 
     

2023-24 Opportunities for Parental Involvement 
Elite Academic Academy educates and involves parents and community members to understand the school’s 
purpose by: 
* Maintaining a robust website that has a parent resource section including access to student/parent handbook 
* Inviting parents/students to virtual webinars, such as orientation, informational meetings, seminars, mental health, college and 
career readiness, and so much more! 
* Hosting an annual Parent Advisory Committee Meetings to develop the LCAP and prepare for Assessment 
* Providing parents with report cards and access to our Student information Parent Portal 
* Distributing annual Survey(s) to get input and ensure we are meeting the needs of our stakeholders 
* Conducting individual meetings with School Counselor and student/parent and SST team, as necessary 
* Providing the Parent Square Communication App where parents get e-mails and direct access to their teacher at any time. 
* Sending monthly newsletters to families from Counseling, Technology, VAPA, Athletics, Homeschool, Virtual, and Flex 
programs with contact information for parents to connect and get support from each department 
* Joining student field trips 
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C. Engagement State Priority: Pupil Engagement 

 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: Pupil 
Engagement (Priority 5): 
 

• High school Dropout Rates;  
• High school Graduation Rates; and 
• Chronic Absenteeism 

 
 

        
Dropout Rate and Graduation Rate (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

Indicator School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Dropout Rate 22.7 4.8 4.3 17 17.8 8.1 9.4 7.8 8.2 
Graduation Rate 68.2 92.9 95.7 73.5 76.7 77 83.6 87 86.2 

 
         

2022-23 Graduation Rate by Student Group (Four-Year Cohort Rate) 

This table displays the 2022-23 graduation rate by student group.  For information on the Four-Year Adjusted Cohort Graduation 
Rate (ACGR), visit the CDE Adjusted Cohort Graduation Rate web page at www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/acgrinfo.asp. 

Student Group Number of 
Students in Cohort 

Number of  
Cohort Graduates 

Cohort 
Graduation Rate 

All Students         46 44 95.7 
Female         25 24 96.0 

Male         21 20 95.2 
Non-Binary            
American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 0.00 
Asian         -- -- -- 
Black or African American          -- -- -- 
Filipino         -- -- -- 
Hispanic or Latino         17 16 94.1 
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         0 0 0.00 
Two or More Races         -- -- -- 
White         21 21 100.0 
English Learners         -- -- -- 
Foster Youth         0.0 0.0 0.0 
Homeless         -- -- -- 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         30 29 96.7 
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0.0 0.0 0.0 
Students with Disabilities          -- -- -- 
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2022-23 Chronic Absenteeism by Student Group 

Student Group Cumulative 
Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Eligible Enrollment 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Count 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 

Rate 
All Students         1465 1287 102 7.9 

Female         858 768 59 7.7 

Male         602 515 42 8.2 

Non-Binary 5 4 1 25.0 

American Indian or Alaska Native         7 7 3 42.9 

Asian         32 28 0 0.0 

Black or African American          61 55 7 12.7 

Filipino         8 6 0 0.0 

Hispanic or Latino         734 620 72 11.6 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander         2 2 0 0.0 

Two or More Races         124 113 4 3.5 

White         474 433 16 3.7 

English Learners         63 51 8 15.7 

Foster Youth         0 0 0 0.0 

Homeless         14 10 2 20.0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         621 535 63 11.8 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 0 0.0 

Students with Disabilities          133 125 11 8.8 

 
      

C. Engagement State Priority: School Climate 
 
The SARC provides the following information relevant to the State priority: School 
Climate (Priority 6): 
 

• Pupil suspension rates; 
• Pupil expulsion rates; and 
• Other local measures on the sense of safety 

 
 

   
Suspensions and Expulsions 

 
This table displays suspensions and expulsions data. 

Rate School 
2020-21 

School 
2021-22 

School 
2022-23 

District 
2020-21 

District 
2021-22 

District 
2022-23 

State 
2020-21 

State 
2021-22 

State 
2022-23 

Suspensions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.13 1.37 1.84 0.20 3.17 3.60 
Expulsions 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.07 0.08 
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2022-23 Suspensions and Expulsions by Student Group 

Student Group Suspensions Rate Expulsions Rate 

All Students         0 0 
Female         0 0 
Male         0 0 
Non-Binary           
American Indian or Alaska Native         0 0 
Asian         0 0 
Black or African American          0 0 
Filipino         0 0 
Hispanic or Latino         0 0 
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 
Two or More Races         0 0 
White         0 0 
English Learners         0 0 
Foster Youth         0 0 
Homeless         0 0 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged         0 0 
Students Receiving Migrant Education Services         0 0 
Students with Disabilities          0 0 

 
    

2023-24 School Safety Plan 
Elite Academic Academy is an independent study program where students are schooled in the home and through various 
contracted vendors in the community. Typically, students are in the primary care of their parent/guardian for their schooling. 
There are a few instances when the school sponsors events, such as field trips and state testing, when it is important to have a 
clear emergency preparedness plan.The school’s procedures for evacuation and emergency preparedness are outlined in our 
comprehensive safety plan that is updated in March of each school year. The roles of the responsible parties, the training 
necessary to perform those responsibilities, necessary resources, and emergency response actions, if applicable, are defined 
for each site where school operations are conducted. Further, it is important to clearly define the responsibilities of the school 
and parent/guardian, as well as the school’s dismissal procedures, in the event of an emergency or disaster. This plan can be 
found on our website for review  

 
         

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC 
 
The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 
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2020-21 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        N/A    
1        N/A    
2        N/A    
3        N/A    
4        N/A    
5        N/A    
6        N/A    

Other        N/A    

 
         

2021-22 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-grade level 
classes. 

Grade Level Average 
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        N/A    
1        N/A    
2        N/A    
3        N/A    
4        N/A    
5        N/A    
6        N/A    

Other        N/A    
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2022-23 Elementary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” 
indicates how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per class).  The “Other” category is for multi-
grade level classes. 

Grade Level Average  
Class Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-20 Students 

Number of Classes with  
21-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

K        N/A    
1        N/A    
2        N/A    
3        N/A    
4        N/A    
5        N/A    
6        N/A    

Other        N/A    
 

         
2020-21 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2020-21 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this 
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

Subject 
Average  

Class 
 Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-22 Students 

Number of Classes with  
23-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

English Language Arts         N/A    

Mathematics         N/A    

Science         N/A    

Social Science         N/A    

 
         

2021-22 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2021-22 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this 
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

Subject 
Average  

Class 
 Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-22 Students 

Number of Classes with  
23-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

English Language Arts         N/A    

Mathematics         N/A    

Science         N/A    

Social Science         N/A    
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2022-23 Secondary Average Class Size and Class Size Distribution 

This table displays the 2022-23 average class size and class size distribution.  The columns titled “Number of Classes” indicates 
how many classes fall into each size category (a range of total students per classroom). At the secondary school level, this 
information is reported by subject area rather than grade level. 

Subject 
Average  

Class 
 Size 

Number of Classes with  
1-22 Students 

Number of Classes with  
23-32 Students 

Number of Classes with  
33+ Students 

English Language Arts         N/A    

Mathematics         N/A    

Science         N/A    

Social Science         N/A    

 
       

2022-23 Ratio of Pupils to Academic Counselor 

This table displays the ratio of pupils to Academic Counselor.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff member working 
full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Ratio 

Pupils to Academic Counselor 272.33 

 
     

2022-23 Student Support Services Staff 

This table displays the number of FTE support staff assigned to this school.  One Full Time Equivalent (FTE) equals one staff 
member working full time; one FTE could also represent two staff members who each work 50 percent of full time. 

Title Number of FTE Assigned to School 

Counselor (Academic, Social/Behavioral or Career Development) 2 
Library Media Teacher (Librarian)  
Library Media Services Staff (Paraprofessional)  
Psychologist 1 
Social Worker  
Nurse        
Speech/Language/Hearing Specialist 1 
Resource Specialist (non-teaching)  
Other       19.5 
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Fiscal Year 2021-22 Expenditures Per Pupil and School Site Teacher Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 expenditures per pupil and average teacher salary for this school.  Cells with N/A values do not 
require data. 

Level 
Total 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Restricted) 

Expenditures 
Per Pupil 

(Unrestricted) 

Average 
Teacher 
Salary 

School Site 12005 2092 9914 83130 
District N/A N/A 11405 64115 
Percent Difference - School Site and District N/A N/A -14.0 25.8 
State N/A N/A 10797 88508 
Percent Difference - School Site and State N/A N/A -8.5 -6.3 
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Fiscal Year 2022-23 Types of Services Funded 
Elite Academic Academy - Mountain Empire TK-12, the premier independent study educational option, opened its doors July 1, 
2018. We focus on flexible and individualized homeschool, virtual, and blended independent study academies for students who 
are not successful or choose not to attend traditional brick and mortar schools. EAA-LU provides high quality and rigorous state 
board approved standards-based curriculum options to support students in meeting the challenging state academic 
achievement standards. We also offer unique academies with emphasis on Athletic Training, Visual and Performing Arts 
(VAPA), and Career Technical Education (CTE) opportunities to ensure our students graduate ready for college, their future 
careers, and the 21st-century workforce. 
 
All high school students have access to A-G approved courses through our own developed courses, as well as three online 
providers: Strongmind (primarily core/some elective), UC Scout (primarily core), and Edmentum (online elective classes). 
Credentialed teachers support the online classes through daily interactions via text, Zoom, and Canvas. Student achievement 
is assessed through a variety of measures such as: State standardized testing, teacher observations, teacher-created tasks, i-
Ready assessments and personalized learning paths, school-created benchmark assessments, learning period meetings, 
weekly meetings, report cards, learning journals, portfolios, labs, quizzes, and finals. Students also have the opportunity to 
participate in concurrent enrollment with community colleges in the area. 
 
Students in 6th -12th have the option of three learning academies: Virtual, Flex or Homeschool. Each learning option has highly 
qualified credentialed teachers who are meeting weekly with the student for 1- 4 hours to tutor and help ensure understanding. 
Middle school students participate in either online courses or use common core textbooks and curriculum to demonstrate 
learning. 
 
Students who are in TK-5th grade are part of Elite Academic’s Homeschool or Flex Academy where Elite’s highly qualified, 
California credentialed teacher work with their assigned students and parents/guardians to identify and implement an 
individualized learning plan, (ILP). At least every 20 school days, the Elite teacher, student and parent/guardian meet so that 
the teacher can assess student understanding of the material covered thus far, reteach concepts not yet mastered, and 
administer benchmark assessments and other Common Core-aligned diagnostic tests to be sure that the students are gaining 
a true understanding of the concepts being presented. 
 
Elite teachers provide weekly synchronous and live lessons aligned to the Common Core and all necessary materials to 
support these lessons. Elite students use Common Core SBE approved curricula such as Pearson, Glencoe, Prentice Hall, 
Evan-Moor, Houghton Mifflin-Harcourt, and other textbooks as described in the parent curriculum list. 
 
Students are required to complete their assignments in order to stay on track and meet their individualized goals. In addition to 
scheduled learning period meetings, students and parents/guardians have access to their teachers during the school day via 
phone, email, online domains, and one-on-one appointments, as needed. Elite’s teachers act as partners of the 
parent/guardian to ensure student achievement through a flexible, rigorous, relevant, individualized, and standards-based 
aligned education. 
 
Students have access to tutors, small group instruction, and enrichment opportunities to explore their passions and develop a 
solid foundation in the areas of their academic weaknesses as well. Students may choose to attend EAA-ME sponsored field 
trips and group activities. 
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Fiscal Year 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative Salaries 

This table displays the 2021-22 Teacher and Administrative salaries.  For detailed information on salaries, see the CDE 
Certification Salaries & Benefits web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/fd/cs/. 

Category District 
Amount 

State Average 
for Districts 

in Same Category 
Beginning Teacher Salary N/A $50,875 

Mid-Range Teacher Salary N/A $79,761 

Highest Teacher Salary N/A $103,045 

Average Principal Salary (Elementary) N/A $128,154 

Average Principal Salary (Middle) N/A $131,774 

Average Principal Salary (High) N/A $142,676 

Superintendent Salary N/A $211,462 

Percent of Budget for Teacher Salaries N/A 30.11% 

Percent of Budget for Administrative Salaries N/A 5.49% 

 
     

2022-23 Advanced Placement (AP) Courses 

This table displays the percent of student in AP courses at this school. 
Percent of Students in AP Courses 2.7 

 
This table displays the number of AP courses offered at this school where there are student course enrollments of at least one 
student. 

Subject Number of AP Courses Offered 

Computer Science         2 

English         2 

Fine and Performing Arts         0 

Foreign Language          0 

Mathematics         1 

Science         4 

Social Science         2 

Total AP Courses Offered 
Where there are student course enrollments of at least one student.          

11 

 
  

Professional Development 

Elite Academic Academy Professional Development is targeted and designed to improve the instruction of all learners. 
 
The essential focus for upper lever administration (Cabinet and Directors) this year for Elite Academic Academy is student work 
and data. Bi-weekly Leadership meetings include professional development centered on multiple topics in support of this work. 
 
All staff participate in professional development focused on academic success; compliance; MTSS; and developing positive 
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Professional Development 

relationships with families. 
 
Teachers of Record, Specialized Academic Instructors, and Content Teachers are invited to participate in EliteX opportunities, 
which aim to elevate the personalized teaching and learning experience offered at Elite Academic Academy. 
 
Content Teachers continue to attend Professional Development focused on high-quality curriculum and engaging delivery. 
Teachers meet weekly and receive coaching support as well. 
EAA also believes in building leadership at every level. At Elite we hire instructional lead teachers who are experienced 
teachers to serve as professional coaches focused on curriculum, teaching strategies, independent study best practices, 
literacy, and English Learners. Lead teachers provide individualized ongoing professional development to support student 
learning in the charter. They provide one-to-one support for newly hired or struggling teachers. These leads work directly for 
their unique Academy Directors as well as working with the Chief Academic Officer to provide teacher workshops and family 
engagement workshops. 

 

This table displays the number of school days dedicated to staff development and continuous improvement. 

Subject 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 

Number of school days dedicated to Staff Development and Continuous Improvement 10+ 10+ 10+ 
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Mountain Empire 
 

WELCOME! 

 Welcome to Elite Academic Academy – Mountain Empire (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Organization”). Our success depends upon creating an environment where all employees 
feel safe and secure. Thus, it is important that all staff members understand our policies and 
procedures. This handbook is intended to help familiarize you with them, as you are required to 
comply with all applicable policies in this handbook. We encourage you to use this handbook as a 
valuable resource for understanding our organization. 

If you have questions regarding this employee handbook, your employment, or anything 
contained in these policies, please speak with your supervisor or the Human Resources 
Department. 

Our best wishes to you; and thank you for joining our team and helping us to provide 
exceptional educational programs and opportunities. 
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SECTION 1 -  INTRODUCTORY POLICIES 
 
 

1.1 The Purpose of this Handbook 

The Employee Handbook (hereinafter referred to as “Handbook”) is designed to acquaint 
you with the Organization and provide you with information about working conditions, 
employee benefits, and some of the policies affecting employment. You must read, understand, 
and comply with all the provisions of this Handbook. It describes many of your responsibilities 
as an employee and outlines the programs developed by the Organization to benefit employees. 
One of our objectives is to provide a work environment that is conducive to both personal and 
professional growth. 

These policies are not meant to explain every employment situation but contain 
guidelines as to many employment situations. Failure to follow these guidelines or other policies, 
procedures, and rules contained in this Handbook can result in discipline, up to and including 
discharge. 
 

The Board of Directors may change any policy, procedure, rule, or benefit affecting the 
Organization’s operations at any time with notice to employees. The only exception is that the 
policy of at-will employment cannot be altered except by a written document signed by the Chief 
Executive Officer of the Organization. 

This Handbook is not intended to create any contractual guarantees of employment for 
anyone employed by the Organization. Employment at the Organization is at-will and may be 
terminated at the will of either the Organization or the employee. Any employee has the right to 
terminate employment at any time, with or without cause or notice. Likewise, the Organization 
may terminate the employee’s employment at any time, with or without cause or notice. An 
employee’s status as an at-will Employee may not be changed except in writing signed by the 
Chief Executive Officer of the Organization. All representations by any manager or other 
employee of the Organization that conflict in any way with anything set forth in this Handbook 
are invalid unless specifically agreed to in writing by the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Organization. At-will employment is the sole and entire arrangement between the Organization 
and its employees concerning the duration of employment and the circumstances under which 
employment may be terminated by either party. 
 

If anything in this Handbook is not compliant with current or future federal, state, or local 
law, the policies herein will be deemed altered only to the degree necessary to bring the policies 
into compliance with then-current law. 

 
 

1.2 Integration Clause/Right to Revise 
 

This Handbook contains the employment policies and practices of the Organization in 
effect at the time of distribution. All previously issued handbooks and any inconsistent policy 
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statements, or memoranda are superseded. 
 

The Organization reserves the right to revise, modify, delete, or add to any and all policies, 
procedures, work rules, or benefits stated in this Handbook or in any other document except for 
the Organization’s policy on at-will employment which may only be changed in writing signed by 
the Chief Executive Officer of the Organization. 
 

Any written changes to this Handbook will be distributed to all employees either in 
writing or an electronic format so that employees will be aware of the new policies or 
procedures. No oral statements or representations can in any way alter the provisions of this 
Handbook. 

This Handbook sets forth the entire agreement between you and the Organization as to 
the duration of employment and the circumstances under which employment may be terminated. 
Nothing in this Handbook or in any other employee document, including benefit plan 
descriptions, creates or is intended to create a promise or representation of continued 
employment for any employee. 
 
 

1.3 Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

The Organization is an equal opportunity employer and makes employment decisions on 
the basis of merit. We want to have the best available employees in every position. 
 

Organization policy prohibits unlawful discrimination based on actual or perceived race 
(including natural hairstyle and hair texture), color, creed, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, transgender status, pregnancy or related medical conditions, childbirth or related 
medical conditions, breastfeeding or related medical conditions, religion, including religious 
dress and grooming practices, marital status, registered domestic partner status, military and 
veteran status, age (40 and above), reproductive health decisions, national origin or ancestry, 
including language use and possession of a driver’s license, citizenship, physical or mental 
disability, including HIV and AIDS, medical condition, including cancer or a record or history of 
cancer, genetic characteristics, genetic information, sexual orientation, status as a victim of 
crime, protected medical leaves (e.g., leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act or the 
California Family Rights Act), domestic violence victim status, political affiliation, off-duty 
cannabis use away from the workplace, an employer-required drug screening test that detects 
non-psychoactive cannabis metabolites in hair, blood, urine, or other bodily fluids, or any other 
consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local law. The Organization also prohibits 
unlawful discrimination based on the perception that anyone has any of those characteristics or is 
associated with a person who has or is perceived as having any of those characteristics. 

 
The Organization is committed to compliance with all applicable laws providing equal 

employment opportunities. This commitment applies to all persons involved in Organization 
operations, including applicants, volunteers, and interns, and prohibits unlawful discrimination by 
any employee of the Organization, including supervisors and coworkers. 
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1.4 Reasonable Accommodation 
 
Religious Accommodation 

We will make reasonable accommodation for bona fide religious practices, including 
religious attire and grooming, unless this causes the Organization undue hardship in accordance 
with applicable law. Anyone who requires a religious accommodation should contact their 
manager or Human Resources Department to request such an accommodation. The Organization 
will investigate and respond to the request. The Organization will attempt to identify reasonable 
accommodations and will solicit the individual’s input regarding such matters. The Organization 
will not retaliate against anyone because they requested an accommodation of their religious 
beliefs, regardless of whether the accommodation is granted. 

Medical Accommodations 

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified 
individuals with a disability, the Organization will make reasonable accommodations for the 
known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is 
an applicant, volunteer, intern, or an employee unless undue hardship would result. 
 

Anyone who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential functions of 
the job should contact the Human Resources Department and request such an accommodation. 
The Organization will investigate and respond to the request. The Organization will attempt to 
identify possible accommodations and will solicit the individual’s input regarding such matters. 
If the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an undue hardship, the Organization will 
make the accommodation. The Organization will not retaliate against anyone because they 
requested an accommodation of their disability, regardless of whether the accommodation is 
granted. 

Where an employee is demonstrating behavior affecting his or her work performance, or 
raises a safety concern that management reasonably believes is being adversely affected by the 
employee’s state of health, the Organization reserves the right to request a fitness-for-duty 
examination, where appropriate, that is job-related and consistent with business necessity, to 
make a determination whether the employee can perform the essential functions of his/her 
position, with or without reasonable accommodations as permitted by law. 
 
Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation Accommodation 

While current illegal drug or alcohol use is not a protected disability, employees who 
volunteer to enter an alcohol or drug rehabilitation program will be accommodated as long as the 
accommodation does not impose an undue hardship on the Organization. Entrance into a 
treatment program does not relieve an employee of the obligation to satisfy the Organization’s 
standards regarding employee performance, and participation will not prevent the Organization 
from administering discipline for violation of its policies or relieve the employee of his or her 
responsibility to perform his or her job in a safe and efficient manner. The Organization may 
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require any employee who has gone through substance abuse treatment to be evaluated by an 
Organization-selected physician before being allowed to return to work. 

Reasonable Accommodations for Victims of Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault Or Stalking  

The Organization will provide reasonable accommodations for a victim of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking for the safety of the victim while at work, provided the 
accommodation does not cause the Organization undue hardship. The Organization shall engage 
in a timely, good faith, and interactive process with the employee to determine effective 
reasonable accommodations. 

Reasonable accommodations may include the implementation of safety measures, 
including a transfer, reassignment, modified schedule, changed work telephone, changed work 
station, installed lock, assistance in documenting domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking 
that occurs in the workplace, an implemented safety procedure, or another adjustment to a job 
structure, workplace facility, or work requirement in response to domestic violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking, or referral to a victim assistance organization. 

An employee requesting a reasonable accommodation under this policy may be required 
to provide the Organization with a written statement signed by the employee or an individual 
acting on the employee’s behalf, certifying that the accommodation is for an authorized purpose. 

Any verbal or written statement, police or court record, or other documentation provided 
to the Organization identifying an employee as a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or 
stalking shall be maintained as confidential by the Organization and shall not be disclosed by the 
Organization except as required by federal or state law or as necessary to protect the employee’s 
safety in the workplace. The employee shall be given notice before any authorized disclosure. 

A request for a reasonable accommodation under this policy should be made to your 
supervisor or Human Resources. If an employee no longer needs an accommodation, the 
employee shall notify their supervisor or Human Resources that the accommodation is no longer 
needed. 

The Organization shall not retaliate against a victim for requesting a reasonable 
accommodation, regardless of whether the request was granted. 
 
Lactation Accommodation 

An employee who desires to express breast milk for her infant child has the right to 
request lactation accommodation. 

The Organization will provide a reasonable amount of break time to accommodate an 
employee desiring to express breast milk for the employee’s infant child each time the employee 
has need to express milk. The Organization shall provide the employee with the use of a room or 
other location for the employee to express milk in private. A lactation room or location to 
express milk will not be a bathroom and shall be in close proximity to the employee’s work area, 
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shielded from view, and free from intrusion. The lactation room or other location to express milk 
will be safe, clean, and free from hazardous materials, contain a surface to place a breast pump 
and other personal items, contain a place to sit, and have access to electricity or alternative 
devices needed to operate an electric or battery-powered breast pump. The Organization will also 
provide access to a sink with running water and a refrigerator suitable for storing milk in close 
proximity to the employee’s workspace. 

The break time to express milk shall, if possible, run concurrently with any break time 
already provided to the employee. Break time to express milk that does not run concurrently with 
rest breaks shall be unpaid, except with regard to exempt employees as required by law. 

An employee seeking a lactation accommodation may make such a request to Human 
Resources. Human Resources will respond to this request within two (2) days and if the 
Company cannot provide break time or a suitable location for the employee to express breast 
milk, the Company shall provide a written response to the employee explaining its reasons. 

An employee who believes that the Company has violated this policy or any rights under 
Sections 1030, 1031, 1033, or 1034 of the California Labor Code relating to the right to express 
breast milk may file a complaint with the California Labor Commissioner. 
 
Reasonable Accommodation for Adult Literacy Programs 
 

The Organization will reasonably accommodate and assist any employee who reveals a 
problem of illiteracy and requests employer assistance in enrolling in an adult literacy education 
program provided that this reasonable accommodation does not impose an undue hardship on the 
employer. Employees will be required to bear the cost associated with enrollment in an adult 
literacy education program, but the Organization will assist the employee by providing the 
locations of local literacy education programs. The Organization may also arrange for a literacy 
education provider to visit its location(s). 

An employee who wishes to reveal a problem of illiteracy and requests Organization 
assistance should contact the Human Resources Department. The Organization will take all 
reasonable steps to safeguard the employee’s privacy. Employees may use accrued vacation pay 
if available to make up for the work that is missed to attend literacy classes. 
 
Reporting Process: 

If you believe you have been subjected to any form of unlawful discrimination, submit a 
written complaint to your supervisor or the Human Resources Department. Your complaint 
should be specific and should include the names of the individuals involved, the names of any 
witnesses, and the timeline surrounding the activity. If you need assistance with your complaint, 
or if you prefer to make a complaint in person, contact the Human Resources Department. The 
Organization will immediately undertake an effective, thorough, and objective investigation and 
attempt to resolve the situation. 
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If the Organization determines that unlawful discrimination has occurred, effective 
remedial action will be taken commensurate with the severity of the offense. Appropriate action 
also will be taken to deter any future discrimination. The Organization will not retaliate against 
you for filing a good faith complaint or for providing information in the investigation of any 
complaint and will not knowingly permit retaliation by management employees or your 
coworkers. 
 
 

1.5 At-Will Employment Status 

All employees of the Organization are employed on an at-will basis. Employment at-will 
may be terminated with or without cause, with or without notice, and at any time by the 
employee or the Organization. Nothing in this Handbook shall limit the right to terminate at-will 
employment. No manager, supervisor, or employee of the Organization has any authority to enter 
into an agreement for employment for any specified period of time or to make an agreement for 
employment on other than at-will terms. Only the Chief Executive Officer has the authority to 
make any such agreement, which is binding only if it is in writing. 
 

1.6 Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Prevention Policy 
 
Policy Against Harassment, Discrimination, And Retaliation 
 

The Organization is committed to providing a work environment free of unlawful 
harassment, discrimination, intimidation, or retaliation. Harassment based on race (including 
natural hair style and hair texture), color, creed, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
transgender status, pregnancy or related medical conditions, childbirth or related medical 
conditions, breastfeeding or related medical conditions, religion, including religious dress and 
grooming practices, marital status, registered domestic partner status, military and veteran status, 
age (40 and above), reproductive health decisions, national origin or ancestry, including 
language use and possession of a driver’s license, citizenship, physical or mental disability, 
perceived disability, including HIV and AIDS, medical condition, including cancer or a record or 
history of cancer, genetic characteristics, genetic information, sexual orientation, status as a 
victim of crime, protected medical leaves (e.g., leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act or 
the California Family Rights Act), domestic violence victim status, political affiliation, off-duty 
cannabis use away from the workplace, an employer-required drug screening test that detects non-
psychoactive cannabis metabolites in hair, blood, urine, or other bodily fluids, or any other basis 
protected by federal, state or local law or ordinance or regulation or any other proscribed factors 
or personal attributes (“Protected Categories”) will not be tolerated by the Organization. 
 

In addition, the Organization prohibits retaliation against a person who engages in 
activities protected under this policy. Reporting, or assisting in reporting, suspected violations of 
this policy and cooperating in investigations or proceedings arising out of a violation of this 
policy are protected activities under this policy. 
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Everyone at our Organization is expected to assume responsibility for maintaining a work 
environment that is free from harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. Employees are 
encouraged to promptly report conduct that they believe violates this policy so that we have an 
opportunity to address and resolve any concerns. We are committed to responding to alleged 
violations of this policy in a timely and fair manner and to taking appropriate action aimed at 
ending the prohibited conduct. 
 
Scope of Protection 

This policy applies to all persons involved in the operation of the Organization and 
prohibits unlawful harassment, discrimination, or retaliation by any employee of the 
Organization, including supervisors and managers, as well as vendors, customers (students and 
parents), volunteers and any other persons with whom employees come into contact. It is the 
policy of the Organization to also prohibit unlawful harassment based on the perception that 
anyone has any of those characteristics or is associated with a person who has or is perceived as 
having any of those characteristics. 
 
Training 
 

The Organization provides Harassment Prevention Training including prevention of 
abusive conduct, in accordance with State law. 
 
Discrimination 

As used in this policy, discrimination is defined as the unequal treatment in any aspect of 
employment, including discrimination based solely or in part on the employee’s, or applicant’s, 
Protected Category. Discrimination may include, but is not necessarily limited to: hostile or 
demeaning behavior towards applicants or employees because of their Protected Category; 
allowing the applicant’s or employee’s Protected Category to be a factor in hiring, promotion, 
compensation or other employment related decisions unless otherwise permitted by applicable 
law, and providing unwarranted assistance or withholding work-related assistance, cooperation, 
and/or information to applicants or employees because of their Protected Category. 
 
Harassment 
 

As used in this policy, harassment is defined as disrespectful or unprofessional conduct, 
including disrespectful or unprofessional conduct based on any of the Protected Categories listed 
above. Harassment can be verbal (such as slurs, jokes, insults, epithets, gestures, or teasing), 
visual (such as the posting or distribution of offensive posters, symbols, cartoons, drawings, 
computer displays, or emails), or physical conduct (such as physically threatening another 
person, blocking someone’s way, making physical contact in an unwelcome manner, etc.). 
 
Sexual Harassment 
 

As used in this policy, sexual harassment is defined as harassment based on sex or conduct 
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of a sexual nature, and includes harassment based on sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, 
breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), gender, gender identity or gender expression. It 
may include all of the actions described above as harassment, as well as other unwelcome sex-
based conduct, such as unwelcome or unsolicited sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
conversations regarding sexual activities, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. 
Sexually harassing conduct need not be motivated by sexual desire and may include situations 
that began as reciprocal relationships, but that later cease to be reciprocal. 

 
Harassment can also include offensive remarks about a person’s sex. For example, it is 

illegal to harass a woman by making offensive comments about women in general. Both victim 
and the harasser can be either a woman or a man, and the victim and harasser can be the same 
sex. The harasser can be the victim's supervisor, a supervisor in another area, a co-worker, or 
someone who is not an employee of the employer, such as a client or customer. 
 

Sexual harassment includes many forms of offensive behavior. The following is a partial 
list of the types of behavior that could constitute sexual harassment and is prohibited: 

 
• Verbal harassment such as derogatory comments or slurs, comments about an individual's 

body, use of sexually degrading words, suggestive or offensive notes, letters, or 
invitations; 

• Physical harassment such as any touching of another, assault, impeding or blocking 
movement, or any physical interference with normal work or movement when directed at 
an individual; 

• Visual forms of harassment, such as sexual gestures, displaying derogatory posters, 
cartoons or drawings that are offensive; 

• Requests for sexual favors or unwanted sexual advances; and 
• Any other conduct that unreasonably interferes with the performance of the job or that 

creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment. 
 
Conduct similar to that described above, which is based upon or motivated by any Protected 
Category, is also prohibited and will not be tolerated. 
 
Retaliation 
 

As used in this policy, retaliation is defined as any adverse employment action taken 
against an employee because the employee engaged in a protected activity. Protected activities 
may include, but are not limited to, reporting or assisting in reporting suspected violations of this 
policy and/or cooperating in investigations or proceedings arising out of a violation of this policy. 
Adverse employment action is conduct or an action that materially affects the terms and 
conditions of the employee’s employment status or is reasonably likely to deter the employee 
from engaging in protected activity. Even actions that do not result in a direct loss of 
compensation may be regarded as an adverse employment action when considered in the totality 
of the circumstances. 
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Examples of retaliation under this policy include but are not limited to: demotion; 
suspension; reduction in pay; denial of a merit salary increase; failure to hire or consider for hire; 
refusing to promote or consider for promotion because of reporting a violation of this policy; 
harassing another employee for filing a complaint; denying employment opportunities because of 
making a complaint or for cooperating in an investigation; changing someone’s work 
assignments for identifying harassment or other forms of discrimination in the workplace; 
treating people differently such as denying an accommodation; or not talking to an employee 
when otherwise required by job duties, or otherwise excluding the employee from job-related 
activities because of engagement in activities protected under this policy. 

Reporting Violations of this Policy: 
 

Anyone who is subjected to or witnesses behavior that they believe violates this policy is 
encouraged, if they feel comfortable doing so, to immediately tell the offending individual that 
the behavior is inappropriate and to stop the behavior. The individual should also report the 
alleged violation to their supervisor or the Human Resources Department of the Organization 
immediately after the incident. If the alleged offender is the employee’s supervisor or manager, 
the employee should report the conduct to any other supervisor, manager, or the Human 
Resources Department. You will be asked to provide details of the incident or incidents, names 
of individuals involved and names of any witnesses. If you prefer to make a complaint in person, 
contact the Human Resources Department. The Organization wants you to use these procedures 
so that you can help us put a stop to unlawful discrimination and harassment. 

 
Supervisors who observe harassing conduct or who receive a report or other information 

regarding alleged unlawful harassment should immediately refer all harassment complaints to the 
Human Resources Department of the Organization. 
 

Anonymous complaints will also be investigated. The method will depend on the details 
provided in the anonymous complaint. 

The reported matter will be promptly and thoroughly investigated by qualified personnel 
in a timely and impartial manner and the investigation will be documented and tracked. To the 
extent possible, the Organization will endeavor to keep the reporting of the concerns 
confidential; however, complete confidentiality cannot be guaranteed when it interferes with the 
Organization’s ability to fulfill its obligations under this policy. It is the obligation of all 
employees, volunteers, or interns to cooperate fully in the internal investigation process. 
 

After reviewing all the evidence, a timely determination will be made concerning 
whether reasonable grounds exist to believe that discrimination, retaliation and/or harassment has 
occurred. If the investigation determines that prohibited discrimination, retaliation, harassment, 
or other conduct which violates the Organization’s policy has occurred, the Organization will 
take disciplinary action against those who engaged in the misconduct, up to and including 
termination of employment, and appropriate action will be taken to remedy the injury, if any, to 
the employee subjected to the misconduct. If appropriate, the Human Resources Department will 
advise all parties concerned of the results of the investigation. The Organization will not retaliate 
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against you for filing a good faith complaint or for cooperating in providing information in the 
investigation of any complaint, and will not tolerate or permit retaliation by management, 
employees, or co-workers. 

 
In addition, disciplinary action will be taken against anyone who attempts to discourage 

or prevent another from bringing harassment, retaliation, or discrimination to the attention of 
management. The Organization wants to assure all of its employees, volunteers, and interns that 
measures will be undertaken to protect those who complain about harassment and/or 
discrimination from any further acts of harassment, discrimination, coercion or intimidation, and 
from retaliation due to their reporting in good faith an incident of this type or participating in an 
investigation or proceeding concerning the alleged harassment, retaliation, or discrimination.  

 
Filing Complaints Outside Our Organization 
 

The Organization encourages all employees to report any incidents forbidden by this 
policy immediately so that complaints can be timely, fair, and completely resolved. If any 
employee, volunteer, or intern believes that the above procedure has not resolved his or her 
situation, that person may contact the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing 
("DFEH") or the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC") to file a claim. 
The DFEH and EEOC serve as neutral fact-finders and will attempt to assist the parties to 
voluntarily resolve their disputes. In the event that the DFEH or EEOC is unable to obtain 
voluntary resolution and finds that harassment or discrimination has occurred, the DFEH and the 
EEOC may award reinstatement or monetary damages. To obtain the telephone number for the 
most convenient EEOC office, call 800-669-4000. For the most convenient DFEH office, call 
800-884-1684. 

 
1.7 Respect and Anti-Bullying 

 
The Organization believes that all employees should be treated with respect in the 

workplace. It is the commitment of the Organization and its management to ensure this place of 
work is free from negative and aggressive behaviors, and that the work environment is aimed at 
providing high quality products/services in an atmosphere of respect, collaboration, safety, and 
equality. All employees have the right to be treated with dignity and respect. 
 
Workplace Bullying Prohibited 
 

Workplace bullying by anyone working for the Organization or on its behalf toward any 
employee is strictly prohibited. Any employee engaging in workplace bullying may be subject to 
discipline, up to and including termination. 
 
Workplace Bullying Defined 
 

Workplace bullying, also known as abusive conduct, is malicious conduct that a 
reasonable person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to a legitimate business interest. 
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Examples of workplace bullying behaviors may include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Repeated infliction of verbal abuse, such as the use of derogatory remarks, insults, 
and epithets; 

 
• Verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, 

intimidating, or humiliating; 
 

• Inappropriate gestures or visual staring; 
 

• Excessive yelling, repeated emotional outbursts, berating others, using a harsh 
tone of voice; 

 
• Talking down to others; 

 
• Criticizing or pointing out mistakes to others in front of a group or using a 

condescending tone; 
 

• Social exclusion or ostracism, ignoring others, silent treatment; 
 

• Gratuitous sabotage or undermining another’s work performance, for example by 
giving impossible to meet deadlines or workloads; 

 

• Withholding pertinent work-related information or undermining another’s work 
by not giving them enough information to do what is required of them; 

 
• Gossiping or spreading rumors; 

 
• Manipulating a person’s job content or unwarranted removal of core 

responsibilities; 
 

• Making threats; using intimidating tactics; and 
 

• Making humiliating or degrading remarks about a person online (i.e., 
cyberbullying). 

 
These types of behaviors are well recognized as having damaging consequences for their 

recipients, the observers of the behavior, and the company as a whole and are therefore not 
tolerated. 
 
Acceptable and Healthy Workplace Behaviors 
 

Acceptable and healthy workplace behaviors are any behaviors that promote respect, 
positivity and civility in our workplace. They include, but are not limited to: 
 

● Using respectful, supportive, and encouraging language in all interactions, no matter the 
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subject of conversation; 
 

● Offering your thoughts or disagreements on an issue politely; 
 

● Being open to innovative and creative ideas, even if they seem impossible to achieve at 
first listen; 
 

● Giving peers direct, constructive feedback that is solution-oriented; 
 

● Expressing appreciation when a peer does something correctly and in a timely manner; 
 

● Approaching conflict with maturity and true desire for resolution, rather than as a fight or 
opportunity to belittle a co-worker; and 
 

● Maintaining a positive attitude, even when you are having a bad day, with managers, 
peers, subordinates and customers. 

 

Training 
 

As part of its commitment to encouraging positive and healthy behaviors, the 
Organization has established training on workplace bullying for all employees and managers. 
Training is included as part of the Company’s harassment and discrimination training. 

 
Reporting Complaints 
 

Any employee who feels that he or she has experienced conduct that he or she reasonably 
believes violates this policy should report his/her complaint(s) to a supervisor or Human 
Resources. 
 

Where appropriate, an investigation will be undertaken, and disciplinary action will be 
taken. The objective of the investigation is to ascertain whether or not the behaviors complained 
of occurred, and therefore will include interviewing the person complained of, witnesses, 
managers and any other party that may be involved with or had witness to the alleged behaviors. 
The investigation will be conducted thoroughly, objectively, with sensitivity and utmost 
confidentiality, and with due respect for the rights of both the complainant and the alleged 
aggressor. The investigation will be completed as quickly as possible. 
 

Upon completion of the investigation, the Organization will decide what, if any, action 
will be taken. 
 
 

1.8 Gender Identity And Gender Expression In The Workplace 

As stated in our Harassment, Discrimination, And Retaliation Prevention Policy, we are 
an equal opportunity employer and are committed to providing a safe, supportive, and productive 
work environment that is free from discrimination, retaliation, and harassment. We will not 
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tolerate any kind of discrimination, retaliation, or harassment, including discrimination or 
harassment based on an individual’s gender identity or gender expression, including 
transitioning. 

In furtherance of this commitment, the Organization has adopted this policy to address 
important issues and guidelines pertinent to gender identity and expression, including a plan for 
employees transitioning in the workplace that fully recognizes the employee’s gender 
presentation and also maximizes privacy. 

We cannot anticipate every situation that might occur with respect to transgender or 
transitioning employees, and many of those needs must be assessed on an individualized basis. In 
all situations, however, our goal is to ensure the safety, comfort, and inclusion of all employees, 
maximize workplace integration and minimize stigmatization. 

Anyone who is subjected to or witnesses possible unlawful discrimination, retaliation, or 
harassment based on any protected characteristic, or perceived protected characteristic, must 
follow the complaint procedures set forth in our Harassment, Discrimination, And Retaliation 
Prevention Policy. 
 
Guidelines for Transitioning in the Workplace 

The Organization will not discriminate against an individual because the employee is 
transitioning, has transitioned, or is perceived to be transitioning. The Organization will work 
with each transitioning employee individually to assist in a successful workplace transition. 
Transitioning employees should first meet with the Human Resources Department in order to 
make them aware of the upcoming transition. If the employee’s preferred point of contact is not 
Human Resources, Human Resources can work directly with the employee’s preferred point of 
contact to ensure the employee is aware of the Organization’s transgender- related policies and 
guidelines. 

From there, a meeting will be held with the transitioning employee and their supervisor – 
and others, if requested by the transitioning employee – to ensure the supervisor is aware of the 
transition, understands what needs to be done in order to fully support the employee in the 
process, and is familiar with our policies and any other resources that provide relevant 
educational information. 

During this process, Human Resources will work simultaneously with the transitioning 
employee to determine what updates should be made in advance of the transition to the 
transitioning employee’s name, records, photographs, emails, etc. and when those changes can be 
made. The transitioning employee should also advise Human Resources of any time off that may 
be needed for pre-scheduled medical procedures. 

Privacy 

All Organization employees have the right to discuss their gender identity or transition 
process openly, or to keep that information private. Information about an employee’s gender 
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status (such as the sex they were assigned at birth) can constitute confidential medical 
information under privacy laws like HIPAA. Management, Human Resources, and coworkers 
should not disclose information that may reveal an employee’s transgender status or gender 
presentation to others. That kind of personal or confidential information may only be shared with 
the employee’s consent and with coworkers who truly “need-to-know” in order to do their jobs. 
 
Preferred Names and Pronouns 

All Organization employees have the right to be addressed by a preferred gender, name, 
or pronoun, including gender-neutral pronouns. A court-ordered name or gender change is not 
required. Managers, supervisors, and coworkers are required to abide by this policy. The 
intentional or persistent refusal to respect an employee’s preferred name and pronoun (for 
example, intentionally referring to the employee by a name or pronoun that does not correspond 
to the employee’s gender identity) can constitute harassment and is a violation of our policies. If 
you are unsure what pronoun a transgender or transitioning coworker might prefer, you can 
politely ask your coworker how they would like to be addressed. Dress Codes 

The Organization does not have dress codes that restrict an employees’ clothing or 
appearance on the basis of gender. Transgender and transitioning employees have the right to 
dress in a manner consistent with their gender identity or gender expression. We will not impose 
upon any applicant or employee any physical appearance, grooming, or dress standard which is 
inconsistent with the individual’s gender identity or gender expression, unless there is a business 
necessity. 
 
Internal Recordkeeping 

As noted above, the Organization will change an employee’s official record to reflect a 
change in name or gender upon request from the employee. Certain types of records, like those 
relating to retirement accounts, may require a legal name change before the person’s name can 
be changed. Most records, however, can be changed to reflect a person’s preferred name without 
proof of a legal name change. Official records will also be changed to reflect the employee’s new 
name and gender upon the employee’s request. 

The Organization will make every effort to update any photographs at the employee’s 
request, so the employee’s gender identity and expression are represented accurately. 

If a new or transitioning employee has questions about company records or ID 
documents, the employee should contact Human Resources. 

Safe and Equal Access to Facilities 

All Organization employees have a right to safe and appropriate restroom facilities, 
regardless of sex. Employees are permitted to use facilities that correspond to the employee’s 
gender identity or gender expression, regardless of the employee’s assigned sex at birth. 
“Facility” is broader than bathrooms and includes other types of company facilities including 
locker rooms with showers. For instance, transgender women are permitted to use the women’s 
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restroom, and transgender men are permitted to use the men’s restroom. Any employee who has 
a need or desire for increased privacy, regardless of the underlying reason, will be provided 
access to a single-stall restroom where available. No employee, however, shall be required to use 
such a restroom. 

No manager, supervisor, employee, or any other individual can require you to provide 
proof of sex or gender in order to use a particular facility. 

If you have any questions about this policy, please contact Human Resources. 

 
1.9 Employment Application, Background, and Reference Checks 

 
All candidates for employment must fully complete, date and sign the standard 

Organization Employment Application. The Organization relies on the accuracy of the 
information reflected in the employment application and expects the employee and their 
references to provide accurate and true information during the hiring process and employment. 
Should the Organization subsequently discover any information is misleading, false, or was 
intentionally omitted, the Organization may reject an applicant from further consideration, or 
terminate the existing employee based upon the misinformation. 
 

When the Organization processes an employment application and applicable signed 
consent release for background and reference checks, it may obtain any or all of the following 
information as permitted by law: 
 

• Social Security Number Verification 
• Professional References 
• Educational (Degree) Verification Report 
• Tuberculosis Screening or Assessment 

Due to our status as a public school, working with children and youth, criminal history (i.e. 
Livescan screening) will be required following an employment offer, and prior to the first date of 
employment as permitted by law. 

When a consumer credit report is requested, the Organization will provide written notice 
informing the applicant that a consumer credit report will be used and that the applicant may 
receive a free copy of the report if the employee desires by indicating that request on the notice 
that the Organization has provided. Should the Organization take an adverse employment action 
based in whole or in part on the consumer credit report, a copy of the report and a summary of 
your rights under the Fair Credit Reporting Act and any other applicable laws will be provided to 
the applicant or employee, as well as any other documents required by law. The Organization 
will endeavor to maintain any information received in the strictest confidence. The completed 
application or resume will be made part of the personnel file of those applicants accepted for 
employment. 
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At this time, the Organization does not exercise its right to conduct a consumer credit 
report. 
 
 

1.10 Employment Eligibility Verification 

All offers of employment are contingent on verification of your authorization to work in 
the United States, as required by the applicable law, including the Immigration Reform and 
Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”). Upon receiving a conditional offer of employment, you will be 
asked to provide original documents that establish your identity and employment authorization in 
the United States and to sign a verification form required by federal law. These documents must 
be provided on your start date. If you cannot verify your right to work in the United States, the 
Organization may be obligated to terminate your employment. 

Satisfactory clearance of a Live Scan report from the Federal or California Department of 
Justice, background and reference checks, and tuberculosis risk assessment or tuberculosis test, 
are required following an offer of employment, and prior to the starting date of employment. In 
addition, your employment may be contingent upon a clear California Department of Motor 
Vehicles record check if your position requires business travel or if you will be using a vehicle 
provided by the Organization. 
 
 

1.11 Electronic Signature Policy  

The Organization is committed to encouraging a proficient and efficient workplace 
wherein each individual, whether applicant or employee, shall conduct his or her potential or 
actual employment by the use of electronic signatures. To that end, the Organization has adopted 
an electronic signature policy to be read and acknowledged by each applicant and employee in 
compliance with California’s Uniform Electronic Transaction Act (UETA, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 
1633.1-1633.17). (See Appendix E for the policy and acknowledgement form. 
 
 
SECTION 2 -  EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
 
 

2.1 Employee Classifications 

It is the intent of the Organization to clarify the definitions of employment classifications 
so that employees understand their employment status and benefit eligibility. These 
classifications do not guarantee employment for any specified period of time. Accordingly, the 
right to terminate the employment relationship at-will at any time is retained by both the 
employee and the Organization. An employee will not change from a designated employment 
status to another status unless specifically informed of such a change, via a Change of 
Relationship contract, and/or contract addendum. 

The following define the Organization’s employment categories. 
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Classified 
 

Classified staff are non-certificated. 
 

Certificated 
 

Certificated staff are credentialed. 
 

Directors 
 

Directors are full-time staff who may be Classified or Certificated. 
. 
Regular Full-Time 

Regular full-time employees are those who are scheduled for, and perform work, at least 
32 hours or more per week. A full-time employee is eligible for all benefits listed in this 
Handbook unless stated otherwise. 
 
Regular Part-Time 

Regular part-time employees are those who, at the time of hire, are assigned to a regular 
schedule of less than thirty-two (32) hours per week. A part-time employee is not eligible for any 
benefits listed in this Handbook unless required by law or unless otherwise specified. 
 
Temporary 

An employee who is hired with the understanding that they are being employed temporarily, 
usually relating to special projects, abnormal workloads or emergencies. A temporary employee 
is not eligible for any benefits listed in this Handbook unless required by law. 
 
Seasonal Employment 

An employee designated with seasonal employment status is hired for a limited period of 
time or an identified work project. A seasonal employee is not eligible for any benefits listed in 
this Handbook unless required by law. 
 
Inactive Status 

Employees who are on any type of unpaid leave of absence, work-related or non-work- 
related, will be placed on inactive status. During the time the employee is on inactive status, no 
vacation or sick time will be earned and will not continue to accrue except as specifically noted in 
this Handbook. 
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2.2 Non-Exempt and Exempt Employees 

In addition to the classifications above, employees will also be classified as either 
“exempt” or “non-exempt” for purposes of computing overtime pay and certain other wage and 
hour benefits in accordance with state and federal law. For questions concerning appropriate 
classification, contact a supervisor or the Human Resources Department. 
 
Non-Exempt 

An employee who is covered by overtime, and certain other provisions of the Federal 
Fair Labor Standards Act and California wage and hour laws, is considered non-exempt. Non- 
exempt employees are entitled to an overtime premium in accordance with California and federal 
law. 
 
Exempt 
 

A salaried employee, whose work duties and amount of pay exempt them from overtime, 
and certain other provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and California wage and 
hour laws, are considered exempt. 
 
 

2.3 Work Week 

The workweek begins at 12:00 a.m. on Sunday and ends at 11:59 p.m. on Saturday. 

 
2.4 Work Schedule 

Work schedules are based on department or facility functions and individual job 
responsibilities. Work schedules may vary from department to department and employee to 
employee. The employee’s immediate supervisor shall designate hours. All schedules are subject 
to change and require a supervisor’s approval. 
 
 

2.5 Job Descriptions 

Your job description will be explained during the initial interview process and throughout 
the course of your employment. Your position description is not designed to spell out all the 
duties and tasks associated with your employment; all Organization employees are expected to 
fulfill both essential and secondary job duties and requirements. Job Descriptions are not 
resolute and may change, in whole or in part, over time. Employees may be asked to perform 
work on special assignments in addition to normal duties. You are expected to discuss any 
significant changes in your functions and responsibilities with your supervisor, who has the 
authority to request the Human Resources Department to formalize changes in job descriptions. 
All changes in job descriptions must be approved by the Human Resources Department. The 
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Organization reserves the right to change job responsibilities, transfer job positions, or assign 
additional job duties at any time. 
 
 

2.6 Remote Work Policy  
 

Elite Academic Academies (“EAA”) considers working remotely to be a viable, flexible work 
option when both the employee and the position are suited to such an arrangement. Working 
remotely may be appropriate for some employees and positions but not for others. Working 
remotely may also be appropriate in some circumstances, and not in other circumstances. 
 

This Remote Work Policy outlines the guidelines for EAA employees who work from a 
location other than our EAA offices. It contains the terms and conditions for working remotely. 
It should act as a guide for both management and the employee and must be signed by the 
employee to acknowledge they read through and understood the details herein. 
 
Scope 
 

This policy applies to all employees whose primary work location is not at our offices. 
 
Remote Work Outside of California 
 

Remote work at EAA is only permitted in the state of California. EAA employees are not 
permitted to work remotely in another state, or in another country, for any period of time without 
pre-approval or authorization from the CEO or the board of directors. [Note: Short-term visits 
to other states would certainly be considered for an exception.] 
 

If an employee is considering relocating to another state, in which EAA has already been 
established as a business, then the employee must immediately consult with their supervisor, as 
well as HR, regarding the proposed location. [Note: Currently EAA is established in Arizona, 
Michigan, Montana, Texas, Utah, and Washington]. Continued employment at EAA is not 
guaranteed for employees who relocate to another state or country. 
 

If an employee is considering relocating to a state where EAA is not already established and 
would like to continue employment at EAA, again, the employee must immediately consult with 
their supervisor, as well as HR, regarding the proposed location. Continued employment at EAA 
is not guaranteed for employees who relocate to another state or country. 
 
Eligibility 
 

EAA will evaluate the suitability of a remote work arrangement for each employee, reviewing 
the following areas: 

• Job responsibilities: EAA will determine if the job is appropriate for a remote work 
arrangement. 

• Business Needs: EAA will determine whether the remote work arrangement meets its 
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business needs. 
• Equipment needs, workspace design considerations and scheduling issues: EAA will 

review the physical workspace needs and the appropriate location for the remote work. 
• Tax and other legal implications: EAA, in conjunction with the employee, must 

determine any tax or legal implications under IRS, state and local government laws, and/or 
restrictions of working out of a home-based office. 

 
EAA has the authority to establish, approve, or deny work arrangements for individual 

employees. If EAA, in its sole discretion, agrees, then the employee will be permitted to work 
remotely. 
 
Work Expectations While Remote 
 

Remote employees must follow the work schedules provided to them, be sure to meet 
deadlines, performance standards, and job requirements, uphold high-quality standards, and be 
responsive to their supervisors. 
 

To ensure that employee performance will not suffer in remote work arrangements, we advise 
our remote employees to: 
 

• Choose a quiet and distraction-free working space. 
• Have an internet connection that’s adequate for their job. 
• Dedicate their full attention to their job duties during working hours. 
• Adhere to break and attendance schedules agreed upon with their supervisor. 
• Ensure their schedules overlap with those of their team members for as long as is 

necessary to complete their job duties effectively. 
 

Employees must also be available to communicate with their supervisor and other members of 
management as required and appropriate for the job. 
 

Employees who work remotely must be available to travel when required. This includes travel 
to EAA’s primary office when necessary, regardless of the established remote work schedule. 
[Note: EAA provides employees with a travel and mileage stipend in this regard]. 
 
Equipment 
 

On a case-by-case basis, EAA will determine, with information supplied by the employee and 
the supervisor, the appropriate equipment needs (including hardware, software, modems, phone 
and data lines and other office equipment) for each remote work arrangement. EAA reserves the 
right to make determinations as to appropriate equipment, subject to change at any time. 
 

Equipment supplied by the organization is to be used for business purposes only. The 
employee must sign an inventory of all EAA property received and agree to take appropriate 
action to protect the items from damage, theft, or misuse. Specifically, employees must store 
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equipment in a safe and clean space when not in use and follow all other policies related to EAA 
equipment as detailed in EAA’s Employee Handbook. 
 

Upon termination of employment, all EAA property must be returned to the organization, 
unless other arrangements have been made. 
 

EAA provides employees with access to desktop phone service and also provides needed 
business-related supplies when requested and approved. 
 

Equipment supplied by the organization will be maintained by the organization. Equipment 
supplied by the employee, if deemed appropriate by the organization, will be maintained by the 
employee. 
 
Security 
 

Consistent with the organization's expectations of information security for employees working 
at the office as described in EAA’s Employee Handbook, employees working remotely will be 
expected to ensure the protection of proprietary organization and student information accessible 
from their home office. Steps include the use of locked file cabinets and desks, regular password 
maintenance, locking your laptop screen when you step away from your workspace, and any 
other measures appropriate for the job and the environment. 
 
Safety 
 

Employees are expected to maintain their home workspace in a safe manner, free from safety 
hazards. 
 

Injuries sustained by the employee in a home office location while performing his or her 
regular work duties are normally covered by the organization's workers' compensation policy. 
Employees working remotely are responsible for notifying EAA of such injuries as soon as 
practicable. 
 
Time Worked 
 

Non-exempt employees working remotely will be required to accurately record all hours 
worked and strictly adhere to required rest and meal breaks using EAA’s time-keeping system. 
Non-exempt employees must also obtain prior approval from their supervisor before working any 
overtime. 
 
Compliance with Policies 
 

Remote employees must follow all EAA policies, including those in our Employee Handbook. 
All EAA policies around conduct, confidentiality, benefits, etc. continue to apply regardless of 
location. 
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Reasonable Accommodations 
 

Employees who are new parents, suffer from short-term/long-term disability, or require 
accommodations to work from home should notify their supervisor as soon as possible. 
 
 

2.7 Performance Assessment and Employee Development 

The work performance of an employee is a vital key to the success of the Organization. 
Performance assessments, observations, or evaluations are conducted with employees annually; 
however, a supervisor may initiate a performance assessment, observation, or evaluation with an 
employee at any time during the course of their employment. Written performance assessments 
will be recorded in an employee’s personnel record. 

The Organization is committed to providing a supportive learning environment designed 
to encourage employees to pursue their professional goals and career objectives through training 
and advancement. In line with this commitment, training and development opportunities are 
offered to employees to increase their skills and enhance their contributions to the Organization. 
Employees are encouraged to speak with their supervisor regarding requests for training and 
development. 
 
 

2.8 Meal and Rest Periods 

The law requires that non-exempt employees working in excess of five (5) hours be 
provided with a duty-free, uninterrupted unpaid meal period of at least thirty (30) minutes. 
Accordingly, it is Organization policy that an unpaid meal break (of at least 30 minutes) must be 
taken each day by employees working five (5) or more hours per shift, unless six (6) hours 
completes the shift, and the non-exempt employee waives their meal break in writing. 
 

If a non-exempt employee’s workday exceeds ten (10) hours, then that employee is 
entitled to a second duty-free, uninterrupted unpaid meal period of thirty (30) minutes. However, 
if the workday does not exceed twelve (12) hours, the second meal period may be waived if the 
employee and the Organization voluntarily agree, in writing, so long as the first meal period was 
not waived. 
 
 

Number of Hours Worked Per Shift Number of Meal Periods 
5 hours or less No meal period 
More than 5 hours up to 6 hours 1 unpaid 30-min. meal period (may be waived in 

writing) 
More than 6 hours up to 10 hours 1 unpaid 30-min. meal period 
More than 10 hours up to 12 hours 2 unpaid 30-min. meal periods 

(may not be combined, 2nd meal period may be 
waived in writing if first meal period taken) 
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More than 12 hours 2 unpaid 30-min. meal periods (may not be 
combined) 

 
Said meal breaks must be taken at a location separate from the employee’s desk or work 

area, and employees are not permitted to work during their meal break. Employees will be 
relieved of all duties during the meal period and are permitted to leave the Organization premises 
during their meal break. The schedule for meal periods will vary according to business hours and 
work schedules but the first meal period must begin by the end of the fifth hour of work, and if 
applicable, the second meal period must begin by the end of the tenth hour. Your supervisor will 
advise you of your scheduled meal break. Unless approved by your immediate supervisor, a 
meal break may only be taken at the employee’s regularly scheduled meal break time. A meal 
break may not be skipped in order to accommodate a late arrival or early departure from an 
employee’s normal workday unless waived in writing and approved by the employee’s 
immediate supervisor. 

Duty-free uninterrupted paid rest breaks are provided at the rate of ten (10) consecutive 
minutes for each four (4) hour work period or major fraction thereof for non-exempt employees. 
No break is provided for employees working less than 3.5 hours. Those employees who work 
between 3.5 hours and six (6) hours are provided a paid ten (10) minute break. Those employees 
working between six (6) and ten (10) hours are provided two paid ten (10) minute breaks. The 
rest period should occur as near as possible to the middle of the work period. Upon request, 
reasonable accommodations, including privacy and increased break time, will be made to 
accommodate lactating employees. 
 

Number of Hours Worked Per Shift Number of Meal Periods 
Less Than 3 ½ hours No rest period 
3 ½ hours up to 6 hours One 10 -min. rest period 
6 hours up to 10 hours Two 10 -min. rest periods 
10 hours up to 14 hours Three 10 -min. rest periods 
14 hours up to 18 hours Four 10 -min. rest periods 

Non-exempt employees will be relieved of all duties during the rest break and are permitted to 
leave the Organization premises during their rest breaks. Check with your supervisor for the 
appropriate time to take your rest break. 

It is Organization policy that employees are required to take all meal and rest breaks as set 
forth above (unless you waive a meal period as set forth above). If you miss a meal or rest period 
(other than a waived meal period), you must report to your supervisor or the Human Resources 
Department that you missed the meal or rest period and whether you missed the meal or rest period 
due to employer needs. Employees who violate this policy shall be subject to discipline, up to and 
including termination. 
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2.9 Timekeeping Requirements 

All non-exempt employees, whether salaried or not, are required to record their time, via 
our timekeeping system, in Paycom, for payroll purposes. Non-exempt employees must record 
their own time at the start and at the end of each work and meal period. Non-exempt employees 
also must record their time whenever they leave the building (or cease working) for any reason 
other than Organization business. Each employee will be provided with specific instructions 
regarding the time-keeping system; and will be responsible for reviewing, approving, and 
submitting time each pay period. Completing another employee’s timesheet, allowing another 
employee to complete your timesheet, or altering a time record is not permissible and is subject 
to Corrective action. 

Any errors on your time record should be reported immediately to your supervisor. 

Time records are required by law and are used for computing paychecks to ensure that 
you are compensated correctly for the work you have performed.  Employees are required to 
record time taken off (vacation, holiday, sick days, jury duty, bereavement, etc.). 

Note: Timecards must reflect an accurate accounting of time. Altering, falsifying, or 
tampering with time records, as well as recording time on another employee’s time record, may 
result in Corrective action. Additional procedures on timesheet submission may be directed by 
Executive Management. 
 
Prohibition Against Off The Clock Work 
 

The Organization strictly prohibits off the clock work – i.e., work performed by a 
nonexempt employee that is not recorded and for which the employee is not paid for the time 
worked. This means that: 
 

• If you are a nonexempt employee, you must never perform any off the clock work; and 
• Whether you are exempt or nonexempt, you must never require, request, or permit a 

nonexempt 
• employee to perform any off the clock work. 

 
 

2.10   Payment of Wages 
 
For Semi-Monthly employees: 

We currently pay semi-monthly employees (which includes classified hourly or salary 
non-exempt employees) on the 10th (for hours worked from the 16th through the end of month, 
for the previous month); and on the 26th (for hours worked from the 1st through the 15th of that 
month), unless that payday falls on a holiday or weekend. In that case, employees will be paid 
on the last working day before the holiday or weekend. Due to changes in payroll companies or 
for other unforeseen reasons, the Organization retains the option to change payroll dates at any 
time. 
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For Monthly Employees: 

We currently pay monthly employees (which includes classified and/or certificated salary 
exempt employees) on the 26th of each month, unless that payday falls on a holiday or weekend. 
In that case, employees will be paid on the last working day before the holiday or weekend. Due 
to changes in payroll companies or for other unforeseen reasons, the Organization retains the 
option to change payroll dates at any time. 

You are expected to carefully review every paycheck for errors and, if any error occurs, 
you must report it immediately to the Human Resources Department. 

Overpayment of Wages 

If the Organization inadvertently overpays an employee, the Organization will notify to the 
employee and afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing recoupment 
actions. The Organization will work with the employee to find a mutually agreeable method to 
obtain reimbursement.  Absent mutual agreement, the Organization shall implement installment 
payments through payroll deduction covering at least the same number of pay periods in which 
the error occurred.  If an employee’s employment is terminated before full repayment, the 
Organization may deduct the remaining amount from the final paycheck as permitted by law.  If 
full repayment is not made to the Organization by the employee, the Organization may exercise 
all other legal means to recover the additional amount owed.   

 
2.11 Payroll Direct Deposit 

Direct deposit is the most convenient method of ensuring that your pay is immediately 
available on paydays. With Payroll Direct Deposit, your pay is electronically deposited into a 
checking or savings account of your choice and will be available to you even if you are on 
vacation. Instead of a paycheck, regular employees receive a non-negotiable statement listing 
gross pay, taxes, other deductions, and the net amount deposited. Employees can enroll by 
completing the Direct Deposit authorization form from Payroll. 

Direct deposit is not required; and, should you prefer a live check, please contact the 
Human Resources Department. 
 
 

2.12 Overtime Work Hours 

When Organization operating requirements or other needs cannot be met during regular 
working hours, non-exempt employees may be asked to work overtime. All overtime work 
performed by non-exempt employees must be pre-approved, in writing, by the employee’s 
supervisor. Non- exempt employees working unapproved overtime may be disciplined. 
Overtime assignments will be distributed as equitably as practical to all employees qualified to 
perform the required work. 
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2.13 Overtime Pay 

Overtime compensation is paid to all non-exempt employees in accordance with federal 
and state wage and hour laws. Overtime pay is based on actual hours worked. Time off on sick 
leave, vacation leave, or any leave of absence will not be considered hours worked for purposes of 
performing overtime calculations. 

The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and state law require overtime payment for hours 
worked beyond established thresholds. Non-exempt employees will receive overtime in 
accordance with applicable state and federal law. 

Non-exempt employees will be paid one and one-half (1.5) their normal hourly rate of 
pay for overtime hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week, eight (8) hours up to and 
including twelve (12) hours in any one workday, and for the first eight (8) hours worked on the 
seventh consecutive day of work in any one workweek. 
 

Exempt employees are not paid additional compensation for any overtime worked, 
 
 

2.14 Double Time Work Hours and Pay 

Non-exempt employees will be paid two (2) times their regular hourly rate of pay for all 
hours they are required to work in excess of twelve (12) in any one workday, and for all hours 
worked in excess of eight (8) hours on the seventh (7th) consecutive day of work in any one 
workweek. 
 

Double time work performed by non-exempt employees must be pre-approved, in 
writing, by the employee’s supervisor. Non-exempt employees working unapproved double time 
may be disciplined. 

There shall be no pyramiding of overtime. When more than one overtime premium can 
be applied to the same working time (for example, an employee works in excess of 8 hours on a 
particular day and the employee's hours also total more than 40 hours for that workweek), only 
one computation, whichever is of greater benefit to the employee, shall be used to compute 
overtime pay. 
 
Mandatory Time Off/Day of Rest 

All employees are entitled to one day’s rest in seven, except in case of emergency. 
 
Reporting Time Pay 
 

If an employee reports to work on a scheduled workday, and there is no work available, 
the employee will be paid for one half (1/2) of his/her regularly scheduled workday, but not less 
than two 
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(2) hours and not more than four (4) hours of pay. 
 

The Organization will not pay an employee for reporting to work under the following 
circumstances: 

1. The interruption of work is due to the failure of any public utility; 
2. The interruption of work is due to an act of G-d or other cause not within the 

Organization’s power to control; 
3. Operations cannot commence or continue due to threats to employees or property or when 

recommended by civil authorities; or 
4. If the employee is on stand-by pay status and is called to perform assigned work outside 

of scheduled reporting time. 
 

2.15 Wage Garnishments 
 

We hope you will manage your financial affairs so that we will not be obligated to execute 
any court ordered wage garnishments. However, when court-ordered deductions are to be taken 
from your paycheck, you will be notified, and we will be required to comply with any court order 
instructing us to garnish wages. 
 
 

2.16 Payroll Deductions 
 

Your payroll and earnings deductions are detailed with your check. Mandated deductions 
usually include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

Deductions Mandated by Federal and State Law 

Federal Income tax State Disability Insurance (“SDI”) 

State Income tax Medicare contributions 

Social Security contributions (unless contribution to 
STRS) 

Garnishments & Wage Attachments 

 
Any questions about your paycheck should be directed to the Payroll Department. It is 

the employee’s responsibility to ensure the accuracy of their paychecks (including deductions). 
You must bring, in writing, any discrepancies or errors in your paycheck to the attention of the 
Payroll Department immediately. Reports of improper deductions will be promptly investigated. 
If it is determined that an improper deduction has occurred, the Organization will promptly 
reimburse the employee for any improper deduction made. The Organization will not tolerate 
any retaliation against those who make such reports. 
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2.17 Compensation Philosophy 

At the Organization, we strive for fairness and equity in all our policies and practices, 
including those that affect compensation. We administer a compensation and benefits program in 
a manner that is free of unlawful discrimination or retaliation and respect an employee’s right to 
discuss their own pay. The Organization complies with Federal and State wage laws concerning 
fair pay and pay transparency. 

Our compensation practices are based on many factors, including the Organization’s 
financial position, business objectives, and salary survey information. Positions are compensated 
in a manner that includes, but not limited to, service time, merit, skill, effort, responsibility, 
knowledge, experience, training, and degree of authority. In addition, we update position pay 
ranges, administer market pay adjustments or other types of compensation as reviewed and 
authorized by Executive Management. 

We offer a compensation package (your annualized pay plus benefits) that reflects 
competitiveness in the marketplace and concern for our employees’ ability to balance their work 
and personal lives. The Organization adheres to Minimum Wage laws and ordinances. 
 
 

2.18 Expense Reimbursement 

The Organization will reimburse employees for all business-related expenses provided 
they complete a record of all expenses for which they seek reimbursement and submit receipts 
along with the expense record for reimbursement. Reimbursement requests must be submitted 
within 30 days after the expenses are incurred. Requests submitted after 30 days will require 
executive review (approval/denial) before processing. 
 

Reimbursement will be processed for items that are eligible expenses and are supported 
with complete and detailed documents. [Note: Employees who receive travel and mileage 
stipends, are not eligible for mileage reimbursement unless preapproved by the Chief Executive 
Officer or Designee.] Requests with incomplete/unclear documents will be put on hold until 
complete information is received. Approved reimbursement is made via check within two (2) 
weeks of receipt/approval of the reimbursement request. 

The Organization maintains a meal reimbursement policy as follows: 
 

Breakfast $10.00 

Lunch $15.00 

Dinner $27.00 

Alcohol is not reimbursed by the Organization. For questions regarding eligible 
reimbursable expenses, please contact the Finance Department. Under special circumstances this 
amount may be increased and requires prior approval by the Chief Executive Officer or 
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Designee. 
 
 

2.19 Pay Deductions For Exempt Employees 

Exempt employees paid on a "salary basis" regularly receive a predetermined amount of 
compensation each pay period. Subject to the exceptions listed below, exempt employees will 
receive full salary for any workweek in which they perform any work, regardless of the number 
of days or hours worked. Exempt employees will not be paid for any workweek in which they 
perform no work. 

No deductions from salary will be made for time when work is not available, provided the 
exempt employee is ready, willing, and able to work. 
 
Deductions from pay are permissible: 
 

● When an exempt employee is absent from work for one or more full days for personal 
reasons other than sickness or disability; 
 

● When an exempt employee is absent for one or more full days due to sickness or 
disability if the deduction is made in accordance with a bona fide plan, policy, or practice 
of providing full compensation for salary lost due to illness; 
 

● When an exempt employee is absent for jury duty or military duty for a full week (5 
business days) and performs no work during the week; 
 

● To offset amounts employees receive as jury or witness fees or for military pay; 

● For penalties imposed in good faith for infractions or safety rules of major significance; or 
 

● For unpaid disciplinary suspensions of one or more full days imposed in good faith for 
workplace conduct rule infractions. 

 
Additionally, an exempt employee will not be paid their full salary if he or she works less 

than a full week during the initial or final week of employment or for weeks in which the exempt 
employee takes unpaid leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act. 

Partial day deductions from available accrued vacation or sick leave balances will also be 
made by the Organization when applicable. 
 

It is Organization policy to comply with these salary basis requirements. Therefore, the 
Organization prohibits all managers from making any improper deductions from the salaries of 
exempt employees. 
 

If you believe that an improper deduction from your salary has been made, you should 
immediately report this information to your direct supervisor, or to Human Resources. 
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Reports of improper deductions will be investigated promptly. If it is determined that an 
improper deduction has occurred, you will be promptly reimbursed for any improper deduction 
made. 

 
 

2.20 Access to Employment Records 

You, or your representative, have a right to inspect and copy documents in your 
employee file relating to your payroll records, performance, or any grievance. To inspect or 
obtain copies of your employment records, submit a written request to the Human Resources 
Department. The Organization will comply with requests as required by law. Employees who 
wish to obtain a copy of such records may be required to reimburse the Organization for the 
actual cost incurred in making copies. Where an inspection request is made by a former 
employee, the individual may be required to provide satisfactory evidence of his or her identity, 
to ensure that the records are provided to the proper person. 

The Organization will generally restrict disclosure of your employee file to authorized 
individuals within the Organization. Only the Human Resources Department and the 
Organization’s legal counsel are authorized to release information about current or former 
employees. Disclosure of employee information to outside sources will be limited. However, the 
Organization will cooperate with requests from our sponsoring school district, and authorized 
law enforcement or local, state, or federal agencies conducting audits, official investigations and 
as otherwise legally required. 

The Organization is required by law to keep current all employee’s names, addresses, 
phone numbers, number of dependents, and whom to inform in case of emergency. Employees 
are responsible for alerting the Human Resources Department of any personal information 
changes for purposes of updating the information in their personnel file. 
 
 

2.21  Personal Information 
 
Personal Information Changes 
 

It is the responsibility of each employee to promptly notify the Human Resources 
Department of any and all status changes including name, address, marital status or domestic 
partner registration, emergency contact, and changes in withholding information for tax purposes. 
The Organization must send W-2’s to each employee for tax purposes. Having updated employee 
information is imperative for this task as well as many others. You must notify the Human 
Resources Department and/or Payroll in writing of your changes. The Human Resources 
Department and/or Payroll will also be able to provide you with new tax forms for tax 
withholding allowance changes. The Organization will not discriminate, retaliate, discharge, or 
take other adverse action against an employee when updating or attempting to update their 
personal information based on a lawful change of name, social security number or federal 
employment authorization document. 
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Protection Of Medical and Personal Information 

Confidentiality of medical and personal information relating to employees, students, or 
anyone else is not only vitally important to the Organization, but is required, under state and 
federal laws. “Personal information” includes an individual’s first name or first initial and last 
name and one or more of the individual’s social security number; driver’s license or California 
identification card number; account number, credit or debit card number in combination with any 
required security code, access code or password that would permit access to the individual’s 
financial account; medical or health insurance information; or a username or email address, in 
combination with a password or security question and answer that would permit access to an 
online account. 

The Organization requires that all employees comply with its security procedures and 
practices to protect medical and personal information that it receives, including as to 
Organization employees, students, or anyone else, whether stored in files or on Organization 
computer databases, or otherwise, from unauthorized access, destruction, use, modification, or 
disclosure. All employee medical records must be held in confidence in order to avoid 
unauthorized disclosure. In compliance with state and federal laws, when required, the 
Organization shall keep your medical records separate from your personnel files. Access to 
medical records shall be limited to those in management on a need-to-know basis, solely for 
purposes permitted by law. 

If any employee reasonably believes that an unauthorized person, unauthorized access, 
destruction, use, modification, or disclosure has occurred, immediate notice must be provided to 
the Human Resources Department so that the Organization complies with its legally required 
notice obligations. 
 

2.22 Nepotism Policy 
 

The Organization maintains a no nepotism policy. No employee shall be solely 
supervised or evaluated by a family member. If applicable, any and all nepotism provisions 
specified in the Organization’s Charter or Memorandum of Understanding with the authorizing 
school district are hereby incorporated into this Handbook. 

Qualified employees who are related by blood or marriage to current Company 
employees may work for the Company as long as their employment does not create or result in a 
sole supervisory relationship with a relative, or create problems regarding safety, morale, 
security, or conflicts of interest. 
 

The status of employees who marry after employment will be considered in light of the 
above criteria. All decisions will be based on what is determined to be in the best interest of the 
Company. 
 
 
 



Pending Board Approval 
39 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

2.23 Reference Requests 
 

It is the Organization’s policy to generally not give employee references to inquirers, 
whether by telephone or in writing. All calls, contacts, and written inquiries concerning current 
or former employees are to be handled by the Human Resources Department only. Disclosure of 
personnel information to outside sources will be limited. 

The Human Resources Department will verify employment and cooperate with requests 
from authorized law enforcement, or local, state, or federal agencies conducting official 
investigations, and as otherwise legally required. 
 
 

2.24 Open-Door Policy 

All employees are encouraged to provide input and suggestions concerning the overall 
operations and programs of the Organization, via appropriate communication channels 
(following the Chain of Command). 

We operate in an open-door manner. All input from employees will be considered and can 
be presented without fear of personal recrimination. 
 
 

2.25 Outside Employment 

There are times when employees have the opportunity or the need to simultaneously hold 
another job position with separate employers at one time. All outside employment must be 
approved by the Human Resources Department in advance of accepting the outside employment. 
If it is determined that your proposed outside employment is incompatible, or in conflict with 
your position at our Organization, you will not be permitted to accept the proposed employment 
and continue to work at our Organization. Failure to advise Human Resources of outside 
employment may result in your termination. 

It is important that another job position does not interfere in any way with an employee’s 
primary job position with the Organization. Employees who engage in approved, outside 
employment are expected to adhere to all of the Organization’s performance standards and 
schedules. Like all other employees, persons who engage in approved, outside employment are 
required to perform services only for the Organization when on Organization time and when 
using Organization equipment. 

The Organization will not assume any responsibility for employees' outside employment. 
Specifically, the Organization will not provide workers' compensation coverage or any other 
benefit for injuries occurring from, or arising out of, such outside employment. 
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2.26 Conflicts Of Interest 

Organization employees are prohibited from engaging in any activity, practice or act 
which conflicts with the interests of the Organization or its students. Both the fact and the 
appearance of a conflict of interest should be avoided. If applicable, any and all conflicts of 
interest provisions specified in the Organization’s Charter or Memorandum of Understanding 
with the authorizing school district are hereby incorporated into this Handbook. 
 

It is difficult, if not impossible, to describe all of the situations that may arise involving 
conflicts of interest. Some of the more common conflicts from which employees should refrain, 
however, include the following: 
 

● Accepting personal gifts or entertainment from competitors, suppliers, potential suppliers, 
vendors, or potential vendors; 
 

● Working for a competitor, supplier, vendor, or customer (“customers” include our 
students and/or parents); 
 

● Engaging in self-employment in competition with the Organization; 

● Engaging in business with a family member or "significant other" in competition with the 
Organization; 
 

● Using proprietary or confidential Organization information for personal gain or to the 
Organization's detriment; 
 

● Having a direct or indirect financial interest in or relationship with a competitor, supplier, 
vendor, or customer; 
 

● Using Organization assets or labor for personal use; 

● Acquiring any interest in property or assets of any kind for the purpose of selling or 
leasing it to the Organization; 
 

● Committing the Organization to give its financial or other support to any outside activity 
or organization. 

 
            Employees should be aware that if they enter into a personal relationship with a 
subordinate employee or with an employee of a competitor, supplier, vendor, or customer, a 
conflict of interest may exist that requires full disclosure to the Organization. 

If you have a question concerning a possible conflict of interest, consult your supervisor 
or the Human Resources Department. 
 

Failure to adhere to this policy, including failure to disclose any conflicts or to seek an 
exception, may result in discipline, up to and including termination of employment. 
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2.27 Voluntary Separation of Employment 

Voluntary separation results when an employee voluntarily resigns their employment at 
the Organization. If an employee fails to report to work for three consecutively scheduled 
workdays without notice to, or approval by, their supervisor, or fails to return from an approved 
leave of absence on the date specified, it will be considered job abandonment unless a reasonable 
excuse is given to and accepted by the Organization. 
 
 

2.28 Request for Notice of Resignation 
 

If an employee finds it necessary to resign, it is requested as a courtesy, though not 
required, that you give advance notice in writing to your supervisor specifying the last day you 
will be at work. This date will be considered the effective date of your resignation. Full-time or 
regular part-time employees are asked as courtesy, though not required, to give at least two (2) 
weeks’ notice of the effective date of a resignation. 

 
 

2.29 Involuntary Separation 

Involuntary separation results when the Organization terminates your employment. The 
Organization has established rules and procedures applicable to all such separations. Privacy and 
care are extended to individuals whose actions result in a separation. 
 
 

2.30 Return of Property and Deletion of Data On Personal Devices 

All Organization property, including but not limited to, electronic information, laptops, 
scanners, uniforms, badges, timekeeping materials, keys, cellphones, and equipment, must be 
returned to the Organization promptly upon separation of employment for any reason.  
Employees unable to present the equipment in good working condition within the time period 
requested (for example, 24 hours) may be requested to pay the cost of a replacement. 

As discussed in further detail in the Confidentiality section of the Handbook (3.22), 
employees must return all copies of documents the Organization considers to contain 
Confidential Information (as defined in the above referenced section), and employees must 
continue to maintain the confidentiality of such Confidential Information. Should such 
Confidential Information be kept in electronic form on a personal device, whether in a computer, 
a cell phone, or other electronic device or memory, including any online file system, each 
employee must provide those records and documents to the Organization on an Organization- 
issued flash memory card or other device. Employees must also delete and destroy such records 
and documents from their respective electronic devices and memory locations, including any 
backup records and documents on any device or online file system. In the event an employee 
later discovers any other Organization records or documents, then they must either deliver them 
to the Organization or destroy them. The Organization does not agree to, nor authorize, the 
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delivery of Organization records or documents to any third party. 

 

2.31 Employee Discipline 

Like most organizations, the Organization utilizes various procedures to address work 
problems such as misconduct or poor performance. 
 

The following are examples of discipline that may be taken by the Organization: 
 

• Coaching 
• Additional training 
• Verbal warning 
• Written warning 
• Suspension with or without pay 
• Termination 

These discipline procedures are used in no particular order and any of the disciplinary 
actions can be taken without any preceding discipline. There may be occasions where the 
Organization determines that circumstances warrant immediate termination without any prior 
warning(s), suspension(s), or notice. The Organization also reserves the right to suspend 
employees with or without pay during an investigation into alleged or suspected misconduct. 
 
When verbal warnings are given, they will be noted in the employee’s personnel file. 
Written warnings and suspension notices should be signed both by the supervisor and employee. 
The employee's signature is not an admission of guilt, but merely acknowledges receipt of the 
notice. If an employee disagrees with the warning and desires to make comments, the employee 
is entitled to write these comments on the warning memorandum form. When written warnings 
are given, the employee will receive a copy of the warning or suspension notice and a copy will 
be placed in the employee's personnel file. 

Nothing in this policy should be construed to limit or otherwise alter the Organization's 
right to terminate employment at will. 

It is important that all employees perform, at all times, to the best of their abilities. The 
Organization seeks to resolve conduct and performance problems in the most constructive 
manner possible. 
 
 

2.32 Reduction in Force 

Under certain circumstances, the Organization may need to restructure, reduce working 
hours, or reduce its workforce. In that event, decisions regarding lay off, job retention, transfers, 
or adjustment of hours, will be based upon management's judgment of the Organization's need. If 



Pending Board Approval 
43 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

it becomes necessary to restructure operations, reduce or modify working hours, or reduce the 
number of employees, the Organization will attempt to provide advance notice, if possible, so as 
to minimize the impact on those affected. Also, if possible, employees subject to layoff will be 
informed of the nature of the layoff and the foreseeable duration of the layoff, whether short- 
term or indefinite. 
 
 

2.33 Final Pay 

The time requirement for a final paycheck depends upon whether the employee 
terminated employment without notice, quit with at least 72-hours’ notice or was terminated or 
laid off. The final paycheck will be issued in compliance with applicable law in any one of the 
foregoing scenarios. 

Upon separation from the Organization, you are entitled to final pay. This includes pay 
for any work performed within the most recent pay period, any accrued vested time off benefits 
(e.g. vacation), and any overtime pay due. Unused sick leave is not paid at the time of 
termination of employment. Any outstanding business expenses will be processed in normal 
business course and paid to you at the Organization’s regularly scheduled processing dates for 
these types of reimbursements. Please be sure that information concerning business expenses is 
submitted in a timely manner so that these payment deadlines may be relied upon. Please note 
that if you terminate employment and the Organization has paid insurance benefits on your 
behalf, applicable deductions, previously authorized by you to be deducted from your payroll 
will be deducted in accordance with the law from the final paycheck. 
Employees separated from employment will be paid as follows: 

• Voluntary Resignation with at least 72-hours’ notice: due and payable on last day of 
work. 

 
• Voluntary Resignation with less than 72-hours’ notice: due and payable no later than 72 

hours after notice is given. 
 

• Involuntary Termination: all wages due and payable on the last day of work. 
 
 

2.34 Exit Interview 
 

Employees who voluntarily leave the Organization may be interviewed about the reason 
for resignation. Constructive suggestions offered by terminating employees are valued by the 
Organization.  Employees involuntarily terminated may also have an exit interview. 
 
 

2.35 Re-Employment 

If you leave the Organization and are rehired within six (6) months, you will receive credit 
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for your prior service date. In this case, you will be given the original hire date as the adjusted 
service date. 

To be re-employed by the Organization, you must meet employment eligibility 
requirements. 
 

SECTION 3 -  STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
 

3.1 Prohibited Conduct 

We promote a cooperative and productive work environment. You are expected to 
behave in a professional manner at all times. In our relationships with each other, we strive to be 
open and respectful in sharing our ideas and thoughts, and in receiving input. 

Certain conduct may subject an employee to appropriate discipline. The following 
conduct is prohibited and will not be tolerated by the Organization. This list of prohibited 
conduct is illustrative only; other types of conduct that threaten security, personal safety, 
employee welfare and Organization operations or other things may also be prohibited. 
 

• Falsifying employment records, employment information, or other Organization 

records; 

• Recording the work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to 

record your work time, or falsifying any timecard, either your own or another 

employee’s; 

• Theft and deliberate or reckless damage or destruction of any Organization property, 

or the property of any employee or student; 

• Removing or borrowing Organization property without prior authorization; 

• Unauthorized use of Organization equipment, time, materials, or facilities; 

• Provoking a fight or fighting during working hours or on Organization property; 

• Participating in horseplay or practical jokes on Organization time or on Organization 

premises; 

• Fighting, threatening bodily harm, or provoking such misconduct; 

• Carrying firearms or any other dangerous weapons on Organization premises at any 

time to the extent permitted by law; 

• Insubordination, including but not limited to failure or refusal to obey the orders or 
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instructions of a supervisor or member of management, or the use of abusive or 

threatening language toward a supervisor or member of management; 

• Incompetent or inefficient performance of assigned duties and responsibilities; 

• Interference with the work performance of any employee(s); 

• Using threatening or abusive language at any time on Organization premises; 

• Failing to notify a supervisor when unable to report to work; 

• Unreported absence of three consecutive scheduled workdays, except in cases of 

emergency; 

• Repeated tardiness or absence; 

• Failing to obtain permission to leave work for any reason during normal working 
hours, except in cases of emergency; 

• Failing to observe working schedules, including rest and lunch periods; 

• Sleeping or malingering on the job; 

• Making or accepting personal telephone calls, including cell phone calls, of more than 

three minutes in duration during working hours, except in cases of emergency; 

• Using Organization’s computer to access the Internet for personal use during working 

hours, beyond reasonable incidental or brief usage; 

• Violation(s) of Company policies concerning security or unauthorized disclosure of 

confidential Company information to any person(s); 

• Working overtime without authorization or refusing to work assigned overtime; 

• Violating any safety, health, security or Organization policy, rule, or procedure; 

• Conduct that disrupts the learning environment; 

• Committing a fraudulent act under any circumstances; and 

• Committing, or involvement in, any act of unlawful harassment or discrimination of 

another individual. 

This statement of prohibited conduct does not alter the Organization’s policy of at-will 
employment. Either you or the Organization remains free to terminate the employment 
relationship at any time, with or without reason or advance notice. 
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3.2 Professional Boundaries 
 

This policy is intended to guide all Organization faculty and staff in conducting 
themselves in a way that reflects the high standards of behavior and professionalism required of 
Organization employees. Trespassing the boundaries of a Student/Organization relationship is 
deemed an abuse of power and a betrayal of public trust. 
 

Organization staff members are to interact with students in a professional manner. All 
staff must carefully review this policy along with each of the examples of acceptable and 
unacceptable employee behavior. It is each staff member’s responsibility to both follow the 
policy as written, and to follow the intent of the policy by acting in a professional manner. It is 
each staff member’s obligation to avoid situations that could prompt concern by parents, 
students, colleagues, or Organization leaders. 

 
This policy is not meant to restrain innocent, positive relationships between staff and 

students, but to prevent relationships that could lead to, or may be perceived as, sexual 
misconduct. Some activities may seem innocent from a staff member’s perspective but can be 
perceived as flirtation or sexual insinuation from a student or parent point of view. Sometimes 
students initiate inappropriate behavior and situations. In these instances, staff members must act 
professionally and immediately report the incident. 

Staff members must understand their own responsibility for ensuring that they interact 
professionally with students, including abiding by the specific behavioral examples in this 
policy. Disagreeing with the wording or intent of the established boundaries will be considered 
irrelevant for discipline purposes. Thus, it is crucial that all employees learn and apply this 
policy thoroughly. Although sincere, competent interaction with students certainly fosters 
learning, student/staff interactions must have boundaries surrounding potential activities, 
locations, and intentions. 
 
DUTY TO REPORT: 

When any employee becomes aware of another staff member having crossed the 
boundaries specified in this policy, the employee must immediately report it to the 
Organization’s Cabinet or a Director/Supervisor. All reports shall be as confidential as 
reasonable under the circumstances. It is the duty of the Cabinet Member or Director/Supervisor 
to investigate and thoroughly report the situation to the Human Resources Department. 
 

When a student crosses the boundary of professionalism with a staff member, the staff 
member must act professionally and immediately report the incident to the Organization’s 
Cabinet or a Director/Supervisor. All reports shall be as confidential as reasonable under the 
circumstances. It is the duty of the Cabinet Member or Director/Supervisor to investigate and 
thoroughly report the situation to the Human Resources Department. 
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USE OF ELECTRONIC & SOCIAL MEDIA: 

Any use of electronic media or social media by an employee to interact or participate with 
students must be limited to Organization business and conducted on Organization technology 
systems. Any interaction not limited to Organization business is inappropriate. 
Refer to Sections 3.3 and 3.4 below. 
 
EXAMPLES OF ACCEPTABLE AND RECOMMENDED BEHAVIORS: 
 

• Getting Organization and parental written consent for any after-school activity. 
• Obtaining formal approval to take students off Organization property for 

Organization-related activities. 

• Keeping all communication with students, through the use of technology and social 

media, professional and related to Organization activities or classes and conducted on 

Organization technology systems. 

• Keeping the door and/or blinds of an interior window open when alone with a student. 

• Keeping reasonable physical distance from students. 

• Stopping and correcting students if they cross your own personal boundaries. 

• Keeping after-class discussions with a student professional and brief. 

• Asking for advice from fellow staff or administrators if you find yourself in a difficult 

situation related to boundaries. 

• Involving the Organization’s Cabinet members or your Director/Supervisor or your 

supervisor if an inappropriate situation, including conflict, arises with a student. 

• Informing your Cabinet or your Director/Supervisor about situations that have the 

potential to become more severe. 

• Making detailed notes about an incident that could evolve into a more serious 

situation later. 

• Recognizing and acting in accordance with the responsibility to stop unacceptable 

behavior of students or coworkers. 

• Asking another staff member to be present when you must be alone with a student. 

• Giving students praise and recognition without touching them. 

• Pats on the back, high fives, and handshakes are acceptable. 

• Keeping your professional conduct, a high priority. 
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EXAMPLES OF UNACCEPTABLE BEHAVIORS (VIOLATIONS OF THIS POLICY): 

• Giving gifts to an individual student that are of a personal and intimate nature. 

• Kissing of any kind. 
• Any type of physical contact with a student except those noted above as acceptable. 

• Making, listening to, or participating in sexual jokes, stories of a sexual nature, or 

inappropriate sexual comments. 

• Discussing inappropriate personal troubles or intimate issues with a student in an 

attempt to gain their support and understanding. 

• Seeking emotional involvement with a student for your benefit. 

• Being alone in a room with a student with the door and blinds of an interior window 

closed. 

• Inappropriate remarks about the physical attributes or development of anyone. 

• Allowing students in your home. 

• Communication with students through use of technology or social media, where the 

content of such communication is not about Organization or Organization activities. 

• Excessive attention toward a particular student. 
 
 

3.3 Social Media 

The Organization understands that social media can be a fun and rewarding way to share 
your life and opinions with family, friends, and co-workers around the world. However, use of 
your social media also presents certain risks and carries with it certain responsibilities. To assist 
you in making responsible decisions about your use of social media, the Organization provides 
the following guidelines for appropriate use of social media. The policy applies to all employees. 
 
GUIDELINES: 

In the rapidly expanding world of electronic communication, “social media” can mean 
many things. “Social media” includes all means of communicating or posting information or 
content of any sort on the internet, including to your own or someone else’s web log or blog, 
journal or diary, personal website, social networking or affinity website, web bulletin board or a 
chat room, whether or not associated or affiliated with the Organization, as well as any other 
form of electronic communication. 

The same principles and guidelines found in the Organization’s policies apply to your 
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activities online. Ultimately, you are solely responsible for what you post online. Before creating 
online content, consider some of the risks and rewards that are involved. Keep in mind that your 
conduct that adversely affects your job performance, the performance of fellow employees or 
otherwise adversely affects customers, people or businesses working with the Organization, or 
people who work on behalf of the Organization or its legitimate business interests may result in 
discipline. 

Carefully read these social media guidelines and the Organization’s other policies 
contained in this Handbook, and ensure your postings are consistent with these policies. 
Inappropriate postings that may include discriminatory remarks, harassment, and threats of 
violence or similar inappropriate or unlawful conduct will not be tolerated and may subject you to 
discipline. 
 
BE RESPECTFUL 

Always be fair and courteous to fellow employees, customers, and people or 
organizations working with or on behalf of the Organization. Also, keep in mind that you are 
more likely to resolve work-related complaints by speaking directly with your co-workers, 
management, Human Resources Department, or by utilizing the Organization’s Open-Door 
policy. If you decide to post complaints or criticism, avoid using statements, photographs, video 
or audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, threatening or intimidating, that 
disparage students, or that might constitute harassment, abusive conduct, or bullying. 
Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts or posts that could contribute to a hostile 
work environment on the basis of race, sex, disability, religion, or any other status protected by 
law or Organization policy. 

 
BE HONEST AND ACCURATE 
 

Make sure you are always honest and accurate when posting information or news, and if 
you make a mistake, correct it quickly. Be open about any previous posts you have altered. 
Remember that the internet archives almost everything; therefore, even deleted postings can be 
searched. Never post any information or rumors that you know to be false about Organization, 
fellow employees, customers, people, or organizations working with or on behalf of the 
Organization, or competitors. 
 
OBEY THE LAW 

Respect privacy, copyright, trademark, libel, defamation, employment discrimination and 
other laws. 

HANDLING ORGANIZATION INFORMATION & CONFIDENTIALITY 

Maintain the confidentiality of Organization business and trade secrets and confidential 
proprietary information such as information regarding the development of systems, processes, 
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products, know-how and technology. Do not post internal reports, policies, procedures, or other 
internal Organization-related confidential communications. 

Express only your personal opinions. Never represent yourself as a spokesperson for the 
Organization. If the Organization is a subject of the content you are creating, be clear and open 
about the fact that you are an employee and make it clear that your views do not represent those 
of the Organization, fellow employees, customers, and people or organizations working with or 
on behalf of the Organization. If you do publish a blog or post online related to the work you do 
or subjects associated with the Organization, make it clear that you are not speaking on behalf of 
the Organization. It is best to include a disclaimer such as “The postings on this site are my own 
and do not necessarily reflect the views of the Organization.” 
 
NON-USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA WHILE ON WORK TIME 

Refrain from using social media while on work time or on equipment provided by the 
Organization unless it is work-related as specifically authorized by your manager and consistent 
with Organization policy on using Organization technology and property. Do not use 
Organization email addresses to register on social networks, blogs or other online tools utilized 
for personal use. 
 

Nothing in this Social Media Policy is intended to prohibit or infringe upon an 
employee’s rights under the National Labor Relations Act, the California Labor Code, or any 
other federal or state statute protecting employee workplace rights. 
 
EMPLOYEE AND JOB APPLICANT RIGHTS: 

The Organization will not request or require employees or job applicants to disclose their 
personal social media usernames or passwords, nor will it request or require employees or job 
applicants to access their personal social media sites in the Organization’s presence. 
Additionally, the Organization will not request or require employees or job applicants to divulge 
any personal social media, unless the Organization reasonably believes the media is relevant to 
an investigation or proceeding related to employee misconduct, violation of law or violation of 
regulation provided the Organization uses the divulged social media only for this purpose. The 
Organization is not restricted from requesting or requiring the disclosure of usernames, 
passwords or other access methods for Organization equipment or technology. The Organization 
will not retaliate against an employee or job applicant for not complying with a request or 
requirement in violation of this paragraph. 
 

Refer to Sections 3.4 and 4.20 of this Handbook for the Organization’s Electronic 
Communications and Internet Usage Policies. Each of the Social Media, Electronic 
Communications and Internet Usage policies must be followed. 
 
 

3.4 Electronic Communications 

All employees, independent contractors, advisors, and volunteers (“Personnel”) have a 
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responsibility to maintain only appropriate communications with students and other individuals at 
all times. With the advances in communication technology, the school recognizes that more 
opportunities exist for school and non-school related communications between Personnel and 
students. As the opportunities increase for such communications, Personnel and students have an 
increased responsibility to ensure that all forms of communication between Personnel and 
students are appropriate and comply with applicable law and requirements to protect against 
inappropriate and unsolicited electronic and text messages. 

The school realizes that there are many convenient and efficient means of communication 
available to Personnel who need to contact students. For example, Personnel can contact students 
via telephone, school email accounts, a school-wide notification system, texting messaging 
and/or other forms of electronic and social media. 

Personnel should be respectful and courteous to students and other individuals. Each 
individual should consider the appropriateness of any content before sending the message to 
another. The sender will be solely responsible for what they communicate. Inappropriate content 
that may include discriminatory remarks, harassment, threats of violence, lewd, sexually explicit, 
or similar inappropriate or unlawful conduct will not be tolerated and may subject the sender to 
Corrective action. 
 

Parents/guardians of all students (or students 18+) are requested in the school enrollment 
package to complete and submit a permission form as to whether the school’s Personnel may or 
may not send and receive text message to the cell phone of students and communicate by other 
forms of electronic communications. Before sending/receiving any electronic communications 
to/from specific students, Personnel must check as to whether such student’s parent/guardian (or 
student 18+) has given suitable consent to the types of electronic communications intended to be 
sent/received. 
 
 

3.5 Complaint Procedures 

As a matter of general policy, supervisors at all levels will provide an open door for 
discussion and a receptive ear and will review all employee suggestions or complaints 
concerning our work practices and procedures. 

If an employee wishes to make a formal complaint about something other than illegal 
activity, it should be done immediately after the incident has occurred or the issue has arisen. We 
consider an open discussion between employee and supervisor as the first step in the complaint 
procedure. The supervisor must respond to the complaint in a timely manner. If the supervisor 
does not resolve the complaint within a reasonable time frame or if the staff member disagrees 
with the supervisor’s solution, the employee may appeal directly to a Director or Cabinet 
member. 

At this point, the complaint must be written down, with the nature of the complaint 
clearly outlined. The Director or Cabinet member will investigate the complaint and notify the 
employee, in writing, of a decision within a reasonable amount of time. If the complainant 
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employee disagrees with the decision, the complainant employee may direct complaints to the 
Human Resources Department. 
 

As a last resort, an employee may take a complaint to the Chief Executive Officer. That 
Officer’s decision constitutes the Organization’s final word on the matter. 

Complaints will not be disclosed to anyone except those persons involved in resolving 
the matter. While confidentiality cannot be guaranteed by the Organization, employees shall be 
free from retaliation of any kind for making good faith complaints. 
 
 

3.6 Whistleblower Policy 
 

Introduction. The Organization is committed to integrity and ethical behavior. The 
Organization thus encourages employees and affiliated non-employees (such as a board member) 
of the Organization (collectively, “Persons”) who reasonably believe that they are aware of any 
actual or suspected violation of a federal or state law, or of a local rule or regulation (each, a 
“violation”), to report any such violation, without any fear of retaliation, discrimination, or 
harassment with respect to their employment or affiliation. This policy does not replace or 
supersede the Organization’s Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Prevention Policy 
(Section 1.6 above), other grievance procedures and any relevant local, state and/or federal laws 
governing whistleblowing applicable to the Organization. Such policies, procedures and laws are 
important components of the Organization’s commitment to providing a professional work 
environment. 

Prohibition: Reporting in Good Faith. The Organization strictly prohibits any retaliation, 
discrimination, or harassment against any person who reports what the employee reasonably 
believes to be violations of a federal or state law, or of a local rule or regulation. This includes 
non-retaliation against an employee because a family member of the employee has engaged in or 
perceived to have engaged in a protected whistle-blowing activity. The Organization will not 
retaliate against any person who participates in an investigation of such complaints. The 
Organization also strictly prohibits any retaliation or harmful action against any person on the 
basis that the person provided truthful information to law enforcement authorities relating to the 
violation (or possible violation) of any federal or state law. 

No Retaliation. The Organization will not retaliate, discriminate, harass, or cause adverse 
employment consequences against a Person who discloses, or may disclose (or who the 
Organization believes disclosed or may disclose) information regarding alleged violations to (i) a 
law enforcement or government agency, (ii) an employee with authority over the Person, or (iii) 
an employee who has authority to investigate, discover or correct the violation. Any employee 
within the Organization who retaliates against a Person who in good faith has reported a claim or 
has cooperated or participated in the investigation of a violation is subject to discipline, including 
termination of employment with the Organization. If a person believes that they (or someone 
else) are suffering from harassment, retaliation or other adverse employment/affiliation 
consequences as a result of reporting a violation or having cooperated in the investigation of a 



Pending Board Approval 
53 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

violation, such individual should contact such officer of the Organization as designated below. 

Report Procedure. A person who becomes aware of any act or behavior described above 
is encouraged to report such incidents immediately to the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Organization (“CEO”). Reports may be provided in writing or in person. Reports should be as 
complete as possible, including the details of the incident(s), names of the individual(s) allegedly 
involved, date(s), and the name(s) of any witness(es). 

You may send the report or complaint by letter (which may be anonymous, at your 
discretion) to the CEO of the Organization, in a sealed envelope marked “Confidential” at the 
following address: 

43414 Business Park Drive Temecula, CA 92590 
 

If the subject of the report involves the Chief Executive Officer of the Organization, you 
should report your concern directly to Blank Rome, our Corporate General Counsel, at the Elite 
Academic Academy Corporate Administration Office. 

Investigation and Confidentiality. The Organization will promptly investigate the 
complaint and will endeavor to protect the privacy and confidentiality of all parties involved, to 
the maximum extent possible, consistent with the Organization’s obligations to conduct a 
thorough investigation, to comply with all applicable laws, and/or to cooperate with law 
enforcement authorities. The Organization will explore anonymous allegations to the extent 
possible but will weigh the prudence of continuing such investigations against the likelihood of 
confirming the alleged facts or circumstances from attributable sources. If necessary, legal 
counsel and/or an independent auditing firm will be involved in any investigation. Corrective 
action will be taken at the conclusion of the investigation if necessary. 
 

The Organization’s employees should be aware that certain violations of the 
Organization’s policies and practices could subject the Organization and/or the individual(s) 
involved to civil and/or criminal penalties. Before issues or behavior rise to that level, employees 
are encouraged to report to the designated officer of the Organization any violation of federal or 
state law, or local rule or regulation, or any retaliation related to such reports. 
 
 

3.7 Violence-Free Workplace 

The Organization is committed to providing a safe workplace, and in this regard will not 
tolerate abusive or violent behavior that includes, but is not limited to, making threatening 
remarks, physical intimidation, or assault. Carrying firearms or any other dangerous weapon on 
Organization premises or at Organization sponsored events is prohibited unless otherwise 
required by law. 

Employees involved in physical altercations of any kind will be subject to immediate 
discipline. 
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3.8 Reporting Violent Behavior 

Employees who believe they are being threatened, intimidated, verbally abused, or have 
been physically assaulted, must notify their supervisor immediately. If the behavior involves a 
supervisor, employees must immediately notify the Human Resources Department. The 
Organization will not tolerate any form of retaliation against any employee who makes a good 
faith report under this policy. 

In addition, employees who witness such behavior or are informed of a co-worker’s 
intention to harm another employee or student must immediately notify a supervisor or law 
enforcement authorities and the Human Resources Department. A 9-1-1 call may be appropriate 
first, in the good judgment of the employees or managers involved. Under this policy, decisions 
may have to be made quickly to prevent a threat from being carried out, a violent act from 
occurring, or a life-threatening situation from developing. Nothing in this policy is intended to 
prevent a quick action to stop or reduce the risk of harm to anyone, including, requesting 
immediate assistance from law enforcement or emergency response resources. 

The Organization reserves the right to conduct workplace inspections at any time, with or 
without notice for purposes of enforcing this policy, including, searching: 
 

● Outer clothing, packages, handbags, briefcases, backpacks, lunch bags, boxes and/other 
containers being taken in or out of the Organization’s buildings or to or from the 
Organization’s premises; 
 

● Vehicles parked on Organization property (owned, leased, or occupied) or Organization- 
owned vehicles; and 
 

● All workstations, computer files, files, books shelves, storage, desks, credenzas, work 
stations, file cabinets, storage rooms and other areas on the Organization’s premises 

 
Any refusal to permit an inspection upon request may result in disciplinary action, up to 

and including termination of employment. The discovery of any violation of any other 
Organization policy as a result of such a search may also result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment. Any illegal activity discovered during an inspection is 
subject to referral to the appropriate law enforcement authorities. 
 
 

3.9 Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace 

The Organization is concerned about the use of alcohol, illegal drugs, or controlled 
substances as it affects the workplace. Use of these substances, whether on or off the job, can 
detract from an employee’s work performance, efficiency, safety, and health, and therefore 
seriously impair the employee’s value to the Organization. In addition, the use or possession of 
these substances on the job constitutes a potential danger to the welfare and safety of other 
employees and exposes the Organization to the risks of property loss or damage, or injury to 
other persons. 
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Any employee who is using prescription or over-the-counter drugs that may impair the 
employee’s ability to safely perform the job, or affect the safety or well-being of others, must 
notify a supervisor of such use immediately before starting or resuming work. Employees who 
have prescription drug dependencies are to maintain the same job performance standards as other 
employees. 

The following rules and standards of conduct apply to all employees either on 
Organization property or while working on behalf of the Organization (including meals and rest 
periods). Behavior that violates Organization policy includes: 

• Possession, ingestion, or having an illegal or controlled substance (unless it is a legally-
used prescription drug that does not affect safety or job performance), including alcohol, 
in your system while at work or on Organization business. 

• Driving an Organization-provided vehicle or your own vehicle on Organization business 
while under the influence of a substance that alters or impairs judgment. 

• Distribution, manufacture, sale, or purchase of an illegal or controlled substance, 
including alcohol, while on the job. 

• Providing false or misleading information about any of the foregoing with regard to 
themselves or others. 

Violation of these rules and standards of conduct will not be tolerated. The Organization 
also may bring the matter to the attention of the appropriate law enforcement authorities. In 
order to enforce this policy, the Organization reserves the right to conduct searches of 
Organization property or employees and/or their personal property, and to require employees 
who are reasonably suspected of having illegal or controlled substances, including alcohol, in 
their system to undergo a drug or alcohol test when the drug or alcohol test can accurately 
identify impairment caused by use.  The Organization will not use or rely on the results of a drug 
screening test that has found individuals to have non-psychoactive cannabis metabolites in their 
hair, blood, urine, or other bodily fluids.  The Organization will pay the cost of any test taken. 
The results of this test may be used as a basis for discipline. Failure to cooperate in any such 
search or test will result in termination of employment. 
 

The Organization will comply with California Labor Code Sections 1025, 1026 etc., 
relating to reasonable accommodation of employees who wish to enter a treatment program for 
substance use. However, the Organization retains the right to execute discipline up to and 
including the right to terminate employment of an employee whose drug or alcohol use interferes 
with job duties or workplace safety. 

The Organization prohibits the use, abuse, sale, transfer, manufacture, or possession of 
illegal or controlled drugs or alcohol, the abuse of prescribed drugs, or being under the influence 
of illegal or controlled drugs or alcohol or abused prescription drugs whenever the employee is 
(1) on Organization premises; (2) conducting or performing Organization business, regardless of 
location; (3) operating or responsible for the operation, custody, or care of Organization 
equipment or other property; or (4) responsible for the safety of others in connection with, or 
while performing, Organization-related business. 
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The Organization will accommodate individuals with disabilities but will not permit 
employees to bring, manufacture, sell, purchase, transfer, ingest, or be under the influence of 
medical marijuana in the workplace, while working, and/or excuse policy violations related to 
medical marijuana unless otherwise required by law. 

Because even a minimal consumption of alcohol can negatively influence an individual’s 
performance, the Organization strictly prohibits any consumption of alcohol in situations where 
the employee may be returning to the workplace. 

No employees will suffer an adverse employment action based on their off-duty use of 
cannabis away from work, and the Organization’s drug screening practices with respect to 
cannabis are used solely to detect impairment and non-psychoactive cannabis metabolites. 
 

3.10 Cannabis 

The Organization will comply with all applicable state and local laws and regulations 
regarding cannabis.  As used in this policy, the term “cannabis” includes marijuana in 
accordance with applicable state law. 

Pursuant to California law, the Employee Handbook does not apply to an employee’s or 
applicant’s use of cannabis off the job and away from the workplace.  The Organization will not 
discriminate against or otherwise penalize an employee, any individual who performs work for 
the Organization, or an applicant, based on non-psychoactive cannabis metabolites found in any 
Organization-required drug screening test.  However, the Organization may refuse to hire an 
applicant, and take action against or otherwise penalize an employee or any other individual who 
performs work for the Organization, based on a scientifically valid preemployment drug 
screening test conducted through methods that do not screen for non-psychoactive cannabis 
metabolites.  Moreover, all employees, and any other persons who perform work for the 
Organization, are still prohibited from possessing, being impaired by, or using, cannabis on the 
job. 
 

3.11 Alcohol at Organization-Sponsored Events and on Organization Premises 

On occasion, alcohol is available at Organization-sponsored social events that are held 
off premises. At such events, employees may choose to purchase alcohol, but the Organization 
will not be purchasing alcohol for its employees. Additionally, alcohol will occasionally be 
available at community fundraisers held on Organization premises. Students will not be present 
for such fundraisers. 

Employees who choose to consume alcohol at Organization-sponsored events or 
community fundraisers held on Organization premises are responsible for their own behavior and 
must remain professional at all times. The Organization requires employees to comply with legal 
requirements as to alcohol consumption and driving. The Organization strongly suggests that 
employees have a “Designated Driver” available should the need arise. 



Pending Board Approval 
57 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

None of the Organization insurance carriers will be liable for the payment of workers’ 
compensation benefits for any injury that arises out of an employee’s voluntary participation in 
any off-duty recreational, social, athletic, or community fundraising activity that is not part of the 
employee’s work-related duties. 
 
 

3.12 Employment Testing and Health Examinations 
 

Following the acceptance of an offer of employment (i.e. a signed contract/offer letter), 
the Organization reserves the right to conduct drug screen tests, tuberculosis (TB) risk 
assessments, and/or tuberculosis (TB) tests, as part of the pre-employment process; and require 
an employee’s participation in a health examination to determine the employee’s ability for 
performing their essential job functions. 

Following the extension of a conditional job offer, specific positions may require 
successful pass of a drug/alcohol screen and a job-related physical examination by a physician 
selected by the Organization before reporting to work. Testing requirements are fully set forth in 
the conditional offer of employment to the prospective employee well in advance of the start 
date. 

The Organization will not use or rely on the results of a drug screening test that has found 
individuals to have non-psychoactive cannabis metabolites in their hair, blood, urine, or other 
bodily fluids. 
 

The results of any health examination, tuberculosis (TB) risk assessment or test, or drug 
testing shall be kept confidential by the Organization subject only to legitimate requests for 
information from appropriate governmental agencies. The Organization is not liable for lab error. 
 

The organization will reimburse the employee for any “out of pocket” fees, above the 
employee’s medical insurance, for any of the above referenced required state testing. 

 
3.13 Reasonable Suspicion 

The Organization reserves the right to conduct drug/alcohol-screening tests when in its 
sole discretion there is reason to believe that the employee is under the influence of illegal or 
controlled substances, including alcohol, or when substance abuse, including alcohol, is affecting 
the safety, productivity, and/or work-related performance of any employee and the test can 
accurately identify impairment caused by use. An employee who is suspected of illegal or 
controlled drug and/or alcohol abuse (including the abuse of prescription drugs) will first be 
interviewed by a supervisor/manager. Should the supervisor observe behavior indicating 
impairment because of illegal or controlled substance, including alcohol, without any reasonable 
explanation or a reasonable suspicion is determined, the employee shall be required to undergo a 
drug and/or alcohol test. The employee shall be placed on paid administrative leave pending the 
outcome of the test. Should the test results indicate no use of illegal or controlled drugs or 
alcohol (including prescription drugs), the employee shall be reimbursed for the workdays 
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missed during the suspension. Refusal to participate in the testing procedures will be grounds for 
immediate termination of employment. An employee may be disciplined, up to and including 
termination, if the test is positive.  The Organization’s drug screening practices with respect to 
cannabis are used solely to detect impairment and not non-psychoactive cannabis metabolites. 

 
3.14 Reporting Substance Abuse 

 
Any employee who believes that a co-worker is in violation of the Drug and Alcohol- 

Free Workplace policy or related policies must immediately notify a supervisor. When an 
employee believes that supervisory staff is in violation of the Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace 
policy, the employee must notify the Human Resources Department. 
 

If an employee voluntarily enters rehabilitation for drug or alcohol abuse, a leave of 
absence will be granted. 
 
 

3.15 Attendance 

As an employee of the Organization, you are expected to be punctual and regular in 
attendance. Any tardiness or absence causes problems for your fellow employees and your 
supervisor. When you are absent, your assigned work must be performed by others. 
 
 

3.16 Absences 
 

An absence is a failure to report to work as scheduled that is not due to a scheduled 
vacation or leave. If you are sick or injured and cannot come to work, the Organization needs 
your cooperation to properly cover your job. You must notify your supervisor/designee within 
one hour of your expected start time that you will be absent and when you will return to work 
unless an emergency prevents you from doing so. If you do not know your return date, you must 
call your supervisor/designee each day within one hour of the beginning of your regularly 
scheduled work time. Although voicemail may be available, the Organization expects you to 
speak directly with a supervisor/designee when you are unable to report to work. 

Walking off shift, failing to report for a scheduled shift, and leaving early without 
supervisor permission are also grounds for discipline, including termination. If you are absent 
without communication to your Supervisor for one or more days, the Organization will assume 
you have voluntarily abandoned your job with the Organization unless a reasonable excuse is 
offered at the first opportunity and accepted by the Organization. 

If you know in advance that you are going to be absent, you must schedule the absence 
with your supervisor at least one week in advance. 

Excessive absences and failure to report absences on time may lead to discipline. Absences 
are excessive if they occur frequently (6 or more occasions in a rolling calendar year) and are not 
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pre- approved; they may also be excessive if they show a pattern. Absences immediately before 
or after holidays and weekends are suspect. 

The Organization reserves the right to request a physician’s statement for absences due to 
illness or injury as permitted by law. 
 
 

3.17 Tardiness 

Employees are expected to report to work as scheduled, on time, and prepared to start 
work. Employees also are expected to remain at work for their entire work schedule, except for 
meal and rest periods or when required to leave on authorized Organization business. Late 
arrival, early departure, or other unanticipated and unapproved absences from scheduled hours 
are disruptive and must be avoided. 
 

We know that traffic or weather conditions may cause you to be late on occasion. If this 
happens, notify your supervisor that you will be late and when you will be able to report for 
work. However, you are expected to plan for traffic and weather problems and to allow for extra 
time to commute to work, if necessary. 

Although voicemail may be available, the Organization expects you to speak directly with 
a supervisor when you will be late for work. You must call your supervisor as soon as possible. 

You will be considered tardy if you are not signed in or clocked in and/or are not ready to 
begin work when your period begins. 

Repeated or excessive tardiness will lead to disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment. Tardiness is excessive if you are frequently or unnecessarily late. 
You may also be excessively tardy if you demonstrate a pattern of tardiness. 
 
 

3.18 Excessive Absenteeism and Tardiness 

Frequent or excessive absenteeism or tardiness affects the efficiency and effectiveness of 
the department or office, and will subject you to discipline, including possible termination. 

In the case of absences or tardiness due to uncontrollable factors (such as personal 
health), every consideration will be given to the employee’s circumstances. However, even in 
these situations, the Organization must also consider its business needs and therefore may not be 
able to accommodate such circumstances for extended periods. 
 
 

3.19 Failure to Report an Absence 
 

Should you fail to report to work for one or more of your scheduled workdays without 
notice to, or approval by, your supervisor, you will be deemed to have voluntarily terminated 
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your employment unless a reasonable excuse is offered at the earliest possible time and accepted 
by the Organization. Notifying a supervisor consists of speaking in person or by telephone with 
the supervisor or their superior. Voicemail or email messages do not constitute notifying the 
supervisor. 
 
 

3.20 Grooming and Attire 
 

It is expected that employees will maintain a clean and neat appearance and will project a 
professional and businesslike image in dealing with other employees, students, parents, 
volunteers and the general public. Proper grooming and attire have a positive impact on the 
Organization’s image. 
 

The Organization reserves the right to define appropriate standards of appearance for the 
workplace. All employees are required to wear neat and clean clothing. Employees should dress 
professionally. Employees may not wear torn, ripped, or dirty clothing. The Organization will 
make reasonable accommodation for religious practices, including religious attire and grooming. 

 
A good rule of thumb is that if you are not sure if something is acceptable, choose 

something else or inquire first. Any questions regarding the Grooming and Attire policy should 
be directed to your supervisor or the Human Resources Department. 

In work areas that have approval for specified “dress down” or “casual” days, 
management shall determine appropriate attire standards for those days. 

The Organization is committed to not discriminating against employees on the basis of 
race or religion, including protected hairstyles and religious dress and grooming practices. 
Contact the Human Resources Department if you require a reasonable accommodation to the 
Grooming and Attire Policy due to religious practice. 
 

Violation of this Grooming and Attire policy will subject the violating employee to 
appropriate discipline and the employee may be sent home without pay to change their attire. 
 
 

3.21 Customer Relations 
 

Our “customers” are our students and parents. Employees are expected to be polite, 
courteous, prompt, and attentive to every customer while in the course and scope of Organization 
business. When an employee encounters an uncomfortable situation that they do not feel capable 
of handling, their supervisor should be called immediately. 

Customers are to be treated courteously and given proper attention at all times. Never 
regard a customer’s question or concern as an interruption or an annoyance. You must respond to 
inquiries from customers, whether in person or by telephone, promptly and professionally. 

Never place a telephone caller on hold for an extended period. Direct incoming calls to 
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the appropriate person and make sure the call is received. 

Through your conduct, show your desire to assist the customer in obtaining the help 
needed. If you are unable to help a customer, find someone who can. 

All correspondence and documents, whether to customers or others, must be neatly 
prepared and error-free. Attention to accuracy and detail in all paperwork demonstrates your 
commitment to those whom we serve. 

Never argue with a customer. If a problem develops or if a customer remains dissatisfied, 
please ask your supervisor to intervene. 

We have developed certain guidelines to reflect what we believe are good business 
practices. We strive to develop and maintain a pleasant, efficient, and fair work environment that 
fosters cooperation and understanding. All employees are expected to be: 

• On time and ready for work at the beginning of their workday 
 

• Careful and conscientious in the performance of their work 
 

• Respectful and considerate of others 
 

• Courteous and helpful when dealing with other staff members and with volunteers, 
supporters, and the general public. 

 
 

3.22 Confidentiality 

Employees must keep matters relating to the Organization’s business confidential. Business 

matters which must be kept confidential and not disclosed to anyone outside of the 
Organization includes but are not limited to any of the following items: 
 

• Business or trade secrets and confidential proprietary information such as information 
regarding the development of systems, processes, products, know- how and technology. 

 
• Intellectual property such as designs, ideas, or innovations. 

• Organization business dealings. 

• Organization financial documents, data, transactions, etc. 

• Student information and records. 

• Confidential financial data, or other non-public proprietary Organization information. 
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• Confidential information regarding business partners, vendors, or customers. 
 

No employee may use trade secrets, or confidential or proprietary information obtained 
during or through employment with the Organization for the purpose of furthering current or 
future outside employment or activities, for obtaining personal gain or profit, or for any other 
purpose not related to the employee’s work with the Organization. Proprietary information is 
information that is the property of the Organization and includes all information obtained by 
employees from the Organization during the course of their work. Confidential information is any 
Organization information that is not known generally to the public or the industry. 

No employee may make unauthorized copies of Organization business matters, or 
information, or remove Organization business matters or information from Organization 
premises without authorization. 

At no time may an employee disclose business or trade secrets, or confidential or 
proprietary information, without the Organization’s prior consent, except as may be necessary in 
the ordinary course of performing their duties as an employee of the Organization. 

Employees must promptly advise the Organization of any knowledge that they may have 
of any unauthorized release or use of the Organization’s trade secrets, or confidential or 
proprietary information, and shall take reasonable measures to prevent unauthorized persons or 
entities from having access to, obtaining, or being furnished with any trade secrets, or 
confidential or proprietary information. 

During their employment, employees may not access confidential proprietary information 
which they are not authorized to access. 

This policy also applies in a cybersecurity context. 

This policy applies at all times during employment and at any time after termination of 
employment. Employees who violate this policy may be subject to discipline, including 
termination, and legal action. 
 

Upon termination of employment, for any reason, employees must return all copies of 
documents pertaining to trade secrets, confidential, or proprietary information to the 
Organization, and employees must continue to maintain the confidentiality of such information. 
To the extent that such material is kept in electronic form, whether in a computer, a cell phone, 
or other electronic device or memory, including any online file system (e.g., Dropbox®, 
iCloud®, etc.), each employee must provide those records and documents to the Organization on 
an Organization -issued flash memory card or other device. Employees must otherwise delete 
and destroy such records and documents from their respective electronic devices and memory 
locations, including any backup records and documents on any device or any online file system. 
In the event an employee later discovers any other Organization records or documents, then they 
must either deliver them to the Organization or destroy them. The Organization does not agree 
to, nor authorize, the delivery of Organization records or documents to any third party. 
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Notwithstanding the above, employees are not barred from disclosing trade secrets, 
confidential, or proprietary information and information, actions, events, behavior, or other 
conduct in accordance with the Whistleblower Policy above. 

Employment is contingent upon signing the Confidentiality Agreement included with your 
initial employment contract. Employees should contact their supervisors with any questions 
regarding these provisions prior to disclosure or use of confidential proprietary information. 
 
 

3.23 Business Ethics and Conduct Policy 

The successful business operation and reputation of the Organization is built upon the 
principles of fair dealing and ethical conduct of our employees. Our reputation for integrity and 
excellence requires careful observance of the spirit and letter of all applicable laws and 
regulations, as well as a scrupulous regard for the highest standards of conduct and personal 
integrity. 

The continued success of the Organization is dependent upon our customers’ trust, and 
we are dedicated to preserving that trust. Employees owe a duty to the Organization, its 
customers, and authorizing school districts to act in a way that will merit the continued trust and 
confidence of the public. 

The Organization will comply with all applicable laws and regulations and expects its 
directors, officers, and employees to conduct business in accordance with the letter, spirit, and 
intent of all relevant laws and Organization policies, and to refrain from any illegal, dishonest, or 
unethical conduct. 
 

In general, the use of good judgment, based on high ethical principles, will guide you 
with respect to lines of acceptable conduct. If a situation arises where it is difficult to determine 
the proper course of action, the matter should be discussed openly with your immediate 
supervisor and, if necessary, with the Human Resources Department for advice and consultation. 

Compliance with this policy of Business Ethics and Conduct is the responsibility of every 
employee. Disregarding or failing to comply with this policy could lead to corrective action. 
 
 
SECTION 4 -  OPERATIONS 
 
 

4.1 Inclement Weather 

The Organization, through the Executive Office, may decide to close its offices due to 
inclement weather. All employees will be paid for such time off if normally scheduled to work 
that day and only for those hours which the employee would normally work. 
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When the Organization’s offices are kept open during inclement weather conditions, all 
employees will be expected to make reasonable efforts to get to work. All employees who are 
unable to report to work should call their supervisor and report their absence as soon as possible 
prior to the start of their work shift. Employees unable to arrive for work will be charged their 
vacation hours. If no vacation hours are available, the absence will be unpaid. 
 

4.2 Security and Safety 

The Organization has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace. Be 
aware of persons loitering for no apparent reason in parking areas, walkways, entrances and 
exits, and service areas. Report any suspicious persons or activities to a supervisor or manager 
immediately. Secure your desk or office at the end of the day by following “end-of-the day” 
shut-down procedures. When called away from your work area for an extended length of time, do 
not leave valuable and/or personal articles in or around your workstation that may be accessible. 
Do not leave your computer logged-on and accessible by others. 
 

The security of our facilities and the welfare of our employees depend upon the alertness 
and sensitivity of every individual to potential security risks. Refrain from wearing headphones 
and earphones (except for company-issued Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) that will 
prevent you from hearing alerts and emergency notifications. You should immediately notify 
your supervisor when unknown or known persons are acting in a suspicious manner in or around 
the facilities, or when keys, security passes, or identification badges are missing. 

Additional safety measures may be considered for employees that are victims of domestic 
violence, sexual assault, and stalking. If you feel that you are a victim of such situations and 
would like to know about or request additional safety measures, contact the Human Resources 
Department and the Security Coordinator. 
 
 

4.3 Restraining Orders and Domestic Violence 

One issue that crosses from home to work is domestic violence. If you are being 
threatened at work, immediately tell your supervisor, the Human Resources Department, or the 
Police. These situations can be very dangerous for you and other employees. 

If you have a civil order, like an Emergency Protective Order, a Stay-Away Order, or a 
Temporary Restraining Order, you should tell your supervisor and Human Resources 
Department about it. We will keep it on a confidential basis, and we will work with you to 
develop a workplace safety plan. 

Employees are encouraged to team up with a co-worker leaving at the same time of day, 
as the parking lot may be dark. When leaving your vehicle in the parking lot, be sure to lock your 
vehicle to secure personal property and your safety when returning to your vehicle at the end of 
your shift. When you get into your vehicle, immediately lock your doors and fasten your seatbelt. 
When departing from the parking lot, and if you feel you are being followed, you should contact 
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911 via your cell phone or drive to the nearest police/sheriff station to get help. Once you have 
contacted the authorities and are safe, be sure to report any incidents to your site administrator or 
supervisor immediately. 

In order to promote the safety of employees and Organization visitors, as well as the 
security of its facilities, the Organization reserves the right to conduct video surveillance of its 
premises at any time. Video cameras will be positioned in appropriate places within and around 
Organization buildings. The only exception to this policy is private areas of restrooms and 
designated lactation areas. Requests for additional guidance on workplace security procedures 
should be directed to the Security Coordinator. 
 
 

4.4 Workplace Safety 

All employees are responsible for their own safety, as well as that of others in the 
workplace. To help us maintain a safe workplace, everyone must be safety-conscious at all times. 
Report all work-related injuries or illnesses, no matter how minor, immediately to your 
supervisor and to the Human Resources Department. 

The Organization adheres to a Code of Safe Workplace Practice. Compliance to the Code 
of Safe Workplace Practices is a requirement for the continuation of your employment. 
 

Violations of the Code of Safe Practices shall lead to discipline. In compliance with 
California health and safety laws, and to promote the concept of a safe workplace, the 
Organization maintains an Injury and Illness Prevention Program and Safety Manual. All 
employees should be aware of where the Injury and Illness Prevention Program Guide and Safety 
Plans are located at their worksite. 

In compliance with Proposition 65, the Organization will inform employees of any known 
exposure to a chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity. 

In compliance with the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act, information on 
asbestos at Organization sites can be found in site-specific Asbestos Management Plans. To 
review the Asbestos Management Plan for a given site, please contact the Safety Manager. 

The Organization requires that all equipment be in proper working order and safe to work 
with at all times. If any equipment breaks down, do not use it until a qualified technician makes 
sure that it is repaired and safe. 

Never try to fix broken equipment yourself. Tell your supervisor of any equipment 
breakdown as soon as it happens. If the breakdown requires emergency repairs, your supervisor 
will deal with the emergency situation as soon as possible. 

From time-to-time the Organization conducts formal safety training. Your attendance at 
safety training sessions is mandatory. The Organization also provides information to all 
employees through bulletin board postings, memos, or other written communication. 
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4.5 Communicable Illness 
 

The Organization regards employees’ health and wellness as a prime concern. All 
employees are to adhere to basic health guidelines by practicing good hand hygiene and 
respiratory etiquette. It is recommended that employees give careful consideration to reporting to 
the workplace when experiencing a communicable illness. 

The Organization’s decisions involving persons who have communicable illness shall be 
based on current and well-informed medical and legal guidance concerning the illness, the risks 
of transmitting the illness to others, the symptoms and special circumstances of each individual 
who has a communicable illness, and a careful weighing of the identified risks and the available 
alternative for responding to an employee with a communicable illness. 

The Organization will not discriminate against an employee based on the individual 
having a communicable illness. It is permissible and legal for management to ask employees 
who appear to have symptoms to go home and not return to work until they have recovered. The 
Organization will comply with applicable laws and regulations that protect the privacy of an 
employee’s medical information. 

If applicable, any and all health and safety provisions specified in the Organization’s 
Charter or Memorandum of Understanding with the authorizing school district are hereby 
incorporated into this Handbook. 

 
4.6 Safety Suggestions 

 
You are encouraged to suggest better and safer methods and routines. Please present and 

discuss your suggestions with your supervisor, the Safety Manager, or Human Resources 
Department. You have the right to report safety and security related matters anonymously to our 
Safety Manager without fear of retaliation. 
 
 

4.7 Safety Equipment 
 

If needed or legally required, the Organization will provide you with Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE).   Each employee is expected to obey safety rules and to exercise caution in all 
work activities. Employees must immediately report any unsafe condition to the appropriate 
supervisor. 
Employees who violate safety standards, who cause hazardous or dangerous situations, or who 
fail to report or, where appropriate, remedy such situations, may be subject to discipline. 

In the case of accidents that result in injury, regardless of how insignificant the injury 
may appear, employees should immediately notify the Human Resources Department and their 
supervisor. Such reports are necessary to comply with laws and initiate insurance and workers’ 
compensation benefits procedures. 
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4.8 On-The-Job Injuries 
 

Every employee is responsible for their own safety as well as others in the workplace. To 
achieve our goal of maintaining a safe workplace, everyone must be safety conscious at all times. 

If you are injured on the job, no matter how minor, you must notify a supervisor 
immediately. Under workers’ compensation law, you will receive help if you are injured. If 
necessary, an ambulance may be called to provide emergency medical care. If the injury is less 
serious, the supervisor must make arrangements to have the employee taken to a doctor. Injured 
employees will be referred to an Organization-designated Medical Provider Network physician 
for medical treatment unless the employee has Pre-designated a Personal Physician in writing 
before an injury occurs. However, in emergency situations, this may not be possible or practical. 

All newly hired employees will be provided with workers’ compensation information and 
the Medical Provider Network. For additional information, please contact the Human Resources 
Department. 
 
 

4.9 Workers’ Compensation Insurance 

The Organization provides Workers’ Compensation insurance coverage for all employees 
to protect them in the event of an on-the-job injury, illness, or exposure. The Organization pays 
the full cost of the insurance. If the applicable insurance carrier determines that you cannot work 
because of a work-related injury, illness, or exposure, you will be placed on a Workers’ 
Compensation leave of absence in accordance with the laws of the State of California. A 
Workers Compensation leave may be designated in conjunction with State and Federal family 
and medical leaves. 
 

You must notify your supervisor immediately upon knowledge of any accident, injury, 
illness, or occupational exposure. Failure to report any accident, injury, illness, or occupational 
exposure may result in discipline. 

Your supervisor, in conjunction with the Human Resources Department, will take the 
necessary steps, in accordance with applicable state law, to report a Workers’ Compensation 
injury. 
 
 

4.10 Ergonomics 
 

The Organization is subject to Cal/OSHA ergonomics standards for minimizing 
workplace repetitive motion injuries. The Organization will make necessary adjustments to 
reduce exposure to ergonomic hazards through modifications to equipment and processes and 
employee training. The Organization encourages safe and proper work procedures and requires 
all employees to follow safety instructions and guidelines. 



Pending Board Approval 
68 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

The Organization believes that reduction of ergonomic risk is instrumental in maintaining 
an environment of personal safety and well-being and is essential to our business. We intend to 
provide appropriate resources to create a risk-free environment. If you have any questions about 
ergonomics, please contact the Safety Manager or the Human Resources Department. 
 
 

4.11 Workplace Smoking Ban 
 

The Organization is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace. Smoking, 
vaping, or use of any tobacco product or e-cigarettes is strictly prohibited in any Organization 
building or within 25 feet of it, or in any enclosed premises of the Organization, including 
restrooms. Smoking will be permissible in outside areas designated by the Organization. This 
policy applies to all employees, customers, and visitors. Smoking is prohibited while inside 
Organization-owned, rented, or leased vehicles. 
 

4.12 Housekeeping 
 

All employees are expected to keep their work areas clean and organized. Common areas 
such as lunchrooms, locker rooms and rest rooms should be kept clean by those using them. 
Please clean up after meals. Please dispose of trash properly. 
 

4.13 Solicitations 
 

No soliciting or distribution is allowed during working time (working time means times 
when you are expected to be performing your work duties, as opposed to non-working time such 
as rest and meal periods and before and after your shift) or in working areas (working areas 
means areas where work duties are being completed, as opposed to nonworking areas such as 
break rooms and parking lots). We recognize an employee’s right to be provided with working 
conditions free from the distractions which could result from fund-raising appeals or other 
solicitations on Organization premises. 

The Organization recognizes the importance of community outreach and may engage in 
certain fund-raising campaigns for 501(c)3 Non-Profits only. Special campaigns on Organization 
premises may be conducted upon specific approval from Executive Management after liability 
review. Employee participation is completely voluntary and is not intended to interfere, advance, 
conflict, or be discriminatory in nature to an employee’s employment relationship with the 
Organization. We respect an employee’s individual right to voluntarily contribute to such 
campaigns. 
 
 

4.14 Conducting Personal Business 

Employees may not conduct personal business or business for another employer on 
Organization premises. However, employees may conduct reasonable personal business on 
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Organization premises in case of emergency, or during meal or break periods, provided 
Organization property is not used in ways prohibited by Organization policies. 
 
 

4.15 Organization Property 
 

Lockers, desks, vehicles, computers, Internet access, and certain other property, are 
property of the Organization and must be maintained according to Organization rules and 
procedures. Organization property must be used only for work-related purposes, unless otherwise 
specified below. The Organization reserves the right to inspect all of its property to ensure 
compliance with its rules and procedures, without notice to the employee and/or in the 
employee’s absence. 

Telephones, voicemail and/or electronic mail (e-mail) and Internet access are to be used 
for business purposes, unless otherwise specified below. Chatting online, instant messaging, 
surfing and other similar misuses of Organization time, property and Internet services are strictly 
prohibited. Transmitting, retrieving, downloading, or storing messages or images that are 
offensive, derogatory, defamatory, off-color, sexual in content (including all forms of 
pornography) are considered inappropriate in the business environment. Gambling, monitoring 
sports scores and playing electronic games are also restricted activities on Organization time. 
 

The Organization reserves the right to listen to, monitor and record Organization phone 
and voicemail messages and to access and disclose Organization computer files, e-mail messages 
and Internet records to ensure compliance with this policy, without notice to the employee and/or 
in the employee’s absence. Employees should not have, and do not have, an expectation of 
privacy in their workplace electronic communications, including e-mail messages and their use of 
the Internet. Violation of these guidelines may result in discipline. 
 

It may be necessary to assign and/or change passwords and personal codes for 
Organization voicemail, e-mail, and computers. These items are to be used for the Organization’s 
business and they remain the property of the Organization. The Organization may keep a record 
of all passwords/codes used and/or may be able to override any such password system. 

 
 

4.16 Return of Organization Property 

Any Organization property issued to you, such as keys, tools, badges, cell phones or any 
other items issued must be returned to the Organization at the time of your termination. You will 
be responsible for any lost or damaged items. 
 

Regardless of whether your employment ends on a voluntary or involuntary basis, it is 
your responsibility to return all equipment, computers, telephones, Organization passwords, 
tools, keys, clothing, or any other property issued to you by the Organization. Failure to return 
property in good working condition may result in your being invoiced for the fair market value of 
such property in accordance with applicable state law. 
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4.17 Personal Property/Employee Property 
 

Employees should not leave or store personal belongings of value in the workplace, for 
security reasons. The Organization is not responsible for personal belongings that are lost or 
stolen. 
 

Terminated employees should remove all personal items at the time they leave the 
Organization. Personal items left in the workplace by previous employees are subject to disposal 
if not claimed at the time of the employee’s termination. 
 
 

4.18 Searches and Inspections 

The Organization believes that maintaining a workplace that is free of weapons, illegal or 
controlled drugs, alcohol, and other harmful materials is vital to the health and safety of its 
employees and to the Organization’s success. Accordingly, the Organization has established this 
Policy concerning inspections, searches, and monitoring on Organization premises. The 
Organization intends to protect against the unauthorized use and removal of Organization 
property. In addition, the Organization intends to assure its access at all times to Organization 
premises and Organization property, equipment, records, documents, and files. This Policy 
applies to all employees of any and all subsidiaries and/or affiliates. 

For purposes of this Policy: 

“Prohibited materials” means firearms or other weapons; explosives and/or hazardous 
materials or articles; alcoholic beverages, illegal drugs, or other controlled substances; drug- 
related paraphernalia; and Organization property that an employee is not authorized to have in 
their possession. 

“Organization property” includes all documents, records, software, data, and files 
belonging and relating to Organization business; and all inventories, equipment, hardware, and 
other property of any kind, whether owned, leased, rented, or used by the Organization. 

“Reasonable suspicion” includes a suspicion that is based on specific and articulable 
personal observations such as an employee’s manner, disposition, muscular movement, 
appearance, behavior, speech, or breath odor; information provided to management by an 
employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service, or by other persons believed to be 
reliable; or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding circumstances. 

“Possession” means that an employee has the substance on their person or otherwise 
under their control on Organization property. 

In order to assure access at all times to Organization property, and because employees 
properly in possession of Organization property or information related to Organization business 
may not always be available to produce the property or information when needed in the ordinary 
course of Organization business, the Organization reserves the right to conduct a routine 
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inspection or search at any time for Organization property on Organization premises. (In 
addition, the Organization reserves the right to access information and communications and e- 
mail stored in Organization computer files, on Organization disk drives, and in employee voice 
mailboxes). 

 
Routine searches or inspections of Organization property may include an employee’s 

office, desk, file cabinet, closet, computer files, voice mail, e-mail, Internet records or similar 
places where employees may store Organization property or Organization-related information, 
(whether or not the places are locked or protected by access codes).  Employees should have no 
expectation of privacy with regard to these areas.  

Because even a routine search for Organization property might result in the discovery of 
an employee’s personal possessions, all employees are encouraged to refrain from bringing into 
the work place any item of personal property that they do not wish to reveal to the Organization 
during the course of an inspection. Inspections or searches for prohibited materials in or on 
Organization premises also will be conducted whenever the Organization has reasonable 
suspicion to believe that a particular employee (or other employees) may be in possession of 
such materials in violation of this Policy. 

In cases involving an inspection or search of an employee’s pockets, purse, briefcase, or 
other item of personal property that is being worn or carried by the employee, the employee will 
be requested to conduct a self-search (i.e., by turning out or emptying pockets, purses, etc.) in the 
presence of an observer. 

Employees who refuse to cooperate during an inspection or search will not be forcibly 
detained or searched. They will be informed, however, that the Organization will base any 
corrective action decision on the information that is available, including their refusal to consent 
to the search as well as the information that gave rise to a reasonable suspicion that the employee 
was in possession of prohibited materials, if applicable, and that their failure or refusal to 
cooperate could deprive the Organization of information that may clear them of suspicion. In 
addition, the Organization reserves the right to take appropriate action to prevent the 
unauthorized removal of Organization property from Organization premises. 

The Organization reserves the right to monitor the use by employees of Organization 
telephones, computer networks, and electronic mail systems. Monitoring may be performed by 
observation, or through aural, mechanical, electronic, or other means. 

Monitoring of Organization property (as referenced above) may take place on a regular or 
random basis and will be used to monitor an employee’s job performance, for training or quality 
control purposes, or in instances in which the Organization has a reasonable suspicion that an 
employee is using Organization property in an unauthorized manner. 
 

All inspections or searches of Organization property may be conducted as necessary and 
will be approved in advance by the Human Resources Department, who will inform supervisors of 
the impending inspection prior to its occurrence. 
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Employees who are found to be in possession of prohibited materials in violation of this 
Policy and the Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace policy, or employees who are found to have 
used Organization property in an unauthorized manner, will be subject to discipline regardless of 
the Organization’s reason for conducting the search, or inspection or monitoring. 

Any prohibited materials, or any materials that are suspected of being prohibited by this 
Policy, that are found in an employee’s possession during an inspection or search will be 
collected by the Organization or by the independent security service, and will be placed in a 
container, sealed, and marked with (1) the date collected, (2) names of persons present, (3) 
circumstances of discovery, and (4) a general description of the contents placed in the container. 

The employee who was in possession, or who was suspected of being in possession of the 
prohibited materials will be given a receipt for the materials collected during the search. If, after 
further investigation, it is determined that the materials collected were not prohibited by this 
Policy, the collected materials will be returned to the employee, except as provided below, and a 
receipt will be obtained from the employee. In cases in which it is suspected that the collected 
materials consist of illegal drugs or other controlled substances, the Organization will arrange for 
disposition in accordance with advice from the Drug Enforcement Administration or other 
appropriate law enforcement authorities. In cases in which the collected materials consist of, or 
are suspected of consisting of, firearms or other weapons, explosives, or other hazardous 
materials or articles, the Organization reserves the right to dispose of the materials in whatever 
manner it deems to be in the interest of its employees’ safety or to return the materials to the 
employee at a designated time and location. 

In cases in which it is suspected that the collected materials consist of illegal drugs or 
other controlled substances, the Organization reserves the right to arrange for the materials to be 
tested and to be notified of the results, for the purpose of determining whether the employee has 
violated this Policy. 
 

Supervisors should restrict communications concerning a violation or possible violation 
of this Policy to persons who have an important work-related reason to know. 

 
 

4.19 Organization Equipment and Technology 
 

The Organization maintains all rights pertaining to the use of its equipment. All 
Organization equipment, including desks, computer systems, computer software, diskettes, 
computer or computing device—specifically including but not limited to laptops, iPads, 
workstations, printers, servers, and handhelds—is to be used for Organization business only. 

The Organization maintains all rights pertaining to the use of its resources. All 
Organization resources—specifically including but not limited to its electronic network, 
electronic mail, voicemail, and the data residing on its computer systems—are to be used for 
Organization business only, unless otherwise stated in this Handbook. 

The primary purpose of the electronic mail (email) is to expedite necessary business 
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communications between two or more individuals. Use of e-mail is a privilege and may be revoked 
at any time. 
 

All employees are expected to maintain proper and ethical use of electronic mail. 

Employee Privacy 
 

Neither permission to use the Organization’s computing resources, nor the issuance to 
any employee of a password, authentication credential, or digital certificate confers any right of 
privacy upon any employee of the Organization. Thus, employees must not expect that any 
information maintained on or transferred over the Organization’s systems, including electronic 
and voicemail messages, are private. 

Employees are encouraged and advised to retain personal records and engage in personal 
business using personal equipment at home, as employees have no right to privacy for 
information contained on the Organization’s computer, electronic or telephonic systems. 

DO NOT USE ORGANIZATION EQUIPMENT, COMPUTERS, OR INFORMATION 
SYSTEMS, FOR NON-ORGANIZATION BUSINESS, UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED IN 
THIS HANDBOOK. 
 
 
Organization Access to Information 

At all times, the Organization retains the right to access and search all directories, 
indices, diskettes, files, databases, e-mail messages, and other electronic transmissions contained 
in, or used in conjunction with, the Organization’s computer, electronic, and voicemail systems 
and equipment without prior notice. This right applies both during your employment with the 
Organization, as well as after its cessation, whether the cessation is voluntary or involuntary, or 
by death or disability. 

The Organization purchases and licenses the use of various computer software for 
business purposes and does not own the copyright to this software or its related documentation. 
Unless authorized by the software developer, the Organization does not have the right to 
reproduce such software for use on more than one computer. 

Employees may only use software on local area networks or on multiple machines 
according to the software license agreement. The Organization prohibits the illegal duplication of 
software and its related documentation. 

The Organization retains the right to enter any of its systems or any system connected to 
its network, at its sole discretion. The Organization reserves the right to monitor the use by 
employees of Organization telephones, computer networks, and electronic mail systems. 
Monitoring may be performed by observation, or through aural, mechanical, electronic, or other 
means. Monitoring may take place on a regular or random basis and may be used to monitor an 
employee’s job performance, for training or quality control purposes, or in instances in which the 
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Organization has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is using Organization property in an 
unauthorized manner, or other lawful reasons. 

Employees should not place any personal information on the Organization's computer 
system.  

Computer, electronic, or voicemail messages deleted or erased by employees may remain 
stored in the Organization’s computer or telephone systems. Accordingly, the Organization 
retains the right to access computer, electronic, and voicemail messages for as long as the 
information may be obtained from any source. 

Employees should notify their immediate supervisor, the Human Resources Department, 
or any member of management, upon learning of violations of this policy. Employees who 
violate this policy will be subject to discipline. 
 
Appropriate Use 

Employees are expected to present a professional and business-like image when using 
Organization technology and e-mail. Employees may not send offensive or discriminatory 
messages, nor may they access inappropriate images or materials. Employees will be subject to 
discipline, for violations of this rule. 
 
Passwords 

Passwords, authentication credentials, and/or digital certificates are designed to allow 
employees access to all or part of the Organization’s computer, electronic, and/or telephone 
systems, and to prevent unauthorized access to information. Employees are expected to maintain 
their passwords as confidential and must not access co-workers’ systems without express 
authorization. 

In the event of the cessation of employment, you will deliver to the Organization, if 
requested, all passwords or other authentication credentials to access all Organization 
documents, disks, computer, electronic or voicemail systems, whether these were issued to by the 
Organization or created by you or any other party. 
 
 

4.20 Internet Usage 

Internet access to global electronic information resources on the World Wide Web is 
provided by the Organization to assist employees in obtaining work-related data and technology. 
Remember, the truth and accuracy of information on the Internet should be considered suspect 
until confirmed by a separate reliable source. The following guidelines have been established to 
help ensure responsible and productive Internet usage. While Internet usage is intended for job- 
related activities, incidental and occasional brief personal use is permitted within reasonable 
limits. 
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All Internet data that is composed, transmitted, or received via our computer 
communications systems is considered to be part of the official records of the Organization and, 
as such, is subject to disclosure to law enforcement or other third parties. Consequently, 
employees should always ensure that the business information contained in Internet email 
messages and other transmissions is accurate, appropriate, ethical, and lawful. 

The equipment, services, and technology provided to access the Internet remain at all 
times the property of the Organization. As such, the Organization reserves the right to monitor 
Internet traffic, and inspect, retrieve and/or read any data composed, sent, or received through 
our online connections and stored in our computer systems. 

Data that is composed, transmitted, accessed, or received via the Internet must not 
contain content that could be considered discriminatory, offensive, obscene, threatening, 
harassing, intimidating, or similarly disruptive to any employee or other person. Examples of 
unacceptable content may include, but are not limited to, sexual comments or images, racial 
slurs, gender-specific comments, or any other comments or images that could reasonably offend 
someone on the basis of race, age, sex, religious or political beliefs, national origin, disability, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or any other characteristic protected by 
law. 
 

The unauthorized use, installation, copying, or distribution of copyrighted, trademarked, 
or patented material on the Internet is expressly prohibited. As a general rule, if an employee did 
not create material, does not own the rights to it, or has not received authorization for its use, it 
should not be put on the Internet. Employees are also responsible for ensuring that the person 
sending any material over the Internet has the appropriate distribution rights. 

To ensure a virus-free environment, no files may be downloaded from the Internet 
without prior authorization from your Supervisor. Downloading of any executable files or 
programs which change the configuration of your system by anyone other than Information 
Systems personnel is prohibited. Installing programs or accessing sites that circumvent the 
Organization’s Internet filtering system is prohibited. 

In addition to this policy, employees must also comply with the other applicable policies 
contained in this Handbook, including but not limited to the Organization’s Social Media policy. 

Employees may also be held personally liable for any violations of this policy. The 
following behaviors are examples of previously stated or additional actions and activities that are 
expressly prohibited and can result in discipline: 
 

• Sending or posting discriminatory, harassing, or threatening messages or images 
• Using the Organization’s time and resources for personal advantage 
• Stealing, using, or disclosing someone else’s code or password without authorization 
• Copying, pirating, or downloading software and electronic files without permission 
• Sending or posting trade secrets or confidential proprietary information such as 

information regarding the development of systems, processes, products, know- how 
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and technology outside of the Organization 
• Violating laws protecting the privacy of student information 
• Violating copyright law 
• Failing to observe licensing agreements 
• Engaging in unauthorized transactions that may incur a cost to the organization or 

initiate unwanted internet services and transmissions 
• Participating in the viewing or exchange of pornography or obscene materials 
• Sending or posting messages that defame or slander other individuals 
• Malicious tampering with or attempting to break into the computer system of another 

organization or person 
• Refusing to cooperate with a security investigation 
• Sending or posting chain letters, solicitations, or advertisements not related to 

business purposes or activities 
• Using the Internet for any sort of gambling 
• Jeopardizing the security of the Organization’s electronic communications systems 
• Sending or posting messages that disparage another organization’s products or 

services 
• Passing off personal views as representing those of the Organization 
• Engaging in any illegal activities 

Abuse of the Internet access provided by the Organization in violation of law or 
Organization policies will result in discipline. 

Refer to Section 3.3 of this Handbook for the Organization’s Social Media Policy. Both 
the Social Media and the Internet Usage policies must be followed. 
 
 

4.21 Employee Emails 

Routine emails generated by personnel will automatically be deleted from the Inbox, Sent 
and Deleted folders 180 days after they are generated. All personnel are to move any e- mails 
requiring retention beyond this period to a specific folder other than Inbox, Sent or Deleted. 
 
 

4.22 Personal Use of Organization Telephones 

Personal telephone calls should generally not be made during work time, except in the 
case of an emergency. Instead, they should be made during breaks or meal periods. Because 
telephones are a significant expense to the Organization, you should not use Organization 
telephones (including Organization-owned cell phones) for personal calls, unless it is an 
emergency. If you must make a personal call either during work hours or from an Organization 
telephone, please practice discretion and refrain from doing so in the presence of customers, 
vendors or visitors. Should circumstances require that you place a long-distance call, we ask that 
you use a personal calling card, call collect, or ask for authorization from your supervisor. 
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If the Organization determines that an employee is using Organization telephones to 
conduct personal business or is making or receiving excessive personal calls during work hours 
(whether or not using an Organization telephone), the employee may be subject to discipline or 
may be asked to pay for the charges associated with use of the Organization telephone. 
 
 

4.23 Cell Phone Usage 

The Organization provides cellular telephones to some employees as a business tool. 
They are provided to assist employees in communicating with management and other employees, 
their customers, associates, and others with whom they may conduct business. Organization cell 
phone use is primarily intended for business-related calls but may be used for personal reasons in 
emergency situations. 411 Calls are to be made only when business and telephone directories are 
not readily available. Downloads and text messaging are for business purposes only. 
 

However, occasional, brief personal use is permitted within a reasonable limit. Cell phone 
invoices will be regularly monitored. 

 
Employees may have access to a cell phone while in their cars and should remember that 

their primary responsibility is driving safely and obeying the rules of the road. Employees are 
prohibited from using cell phones for any reason when driving an Organization-provided vehicle 
or when driving on Organization business, unless they are using hands-free technology. 

As employees of the Organization, cell phone users are reminded that the regular business 
etiquette employed when speaking from office phones or in meetings applies to conversations 
conducted over a cell phone. 
 
 

4.24 Use of Personal Cell Phones and Pagers 

All use of personal cell phones during work hours is not allowed. Personal cell phones 
should remain in silent mode or turned off during working hours. Use of personal cell phones is 
limited to break and mealtimes only. 
 
Use Of Personal Mobile Devices 

Employees are not permitted to use any personal mobile device to store Organization 
information, communicate, transmit and/or connect to the Organization’s computer systems or 
otherwise conduct any Organization business, unless agreed to in advance by the Organization. 

Personal mobile devices (“PMD”) include any technology resources not owned or issued 
by the Organization. PMD’s include, but are not limited to, the following: computers (desktop 
and portable), tablets (iPads), cameras, cellular or home telephones, pagers, personal data 
assistants, fax machines, copiers, printers, scanners, wearable technology, and any other 
products, communication systems and/or services that permit access to Organization information, 
networks, databases, services and/or resources for Organization use. 
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The Organization reserves the right to revoke and/or change an employee’s eligibility for 
PMD use and/or access at any time in its sole discretion. The Organization reserves the right to 
disconnect any PMD’S to the Organization’s computer systems and discontinue use, without 
notification to the employee, at any time. Use will be discontinued immediately if employment 
ends for any reason. 
 

Employees who use PMDs agree to protect all Organization information stored or 
transmitted by PMD’s. Any Organization information, including, student contact information, 
data, and communications transmitted or stored on an approved PMD is Organization property. 
Employees may not initiate wiping any portion of the PMD containing Organization information, 
without the express authorization of the Organization’s IT Department. 

 
If you choose to connect personal or Organization devices to the Organization’s 

computing and communication systems, you should be aware that the Organization may remotely 
“wipe” all information on any device that has been configured to access the Organization’s 
systems without any notice. If the Organization chooses to exercise this option, all information 
on the device will be remotely deleted and reset to its factory settings. This could occur if the 
device is lost, when your employment ends, or at other times during your employment. The 
Organization will not be responsible for loss or damage of personal applications or data resulting 
from the use of Organization applications or the wiping of Organization information. You must 
notify IT immediately in the event an authorized personal device is lost or stolen. 

Cloud-based applications or backup that allows Organization-related data to be 
transferred to unsecure parties are prohibited. Additionally, personal devices may not be 
synchronized to other devices that have not been authorized. Making any modifications to the 
device hardware or software beyond authorized and routine installation updates is prohibited 
unless approved by IT. You may not use unsecure Internet sites. 

Non-exempt associates may not use their personal devices for work purposes outside of 
their normal work schedule without authorization in advance from management. Additionally, 
any employee who is on unpaid leave may not use a personal device for work without 
authorization from management. The Organization reserves the right to deactivate the 
Organization’s application and access on the employee’s personal device during periods of leave. 

While using for work-related purposes, you are expected to exercise the same discretion 
in using your personal device(s) as is expected for the use of Organization devices. Organization 
policies pertaining to harassment, discrimination, retaliation, trade secrets, confidential 
information and ethics apply to the use of personal devices for work-related activities. Audio 
and/or video recording anywhere on Organization property during working time (breaks are not 
considered working time) is prohibited. 

Upon request by the Organization and/or upon termination of employment, employees 
who have sent or received any Organization-related emails, documents, or any confidential 
information on any PMDs must delete any such Organization information from each of their 
PMDs in their possession in front of a Human Resources representative or another authorized 
Organization representative, regardless of how such information was placed on their electronic 
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device. Upon further request, the employee will show such Organization representative that no 
files or other Organization information still exists on the employee’s PMD(s). 

 
4.25 Keys and Key Cards 

Certain positions within the Organization, approved by a member of the management 
team, will be issued a key/key card to the premises. Each individual to whom an Organization 
key/key card is given is responsible for proper use of that key/key card and will be required to 
sign for it. A lost or misplaced key/key card must be reported immediately. Never duplicate or 
loan a key/key card to anyone for any reason. Keys/key cards must be returned in the exit 
interview to either the Human Resources Department or a direct supervisor. Employees who take 
a leave of absence must turn in any keys prior to beginning their leave. 
 
 

4.26 Media 
 

The Organization strives to anticipate and manage crisis situations in order to reduce 
disruption to our employees and to maintain our reputation as a high-quality organization. To 
best serve these objectives, the Organization will respond to the news media in a timely and 
professional manner only through the designated spokespersons. Only Officers of the 
Organization are authorized to speak on behalf of the Organization. Please refer all inquiries to 
the CEO. If unavailable, please refer inquiries to any Cabinet member. Events may occur at our 
locations that will draw immediate attention from the news media. It is imperative that one 
person speaks for the Organization to deliver an appropriate message and to avoid giving 
misinformation in any media inquiry. Every employee is expected to adhere to the following 
media policy. Answer all media/reporter questions like this: “I am not authorized to comment for 
the Organization or I do not have the information you want. Let me have our public affairs office 
contact you.” 
 
 

4.27 Publicity 

In the course of advertising, public relations or other similar conduct for business 
purposes, the Organization may utilize media resources. With employee prior consent, the 
Organization may use employee photographs, pictures, and/or voice transcriptions for promotion 
or advertising at any time without compensation. 
 
 

4.28 Internal Communication 
 

We use bulletin boards, Intranet, and office email to communicate important information 
to employees on a regular basis. Each of our employees is responsible for reading posted or 
distributed information on a timely basis. 
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4.29 Business Travel and Use of Organization Vehicles 

Employees who drive an Organization vehicle (a vehicle owned, rented, or leased by the 
Organization) will be required to show proof of a current driver’s license. Employees who drive a 
non-Organization vehicle (a vehicle that is not owned, rented, or leased by the Organization) for 
Organization business will be required to show proof of a current driver’s license and proof of 
California minimum insurance. The Organization participates in a system that checks the DMV 
records of all such employees, with employee consent. 
 

Before an employee may engage in Organization business travel or drive an Organization 
vehicle, the employee must speak with the Business Department regarding additional policies. 
The Business Department must verify that the employee meets Organization requirements for 
business travel and use of Organization vehicles, and the employee must agree to the additional 
Organization policies regarding business travel and use of Organization vehicles. All employees 
are prohibited from engaging in Organization business travel and driving Organization vehicles 
until this process has been completed. 

Employees will be reasonably reimbursed for mileage. Reimbursement rates are subject 
to change at the Organization’s discretion, but the rate will always be at least that of the Internal 
Revenue Service. 

If an employee whose position involves any driving is unable to maintain a valid 
California driver's license, obtain or maintain insurance coverage for his or her own vehicle, 
and/or is declined coverage as a driver by the Organization's insurance carrier, management shall 
decide whether that employee will be terminated, retained, transferred, or have his or her hours 
adjusted based upon management's judgment of the Organization's needs. 

Only hands-free technology cell phone use is permitted while driving on Organization 
business or when driving an Organization vehicle. In the event of a traffic accident, employees 
are encouraged to cooperate fully with law enforcement authorities, collect as much information 
as possible and return it to the Human Resources Department. Employees injured as a result of 
the accident should seek immediate medical care and report information concerning the accident 
following receipt of medical treatment. 
 
General Driving Safety: 
 

PREPARING AND PLANNING 
 
Poor weather conditions such as rain, ice, snow, high winds, and fog will reduce visibility. They 
will also reduce the ability to stop quickly and affect steering and braking. In addition, traffic 
congestion may cause long delays or cause rerouting onto unfamiliar roads. The following advice 
will help you judge when it is safe to drive: 
 

• Ensure the vehicle is in good working order. 
• Spend time planning the route. 
• Consult the Internet for driving directions and maps. 



Pending Board Approval 
81 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

• Dress appropriately for the weather conditions. 
• Carry food and warm drink in case the journey becomes prolonged or delayed. 
• Do not drive if suffering from illness. 
• Remember that prescription drugs can cause drowsiness. 
• Be prepared to delay or cancel the trip if weather or traffic conditions worsen. 
• Maintain contact with the Organization to apprise them of your whereabouts at all times. 

 
SEAT BELTS SAVE LIVES 

All available evidence shows that people are much less likely to be hurt in an accident if 
they are wearing a seat belt. 

It is Organization policy that all drivers wear their seatbelt at all times when operating an 
Organization-provided vehicle and while driving on Organization business. There are no 
exceptions to this rule as it is the law. If you have an accident and are cited for not wearing a 
seatbelt, you may face discipline. 
 
KEEP A SAFE DISTANCE 

Failure to stop a car in time is one of the most dangerous and common mistakes that 
drivers make. To ensure safety, drivers must be confident that a complete stop can be made in the 
distance that is seen to be clear. 

Typical stopping distances are listed below to help driver’s judge safe speeds. 
 
In good road conditions: 

• At 30mph: The average car stops in 75 feet 
• At 60 mph: The average car stops in 240 feet, or 18 car lengths 
 
SAFE DRIVING 

It is important that you drive safely at all times. Do not engage in distracting activities such 
as reading, eating, make-up application, attending to children, or making calls on a hand- held cell 
phone. 

While driving on Organization business or while driving an Organization vehicle, you are 
responsible for complying with all traffic, parking and other vehicular laws. You will be 
individually responsible for all driving, traffic, parking, etc. violations that you commit. 
 

4.30 Outside Use of Organization-Provided Equipment 
 

Some employees use Organization-provided equipment outside of the standard work 
environment as a regular part of their job. If you use Organization-provided equipment, you are 
responsible for: 



Pending Board Approval 
82 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

 
• Ensuring the equipment is properly maintained and that only Organization authorized 

personnel performs all maintenance or repairs to the equipment. 
• Ensuring that Organization equipment is not used in an unauthorized manner. You are the 

only one authorized to use the equipment. Third parties are not authorized to use your 
equipment unless approved, in advance, by senior management. 

• Taking adequate safeguards to avoid loss, damage, or theft. If loss, damage, or theft occurs 
and it is determined to have occurred due to your negligence, the Organization may take 
discipline and/or you may be financially responsible for repair or replacement costs. 

• Immediately reporting to your supervisor all incidents of loss, damage, or theft including a 
written account describing the events surrounding the incident. If necessary, a police report 
must be filed. 

• Immediately returning all Organization-provided equipment when you transfer, are 
reassigned, or terminate employment. 

 
 

4.31 Organization-Sponsored Social and Recreational Activities 

The Organization may from time to time sponsor social and/or recreational activities for 
its employees. Employee attendance at such activities is completely voluntary and is not work- 
related. Neither the Organization nor its insurer will be liable for the payment of workers’ 
compensation benefits for any injury that arises out of any employee’s voluntary participation in 
any activity that is not part of work-related duties. 

 
SECTION 5 -  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
 

5.1 Eligibility 
 

Regular, full-time employees are those who regularly work at least thirty-two (32) hours 
per week. Generally and unless otherwise stated, they will be entitled to participate in the 
employee benefits offered by the Organization. 
 

For more information about insurance, benefits, and eligibility, please contact our Human 
Resources Department. 
 

5.2 Vacation Time 
 

We offer paid vacation time to eligible employees for their rest and recreation away from 
work. Because we believe that time away from work is beneficial for rest and rejuvenation, we 
do not allow staff members to take pay in lieu of vacation time. 
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Accrual: 
 

Employees eligible to earn vacation as described below are eligible to begin accruing 
vacation on their first day of full-time employment. 

Regular, full-time classified employees (non-Directors and non-Certificated) accrue a 
maximum of 5 days of paid vacation per calendar year. 

 
Regular full-time Coordinators/Assistant Directors (classified and/or certificated) 

accrue a maximum of 10 days of paid vacation per calendar year. 
 

Regular, full-time Directors (classified and/or certificated) accrue a maximum of 15 
days of paid vacation per calendar year.  

 
Certificated employees (other than full-time Directors and Coordinators/Assistant 

Directors), and part-time, seasonal, and temporary employees are not eligible for vacation 
benefits.  

 
To earn vacation time, an employee must be “actively employed.” “Actively employed” 

does not include any period of unpaid absence, and no vacation time shall be earned during such 
absence. Employees out on paid sick time will still be accruing vacation time. 

To use accrued vacation time, new hires must be employed for a period of 90 calendar 
days. 
 
 
Cap: 
 
An employee may roll-over up to 40 hours per year (the year begins July 1).  The maximum 

benefits that an employee may have at any time will equal two year’s benefits. If an employee’s 
earned but unused benefits equal the total maximum benefits that the employee could earn, the 
employee will not accrue any additional benefits. If the employee later uses enough benefits to 
fall below the maximum, he or she will resume earning benefits from the date forward.  
 
Use: 

You should tell your supervisor as early as possible the dates you want for vacation time. 
The date on which the employee’s vacation takes place should be arranged 30 days or more in 
advance, and the dates must be approved by the employee’s supervisor. Vacation dates shall be 
arranged so as not to conflict with departmental peak work periods and shall not be arranged in a 
manner that might cause undue hardship to the Organization. 

Every effort will be made to accommodate your request. Conflicts concerning priority for 
vacation dates will be resolved by seniority and date of vacation request, subject, of course, to 
our staffing requirements. Extenuating circumstances will be reviewed by a supervisor. 
Employees may utilize vacation time to observe religious holidays not covered in the Holiday 
policy (refer to Section 5.4 below). Vacation time may be used when an employee is unable to 



Pending Board Approval 
84 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

report to work due to severe weather conditions. 

Accrued vacation must be taken in increments of no less than one day. Employees may 
not take more than 1 week of vacation time at any one time without the approval of management. 

The Organization reserves the right to require employees to utilize their accrued vacation 
or to pay them for accrued vacation when the Organization deems it necessary. 
 
Payment: 

Payment of vacation time shall be made at the employee’s regular rate of pay at the time 
of vacation and shall not include any premium or differential payment. Vacation time is not 
considered “hours worked” for purposes of calculating overtime. Employees who quit or are 
terminated will be paid their accrued and unused vacation benefit upon termination. 
 
 

5.3 Sick Time 

We provide paid sick time to eligible employees to provide protection against loss of 
income if you are ill or injured or if you need time off from work for necessary or routine health 
care for yourself or an immediate family member. Immediate family includes: a biological, 
adopted or foster child, stepchild, legal ward or a child to whom the employee stands in loco 
parentis; a biological, adoptive or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or 
the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis 
when the employee was a minor; a spouse; a registered domestic partner; a grandparent; a 
grandchild; a sibling; or a designated person.  “A designated person” is a person the employee 
identifies at the time the leave is requested.  Employees are limited to one “designated person” in 
a 12-month period.  The designation of sick leave taken for a family member shall be made at the 
sole discretion of the employee. 

Accrued paid sick leave time is available to all employees who have worked in California 
for 30 or more days within a year from the beginning of employment.  As the Organization 
continues to grow and expand outside of its current area of operation, other state, city, and local 
ordinances may become applicable.  The Organization intends to comply with all applicable laws 
regarding sick leave.  If you have any questions about a local law and its applicability, please do 
not hesitate to talk to Human Resources. 
 
Accrual: 

Accrual of paid sick leave shall begin on the first day of employment. 
 

All employees of the Organization, including part-time, seasonal, and temporary 
employees, will earn at least one hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours. 

Unused accrued paid sick leave shall carry over to the following year of employment. 
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No paid sick leave will accrue during an unpaid leave of absence. 
 

The Organization shall provide employees with written notice of the amount of paid sick 
leave available for use each payday on the employee’s paycheck or in a separate writing. 
 
Use: 
 

Eligible employees who are ill or injured and anticipate being away from work for more than 5 
business days should speak with their health care provider or our Human Resources Department 
for information about Leave of Absence (LOA) or State Disability Insurance benefits. 
 
Basis for Paid Sick Leave 

Paid sick leave may be used for the following purposes: 
 

1. Diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition of, or preventive care 
for, an employee or an employee's immediate family member;  

2. Bereavement (beyond the provided bereavement leave amount) or public 
emergencies; and 

3. For an employee who takes time off pursuant to the Organization’s policy on 
Leave Due to Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking. 

 
Permissible Increments of Paid Sick Leave 

Paid sick leave may be taken in increments of two hours. If an employee must be away 
from work for a portion of any workday for the bases listed above, the hours missed will be 
charged against the employee’s paid sick leave. 
 
Compensation for Paid Sick Leave 
 

The rate of pay for paid sick leave shall be the employee’s regular rate of pay. If the 
employee had different hourly rates, was paid by commission or piece rate, or was a nonexempt 
salaried employee during the ninety (90) days prior to taking accrued sick leave, the hourly wage 
will be calculated by dividing the employee’s total wages, not including any overtime premium, 
by the total number of hours the employee worked during the 90-day period. 

Payment for sick leave will be made no later than the payday for the next regular payroll 
period after the sick leave was taken. 
 
Requesting Paid Sick Leave 

If the need for paid sick leave is foreseeable, employees shall provide reasonable advance 
notice to their supervisor. If the need for paid sick leave is not foreseeable, employees must 
provide notice of the need for the leave to their supervisor as soon as practicable and at least one- 
half hour in advance, if possible. If your supervisor is not available, leave a message with the 
Human Resources Department. 
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Payment of Sick Leave Upon Separation of Employment 

Any accrued and unused paid sick leave will not be paid at the time of termination, 
resignation, retirement, or other separation of employment. 

However, if an employee who has separated from employment is rehired by the 
Organization within one year from the date of separation, the previously accrued and unused 
paid sick leave will be reinstated, and the employee may use the previously accrued and unused 
paid sick leave. The employee may also accrue additional paid sick leave upon rehiring as set 
forth in this policy. 
 
No Discrimination 

The Organization will not discharge, threaten to discharge, demote, suspend, or in any 
manner discriminate or retaliate against any employee for using accrued sick leave, attempting to 
use accrued sick leave, filing a complaint regarding paid sick leave, cooperating in an 
investigation or prosecution regarding paid sick leave, or opposing any policy or practice or act 
regarding sick leave that is prohibited by law. 

 
5.4 Paid Holidays and “Non-contract” Days 

For regular full-time employees, the Organization provides certain paid holidays per year 
(please see the chart below), as well as a certain number of paid “non-contract” days (please refer 
to your staffing calendar for these dates). 
 

Paid Holidays 
New Years Day 
Martin Luther King Day 
President’s Day/Washington's and Lincoln’s Birthday 
Memorial Day 
Juneteenth National Independence Day (June 19) 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran’s Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Day After Thanksgiving 
Christmas Day 
Any other days the President, Governor, or governing 
board of the school district appoints as a holiday. 

 
Employees must work their full scheduled workday immediately before and after the 

holiday unless prior written management approval has been received. 
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Holidays will be paid at the straight time hourly rate for regularly scheduled hours. If a paid 
holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, the preceding Friday or following Monday may be observed 
as the holiday. If a holiday falls during your vacation period, you may either be paid for the holiday, 
or you may take one additional day off with pay as part of your vacation. 

Management, at its discretion, may designate additional days, or parts of days, as 
unscheduled holidays. Management reserves the right to require employees to work on holidays 
when management deems it necessary. Payment of holiday pay is not considered as time worked 
in the computation of overtime. 

Part-time and temporary employees are not eligible for this benefit. 
 
 

5.5 Insurance Benefits 

For all regular full-time employees, the Organization offers Health and Welfare benefits, 
totaling *$10,800 a year (or *$900 a month), which can be used to purchase medical, dental, and 
vision insurance benefits offered through the Charter providers. Regular full-time employees 
may “opt out” of medical insurance provided by the charter and retain a monthly allotment of 
$200. Employees are eligible for the Health and Welfare benefits, after one month of 
employment. 
 
[*Note: The above referenced amounts are subject to change and are not resolute.] 
 

The Organization may offer Short-Term and Long-Term Disability Insurance, Long Term 
Care, Basic and Voluntary Life Insurance, Basic and Voluntary Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment and other supplemental insurance benefits as well. 
 

As with most policies, our insurance benefits are subject to change, and employees may 
be subject to a waiting period before coverage and benefits begin. For more information about 
insurance and retirement benefits and eligibility, please speak with our Human Resources 
Department. 
 

Part-time employees are only eligible for voluntary benefits. 
 

Temporary employees are not eligible for this benefit.  
 
Benefits during a Medical Leave: 

The Organization will continue to provide insurance benefits to eligible employees during 
an approved medical leave depending on the type of leave as described below, provided that the 
employee regularly continues to pay their share of the premium, if applicable. 

Benefits that accrue for hours worked, including sick time and vacation accrual, will not 
accrue during an unpaid medical leave. Leave time will be counted toward your years of service. 
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5.6 State Disability Insurance (SDI) 

Employees who are absent because of their own disability may be eligible for State 
Disability Insurance (SDI) benefits. 

As a California employee, you pay for State Disability Insurance through payroll 
deduction and should apply for State Disability Insurance benefits whenever you are medically 
unable to work due to an illness or injury outside of the workplace and are unable to work for 
one week. Claim forms are available from your doctor, hospital, or the Employment 
Development Department. 

SDI benefits do not replace all of your usual wages. Your SDI benefits may be 
supplemented with any accrued sick or vacation time up to the amount of your regular wages. 

Decisions regarding eligibility for SDI are made by the state, not by the Organization. 

 
5.7 Paid Family Leave 

 
The state-operated plan may pay employees directly if he or she is out of work due to the 

illness or injury of certain family members or to bond with a new child. This protection is 
provided through employee contributions (the S.D.I. deduction on your payroll check stub). 
 

Decisions regarding eligibility for Paid Family Leave are made by the state, not by the 
Organization. 
 

5.8 COBRA/Cal-COBRA 
 

Federal Law and California State Law require most employers sponsoring health plans, 
or their insurance carrier, to offer employees and their families the opportunity to elect a 
temporary extension of health coverage through the Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act (COBRA) (called “continuation coverage” or “COBRA coverage”) in certain 
instances where coverage under the health plan would otherwise end. You will have to pay the 
entire premium for your continuation coverage and applicable third-party administrator service 
fees.  The Human Resources Department can assist you with respect to your COBRA or Cal-
COBRA needs. 
 

If you resign or leave the Organization, or if your hours are reduced below 30 per week 
due to a schedule change or leave of absence; or if another “qualifying event” such as death, 
divorce or legal separation occurs; or if a dependent child no longer meets eligibility 
requirements, you and/or your eligible dependents may be eligible for continuation of your 
benefits through COBRA. However, it is the employee’s responsibility to notify the Human 
Resources Department in writing of any qualifying events and to keep the Human Resources 
Department informed of current addresses for the employee and all covered family members. At 
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the time you become eligible, you will receive information regarding COBRA and HIPAA 
benefits. 

For more information about COBRA and HIPAA benefits, please contact the Human 
Resources Department. 
 
 

5.9 Health and Wellness 

The Organization provides voluntary physical and recreational activities to support the 
health and well-being of its employees (i.e. FitBit challenge). 

The Organization values the health of its employees and encourages staff to take 
advantage of the organizational wellness opportunities provided. Participation is completely 
voluntary and does not require disclosure of medical history nor will it discriminate against an 
employee based on their health status. 

 
5.10 Retirement Savings Plan 

The Organization participates in the California State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) 
for credentialed employees. 

Full-time regular classified employees of the organization may participate in a 403(b) 
retirement savings plan. You may make pre-tax contributions to the plan and the Organization 
may make matching contributions to the amounts you have contributed. You will receive a 
quarterly statement of your retirement benefits through the plan. 

[Note: Credentialed employees participating in STRS may also participate in the 
Organization’s 403(b) plan; however, the company will not make any matching contributions.] 
 

SECTION 6 -  LEAVE OF ABSENCE AND MISCELLANEOUS REQUEST FOR TIME 
OFF 
 

6.1 Leaves of Absence 
 

Sometimes employees may need to take a Leave of Absence (LOA) from their 
employment. Employees of the Organization are eligible for leaves of absence insofar as required 
by applicable federal and state leave laws. 

Generally, leaves are unpaid. However, some leaves such as up to two hours for voting 
leave may be paid, as set forth below, and that portion of leaves in which vacation or sick time, if 
any, are used are also paid. Employees may also apply for State Disability Insurance benefits or 
workers’ compensation insurance benefits, if appropriate. Staff members are considered inactive 
when they are no longer being paid and are on a leave of absence. No vacation benefits or sick 
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time will accrue while you are on unpaid leave. You do not receive payment for holidays or 
Organization breaks that occur while you are on unpaid leave. 
 
Request/Notification: 

You must provide a written (or email) request, to the Human Resources Department, for a 
Leave of Absence. Typically, you must ask for approval in advance to take a LOA. If the need 
for leave is foreseeable (for example, in cases of military or pregnancy leave), or intermittent 
leave is required, the Organization requires 30 days’ written notice of the intention to take leave, 
prior to the date leave is to begin. If the leave is not foreseeable, as in cases of medical 
emergency or other unforeseen events, such as a premature birth, or unexpected pregnancy 
complication, 30 days’ advance notice is not required. Instead, you must give verbal notice as 
soon as possible. This verbal notice must be followed with written notice as soon as possible, but 
not later than 72 hours after you have begun the emergency leave, unless the emergency makes 
that impossible. 
 
Use of Accruals: 

Use of your accrued sick or vacation benefits provides pay for you during the LOA until 
the accrued time is exhausted; however, using accrued time does not extend the period of the 
leave. Employees must use any accrued sick leave at the beginning of a medical leave. After 
accrued sick leave is exhausted, an employee may use accrued vacation time. 
 
Return to Work/Reinstatement: 

If you take a LOA, you must return to work on the next regular working day after your 
leave of absence ends. If you fail to return to work promptly at the end of your leave, without prior 
approval of the Organization, the Organization may assume that you voluntarily resigned. 

If you are ready to return from a leave of absence before the scheduled date of return, you 
are to notify the Human Resources Department as soon as practical to request a new scheduled 
date of return. 

Under most circumstances, you will be reinstated to the same position held at the time the 
leave began. If your original position is no longer available or has been filled or eliminated, the 
Organization will try to find you an equivalent job with equivalent pay, benefits, and other 
employment terms and conditions. 

An employee returning from a LOA has no greater right to reinstatement than if they had 
been continuously employed rather than on leave. For example, if an employee on a LOA would 
have been laid off had they not gone on leave, or if the employee’s position has been eliminated 
during the leave and there is no equivalent or comparable job available, the employee would not 
be entitled to reinstatement. 

Employees returning from a medical LOA are required to provide a signed release from 
their physician that releases them from care and outlines any job duty limitations, if applicable. 



Pending Board Approval 
91 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

The Organization reserves the right to determine whether a limited/modified duty release can be 
accommodated. 

Benefit Continuation: 

If you are eligible for health insurance benefits at the time you begin a LOA, the 
Organization will maintain your health benefits to the extent required by law; however, you must 
pay your portion of the premium costs, if applicable. The Human Resources Department will 
notify you of your payment obligations and you must pay this amount each month you are on 
leave in order to maintain your insurance benefits. If paid leave is used for any portion of an 
approved LOA, premium payments may be deducted from your paycheck. If benefits are 
canceled during the leave, you may re-enroll during a subsequent Open Enrollment period. If an 
employee does not return to work after an approved leave, then they may be required to 
reimburse the Organization for any premiums paid on the employee’s behalf during the leave. 

Accumulated fringe benefits such as retirement and service credit shall be preserved at 
the level accrued as of commencement of the leave but shall not accrue further during any such 
unpaid leave period. 
 
Listed below are the types of leaves of absence or accommodations available. 
 
 

6.2 Family and Medical Leave of Absence 

Eligible employees may be entitled to take family care and personal medical leave in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Family Rights Act ("CFRA") and the federal 
Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA"). If you have any questions about such benefits, please 
contact the Human Resources Department. 

The Organization will not discriminate against employees as a result of the approved use 
of family care or medical leave or a proper request for such leave. Requests for family care and 
medical leave will be considered without regard to race, color, citizenship status, national origin, 
ancestry, gender, genetic characteristics, genetic information gender identity, gender expression, 
transgender status, sexual orientation, age, religion, creed, physical or mental disability, 
perceived disability or perceived potential disability, marital status, military and veteran status, 
and a status as a victim of crime or any other unlawful basis for consideration. 

Eligible employees may be entitled to job-protected family or medical leaves of absence if 
they are unable to come to work due to pressing family or medical concerns as described within 
this Family and Medical Leave of Absence Policy. This policy shall be administered in 
accordance with applicable state and federal laws, and the Organization will not interfere with, 
restrain, or deny the exercise of employee rights provided by these laws. 

Eligibility Requirements 
 

 Employees are eligible for CFRA/FMLA leaves if they have been 



Pending Board Approval 
92 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

employed for twelve (12) months with the Organization at any time prior 
to the commencement of the CFRA/FMLA leave and worked at least 1250 
hours in the 12-month period immediately preceding the date the 
employee wants to begin his/her leave. This twelve (12) month period 
“rolls back” from the date of leave to the prior twelve (12) month period. 

 
 If an employee is not eligible for CFRA leave at the start of a leave 

because the employee has not met the 12-month length of service 
requirement, the employee may nonetheless meet this requirement while 
on leave, because leave to which he/she is otherwise entitled counts 
toward length of service (although not for the 1,250 hour requirement) and 
the Organization will designate the portion of the leave in which the 
employee has met the 12-month requirement as CFRA/FMLA leave. 

 
 Employees may request one (1) or more CFRA/FMLA leaves, however, the 

total amount of leave taken cannot exceed twelve (12) work weeks in any 
twelve (12) month period except for certain military leaves as described 
below. 

 
Leave Reasons 

 
An eligible employee may take a CFRA/FMLA leave of absence for the following reasons: 
 
• For reason of the birth of a child of the employee or the placement of a child with an 

employee in connection with the adoption or foster care of the child by the employee; 
• To care for a child, parent, parents-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, 

domestic partner, or designated person who has a serious health condition; 
• For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or childbirth (FMLA only); 
• Because the employee’s own serious health condition makes the employee unable to 

perform the essential functions of their job. In appropriate circumstances and as 
permitted by law, we may require you to be examined by an Organization-designated 
physician, at Organization’s expense; 

• For reasons related to service member military leave as described below. 
Military 
 

• Qualifying Exigencies Leave. Eligible employees with a spouse, domestic partner, child, 
or parent on active duty or call to active duty status in the Regular Armed Services, 
National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency operation may use their 12 week 
entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include 
attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain 
financial and legal arrangements, leave for certain activities related to the care of the 
military member’s parent who is incapable of self-care where those activities arise from 
the military member’s covered active duty, attending certain counseling sessions, and 
attending post-deployment reintegration briefings. 
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• Injured Servicemember Leave (FMLA Only). Eligible employees may take up to 26 
weeks of leave to care for a covered servicemember or covered veteran who is the 
employee’s spouse, parent, child, or relative for whom the employee is the next of kin 
during a single 12-month period. A covered servicemember is a current member of the 
Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, and certain 
covered veterans who have a serious injury or illness incurred or aggravated in the line of 
duty on active duty that may render the servicemember or veteran medically unfit to 
perform his or her duties. 

 
• Requests for Military Family Leaves. A leave taken due to a “qualifying exigency” 

related to military service must be supported by a certification of its necessity. A leave 
taken due to the need to care for a servicemember shall be supported by a certification by 
the servicemember’s healthcare provider. These certifications may be obtained from 
Human Resources. 

 
• Intermittent Leave. Leave due to qualifying exigencies may be taken on an intermittent 

basis. 
 

Military families taking family and medical leaves should contact the Human Resources 
Department for additional relevant information. 
 
Making A Request for a FMLA/CFRA Leave 
 

If the employee’s need for CFRA/FMLA leave is foreseeable, the employee shall provide 
the Organization with reasonable (generally 30 days) advance notice of the need for leave. 
 

If the employee’s need for CFRA/FMLA is foreseeable due to a planned medical 
treatment or supervision, the employee shall make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment 
or supervision to avoid disruption to the operations of the Organization, subject to the approval 
of the health care provider of the individual requiring the treatment or supervision. 

 
If the need for leave is not foreseeable, employees must submit the request for leave as 

far in advance as practicable and generally must comply with the Organization’s normal call-in 
procedures. 
 

Failure to comply with these notice rules or respond to permissible Organization inquiries 
regarding the leave request is grounds for, and may result in either, deferral of the requested 
leave until you comply with this notice policy or Organization request or denial of leave 
protection if the Organization is unable to determine whether the leave is CFRA qualifying. 
 
Certification for CFRA/FMLA Leave 
 

If you wish to take a CFRA/FMLA leave, you must provide sufficient information for the 
Organization to determine if the leave may qualify for CFRA/FMLA protection. 
 

For an employee’s request for leave to care for a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, 
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sibling, spouse, domestic partner, or designated person who has a serious health condition, the 
employee must provide a certification issued by the health care provider of the individual 
requiring care that includes all of the following: 
 

A. The date on which the serious health condition commenced. 
B. The probable duration of the condition. 
C. An estimate of the amount of time that the health care provider believes the employee 

needs to care for the individual requiring the care. 
D. A statement that the serious health condition warrants the participation of a family 

member to provide care during a period of the treatment or supervision of the individual 
requiring care. 

 
Upon expiration of the time estimated by the health care provider in subparagraph C., the 

Organization may require the employee to obtain recertification, in accordance with these 
procedures if additional leave is required. 
 

For leave because of the employee’s own serious health condition, the employee must 
provide a certification issued by the employee’s health care provider that includes all of the 
following: 
 

A. The date on which the serious health condition commenced. 
 

B. The probable duration of the condition. 
 

C. A statement that, due to the serious health condition, the employee is unable to 
perform the function of the employee’s position. 

 
The Organization may require that the employee obtain subsequent recertification 

regarding the employee’s serious health condition on a reasonable basis, in accordance with these 
procedures if additional leave is required. 

 
Employees must also inform the Organization if the requested leave is for a reason for 

which the leave was previously taken or certified. 
 

Please see the Organization for a copy of a medical certification form to give to your 
health care provider to complete. The certification must be submitted within no less than 15 
calendar days of the Organization's request for such certification unless it is not practicable for 
the employee to do so despite the employee's good faith efforts. Absent extenuating 
circumstances (e.g., unavailability of healthcare provider), if the employee fails to timely return 
the certification, the Organization may deny protections for the leave following the expiration of 
the 15-day time period until a sufficient certification is provided. 
 

In any case in which the Organization has reason to doubt the validity of the certification 
provided by the employee’s health care provider, the Organization may require, at its expense, 
that the employee obtain the opinion of a second health care provider, designated or approved by 
the Organization. In any case in which the second opinion differs from the opinion in the original 
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certification, the Organization may require, at its expense, that the employee obtain the opinion 
of a third health care provider, designated or approved jointly by the Organization and the 
employee, concerning the information previously certified by the employee’s health care 
provider. The opinion of the third health care provider concerning the information certified by 
the employee’s health care provider shall be considered to be final and shall be binding on the 
Organization and the employee. 
 
Designation of Leave 

The Organization will respond to the leave request as soon as practicable and in any 
event no later than five business days after receiving the employee’s request. The Organization 
will inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under the FMLA or CFRA. If 
an employee is eligible, the Organization will advise the employee of any additional information 
required as well as the employees’ rights and responsibilities. If an employee is not eligible for 
leave under the FMLA or CFRA, the Organization will provide the reason for the ineligibility. In 
addition, the Organization will inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA or CFRA 
protected and the amount of leave counted against the employee’s leave entitlement. If the 
Organization determines that the leave is not FMLA or CFRA protected, the Organization will 
notify the employee. 
 
Definitions: 
 

• A parent is defined as the employee’s or their spouse’s biological, adoptive, or foster 
parent, step-parent, loco parentis, or legal guardian. 

 
• “Child” means a biological, adopted, or foster child, a stepchild, a legal ward, a child of a 

domestic partner, or a person to whom the employee stands in loco parentis. 
 

• “Grandchild” means a child of the employee’s child. 
 

• “Grandparent” means a parent of the employee’s parent. 
 

• “Sibling” means a person related to another person by blood, adoption, or affinity through 
a common legal or biological parent. 

 
• "Designated person" means any individual related by blood or whose association with the 

employee is the "equivalent of a family relationship," including a domestic partner.  A 
designated person must be identified at the time the employee requests the leave. 
Employees may be limited to one designated person per 12-month period. 

 
• A serious health condition is an illness, injury (including, but not limited to, on- the-job 

injuries), impairment, or physical or mental condition of the employee or a child, parent, 
or spouse or registered domestic partner of the employee that involves either inpatient 
care or continuing treatment, including, but not limited to, treatment for substance abuse. 
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• “Inpatient care” means (i.e., an overnight stay) in a hospital, hospice, or residential health 
care facility, any subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care, or any 
period of incapacity. 

 
• “Incapacity” means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily 

activities due to a serious health condition, its treatment, or the recovery that it requires. 
 

An employee is not to perform any work duties during an approved LOA. Employees are 
not to be contacted for work purposes while on a LOA. An employee who is engaged in outside 
employment during a LOA may be subject to disciplinary action. 
 
Intermittent or Reduced Leave 

Employees do not need to take FMLA or CFRA leave in one block. The leave may be 
taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule when medically necessary as determined by 
the treating health care provider. However, intermittent or reduced work schedule leave may be 
taken for absences where the employee or family member is incapacitated or unable to perform 
the essential functions of the position because of a chronic serious health condition, even if he or 
she does not receive treatment by a health care provider. 

If you are taking a leave for the birth, adoption or foster care placement of a child, the 
basic minimum duration of the leave is two weeks, and you must conclude the leave within one 
year of the birth or placement for adoption or foster care. However, the Organization will grant a 
request for a leave of less than two weeks' duration on any two occasions and may grant requests 
for additional occasions of leave lasting less than two weeks. Employees must make reasonable 
efforts to schedule leave for planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the 
employer’s operations. 
 
Whether CFRA/FMLA Leave Is Paid 
 

CFRA/FMLA leave is unpaid; however, employees will be required to take accrued 
vacation time as part of their family care leave and both accrued vacation and sick time as part of 
their personal medical leave. 
 

For leave for an employee’s own serious health condition, the employee may also 
substitute leave taken pursuant to a short- or long-term disability leave plan, if applicable, as 
determined by the terms and conditions of the plan, during the otherwise unpaid portion of the 
CFRA/FMLA leave. This paid disability leave runs concurrently with CFRA/FMLA leave and 
may continue longer than the CFRA/FMLA leave if permitted by the disability leave plan. An 
employee receiving any form of disability payments is not on “unpaid leave” and, therefore, the 
Organization will not require the employee to use sick leave or accrued vacation. 
 

An employee receiving paid family leave to care for the serious health condition of a 
family member or to bond with a new child is not on “unpaid leave,” and, therefore, the 
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Organization will not require the employee to use accrued vacation. 
 
State Paid Family Leave While on FMLA/CFRA Leave 

Employees who are granted a leave of absence to care for a family member who is 
seriously ill or to bond with a new child may be eligible for California State paid family leave 
benefits through the State Disability Insurance (SDI) program, whether or not that leave of 
absence is approved and granted by the Organization. Decisions regarding eligibility for SDI are 
made by the state, not by the Organization. 
 
Pregnancy Disability Leaves Under the FMLA and CFRA 

Pregnancy disability leaves may run concurrently with medical leaves under the FMLA 
but not under the CFRA. An employee who is no longer entitled to pregnancy disability leave 
because the employee has given birth and is no longer disabled may be eligible to take a CFRA 
leave for the care of a newborn child if the CFRA leave has not been previously exhausted. 

The time that the Organization maintains and pays for group health coverage during 
pregnancy disability leave shall not be used to meet the Organization’s obligation to pay for 12 
weeks of group health coverage during leave taken under CFRA. This shall be true even where 
the Organization designates pregnancy disability leave as family and medical leave under 
FMLA. The entitlements to Organization-paid group health coverage during pregnancy disability 
leave and during CFRA leave are two separate and distinct entitlements. 
 
Physician’s Release Upon Return to Work 

A physician's release will be required prior to your returning to work from a personal 
CFRA or FMLA leave of absence. The Organization reserves the right to have any employee 
examined at its expense by a physician of its choice to verify fitness for work following a 
CFRA/FMLA leave of absence if job-related and consistent with business necessity. 
 
Reinstatement/Return to Work: 

When a definite date of return has been determined at the beginning of the leave, the 
employee must return to work on the designated date. If an employee's health care provider 
determines that an extension of the original agreed upon date of return is necessary, the 
employee must notify the Organization not less than four working days prior to the agreed upon 
date of return and present to the Organization a doctor's verification of continued need for leave. 
If the employee has not requested an extension of the original leave return date or that of any 
subsequent agreed upon extension and does not return to work on the last agreed upon return 
date, the employee will be considered to have abandoned his/her job. 

When an employee returns from a CFRA/FMLA leave, the Organization will restore the 
employee to the same position the employee held prior to the CFRA/FMLA leave or a 
comparable position that is equivalent to the employee's former position in terms of pay, 
benefits, shift, schedule, geographic location, and working conditions, including privileges, 
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perquisites, and status, subject to defenses allowable by law. The comparable position will 
involve the same or substantially similar duties and responsibilities and entail substantially 
equivalent skill, effort, responsibility, and authority. An approved CFRA/FMLA leave does not 
guarantee in every situation that your prior position, a comparable position, or that any position 
will be available at the conclusion of your leave. An employee returning from a CFRA/FMLA 
leave has no greater right to reinstatement than if the employee had been employed continuously 
rather than on leave. For example, if an employee on CFRA/FMLA leave would have been laid 
off had he/she not gone on leave, or if an employee’s position is eliminated during the leave, 
then the employee would not be entitled to reinstatement. 
 

Returning employees retain all benefits they had accrued at the start of their leave but do 
not accrue any benefits, including vacation, during an unpaid leave. Benefits such as vacation 
and sick time will continue to accrue only during the paid portion of your leave of absence. 

An employee who fraudulently obtains or uses CFRA/FMLA leave from the 
Organization is not protected by CFRA/FMLA's job restoration or maintenance of health 
benefits provisions. Employees cannot be employed elsewhere or apply for unemployment 
benefits while on CFRA/FMLA leave.  

Benefits: 

While an employee is on CFRA or FMLA leave of absence, the Organization will 
normally continue to pay the health insurance premiums for the employee under the same 
conditions as coverage would have been provided if the employee had not taken CFRA/FMLA 
leave for up to (i) 12 weeks for CFRA/FMLA leave or (ii) 26 weeks for an injured service 
member leave under the FMLA. 
 

If an employee's approved leave of absence exceeds this amount of time (and any other 
applicable leave time), the employee must make arrangements with the Human Resources 
Department to pay the insurance premium at his/her own expense to the extent permitted by the 
plan. Failure to do so may result in cancellation of coverage. If employees are required to pay 
premiums for any part of their group health coverage, the Organization will provide the 
employee with advance written notice of the terms and conditions under which premium 
payments must be made. If the employee does not return to work from the leave, the employee 
may be required to reimburse the Organization for the cost of his/her medical benefits during the 
leave. 
 

If your leave extends beyond twelve (12) weeks and any other applicable leaves, you 
shall be offered the opportunity to purchase continuing coverage under state and federal COBRA 
continuation rules. 
 

During a CFRA/FMLA leave, employees shall retain their employee status with the 
Organization, and the leave will not constitute a break in service for purposes of longevity or 
seniority. 
 

While an employee is on CFRA/FMLA leave of absence, the employee will be entitled to 
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participate in benefits plans, including life insurance or short-term or long-term disability or 
accident insurance, pension and retirement plans, and supplemental unemployment benefit plans 
to the same extent and under the same conditions as apply to other unpaid leaves of absences. 
However, the employee may be required to pay his/her premiums during any unpaid leave.  

Job Abandonment 

You will be considered to have abandoned your job if either of the following occurs: 

1. You start a leave of absence or extend a leave of absence without following these 
procedures for having a leave of absence properly approved. 

2. You do not return from a leave of absence or an extension of a leave of absence on the 
stated return date. 

 
Unlawful Acts by Employers and Enforcement 
 

CFRA/FMLA makes it unlawful for any employer to: 
 

• Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under the FMLA or 
CFRA or related regulations; or 

• Discharge, discriminate, or retaliate against any person for having exercised or 
attempting to exercise family leave rights for him or herself or another person or for 
opposing any practice made unlawful by the FMLA or CFRA or for involvement in any 
proceeding under or relating to the FMLA or CFRA. 
 
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or the Department 

of Fair Employment and Housing and may bring a private lawsuit against an employer. Neither 
the FMLA nor CFRA affects any Federal or State law prohibiting discrimination or supersedes 
any State or local law or collective bargaining agreement which provides greater family or 
medical leave rights. 
 

6.3 General Medical Leave 
 

Employees who are not eligible for a medical leave under the CFRA or FMLA, and who 
are temporarily disabled and unable to work due to either a work related or non-work related 
medical condition, may be granted a general medical leave of absence for the period of their 
disability. 

Employees shall be required to take accrued vacation time and accrued sick time as part 
of their medical leave of absence. 

To obtain a general medical leave you must submit to your supervisor a letter from your 
attending physician as soon as you learn that you are, or will become, temporarily disabled and 
unable to work due to a medical condition. The letter must contain the following information: (a) 
the date the leave will begin; (b) the estimated date of your return to work; and (c) that the leave 
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is requested due to a medical condition. 
 

It is the employee's responsibility to make certain that any and all written verifications by 
physicians of illness or disability are received by the Organization. Thus, if anyone other than an 
employee provides a physician verification to the Organization, the employee must contact the 
Organization to make sure that it received the verification. Employees may also be required to 
provide a certification and periodic recertification supporting the need for leave. 

When a definite date of return has been determined at the beginning of the leave, the 
employee must return to work on the designated date. If an employee's health care provider 
determines that an extension of the original agreed upon date of return is necessary, the 
employee must notify the Organization not less than four working days prior to the agreed upon 
date of return and present to the Organization a doctor's verification of continued need for leave. 
If the employee has not requested an extension of the original leave return date or that of any 
subsequent agreed upon extension and does not return to work on the last agreed upon return 
date, the employee will be considered to have abandoned his/her job. 

While an employee is on general medical leave of absence, the Organization will 
normally continue to pay the health insurance premiums for the employee, to the same extent it 
paid for the employee's premium before the leave, for up to 12 weeks. If an employee's approved 
leave of absence exceeds this amount of time, the employee must make arrangements with the 
Human Resources Department to pay the insurance premium at his/her own expense, to the 
extent permitted by the plan. Failure to do so may result in cancellation of coverage. If the 
employee does not return to work from the leave, the employee may be required to reimburse the 
Organization for the cost of his/her medical benefits during the leave. 
 

A physician's release will be required prior to your returning to work from a medical 
leave of absence. The Organization reserves the right to have any employee examined at its 
expense by a physician of its choice to verify fitness for work, to verify the existence or 
continuation of a disability/serious health condition, to verify fitness for work following a 
disability/serious health condition, or for any other reason the Organization deems necessary in 
accordance with applicable law. 

When an employee is ready to return to work following a general medical leave of 
absence, the Organization will endeavor to place the employee in the same or similar position 
held by the employee before the leave. An approved leave of absence does not guarantee in 
every situation that your prior position, a comparable position, or that any position will be 
available at the conclusion of your leave. An employee returning from a leave has no greater 
right to reinstatement than if the employee had been employed continuously rather than on leave. 
For example, if an employee on leave would have been laid off had he/she not gone on leave, or 
if an employee’s position is eliminated during the leave, then the employee would not be entitled 
to reinstatement. 

Returning employees retain all benefits they had accrued at the start of their leave but do 
not accrue any benefits, including vacation, during an unpaid leave. Benefits such as vacation, 
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holidays and sick time will continue to accrue only during the paid portion of your leave of 
absence. 
Employees cannot be employed elsewhere or apply for unemployment benefits while on 
leave. 
 

You will be considered to have abandoned your job if either of the following occurs: (a) 
you start a leave of absence or extend a leave of absence without following these procedures for 
having a leave of absence properly approved; or (b) do not return from a leave of absence or an 
extension of a leave of absence on the stated return date. 
 

The Organization may offer Long Term Disability Insurance and Long-Term Care 
coverage. Information can be obtained from the Human Resources Department. 
 
 

6.4 Personal Leave 

A personal leave of absence without pay may be granted at the discretion of the 
Organization. Requests for personal leave should be limited to unusual circumstances requiring 
an absence of longer than two weeks. Approved personal absences of shorter duration are not 
normally treated as leaves, but rather as excused absences without pay. Personal leaves of 
absence will be limited to thirty (30) calendar days in duration. Request for extended time off 
under a Personal Leave designation requires approval from the Human Resources Department. 

 
6.5 Personal Leave To Obtain Services Due to Domestic Violence, Sexual Assault, Stalking, or 

Other Crimes 
 

An employee who is a victim of stalking, domestic violence, sexual assault, a crime that 
caused physical injury or mental injury and a threat of physical injury, or whose immediate 
family member is deceased as the direct result of a crime or whose immediate family member is a 
victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking may request a leave of absence: 
 

• To seek medical attention for injuries caused by crime or abuse. 
• To obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center, or 

victim services organization or agency as a result of the crime or abuse. 
• To obtain psychological counseling or mental health services related to an experience of 

crime or abuse, including temporary or permanent relocation. 
• To participate in safety planning and take other actions to increase safety from future 

crime or abuse, including temporary or permanent location. 
 

Immediate family member means any of the following: a biological, adopted or foster 
child, stepchild, legal ward, a child of a domestic partner, or a child to whom the employee 
stands in loco parentis or stood in loco parentis when the person was a minor; a biological, 
adoptive or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse 
or domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee or employee’s 
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spouse or domestic partner was a minor; a spouse; a domestic partner; a biological, foster, or 
adoptive sibling a stepsibling, or a half sibling; or any other individual whose close associate 
with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship described herein. 
 

Employees who wish to take a leave under this policy must give reasonable advance 
notice, unless advance notice is not feasible. The Organization will require certification of the 
need for a leave such as a police report, a court order, or a note from a healthcare professional. 
 

The Organization will maintain confidentiality of the employee’s request for time off 
pursuant to this policy to the extent required by law. No employee will be subject to 
discrimination or retaliation because of his/her status as a victim of a crime. 
 

Employees are encouraged to use benefits, services and resources available through the 
Employee Assistance Program. 
 

Leave under this policy is without pay; however, employees may use accrued and unused 
paid vacation or sick time. Please contact the Human Resources Department for additional 
information. 

 
 

6.6 Personal Leave to Attend Court Proceedings or Seek Relief if a Victim of a Crime 
 

Employees may take time off of work to attend court proceedings and the Organization 
will not discharge or in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for taking time 
off under the following circumstances: 
 

• When the employee has been subpoenaed to appear and testify as a witness. 
• When the employee is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking and needs 

to attend court proceedings related to those matters or needs to obtain or attempt to obtain 
any relief, including but not limited to, a temporary restraining order, restraining order, or 
other injunctive relief, to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the victim or his or 
her child. 

• When the employee or a member of the employee’s immediate family is a victim of a 
crime and needs to take time off from work to appear in court at any proceeding, 
including any delinquency proceeding, any proceeding involving a post-arrest release 
decision, plea, sentencing, postconviction release decision, or any proceeding in which a 
right of the victim is at issue. “Immediate family” includes an employee’s spouse, 
domestic partner, parent, guardian, child, or sibling. 

• When the employee is a victim of a crime takes time off from work to obtain or attempt to 
obtain any relief, including but not limited to a temporary restraining order, restraining 
order, or other injunctive relief, to help ensure the health, safety, or welfare of the victim 
or their child. 

 
Employees must give the Organization reasonable advance notice of their need to take 

time off under this policy. A copy of the relevant subpoena, police report, court order, or other 



Pending Board Approval 
103 

 
Please note that this handbook is confidential and proprietary and must not be circulated or 
disclosed to third parties at any time during or after your employment with the organization.  

documentation regarding the court proceeding at issue or that verifies that the crime or abuse 
occurred should be brought to Human Resources immediately after it is served or received so 
that we can make appropriate arrangements to cover your work in your absence. 
 

The Organization will not discharge or in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an 
employee because of the employee’s status as a victim of a crime or abuse if the employee 
provides notice to the Organization of the status or the Organization has actual knowledge. 
 

Employees can use accrued sick and vacation time for this leave or take the leave unpaid. 
The Organization will maintain the information surrounding an employee’s absence from work 
for this purpose as confidential as possible. 
 

Please contact the Human Resources Department for additional information. 
 
 

6.7 Pregnancy Disability Leave 
 
Length of Leave and Bases for Pregnancy Disability Leave 

Employees who are temporarily disabled and unable to work due to a pregnancy-related 
medical condition (e.g., pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition) will be granted a 
leave of absence for the period of their disability up to a maximum total leave of four months for 
each pregnancy. A “four-month leave” means time off for the number of days or hours the 
employee would normally work within four calendar months (one-third of a year or 17 1/3 
weeks). For a full-time employee who works 40 hours per week, “four months” means 693 hours 
of leave entitlement, based on 40 hours per week times 17 1/3 weeks. For employees who work 
more or less than 40 hours per week, or who work on variable work schedules, the number of 
working days that constitutes four months is calculated on a pro rata or proportional basis. 

Time off needed for prenatal or postnatal care, doctor-ordered bed rest, gestational 
diabetes, pregnancy-induced hypertension, preeclampsia, childbirth, postpartum depression, loss 
or end of pregnancy, or recovery from childbirth would all be covered by pregnancy disability 
leave. 
 
Intermittent or Reduced Leave 
 

Pregnancy disability leave does not need to be taken in one continuous period of time. 
When medically necessary, leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced work schedule, all 
of which counts against your four-month entitlement to leave. 

Reasonable Accommodation 

The Organization will also reasonably accommodate your medical needs (such as 
allowing more frequent breaks) and transfer you to a less strenuous or hazardous position if it is 
medically advisable because of your pregnancy. 
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Pregnancy Disability Leaves Under the FMLA and CFRA 

Pregnancy disability leaves will run concurrently with medical leaves under federal law, 
but not under state family and medical leave law (the CFRA). When an employee has completed 
her pregnancy disability leave, she may apply for additional leave for the birth of her child under 
the CFRA provided that the CFRA leave was not exhausted prior to the pregnancy disability 
leave. 
 

The time that the Organization maintains and pays for group health coverage during 
pregnancy disability leave shall not be used to meet the Organization’s obligation to pay for 12 
weeks of group health coverage during leave taken under CFRA. This shall be true even where 
the Organization designates pregnancy disability leave as family and medical leave under 
FMLA. The entitlements to Organization-paid group health coverage during pregnancy disability 
leave and during CFRA leave are two separate and distinct entitlements. 
 
Whether Pregnancy Disability Leave Is Paid 

The Organization shall provide pay for 4 weeks of pregnancy disability leave; thereafter, 
employees are required to use any accrued and unused paid sick leave during their pregnancy 
disability leave. Employees may also elect to use accrued paid vacation during a pregnancy 
disability leave. Employees may also be eligible for state disability insurance or Paid Family 
Leave (PFL), administered by the California Employment Development Department. 

Making A Request for Pregnancy Disability Leave 

To obtain a pregnancy disability leave, you must submit to your supervisor a letter from 
your attending physician as soon as you learn that you are, or will become, temporarily disabled 
and unable to work due to a pregnancy-related condition. If possible, you must provide at least 
30 days advance notice for foreseeable events (such as expected birth of a child or a planned 
medical treatment for yourself). For events that are unforeseeable, you must notify the 
Organization, at least verbally, as soon as you learn of the need for the leave. Failure to comply 
with these notice rules is grounds for, and may result in, deferral of the requested leave until you 
comply with this notice policy. 
 
The letter must contain the following information: 
 

A. The date the leave will begin; 
B. The estimated date of your return to work; and 
C. A written communication that the employee is disabled because of pregnancy or a 

pregnancy-related medical condition or that it is medically advisable for the employee to 
be transferred to a less strenuous or hazardous position or duties or otherwise to be 
reasonably accommodated. 

 
Please see the Organization for a copy of a medical certification form to give to your 

health care provider to complete. 
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Employees may also be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification 
supporting the need for leave. 
 
Date of Return 

When a definite date of return has been determined at the beginning of the leave, the 
employee must return to work on the designated date. If an employee's health care provider 
determines that an extension of the original agreed upon date of return is necessary, the 
employee must notify the Organization not less than four working days prior to the agreed upon 
date of return and present to the Organization a doctor's verification of continued need for leave. 
If the employee has not requested an extension of the original leave return date or that of any 
subsequent agreed upon extension and does not return to work on the last agreed upon return 
date, the employee will be considered to have abandoned her job. 
 
Health Insurance While On Leave 

While an employee is on a pregnancy disability leave of absence, the Organization will 
normally continue to pay the health insurance premiums for the employee, to the same extent the 
Organization paid for the employee's premium before the leave, for up to four months. If an 
employee's approved leave of absence exceeds this amount of time (and CFRA time, if 
applicable), the employee must make arrangements with the Human Resources Department to 
pay the insurance premium at her own expense, to the extent permitted by the plan. Failure to do 
so may result in cancellation of coverage. If the employee does not return to work from the 
leave, the employee may be required to reimburse the Organization for the cost of her medical 
benefits during the leave. 
 
Physicians Release Upon Return to Work 
 

A physician's release will be required prior to your returning to work from a pregnancy 
disability leave of absence. The Organization reserves the right to have any employee examined 
at the Organization's expense by a physician of its choice to verify fitness for work, to verify the 
existence or continuation of a disability to verify fitness for work following a disability, or for 
any other reason the Organization deems necessary in accordance with applicable law. 
 
Job And Benefits Upon Return From Leave 

When an employee returns from a pregnancy disability leave, the Organization will 
restore the employee to the same or comparable position at the same rate of pay and same 
benefits subject to defenses allowable by law. An approved leave of absence does not guarantee 
in every situation that your prior position, a comparable position, or that any position will be 
available at the conclusion of your leave. An employee returning from a pregnancy disability 
leave has no greater right to reinstatement than if the employee had been employed continuously 
rather than on leave. For example, if an employee on a pregnancy disability leave would have 
been laid off had she not gone on leave, or if an employee’s position is eliminated during the 
leave, then the employee would not be entitled to reinstatement. 
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Returning employees retain all benefits they had accrued at the start of their leave but do 
not accrue any benefits, including vacation, during an unpaid leave. Benefits such as vacation 
and sick time will continue to accrue only during the paid portion of your leave of absence. 
 

Employees cannot be employed elsewhere or apply for unemployment benefits while on 
leave. 
 

Job Abandonment While On Leave 

YOU WILL BE CONSIDERED TO HAVE ABANDONED YOUR JOB IF EITHER OF 
THE FOLLOWING OCCURS: 
 

a. You start a leave of absence or extend a leave of absence without 
following these procedures for having a leave of absence properly approved. 

b. You do not return from a leave of absence or an extension of a leave 
of absence on the stated return date. 
 
 

6.8 Organ and Bone Marrow Donor Paid Leave 
 
Leave Entitlement for Organ Donation 
 

Employees who have been employed by the Organization for at least 90 days and need to 
take a leave of absence for the purpose of donating his or her organ to another person shall be 
entitled to a paid leave of absence for up to a maximum of thirty (30) days in any one-year 
period. Employees who are organ donors who exhaust this thirty (30) days of paid leave shall be 
entitled to an additional unpaid leave of absence, not exceeding 30 business days in a one- year 
period, for the purpose of donating the employee’s organ to another person. The one-year period 
is measured from the date the employee’s leave begins and shall consist of 12 consecutive 
months. 
 
Leave Entitlement for Bone Marrow Donation 
 

Employees who have been employed by the Organization for at least 90 days and need to 
take a leave of absence for the purpose of donating his or her bone marrow to another person 
shall be entitled to a paid leave of absence for up to a maximum of five (5) days in any one-year 
period. The one-year period is measured from the date the employee’s leave begins and shall 
consist of 12 consecutive months. 
 
Payment for Leave 
 

Leave taken in accordance with this policy will be paid by the Organization. However, 
employees who take leave for bone marrow donation shall be required to take five (5) days of 
their accrued and unused sick or vacation time for the leave and employees who take leave for 
organ donation shall be required to take up to two (2) weeks of their accrued and unused sick or 
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vacation time for the leave. 
 
Making A Request 
 

To receive an organ or bone marrow donation leave of absence, employees must provide 
written verification that he or she is an organ or bone marrow donor and that there is a medical 
necessity for the donation of the organ or bone marrow. The verification should also state the 
date the leave will begin and the estimated date of return to work. The verification must be 
submitted to the Organization at least 15 calendar days prior to the expected date of the leave of 
absence, unless doing so is not possible because of emergent circumstances. 

Intermittent or Reduced Leave 
 

Employees do not need to take organ or bone marrow donation leave in one block. The 
leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule when medically necessary as 
determined by the treating health care provider. Employees must make reasonable efforts to 
schedule leave for planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the Organization’s 
operations. 
 
Leave Not Concurrent with FMLA or CFRA 
 

Leave for organ or bone marrow donation will not run concurrently with any medical 
leaves under federal or state law. When an employee has exhausted his or her paid organ or bone 
marrow donation leave, he or she may request additional unpaid leave from the Organization, in 
accordance with state or federal family and medical leave law, if applicable. 
 
Date of Return 

When a definite date of return has been determined at the beginning of the leave, the 
employee must return to work on the designated date. If an employee's health care provider 
determines that an extension of the original agreed upon date of return is necessary, the 
employee must notify the Organization not less than four working days prior to the agreed upon 
date of return and present to the Organization a doctor's verification of continued need for leave. 
If the employee has not requested an extension of the original leave return date or that of any 
subsequent agreed upon extension and does not return to work on the last agreed upon return 
date, the employee will be considered to have abandoned his/her job. 
 

Health Insurance While On Leave 
 

While an employee is on a paid organ or bone marrow leave, the Organization will pay 
the health insurance premiums for the employee, to the same extent it paid for the employee's 
premium before the leave, for the full duration of the permitted leave. If the employee’s leave of 
absence is longer than the period of time he/she is entitled to paid or partially paid premiums, the 
employee is entitled to continue insurance benefits at his/her own expense, to the extent 
permitted by COBRA. 
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Benefits While On Leave 
 

Any period of time during which an employee is on leave by reason of being an organ or 
bone marrow donor is not a break in continuous employment for the purpose of his or her right to 
salary adjustments, sick leave, vacation, annual leave, or seniority. 
 

Physicians Release Upon Return to Work 

A physician's release will be required prior to your returning to work from an organ or 
bone marrow leave of absence. The Organization reserves the right to have any employee 
examined at its expense by a physician of its choice to verify fitness for work. 
 
Job And Benefits Upon Return From Leave 
 

When an employee is ready to return to work following a paid leave of absence for organ 
or bone marrow donation, the Organization will restore the employee to the position held by him 
or her when the leave began or to a position with equivalent seniority status, employee benefits, 
pay, and other terms and conditions of employment, unless conditions unrelated to the exercise of 
the right to the leave prevent restoration to the same or equivalent position. 
 
No Discrimination Because of Leave 
 

The Organization shall not discharge, fine, suspend, expel, discipline, or in any other 
manner discriminate against an employee because he or she exercises the right to take paid leave 
under this policy or because he or she opposes any practice made unlawful by this policy or by 
state or federal law. 
 
Job Abandonment While On Leave 

YOU MAY BE CONSIDERED TO HAVE ABANDONED YOUR JOB IF EITHER OF 
THE FOLLOWING OCCURS: 
 

a. You start a leave of absence or extend a leave of absence without 
following these procedures for having a leave of absence properly approved. 
 

b. You do not return from a leave of absence or an extension of a leave 
of absence on the stated return date. 
 
 

6.9 Military Leave 

The Organization will allow qualified military leave and will re-employ an individual 
returning from military leave, pursuant to the standards established by law. 
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Military Leave is also available for employees who are members of the National Guard in 
another state and are called into service by the other state or by the President. 
 
Job Protection 
 

Employees will be granted all military service leave provided under the Uniformed 
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA) and California law. In 
addition, the Organization will not discharge or otherwise discriminate against an employee 
because he or she is a member of the state or U.S. military or is ordered to duty or training. 
 

a. extended period, if any, as their rights are protected by law. 
 
Returning to Work 
 

Employees returning from Military Leave are entitled to the seniority and other rights and 
benefits determined by seniority that they would have attained had they not gone on leave. Thus, 
returning employees are entitled to accrue vacation time upon their return at the rate they 
otherwise would have attained if they had continued working. 
 

6.10 Leave For Spouses Of Qualified Military 

In addition to the federal military service leave set under the Uniformed Services 
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA), the Organization also provides 
up to 10 days of unpaid leave for spouses or registered domestic partners of qualified military 
personnel (including those serving in the National Guard and reserves) who work an average of 
20 or more hours per week. 

Employees must notify the Organization within two business days of receiving official 
notice of a spouse/registered domestic partner’s leave from deployment of the intent to take 
spousal/registered domestic partner leave. The employee must also provide documentation 
certifying that the time period of the leave from deployment corresponds to the dates that the 
employee is requesting leave. 

Employees may, but are not required to, use accrued unused paid time off during military 
spouse/registered domestic partner leave. 

The Organization will not retaliate against any employee who requests or takes military 
spouse/registered domestic partner leave. Employees who take leave under this policy will be 
reinstated to their position upon return from leave. 
 
 

6.11 Unpaid Family-School Partnership Leave 

Employees may be eligible for forty (40) hours of unpaid leave in a calendar year, not 
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exceeding eight (8) hours in any calendar month of the year, to participate in school-related 
activities, school or childcare emergencies, or licensed child care provider activities for your 
children, grandchildren, step child, foster child or ward kindergarten age through grade 12. 

“Childcare provider or school emergency” means that an employee’s child cannot remain 
in a school or with a childcare provider due to one of the following: 
 

A. The school or childcare provider has requested that the child be picked up, or has an 
attendance policy, excluding planned holidays, that prohibits the child from attending or 
requires the child to be picked up from the school or childcare provider. 

B. Behavioral or discipline problems. 
C. Closure or unexpected unavailability of the school or childcare provider, excluding 

planned holidays. 
D. A natural disaster, including, but not limited to, fire, earthquake, or flood. 

Employees must submit a request in writing to their respective supervisor in order to 
obtain approval for such leave and, if granted, must provide evidence of attending such school- 
related activity to their supervisor. Employees shall use accrued vacation time for this leave. 
 

Eligible Parent employees include the following: Parents, Guardians, Grandparent, Step- 
parent, Foster-parent, and a person standing in loco parentis to a child. 
 

No disciplinary action or discrimination will be taken against the employee for taking 
time off for this purpose or for taking time off to appear at their child’s school to discuss possible 
suspension as long as the employee gives reasonable notice to their supervisor. 
 
 

6.12 Jury Duty/Witness Leave 

Both regular full-time exempt and non-exempt employees are eligible for up to 5 work 
days paid leave when called on to serve as a juror or witness at a trial, unless otherwise approved 
by Senior Management. Any time served by the employee beyond this 5 day period shall be 
without pay. However, the salary of an exempt employee will not be reduced for any week in 
which they perform work, even if they miss part of the week due to jury duty. Any compensation 
however may be reduced by the amount of jury duty pay (other than travel expenses) received by 
the employee from other sources and employees are required to immediately advise Human 
Resources about any such pay. The employee is required to notify their supervisor within 48 
hours of receiving any Jury Summons and/or subpoena. You are required to provide 
documentation showing your required days of attendance. If the court releases you after serving 
a partial day, you are expected to report to work and complete your normal workday unless you 
make other arrangements with your supervisor. Employees are required to notify the 
Organization and promptly return to work upon completion of jury duty service 
 

Part-time, seasonal, and temporary employees will be granted a leave of absence to serve 
as a juror or witness at a trial in accordance with their legal obligation to do so but are not 
eligible for paid leave for these purposes. 
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6.13 Bereavement Leave 

Employees who have completed at least thirty (30) days of service will be granted up to 
five (5) days of leave for the death of a “family member.”  A family member is defined as a 
spouse, child, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, domestic partner, or parent-in-law.   

The days of bereavement leave need not be consecutive, but the bereavement leave shall 
be completed within three months of the date of death of the family member. 

Three (3) days of bereavement leave may be paid, and the remaining two (2) days, if 
taken, are unpaid; however, employees may elect to use other available paid time off (such as 
vacation or paid sick leave). 

Verification of the need for bereavement leave is required and is to be submitted with the 
leave request, and/or directly to the HR Department.  The Organization shall maintain the 
confidentiality of any employee requesting leave under this section. 

The Organization understands the deep impact that death can have on an individual or a 
family, therefore special circumstances will be considered in the area of bereavement leave. 

Part-time, seasonal, and temporary employees are only eligible for unpaid bereavement 
leave (or may use any sick hours that have been accrued).  
 
 

6.14 Leave for Reproductive Loss 

Employees who have completed at least thirty (30) days of service will be granted up to five 
(5) days of unpaid leave following a “reproductive loss event.”  A “reproductive loss event” means 
the day or, for a multiple-day event, the final day of a failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, 
stillbirth, or an unsuccessful assisted reproduction. 

If an employee experiences more than one reproductive loss leave event within a 12-month 
period, the total amount of reproductive loss leave time taken shall not exceed twenty (20) days 
within a 12-month period. 

The days of leave for reproductive loss need not be consecutive, but the leave shall be 
completed within three (3) months of the date of loss. 

Leave for reproductive loss is unpaid, but employees may use other available paid time off, 
such as vacation or paid sick leave. 
 
 

6.15 Time Off for School Appearance or to Attend Child’s School Discipline 

Any employee who is a parent or legal guardian of a child that has received written notice 
from the child’s school requesting their attendance at a disciplinary conference is entitled to take 
unpaid leave to attend the conference. Please notify your Supervisor regarding a request for time 
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off and provide a copy of the notice or document from the school stating that the employee’s 
presence is required. 
 
 

6.16 Time Off for Civil Air Patrol 
 

Eligible employees who are volunteer members of the California Wing of the civilian 
auxiliary of the US Air Force, commonly known as the Civil Air Patrol, who have been directed 
by the US Air Force, the California Emergency Management Agency or other authorized state 
agency to respond to an emergency operational mission are entitled to 10 days per calendar year 
of unpaid leave. Leave for a single emergency operational mission shall not exceed three days, 
unless an extension of time is granted by the authorizing governmental entity and the extension 
is approved by the Organization. 

An eligible employee requiring Civil Air Patrol leave must give the Organization as 
much notice as possible of the intended dates upon which the leave will begin and end. Please 
notify the Human Resources Department of requested leave under this section. The Organization 
may require certification from the proper Civil Air Patrol authority to verify the employee’s 
eligibility and may deny the leave if the employee fails to provide the required certification. 

Time off taken for Civil Air Patrol will be unpaid, but employees may use accrued and 
unused paid time off upon request. 

 
6.17 Voting 

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an 
official state- sanctioned election, the employee may, without loss of pay, take off enough 
working time (up to 2 hours) to vote. No more than two hours of the time taken off for voting 
shall be without loss of pay. Such time off shall be taken at the beginning or the end of the 
regular working shift, whichever allows for more free time for voting and the least time off from 
the regular working shift, unless otherwise mutually agreed. When possible, an employee 
requesting time off to vote shall give their supervisor at least two days’ notice. 
 

6.18 Volunteer Civil Service Leave / Emergency Responder 
 

Volunteer emergency responders include reserve peace officers, volunteer firefighters, 
and emergency rescue personnel. Non-exempt employees will be granted time off (without pay) 
to perform emergency duties as a recognized volunteer emergency responder. Exempt employees 
who work any portion of a workweek in which they also perform emergency duties as a 
recognized volunteer emergency responder will receive their full salary for that workweek. 
Otherwise, exempt employees will be granted time off without pay. A Request for Time Off is to 
be submitted to your Supervisor. 

Volunteer emergency responders are eligible for time off, up to 14 days per calendar 
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year, to engage in training. Employees may substitute accrued vacation time for any unpaid 
portion of leave to perform emergency duties as a recognized volunteer emergency responder. 
Retaliation for time off is prohibited. 

California Workers’ Rights In Emergencies Law  

In the event of an emergency condition, the Organization shall not do either of the 
following: 

(1) Take or threaten adverse action against any employee for refusing to report to, or leaving, 
a workplace or worksite within the affected area because the employee has a reasonable belief 
that the workplace or worksite is unsafe.  

This paragraph does not apply to the following:  

A. A first responder, as defined in Section 8562 of the Government Code. 

B. A disaster service worker, as defined in Section 3101 of the Government Code. 

C. An employee required by law to render aid or remain on the premises in case of an 
emergency. 

D. An employee or contractor of a health care facility who provides direct patient care, 
provides services supporting patient care operations during an emergency, or is required 
by law or policy to participate in emergency response or evacuation. 

E. An employee of a private entity that contracts with the state or any city, county, or 
political subdivision of the state, including a special district, for purposes of providing or 
aiding in emergency services. 

F. An employee working on a military base or in the defense industrial base sector. 

G. An employee performing essential work on nuclear reactors or nuclear materials or 
waste. 

H. An employee of a company providing utility, communications, energy, or roadside 
assistance while the employee is actively engaged in or is being called upon to aid in 
emergency response, including maintaining public access to services such as energy and 
water during the emergency. 

I. An employee of a licensed residential care facility. 

J. An employee of a depository institution, as defined in Section 1420 of the Financial 
Code. 

K. A transportation employee participating directly in emergency evacuations during an 
active evacuation. 
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L. An employee of a privately contracted private fire prevention resource. 

M. An employee whose primary duties include assisting members of the public to evacuate 
in case of an emergency. 

(2) Prevent any employee from accessing the employee's mobile device or other communications 
device for seeking emergency assistance, assessing the safety of the situation, or communicating 
with a person to verify their safety. 

This paragraph shall not apply to the following:  

A. An employee of a depository institution as defined in Section 1420 of the Financial Code. 

B. An employee of any correctional facility. 

C. An employee who is actively operating equipment permitted under applicable law. 

"Emergency condition" means the existence of either of the following: (i) Conditions of disaster 
or extreme peril to the safety of persons or property at the workplace or worksite caused by 
natural forces or a criminal act; and (ii) An order to evacuate a workplace, a worksite, a worker's 
home, or the school of a worker's child due to natural disaster or a criminal act. "Emergency 
condition" does not include a health pandemic. 

When feasible, an employee shall notify the Company of the emergency condition requiring the 
employee to leave or refuse to report to the workplace or worksite prior to leaving or refusing to 
report. When prior notice is not feasible, the employee shall notify the Company of the 
emergency condition that required the employee to leave or refuse to report to the workplace or 
worksite after leaving or refusing to report as soon as possible. 
 

SECTION 7 - TITLE IX SEXUAL DISCRIMINATION POLICY AND GRIEVANCE 
PROCESS 

 
In compliance with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (“Title IX”), Elite Academic 
Academy (the “Organization”) does not discriminate on the basis of sex in its educational 
programs and activities, recruitment, admissions, course offerings, benefits or pay, athletics, or 
employment. 
 
Applicability 
 
This policy applies to all students, employees, volunteers, independent contractors, vendors, and 
members of the Organization community. It applies to conduct that occurs on the Organization’s 
campus, at Organization-sponsored events, and to events on or off campus that have sufficient ties 
to the Organization. 
 
The purpose of this document is to outline the steps the Organization will take to provide the 
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prompt and equitable and reliable resolution of student and employee complaints under the 
Organization’s Title IX Policy. These procedures apply only to complaints alleging sex-based 
discrimination, harassment, and/or violence prohibited by Title IX and as outlined in this policy. 
For all other complaints, please consult the relevant policies in the Organization’s Parent/Student 
Handbook, or Employee Handbook, as applicable. 
 
Students, parents/guardians, and employees are also encouraged to communicate with the Human 
Resources Department, with any questions or concerns regarding these policies. The Organization 
believes that open communication about these sensitive topics is integral to preventing serious 
misconduct from occurring and is essential to fostering a culture of personal responsibility, mutual 
accountability, and positive leadership. 
 
Discrimination Based on Sex Prohibited 
 
Our organization is an equal opportunity employer and committed to providing a work 
environment that is free of discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. In keeping with this 
commitment, the Organization maintains a strict policy prohibiting sexual discrimination or sexual 
harassment in any of its operations. 
 
The Organization shall not, on the basis of sex, exclude from admission or participation, deny the 
benefits of, or discriminate against any person in any academic, extracurricular, research, 
occupational training, or other education program or activity it offers or operates. Similarly, the 
Organization shall not discriminate against any student or exclude any student from any education 
program or activity, including any class or extracurricular activity, on the basis of such student's 
pregnancy, childbirth, false pregnancy, termination of pregnancy or recovery therefrom, unless the 
student requests voluntarily to participate in a separate portion of the program or activity. 
Additionally, the Organization shall not discriminate against any person in employment, 
recruitment, hiring, selection, benefits, pay, or any other term condition, or privilege of 
employment on the basis of sex. 
 
As used in this policy, sexual harassment is defined as harassment based on sex or conduct of a 
sexual nature, and includes harassment based on pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related 
medical conditions, gender, gender identity or gender expression. It may include unwelcome sex-
based conduct, such as unwelcome or unsolicited sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
conversations regarding sexual activities, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature 
that is so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a person equal 
access to the Organization’s education program activity. It may also include an employee of the 
Organization conditioning the provision of an aid, benefit, or service on an individual's 
participation in unwelcome sexual conduct. It may also include sexual violence, including sexual 
assault, domestic violence, stalking, or violence while dating. 
 
Sexual harassment may occur between students, between students and employees, between 
employees, between students and third parties, and between employees and third parties and is 
strictly prohibited. 
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Compliance Coordinator 
 
The responsibility for administering and ensuring the Organization’s compliance with Title IX 
has been assigned to the Compliance Coordinator. The Compliance Coordinator will coordinate 
with the administration to implement and administer this policy and the Organization’s remedies 
for resolving Title IX complaints. The Compliance Coordinator is also responsible for working 
with law enforcement regarding such complaints when necessary; and ensuring that complaints 
are resolved promptly and appropriately to the extent possible. The Compliance Coordinator 
may delegate these duties to other school employees or external investigators, as necessary and 
in his or her sole discretion, to ensure the prompt and appropriate resolution of any complaint. 
 
The Compliance Coordinator (or his or her designee) may also meet with the Organization’s 
students, parents/guardians, and/or employees regarding their rights and obligations under Title 
IX and to address any questions regarding the Organization’s compliance with such obligations. 
Inquiries concerning this policy, Title IX, and any related issues of sex-based discrimination or 
harassment should be directed to the School’s Compliance Coordinator: 
 
Name: Tracy Hasper 
Title: Chief Personnel Officer 
Office Address: 43414 Business Park Drive, Temecula, CA 92590 Telephone Number: (866) 
354-8302 Ext. 706 
Email Address: thasper@eliteacademic.com 
 
Reporting Complaint 
 
Any person may report sexual discrimination and harassment in person, by mail, by telephone, or 
by electronic mail, using the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator, or by any 
other means that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person's verbal or written 
report. Such a report may be made at any time (including during non-business hours) by using 
the telephone number or electronic mail address, or by mail to the office address, listed for the 
Title IX Coordinator. 
 
Complaints may be reported orally or by submitting the Organization’s Title IX Complaint Form 
to the Compliance Coordinator. The Title IX Complaint Form may be obtained from the Human 
Resources Department. 
 
The complaint, whether reported orally or in writing, shall contain information that describes the 
conduct that has allegedly occurred and caused the violation of the Organization’s policy and Title 
IX prohibitions against sex-based discrimination, harassment, and/or violence and identifies the 
complainant, respondent(s), and any witnesses to the alleged conduct. 
 
Notification of Complaint 
 
When the Organization receives a complaint, the Coordinator will promptly contact the 
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complainant and explain the process to file a formal complaint. 
 
Supportive Measures During Complaint Process 
 
Once it has notice of a complaint, the Organization will take steps to ensure equal access to its 
educational programs and activities by providing “supportive measures” (as defined below) to the 
complainant, as appropriate, before the final outcome of an investigation. 
 
“Supportive measures” mean non-disciplinary, non-punitive individualized services offered as 
appropriate, as reasonably available, to restore or preserve equal access to the Organization’s 
education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures 
designed to protect the safety of all parties or the educational environment, or deter sexual 
harassment. Supportive measures may include counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-
related adjustments, modifications of work or class schedules, campus escort services, mutual 
restrictions on contact between the parties, changes in work or housing locations, leaves of 
absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus, and other similar 
measures. 
 
The Organization will maintain as confidential any supportive measures provided, to the extent 
that maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the ability of the Organization to provide 
the supportive measures. 
 
The Title IX Coordinator will promptly contact the complainant to discuss the availability of 
supportive measures during the complaint process, consider the complainant’s wishes with 
respect to supportive measures, inform the complainant of the availability of supportive measures 
with or without the filing of a formal complaint, and explain to the complainant the process for 
filing a formal complaint. 
 
Grievance Process: Response to Formal Complaints 
 
Step 1: Notice of Allegations 
 
When the Organization receives a formal complaint (which must be signed by the complainant, or 
complainant’s parents if a minor), the Coordinator will promptly provide written Notice of 
Allegations to the parties who are known. Such written notice will contain the following: 
 
1. Notice of the Organization’s grievance process; 
2. Notice of the allegations of sexual harassment, including sufficient details known and with 

sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial interview; 
3. A statement that the respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and that a 

determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the grievance process; 
4. Notice that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to 

be, an attorney, and may inspect and review evidence; and 
5. Notice of any provision in the Organization's code of conduct that prohibits knowingly making 

false statements or knowingly submitting false information. 
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Step 2: Determining if Complaint is Covered by this Policy. 
 
The Compliance Coordinator will review the information provided to determine whether the 
matter falls within the scope of this policy. 
 
Within ten (10) days after receipt of a complaint, the Compliance Coordinator will either initiate 
an investigation or inform the complainant in writing that the conduct alleged in the complaint is 
not within the scope of this policy and an investigation will not be conducted. If the matter does 
not involve allegations of sex-based discrimination, harassment, or violence within the scope of 
this policy, the Compliance Coordinator will forward the matter to the appropriate administrator 
to handle a review in accordance with applicable Organization policies and procedures. 
 
If the complaint is determined to be within the scope of this policy and an investigation is initiated, 
the Organization may remove a respondent from its education program or activity on an emergency 
basis, provided that it undertakes an individualized safety and risk analysis, determines that an 
immediate threat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arising from the 
allegations of sexual harassment justifies removal, and provides the respondent with notice and an 
opportunity to challenge the decision immediately following the removal. Additionally, the 
Organization may place a respondent non-student employee on administrative leave during the 
pendency of any investigation. 
 
Step 3: Investigation if Complaint is Covered by this Policy. 
If the complaint falls within the scope of this policy, the Compliance Coordinator will promptly 
and no later than ten (10) days after receipt of the complaint initiate an investigation. 
 
The Compliance Coordinator may designate other school employees or an external investigator 
(the “Investigator”) to assist with an investigation, as necessary, in his or her sole discretion. The 
Compliance Coordinator will advise the parties of the name of the Investigator assigned to the 
complaint. The Investigator will maintain a presumption that the respondent is not responsible for 
the alleged conduct until a determination regarding responsibility is made at the conclusion of the 
investigation. 
 
To the extent practicable, the investigation shall: 
 
1. Provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present witnesses, including fact and expert 

witnesses, and other inculpatory and exculpatory evidence; 
2. Not restrict the ability of either party to discuss the allegations under investigation or to gather 

and present relevant evidence; 
3. Provide the parties with the same opportunities to have others present during any proceeding, 

including the opportunity to be accompanied to any related meeting or proceeding by the 
advisor of their choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney, though the 
Organization may establish restrictions regarding the extent to which the advisor may 
participate in the proceedings; 

4. Provide, to a party whose participation is invited or expected, written notice of the date, time, 
location, participants, and purpose of all investigative interviews or other meetings, with 
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sufficient time for the party to prepare to participate; and 
5. Provide both parties an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part 

of the investigation that is directly related to the allegations raised, including the evidence upon 
which the recipient does not intend to rely in reaching a determination so that each party can 
meaningfully respond to the evidence prior to conclusion of the investigation. 

 
The Investigator may take any additional actions as necessary to complete the investigation. 
 
The Investigator will maintain documentation of all proceedings related to the investigation, which 
may include, but is not limited to, notes or transcripts from witness interviews, evidence provided 
by witnesses or involved parties, audio recordings, or written findings of fact. 
 
The Organization will strive to complete investigations, including issuance of the Investigator’s 
written report to the complainant and respondent, in as timely and efficient a manner as possible 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of a complaint. However, this timeframe may be extended based 
on factors such as, but not limited to, schedule and availability of witnesses, holidays or semester 
breaks including summer break, and complexity of the complaint. If an investigation cannot be 
completed within sixty (60) days of receipt of the complaint, then the Investigator will notify the 
complainant and respondent of that fact in writing and provide a timeframe for completing 
the investigation. Both parties will be given periodic updates throughout the investigation process. 
 
Prior to completion of any report by the Investigator, the Organization shall send to each party and 
the party's advisor, if any, the evidence subject to inspection and review in an electronic format or 
a hard copy, and the parties must have at least 10 days to submit a written response, which the 
Investigator will consider prior to completion of the investigative report. 

After the completion of the 10-day period, the Investigator will create an investigative report with 
the results of the investigation that fairly summarizes relevant evidence, including the 
Investigator’s findings and conclusions supporting the determination. 
 
At least 10 days prior to the time of determination regarding responsibility, the Investigator will 
send to each party and the party's advisor, if any, the investigative report in an electronic format or 
a hard copy, for their review and written response. The Decision Maker must afford each party 
the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any party or 
witness, provide each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-up questions 
from each party. 

Step 4: Making a Finding - Determination regarding Responsibility. 
 
In reaching its finding, the Decision Maker will engage in an objective evaluation of all relevant 
evidence – including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence – and provide that credibility 
determinations may not be based on a person’s status as a complainant, respondent, or witness. 
The standard of evidence to be used by the Investigator to determine responsibility will be the 
preponderance of evidence standard. 
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Step 5: Dismissal or Remedies. 
 
Where the Decision Maker determines sexual harassment has not been found against the 
respondent, the Organization will dismiss the complaint and send written notice of the dismissal 
and the reason(s) therefore simultaneously to the parties. [Note: A Discretionary Dismissal will 
also be issued if: the respondent leaves the school; the complainant withdraws the complaint; 
and/or there are circumstances that prevent the school from making a determination.] 
 
Where a determination of responsibility for sexual harassment has been found against the 
respondent, the Organization will provide the written determination to the parties simultaneously 
and after the determination becomes final, will impose remedies/disciplinary actions designed to 
restore or preserve equal access to the Organization’s education program, activity, or employment. 
Such remedies may include counseling, course or class related adjustments, mutual restrictions on 
contact between parties, changes in work locations, leaves of absence, increased security and 
monitoring, or disciplinary action including suspension, warnings, termination of employment, or 
expulsion. The written determination will include the following: identification of allegations; 
description of procedural steps taken; findings of fact supporting the determination; conclusions 
based on the school codes; and procedures for appeals. 
 
The Organization recognizes that false accusations, especially of sex-based harassment, 
discrimination, and/or violence may have serious effects on innocent persons.  Any individual 
found to have made false accusations of sex-based harassment, discrimination, and/or violence 
may also be subject to appropriate disciplinary action. 
 
Step 6:  Appeals. 
 
Any party not satisfied with the results of an investigation under this policy or the remedies taken 
because of:  (a) a procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter; (be) new evidence 
that was not reasonably available at the time the determination was made that could affect the 
outcome of the matter; or (c) the Title IX Coordinator, investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) had a 
conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or respondents that affected the outcome of 
the matter may submit a written appeal to the Compliance Coordinator within 10 days of receiving 
the final finding.  Appeals shall be decided by the Appeal Decision Maker. 
 
The written appeal shall state the nature of the disagreement with the result of the investigation, 
the reasons support the appeal, and how the outcome would be changed by reconsideration of the 
determination.  The Appeal decision maker will consider all issues presented by the appealing 
complainant, respondent, or their parent/guardian and the relevant documentation.  
 
As to all appeals, the Organization will: 

1. Notify the other party in writing when an appeal is filed and implement appeal 
procedures equally for both parties; 

2. Ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal is not the same person as the decision-
maker(s) that reached the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal, the 
investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator; 
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3. Ensure that the decision-maker(s) for the appeal does not have a conflict of interest and is 
not biased; 

4. Give both parties a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a written statement in support 
of, or challenging, the outcome; 

5. Issue a written decision describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for the result; 
and  

6. Provide the written decision simultaneously to both parties. 
 
The Appeal Decision Maker will issue a written determination no later than fifteen (15) days after 
receipt of the appeal. 
 
Confidentiality 
 
The Organization shall keep confidential the identity of any complainant or individual who has 
made a report or complaint of sex discrimination or harassment, any respondent or individual who 
has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination or harassment, and any witness, except 
as may be permitted by law. 
 
Any information gathered during the investigation will only be shared with those who have a need-
to-know, except in limited circumstances, including but not limited to, when the Organization is 
require by law to report the information or when such disclosure is necessary to protect the health, 
safety, or well-being of members of the Organization community. 
 
Retaliation Prohibited 
 
The Organization shall not intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for 
the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or this policy, or because 
the individual has made a report or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under the policy. 
 
Retaliation or reprisal by any student or employee against complainants, witnesses, or any other 
individual who reports allegations of sex-based harassment, discrimination, and/or violence or 
provides information to assist in an investigation is strictly prohibited.  Individuals who believe 
they have been retaliated against in connection with such action should immediately report such 
conduct to the Compliance Coordinator.  Anyone who is found to have retaliated against a student 
or employee under this section will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion 
an/or termination of employment. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF HANDBOOK AND COMPLIANCE 
WITH HANDBOOK 

 

I hereby acknowledge that I have received a copy of the Employee Handbook (the 
“Handbook”) for Elite Academic Academy – Mountain Empire (the “Organization”), which 
specifically includes a policy on unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation and I will 
read all of its provisions. If I have any questions or if there is anything I do not understand I will 
ask my supervisor. 

I shall abide and comply with all the procedures, policies and rules contained in the 
Handbook and understand that failure to do so can result in discipline, including termination. I 
understand that by continuing in my employment. I am reaffirming my agreement to abide by then-
current Organization policies. 

I understand that the Organization retains the right and sole discretion to modify, delete, 
or add to any of the policies set forth in the Handbook at any time, with the exception of the 
policy on at-will employment, which may only be modified by a written agreement signed by the 
CEO of the Organization. 
 

I also understand and agree that nothing in the Handbook creates or is intended to create a 
promise or representation of continued employment and that my employment with the 
Organization is at-will and not for any specific period of time. This means that I am free to 
resign my employment with the Organization at any time, with or without cause, and with or 
without notice, and that the Organization has the right to terminate my employment at any time, 
with or without cause, and with or without notice. Employment at-will also means that the terms 
and conditions of my employment may be changed at any time, with or without cause and with 
or without notice, including but not limited to transfer, promotion, demotion, compensation, 
benefits, duties, work hours, and location of work. 

I further understand that I will continue to be an at-will employee at all times during my 
employment with the Organization regardless of my job position, status, compensation, or length 
of employment. The Organization’s discretionary use of any discipline, counseling, or warning 
does not in any way change my at-will employment status. 

I understand that the only way in which the Organization’s at-will policy can be amended 
or modified is by a written agreement signed by me and the CEO of the Organization. 

My signature certifies that I understand the foregoing regarding the Handbook and that 
the agreement on at-will status is the sole and entire agreement between the Organization and me 
concerning the duration of my employment, the terms of my employment and the circumstances 
under which my employment may be terminated.   

Unless another written agreement signed by the CEO of the Organization provides 
otherwise, it supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, and representations concerning my 
employment with the Organization both oral and written. 
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Employee Name:  
 
 
 
Employee Signature  Date Signed 
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Appendix A - MEAL & REST PERIOD ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The law requires that non-exempt employees working in excess of five (5) hours be 
provided a duty-free, uninterrupted unpaid meal period of at least thirty (30) minutes. The 
Organization permits its employees to take a duty-free, uninterrupted unpaid meal period of thirty 
(30) minutes each day. Accordingly, it is Organization policy that a meal break must be taken each 
day by employees working five (5) or more hours per shift, unless six (6) hours completes the shift 
and the non-exempt employee waives their meal break in writing. 

If a non-exempt employee’s workday exceeds ten (10) hours, then that employee will be 
provided with a second meal period of thirty (30) minutes. However, if the workday does not 
exceed twelve (12) hours, the second meal period may be waived if the employee and the 
Organization voluntarily agree, so long as the first meal period was not waived. 

Said meal breaks must be taken at a location separate from the employee’s desk or work 
area, and employees are not permitted to work during their meal break. Employees will be relieved 
of all duties during the meal period and are permitted to leave the Organization premises during 
their meal break. The schedule for meal periods will vary according to business hours and work 
schedules but the first meal period must begin by the end of the fifth hour of work, and if 
applicable, the second meal period must begin by the end of the tenth hour. Your supervisor will 
advise you of your scheduled meal break. Unless approved by your immediate supervisor, a meal 
break may only be taken at the employee’s regularly-scheduled meal break time. 
 

A meal break may not be skipped in order to accommodate a late arrival or early departure 
from an employee’s normal workday unless waived in writing and approved by the employee’s 
immediate supervisor. 
 

Rest breaks are provided at the rate of ten (10) consecutive minutes for each four (4) hour 
work period or major fraction thereof for non-exempt employees. No break is provided for 
employees working less than 3.5 hours. Those employees who work between 3.5 hours and six (6) 
hours are provided a ten (10) minute break. Those employees working between six (6) and 
(10) hours are provided two ten (10) minute breaks. The rest period should occur as near as possible 
to the middle of the work period. Upon request, reasonable accommodations, including privacy 
and increased break time, will be made to accommodate lactating employees. 

Non-exempt employees will be relieved of all duties during the rest break and are permitted 
to leave the Organization’s premises during their rest breaks. Rest breaks will be scheduled as 
close to the middle of each four-hour period work period (or major fraction thereof). Check with 
your manager for the appropriate time to take your rest break. 
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It is Organization policy that employees are required to take all meal and rest breaks as set 
forth above (unless you waive a meal period as set forth above). If you miss a meal or rest period 
(other than a waived meal period), you must report to your supervisor or the Human Resources 
Department that you missed the meal or rest period and whether you missed the meal or rest period 
due to employer needs. 

I hereby certify that I fully understand the rules regarding meals and rest periods and will 
comply fully with those rules. If I am denied a meal or rest period to which I am entitled or fail to 
take a meal or rest period as required by law or by my employer’s policies, I agree to notify the 
Human Resources Department within 24 hours so that the matter can be fully and carefully 
investigated and appropriate corrective action taken. 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE  DATE 

PRINT EMPLOYEE NAME   

SIGNATURE, EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVE  DATE 
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Appendix B - ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE POLICY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

I hereby acknowledge that I have read and agree to the Organization’s electronic 
signature policy designed to comply with California’s Uniform Electronic Transaction Act 
(UETA, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1633.1-1633.17) which policy reads as follows: 

I understand, agree and authorize all transactions relating to my potential employment or 
actual employment to be conducted by electronic means. 

This means that the Organization will rely upon my signature electronically for all 
electronic employment related documents or records signed by me in electronic format. 

I understand that my electronic signature is any electronic sound, symbol or process 
attached to or logically associated with a record executed by me or adopted by me with the intent 
to sign the record. 

The term electronic employment document or record means a contract or other record 
created, generated, sent, communicated, received or stored by electronic means. 
 

I hereby acknowledge that this authorization is voluntary on my part and may be relied 
upon by the Organization when determining whether I have received, understood and signed any 
and all employment related documents. 
 
 
EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE  DATE 

PRINT EMPLOYEE NAME   

SIGNATURE, EMPLOYER REPRESENTATIVE  DATE 
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‭FISCAL POLICIES‬

‭The Board of Directors for Elite Academic Academy has reviewed and adopted the following‬
‭policies to ensure that the school's funds are used to effectively support the school's mission and‬
‭to ensure that the funds are budgeted, accounted for, expended, and maintained in order to‬
‭maintain the fiscal stability of the school. The financial policies and procedures will implement all‬
‭applicable State and Federal regulations regarding expenditure of, and accounting for, public‬
‭funds. To provide an accurate and auditable record of all financial transactions, the school's‬
‭books, records, and accounts are maintained in conformity with generally accepted accounting‬
‭principles as required by the CDE, applicable to Charter Schools.‬

‭1.‬ ‭PURCHASES‬

‭a.‬ ‭Authorization of Expenditures:‬
‭i.‬ ‭All purchases of goods and services shall be consistent with the Board approved‬

‭budget. All proposed expenditures must be approved by the CEO (Chief‬
‭Executive Officer), who will review the proposed expenditure to determine‬
‭whether it is consistent with the Board adopted budget and sign the check‬
‭request and purchase order forms. Professional consulting services, in total‬
‭annual amounts greater than $10,000, will require Board approval/execution.‬

‭b.‬ ‭Contracts:‬
‭i.‬ ‭All professional consulting services require a board approved contract.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭Contracts for other goods and services, exceeding $10,000 on an annual basis,‬

‭shall be presented to the Board for approval.‬
‭iii.‬ ‭The CEO may make a finding to the Board for sole sourcing a contract,‬

‭exceeding $10,000; in this case, the Board may approve the contract‬
‭retroactively at the time of the contract execution. (The basis for such a finding‬
‭may include; time/urgency issues; the absence of competitors; high‬
‭service/quality for a particular contractor; etc.)‬

‭c.‬ ‭Commitments and Purchase Orders:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Purchase orders under $10,000 must receive final approval by one of the‬

‭following authorized positions: CEO or any board approved designee.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭Purchase Orders over $10,000, must be presented to the Board for approval and‬

‭approved by the CEO or board approved designee. The CEO may make a‬
‭finding to the Board for sole sourcing a purchase order, exceeding $10,000; in‬
‭this case, the Board may approve the contract retroactively, at the time of the‬
‭contract execution. (The basis for such a finding may include: time/urgency‬
‭issues; the absence of competitors; high service/quality for a particular‬
‭contractor; etc.)‬

‭d.‬ ‭Accounts Payable‬‭:‬
‭i.‬ ‭The school shall abide by all accounts payable policies and procedures set‬

‭forth separately.‬
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‭e.‬ ‭Credit Card Usage:‬
‭i.‬ ‭The use of credit cards shall be allowed for school purchases only in‬

‭instances where executing payment through the General Checking Account‬
‭is not practical.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭A single charge exceeding $10,000, not Board approved, will need to be‬
‭approved by the CEO.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭There shall be a maximum of ONE card issued to the CEO. Sub account‬
‭cards, which cannot function independent of the main card, will be issued for‬
‭use by Cabinet Level employees and are subject to board approval and CEO‬
‭oversight per individual transaction. Use by any other person not stated‬
‭herein is prohibited.‬

‭iv.‬ ‭Authorized credit card holders are responsible for submitting itemized‬
‭receipts, or other printed documentation from the vendor, for all transactions;‬
‭and providing sufficient reporting as to the necessity of the charge.‬

‭v.‬ ‭For any purchases that are charged without adequate supporting‬
‭documentation as provided above, the authorized user/card holder shall‬
‭explain the purchase and witnesses to the expense; and, if necessary, pay‬
‭the school the amount of such purchase(s).‬

‭vi.‬ ‭Credit card balances shall be paid in full each month unless a different‬
‭amount is pre-approved by CEO and/or Chief Financial Officer.‬

‭f.‬ ‭Debit Card Usage:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Unless otherwise specified by the Board of Directors and/or school management,‬

‭the use of school debit cards shall not be allowed for any school purchases.‬

‭g.‬ ‭Other Electronic Payments:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Board approved electronic methods (wire, ACH, transfer between bank‬

‭accounts, etc.) shall not be permitted for payment of any expenses or‬
‭reimbursements without express written consent of CEO.‬

‭h.‬ ‭Employee Reimbursements:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Business meals, travel expenses, or mileage shall be reimbursed using‬

‭standard applicable IRS guidelines. All reimbursements must receive prior‬
‭approval from their direct supervisor. Under no circumstances shall alcohol‬
‭be reimbursed.‬

‭i.‬ ‭Petty Cash - Purpose and Usage:‬
‭i.‬ ‭All efforts to eliminate usage of petty cash shall be taken. The following‬

‭protocols shall only be implemented for contingency purposes.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭The purpose of the Petty Cash Checking Account is for payment of incidental‬

‭expenses when there is insufficient time for processing through the General‬
‭Checking Account. Petty cash shall not be used for teacher reimbursements,‬
‭employee expense reimbursements, or independent contractor payments.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭The CEO and Cabinet shall have access to petty cash not to exceed $2,000.‬
‭Such funds shall be used at the discretion of the CEO, subject to Board‬
‭oversight and consistent with the approved budget and school rules and‬
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‭regulations. Use of the petty cash shall require original receipts for all‬
‭purchases.‬

‭iv.‬ ‭All cash must be submitted to the Business Office. The CEO, or an‬
‭authorized administrator, shall keep supporting documentation when cash is‬
‭received indicating the amount(s). Cash must be stored in a safe with access‬
‭limited to an authorized administrator and CEO. An authorized administrator‬
‭or the CEO will deposit the cash at the bank at minimum once per week if the‬
‭amount exceeds $500. For amounts below $500, the designated school‬
‭personnel will wait until the amount reaches $500 before making a bank‬
‭deposit. Replenishment and/or deposit of the Petty Cash Checking Account‬
‭shall be processed through the General Checking Account under the normal‬
‭accounts payable process.‬

‭j.‬ ‭Personal Use of School Funds:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Use of School funds for personal use is prohibited. Violation of this policy‬

‭shall result in discipline up to and including dismissal.‬

‭2.‬ ‭BANKING‬

‭a.‬ ‭General Checking Account‬
‭i.‬ ‭The Board shall authorize the establishment of commercial bank accounts for‬

‭the purposes of School operations. Funds will be deposited in‬
‭non-speculative accounts, including federally-insured savings or checking‬
‭accounts, or invested in non -speculative federally-backed instruments, or‬
‭standard money market accounts.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭The General Checking Account shall be the primary account for School‬
‭needs. Authorized signatories to this account shall be the CEO and any‬
‭board approved designees. Checks for amounts greater than $10,000, and‬
‭checks payable to an authorized signer, must be approved/signed by two‬
‭authorized signatories.‬

‭b.‬ ‭Stripe Account‬
‭i.‬ ‭The Stripe specific checking account shall be used for collection of donations‬

‭and/or fees related to school fundraisers, events and activities.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭As funds become available, all funds in excess of $10,000 shall be removed‬

‭from this account and deposited into the General Checking Account.‬
‭iii.‬ ‭Every transaction which occurs between purchasers and Elite staff, or‬

‭between Stripe balances and Elite’s Stripe checking account, includes a‬
‭digital receipt. These receipts are subject to monthly business department‬
‭audit and CEO oversight in order to ensure accuracy and verification of total‬
‭account balances.‬

‭iv.‬ ‭All receipts shall be recorded to Elite’s accounting records on at least a‬
‭monthly basis. Transfers between Stripe balances and Elite’s Stripe checking‬
‭account shall be recorded as a journal entry that includes each individual‬
‭transaction intrinsic to Stripe activity which makes up the total of the transfer.‬
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‭v.‬ ‭Access to the Stripe specific checking account shall be restricted to board‬
‭approved signers.‬

‭c.‬ ‭Deposits of Receipts‬
‭i.‬ ‭The school will deposit all funds received as soon as practical upon receipt.‬

‭An authorized administrator will open all mail daily, immediately sort all‬
‭checks, and forward such to the CEO or designee. The CEO or designee will‬
‭immediately endorse the checks to the appropriate school account, and‬
‭prepare appropriate deposits as soon as practical, ideally the same day, and‬
‭in no case later than three working days.‬

‭3.‬ ‭ACCOUNTING‬

‭a.‬ ‭Accounting Methods:‬
‭i.‬ ‭All bookkeeping tasks and practices shall be conducted in accordance with‬

‭Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP) and the most current‬
‭revision of the California Department of Education’s School Accounting‬
‭Manual (CSAM).‬

‭ii.‬ ‭The school shall utilize the accrual basis of accounting‬‭.‬

‭b.‬ ‭Journal Entry Approval:‬
‭i.‬ ‭All entries into the General Ledger shall be reviewed and approved by the‬

‭CEO in writing. All revisions of prior approved journal entries are subject to‬
‭CEO approval as well, in writing. Review and approval of the General Ledger‬
‭in its totality by the CEO will be conducted during the first and second interim‬
‭submission process, and the budget submission/end year reconciliation‬
‭period.‬

‭c.‬ ‭Wage/Benefit Allocation:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Wages and benefits will be properly allocated between appropriate employee‬

‭object codes three times during the fiscal year. This process will be‬
‭conducted during First Interim, Second Interim, and during the budget‬
‭creation process/year end closing of the books. This allocation will be‬
‭calculated as a function of FTE and/or case load, which shall be dependent‬
‭upon each individual employee’s contractual duties.‬

‭d.‬ ‭Administrative Oversight:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Accounts Payable Aging Reports, Bank Reconciliations and Credit Card‬

‭Reconciliations will be conducted monthly. Internal General Ledger audits‬
‭shall be conducted by the business department, with oversight by the CEO or‬
‭designees, in order to ensure accuracy of accounting practices and alignment‬
‭with CDE fiscal performance standards.‬
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‭4.‬ ‭TRAVEL POLICIES‬

‭a.‬ ‭Employee Mileage Reimbursement:‬
‭i.‬ ‭Unless they receive a mileage stipend as part of their regular pay, all‬

‭employees are reimbursed at the standard mileage rate per mile, as‬
‭determined by the Internal Revenue Service, for use of their own vehicle for‬
‭preapproved business-related travel. In addition, parking fees and tolls paid‬
‭are reimbursable if supported by receipts.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭All employees requesting such mileage reimbursement are required to furnish‬
‭an Expense Report containing the destination of each trip, its purpose and‬
‭the miles driven, parking fees and tolls, within one month after the travel date,‬
‭supported by receipts, if applicable.‬

‭5.‬ ‭FRAUD PREVENTION‬

‭a.‬ ‭Policy Statement‬
‭Elite Academic Academy acknowledges the potential risks associated with fraud,‬
‭including misappropriation of funds, misrepresentation of financial information, and‬
‭other activities meant to obfuscate fiscal malfeasance. It is the school's policy to‬
‭maintain a robust system of internal controls and procedures to prevent, detect, and‬
‭respond to fraudulent activities promptly.‬

‭b.‬ ‭Board of Directors Responsibilities‬
‭i.‬ ‭The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the school's financial‬

‭integrity and ensuring that appropriate fraud prevention measures are in‬
‭place.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭The Board should periodically review and approve fraud prevention policies‬
‭and procedures.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭The Board will review independent, annual audits for indicators of fraud risk,‬
‭and shall direct the Business Office to conduct periodic reviews of bank‬
‭account reconciliations and other bookkeeping activities, in order to ensure‬
‭balances are accurate and reflect best practices as set in this handbook for‬
‭purchasing behavior.‬

‭c.‬ ‭School Administration Responsibilities‬
‭i.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy administration is responsible for implementing and‬

‭enforcing fraud prevention policies and procedures.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭The CEO shall designate the CFO to conduct annual interviews with‬

‭Directors and Chiefs, with the intent of highlighting any potential risks or‬
‭vectors for fraud. This annual interview process shall be summarized and‬
‭reported to the Board for their review.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy leadership shall ensure that all staff members are‬
‭aware of their role in preventing and reporting fraud.‬
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‭d.‬ ‭Financial Controls‬
‭i.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy, in partnership with the Business Office, shall‬

‭establish and maintain sound financial controls, including segregation of‬
‭duties, to prevent unauthorized access to financial assets and records.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭All financial transactions shall require proper documentation and‬
‭authorization.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭As per section 3.d., periodic reconciliations of financial records to detect‬
‭discrepancies shall be conducted.‬

‭e.‬ ‭Procurement Controls‬
‭i.‬ ‭A competitive bidding process will be utilized for procurement to ensure‬

‭transparency and prevent fraud in purchasing.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy leadership shall conduct annual reviews of vendor‬

‭contracts and invoices to verify accuracy, through the standard fiscal‬
‭reconciliation process.‬

‭f.‬ ‭Cash Handling‬
‭i.‬ ‭As stated in section 1.i., all efforts to eliminate usage of cash shall be taken.‬

‭However, if cash is to be utilized in the case of a necessary contingency,‬
‭access shall be limited to $2,000, with all transactions requiring CEO review‬
‭and approval.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭Any cash transactions will require two-person verification.‬
‭iii.‬ ‭All cash must be submitted to the Business Office. The CEO, or an‬

‭authorized administrator, shall keep supporting documentation when cash is‬
‭received indicating the amount‬

‭iv.‬ ‭An authorized administrator or the CEO will deposit the cash at the bank at‬
‭minimum once per week if the amount exceeds $500. For amounts below‬
‭$500, the designated school personnel will wait until the amount reaches‬
‭$500 before making a bank deposit.‬

‭g.‬ ‭Reporting and Whistleblower Protection‬
‭i.‬ ‭An email address and phone number for the board will be provided for‬

‭employees, students, and other stakeholders to report suspected fraudulent‬
‭activities.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy policy regarding whistleblowers will be to provide‬
‭full protection from retaliation and provide clear and regularly reviewed‬
‭guidelines for reporting fraud.‬

‭h.‬ ‭Fraud Investigations‬
‭i.‬ ‭The CEO shall designate individuals from an external party to conduct fraud‬

‭investigations when necessary.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭The CEO or designated party shall document all investigations, evidence and‬

‭actions taken, implementing appropriate legal action when fraud is confirmed.‬
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‭i.‬ ‭Training and Awareness‬
‭i.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy will provide ongoing training to staff members on‬

‭fraud prevention, detection, and reporting.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy will promote a culture of ethics, integrity, and‬

‭transparency within the Elite Academic Academy community.‬

‭j.‬ ‭Review and Evaluation‬
‭i.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy Administration will regularly review and update‬

‭these procedures to adapt to changing risks and regulations, through‬
‭consistent engagement with external, contracted auditors and they're‬
‭in-house fraud prevention experts.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭Administration, in concert with the Business Office, will conduct quarterly‬
‭internal audits and assessments to evaluate the effectiveness of fraud‬
‭prevention measures. These internal audits will primarily follow the‬
‭procedures set in place for quarterly financial reviews.‬

‭k.‬ ‭Compliance with Applicable Laws‬
‭i.‬ ‭Elite Academic Academy will continue to ensure that all fraud prevention‬

‭efforts comply with relevant state and federal laws and regulations, through‬
‭continual engagement with contracted auditors and legal advisors.‬

‭6.‬ ‭OTHER PRACTICES‬

‭a.‬ ‭Budget Adoption:‬
‭i.‬ ‭A balanced budget shall be adopted by the Board of Directors no later than June‬

‭30 prior to the start of each new fiscal year, or earlier if required by the‬
‭authorizing entity. During the course of the year, the Board may adopt an‬
‭amended budget as expenses and revenue projections change.‬

‭b.‬ ‭Audit:‬
‭i.‬ ‭An annual audit, by an outside firm, shall be performed each year on the close of‬

‭the prior year’s books. The audit shall be performed in advance of the December‬
‭15th statutory audit deadline. The audit shall include, but not be limited to:‬

‭1.‬ ‭an audit of the accuracy of the school’s financial statements;‬
‭2.‬ ‭an audit of the school’s attendance accounting and revenue claims‬

‭practices;‬
‭3.‬ ‭an audit of the school’s attendance accounting and revenue claims;‬
‭4.‬ ‭an audit of the school’s internal controls practices.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭At the conclusion of the audit, the CEO will present the report to the board of‬
‭finding and recommendations.‬
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‭c.‬ ‭Board Meetings:‬
‭i.‬ ‭The Board shall review financial statements (cash flow forecasts, and profit and‬

‭loss) at periodic Board meetings. The Board shall also review and approve the‬
‭monthly check registers from the General Checking, Petty Cash, and Stripe‬
‭Accounts.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭Conflict of Interest:‬
‭1.‬ ‭Any Board member with a financial interest in a matter presented to the‬

‭Board shall fully disclose such interest prior to Board discussion on the‬
‭issue, and shall recuse themselves from the discussion and voting on the‬
‭matter. The Board shall develop a more comprehensive policy on conflict‬
‭of interest, hiring of relatives, and compliance with Government Code‬
‭1090 and the Fair Political Practices Act.‬

‭d.‬ ‭Payroll:‬
‭i.‬ ‭New Employees: Requests for new employees shall be consistent with approved‬

‭annual personnel budget. New hires are approved by the CEO or designee.‬
‭ii.‬ ‭New employees shall complete an application for employment and all necessary‬

‭paperwork for payroll. New employees shall also be fingerprinted and TB tested‬
‭before starting work.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭Employees sick and vacation time is outlined in the employee handbook.‬
‭iv.‬ ‭Timekeeping (hourly staff) is outlined in the employee handbook.‬

‭e.‬ ‭Independent Contractors:‬
‭i.‬ ‭The school shall only engage with Independent Contractors if all the following‬

‭practices are followed:‬
‭1.‬ ‭The expense is within the approved budget or separately approved by‬

‭the board;‬
‭2.‬ ‭The contractor provides proof of insurance;‬
‭3.‬ ‭IRS rules/California Education Code are followed regarding classification‬

‭of staff as contractors vs. employees; and‬
‭4.‬ ‭The work is done under contract.‬

‭f.‬ ‭Capitalization and Depreciation:‬
‭i.‬ ‭The school will capitalize and depreciate all assets costing $5,000 or more. All‬

‭other assets are charged to expense in the year incurred. Capitalized assets are‬
‭recorded at cost and depreciated under the straight-line method over their‬
‭estimated useful lives which range from:‬

‭1.‬ ‭Leasehold improvement -Lease term or 5 years, whichever is shorter.‬
‭2.‬ ‭Equipment-3 years.‬
‭3.‬ ‭Furniture- 5 years.‬

‭ii.‬ ‭Repair and maintenance costs, which do not extend the useful lives of the‬
‭assets, are charged to expense. The cost of assets sold or retired and related‬
‭amounts of accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the asset accounts,‬
‭and any resulting gain or loss is included in the earnings in the year.‬

‭iii.‬ ‭Disposal of Surplus Property and Donations:‬
‭1.‬ ‭Surplus property shall mean property that is no longer in use, is damaged‬

‭beyond repair, or that the school feels will have no future value to the‬
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‭school's program; and that is declared to be surplus property by the‬
‭Board. If the school wishes to dispose of equipment or other surplus‬
‭property, the Board shall declare the property surplus and shall direct the‬
‭staff on the actual means of disposal of the property, such as sale,‬
‭donation, or destruction and disposal.‬

‭2.‬ ‭If the school wishes to sell equipment or other surplus property, the Board‬
‭shall direct the staff by giving specific guidance regarding the manner in‬
‭which such property is to be sold.‬

‭3.‬ ‭If the school wishes to donate equipment or other surplus property, the‬
‭Board shall declare the property surplus and authorize the donation.‬
‭Requirements for potential donee organizations shall include:‬

‭a.‬ ‭the donee organization is fully independent of the school, with‬
‭none of the school's Board members are key personnel involved‬
‭in the donee organization; and‬

‭b.‬ ‭the donee organization shall be a non-profit or government entity‬
‭related to education.‬

‭4.‬ ‭In addition, the school shall secure a receipt from the donee organization‬
‭for the donated property, and shall remove the asset from the school's‬
‭books and record the donation as required by state and federal audit‬
‭guidelines.‬

‭The Elite Academic Academy Board of Directors approves the attached FINANCIAL POLICIES‬

‭and PROCEDURES.‬

‭President __________________________________‬ ‭Date: 2/01/2024‬

‭Secretary/Treasurer _________________________‬ ‭Date: 2/01/2024‬

‭CEO _____________________________________‬ ‭Date: 2/01/2024‬
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‭APPENDIX A‬

‭Certification of Signatures‬
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‭APPENDIX B‬

‭General Ledger Accounts‬

‭1000‬ ‭UNALLOCATED WAGES‬
‭1100‬ ‭Teachers‬
‭1145‬ ‭Special Education Teachers‬
‭1200‬ ‭Pupil Support & Counselors‬
‭1300‬ ‭Certificated Supervisors & Administrators‬
‭1900‬ ‭Other Certificated‬
‭2100‬ ‭Non-certificated Instructional Aides'‬
‭2200‬ ‭Non-certificated Pupil Support & Counselors‬
‭2300‬ ‭Non-certificated Supervisors' and Administrators'‬
‭2400‬ ‭Clerical and Office‬
‭2900‬ ‭Other Non-certificated‬
‭3101‬ ‭STRS‬
‭3202‬ ‭Social Security‬
‭3301‬ ‭Medicare‬
‭3401‬ ‭Health Insurance‬
‭3501‬ ‭SUI/ETT‬
‭3601‬ ‭Workers Compensation‬
‭3901‬ ‭Other Employee Benefits‬
‭4100‬ ‭Approved Core Curriculum, Teacher Manuals & Textbooks‬
‭4150‬ ‭Core Teaching/Student Supplies‬
‭4200‬ ‭Library Books & Other Reference Materials‬
‭4300‬ ‭Materials & Supplies - Office‬
‭4340‬ ‭Parent & Staff meeting food & supplies‬
‭4410‬ ‭Technology Equipment - Staff‬
‭4420‬ ‭Technology Equipment - Students‬
‭5201‬ ‭Board Stipends - Attendance‬
‭5210‬ ‭Registration Fees - conferences‬
‭5212‬ ‭Professional Development‬
‭5215‬ ‭Mileage, Parking & Tolls‬
‭5220‬ ‭Travel, Lodging & Meals‬
‭5300‬ ‭Dues & Memberships‬
‭5400‬ ‭General Liability Insurance‬
‭5505‬ ‭Janitorial Services‬
‭5510‬ ‭Utilities - Gas/Electric/Water‬
‭5511‬ ‭Fire, Alarm & Pest control‬
‭5605‬ ‭Copier Lease, Service, Toner & Repair‬
‭5611‬ ‭Rent - Facilities Lease‬
‭5615‬ ‭Repairs & Minor Site Improvements‬
‭5801‬ ‭Educational Services‬
‭5803‬ ‭Accounting Fees / Audit‬
‭5804‬ ‭County STRS Fees‬
‭5805‬ ‭District Oversight Fees‬
‭5806‬ ‭Special Education Oversight Fees‬
‭5807‬ ‭Accreditation‬
‭5809‬ ‭Banking Fees‬
‭5812‬ ‭Business Services‬
‭5815‬ ‭Back Office Fees‬
‭5830‬ ‭Physical Examination - employees‬
‭5836‬ ‭Fingerprinting‬
‭5845‬ ‭Legal Fees‬
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‭5851‬ ‭Marketing‬
‭5855‬ ‭Staff Recruiting‬
‭5857‬ ‭Payroll Processing Expenses‬
‭5878‬ ‭Student Assessments‬
‭5880‬ ‭Special Education Services‬
‭5886‬ ‭Technology Services & Software - Business‬
‭5887‬ ‭Technology Services & Software - Educational‬
‭5899‬ ‭Misc. Operating Expense‬
‭5910‬ ‭Phone / Internet / Website Fees‬
‭5914‬ ‭Postage & Delivery - Business‬
‭5915‬ ‭Postage & Delivery - Educational‬
‭6900‬ ‭Depreciation Expense‬
‭6901‬ ‭Exchange Rate Gain/Loss‬
‭7438‬ ‭Interest‬
‭8011‬ ‭State Aid‬
‭8012‬ ‭EPA‬
‭8019‬ ‭PY Adjustments‬
‭8096‬ ‭In Lieu Property Taxes‬
‭8181‬ ‭Federal:Special Ed‬
‭8290‬ ‭Federal:PCSGP‬
‭8291‬ ‭Title I Revenue‬
‭8292‬ ‭Title II Revenue‬
‭8297‬ ‭Coronavirus Relief‬
‭8299‬ ‭Other Federal Revenue‬
‭8381‬ ‭Special Ed - State‬
‭8550‬ ‭K-12 Mandate Block Grant‬
‭8551‬ ‭K-12 Mandate - One Time Outstanding Claims‬
‭8560‬ ‭Lottery NonProp 20 (Unrestricted)‬
‭8561‬ ‭Lottery Prop 20 (Restricted)‬
‭8570‬ ‭GF-Learning Loss Mitigation Funding‬
‭8590‬ ‭All Other State Revenue‬
‭8660‬ ‭Interest Earned‬
‭8690‬ ‭Donations‬
‭8695‬ ‭Fundraising Events‬
‭8699‬ ‭Misc. Revenue‬
‭9101‬ ‭Bill.com AP Clearing - Lucerne‬
‭9102‬ ‭Bill.com AP Clearing - Mountain‬
‭9103‬ ‭Bill.com AP Clearing - Adult‬
‭9104‬ ‭Bill.com AR Clearing - Lucerne‬
‭9105‬ ‭Bill.com AR Clearing - Mountain‬
‭9106‬ ‭Bill.com AR Clearing - Adult‬
‭9110‬ ‭Cash in County Treasury - San Diego‬
‭9121‬ ‭Checking - Lucerne‬
‭9122‬ ‭Checking - Mountain‬
‭9123‬ ‭Checking - Adult‬
‭9131‬ ‭Checking - Fieldtrips- Lucerne‬
‭9199‬ ‭Undeposited Funds‬
‭9200‬ ‭Accounts Receivable‬
‭9201‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - LCFF‬
‭9202‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - ILPT‬
‭9203‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - SPED‬
‭9204‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - Lottery‬
‭9205‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - Federal‬
‭9210‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - CTE Grant‬
‭9215‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - ELO Grant‬
‭9222‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - ESSER 2‬
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‭9223‬ ‭Accounts Receivable - ESSER 3‬
‭9240‬ ‭Interest Receivable‬
‭9251‬ ‭Due from (to) Lucerne‬
‭9252‬ ‭Due from (to) Mountain‬
‭9253‬ ‭Due from (to) Adult Workforce‬
‭9300‬ ‭Employee Advance‬
‭9330‬ ‭Prepaid Rent‬
‭9335‬ ‭Prepaid Expense‬
‭9340‬ ‭Security Deposit - Rent‬
‭9350‬ ‭Security Deposit - Utilities‬
‭9500‬ ‭Accounts Payable‬
‭9501‬ ‭A/P Manual‬
‭9510‬ ‭Accrued Payroll‬
‭9512‬ ‭Garnishment Payable‬
‭9515‬ ‭Accrued Vacation‬
‭9520‬ ‭Deferred Rent‬
‭9590‬ ‭Due to Grantor Governments‬
‭9592‬ ‭STRS Payable‬
‭9597‬ ‭CC - AFWI‬
‭9598‬ ‭CC - Mountain‬
‭9599‬ ‭CC - Lucerne‬
‭9630‬ ‭Other Current Liabilities‬
‭9640‬ ‭Charter School Revolving Loan (S/T)‬
‭9641‬ ‭Primavera Loan (S/T)‬
‭9642‬ ‭Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan‬
‭9645‬ ‭Charter School Capital Bridge Loan‬
‭9646‬ ‭CAM Term Loan‬
‭9650‬ ‭Unearned Revenue‬
‭9660‬ ‭Charter School Revolving Loan (LT)‬
‭9661‬ ‭Primavera Loan (L/T)‬
‭9790‬ ‭Net Assets‬
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‭APPENDIX C‬

‭Segregation of Duties Matrix‬

‭A‬ ‭– Authorization function‬
‭R‬ ‭– Recordkeeping function‬
‭REC‬ ‭– Reconciliation function‬
‭C‬ ‭– Custody function‬

‭Listing of Key Employees‬
‭First & Last Name‬ ‭Title‬

‭A‬ ‭Meghan Freeman‬ ‭CEO‬
‭B‬ ‭Teresa Schaffer‬ ‭Director of Community Relations‬
‭C‬ ‭Adam Woodard‬ ‭Director of Finance - Prime Educational Solutions‬
‭D‬ ‭Bryan Adams ‬ ‭Contracted Fiscal Support‬
‭E‬ ‭Tracy Hasper‬ ‭Chief Personnel Officer - Prime Educational Solutions‬
‭F‬ ‭Ashlea‬ ‭Kirkland‬

‭Haynes‬
‭Chief Student Development Officer‬

‭G‬ ‭Dr. Laura Spencer‬ ‭Chief Academic Innovation Officer‬
‭H‬ ‭Evan Jorgensen‬ ‭Director of Homeschool‬
‭I‬ ‭Scott Michaelson‬ ‭Director of Virtual‬
‭J‬ ‭Monique Waithe‬ ‭Director of Flex‬

‭Cash Receipts & Donations‬
‭Function‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭J‬ ‭Comments‬

‭NOTE:‬‭Cash Receipts include cash, check and‬
‭credit card receipts.  Please indicate in the‬
‭comments section if any of these are not applicable.‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Opens mail‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Receives from‬

‭public/walk-in‬
‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Prepares list of receipts‬
‭(receipt log)‬

‭No cash,‬
‭checks are‬
‭deposited‬

‭immediately‬
‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Prepare deposit‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Post receipt to receivable‬

‭subsidiary ledger‬
‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Transports deposit to bank‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭We are‬
‭working‬

‭towards no‬
‭checks of any‬

‭kind.‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Determines general ledger‬

‭account‬
‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭15‬



‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Monitors daily cash report‬
‭or Cash in County‬
‭postings‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Compares receipt log with‬
‭bank deposits‬

‭N/A - we do‬
‭not maintain‬

‭cash logs‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Maintains cash receipts‬

‭journals‬
‭We do not‬
‭maintain a‬

‭cash receipts‬
‭journal‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Compares bank deposits‬
‭with general ledger‬
‭posting‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Posts receipt to General‬
‭Ledger‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭All Journal‬
‭entries are‬

‭approved by‬
‭the CEO‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reviews general ledger‬
‭and cash receipt‬
‭information/documentatio‬
‭n periodically for‬
‭reasonableness,‬
‭completeness and‬
‭appropriateness.‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Assures compliance with‬
‭donor restrictions and/or ‬

‭compliance with grant‬
‭agreement.‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Determine the allowance‬
‭for doubtful accounts‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Post journal entries to‬
‭update the allowance‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Write off balances in the‬
‭general ledger‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Add a donor to the donor‬
‭database‬

‭N/A (No‬
‭donors)‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Add/delete/edit payments‬
‭in the donor database‬

‭N/A (No‬
‭donors)‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Write off balances in the‬
‭donor database‬

‭N/A (No‬
‭donors)‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reconcile the donor‬
‭database to the general‬
‭ledger‬

‭N/A (No‬
‭donors)‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Review the reconciliation‬
‭of the donor data base to‬
‭the general ledger‬

‭N/A (No‬
‭donors)‬
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‭Cash Disbursement Function: ‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭Comments‬
‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Access to blank check‬

‭stock‬
‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭All checks‬

‭must be‬
‭approved by‬
‭the CEO Prior‬
‭to printing. ‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves disbursement‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭We have‬
‭formal‬
‭approval and‬
‭checks and‬
‭balances for‬
‭all‬
‭disbursement. ‬
‭Large‬
‭purchases‬
‭must be‬
‭approved by‬
‭the CEO‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Prepares checks‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭For manual‬
‭checks only‬
‭(Bill.com‬
‭generates‬
‭most checks)‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Signs checks‬ ‭X‬ ‭For manual‬
‭checks only‬
‭(Bill.com‬
‭generates‬
‭most checks)‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Counter signs checks‬ ‭X‬ ‭For manual‬
‭checks only‬
‭(Bill.com‬
‭generates‬
‭most checks)‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Has access to authorized‬
‭signature stamp‬

‭X‬ ‭N/A (no‬
‭stamps)‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Prepares checks for‬
‭mailing/mail checks‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭For manual‬
‭checks only‬
‭(Bill.com‬
‭generates‬
‭most checks)‬
‭Must be‬
‭approved by‬
‭the CEO.‬
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‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Posts disbursement to‬
‭general ledger‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭Using‬
‭Bill.com, but‬
‭checked by‬
‭Adam‬
‭Woodard and‬
‭Teresa‬
‭Schaffer. ‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Change on-line master‬
‭files for accounts payable‬
‭or vendors‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭Done within‬
‭Bill.com,‬
‭initiated by‬
‭Adam‬
‭Woodard‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles vendor‬
‭statements to accounts‬
‭payable subsidiary records‬

‭We do not‬
‭issue vendor‬
‭statements‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles accounts‬
‭payable subsidiary records‬
‭to general ledger account‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Makes transfers‬ ‭X‬
‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reviews bank transfers‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Receives, opens, and scans‬

‭bank statement contents‬
‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭Online only‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reviews canceled check‬
‭endorsements‬

‭N/A‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles bank accounts‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reviews bank‬

‭reconciliation‬
‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reviews general ledger‬
‭and cash clearing‬
‭information/documentatio‬
‭n periodically for‬
‭reasonableness‬
‭completeness and‬
‭appropriateness ‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Capital Expenditures: ‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭Comment‬
‭s‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Initiate a capital expenditure ‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves a capital‬

‭expenditure‬
‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Initiate a capital asset‬
‭disposal‬

‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Record capital expenditures‬
‭in the general ledger or other‬
‭tracking system‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
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‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Obtains competitive quotes or‬
‭bids‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Review depreciation‬
‭calculations‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Review proper coding of‬
‭purchases as capital, or other‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Purchasing & Receiving ‬
‭Functions:‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭J‬ ‭Comments‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Access to blank Purchase‬
‭Order(PO) stock‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭N/A so far‬
‭(using‬
‭OPS)‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Controls Requisition‬
‭numbers‬

‭N/A -‬
‭requisition‬
‭s not used‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Controls Purchase Order‬
‭numbers‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Generated‬
‭through‬

‭OPS‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Maintains PO log or‬

‭equivalent‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭OPS‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Creates requisitions‬ ‭N/A -‬
‭requisition‬
‭s not used‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves purchase‬
‭requisition‬

‭N/A -‬
‭requisition‬
‭s not used‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Determines general ledger‬
‭account number‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Compares potential‬
‭expenditure to budget‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Issues purchase order‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭OPS‬
‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves purchase orders‬

‭(other than services)‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves purchase of‬
‭services‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Orders/buys the requested‬
‭goods/services‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Receives item‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭In many‬
‭cases the‬
‭teachers‬
‭receive‬
‭items‬
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‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Issues/signs receiving‬
‭documents‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Often‬
‭teachers as‬

‭well‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Matches invoices to‬

‭supporting documents‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reviews invoices for‬
‭accuracy‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves invoices for‬
‭payment‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles/Monitors‬
‭unmatched P.O.’s to PO‬
‭listing‬

‭X‬

‭Rec‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Reviews general ledger‬
‭and purchasing‬
‭documents/information‬
‭periodically for‬
‭reasonableness,‬
‭completeness and‬
‭appropriateness‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Payroll  Functions: ‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭J‬ ‭Comments‬
‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Hires new employee‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭By CEO‬

‭direction‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Maintains personnel files‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Creates employee in the‬

‭computer system‬ ‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Authorizes salary and‬
‭salary changes‬

‭X‬

‭In‬
‭alignmen‬

‭t with‬
‭board‬

‭approved‬
‭salary‬

‭schedules‬
‭.‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Changes rate of pay in the‬
‭computer system‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭These‬
‭changes‬
‭will only‬
‭go into‬
‭effect‬

‭after the‬
‭CEO‬

‭Approves‬
‭them in‬

‭the‬
‭Paycom‬
‭system. ‬
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‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Terminates employees‬
‭pay‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves time sheet‬
‭cards, etc.‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Inputs time to be paid into‬
‭computer‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Staff‬
‭primarily‬

‭inputs‬
‭time,‬

‭director‬
‭superviso‬

‭r‬
‭approves,‬

‭final‬
‭approval‬
‭by Teresa‬

‭and‬
‭Meghan‬
‭before‬

‭payroll. ‬
‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves payroll input‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Compares time entry to‬
‭output reports‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Prepares payroll‬
‭journal/checks‬

‭N/A -‬
‭outsource‬

‭d to‬
‭Paycom‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Signs payroll checks‬ ‭N/A -‬
‭outsource‬

‭d to‬
‭Paycom‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Distributes checks‬ ‭N/A -‬
‭outsource‬

‭d to‬
‭Paycom‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Maintains custody of‬
‭unclaimed wages‬

‭N/A‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Determines benefits for‬
‭employee‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Upon‬
‭board‬

‭approval‬
‭on‬

‭benefit‬
‭offerings.‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Adds employee to benefit‬
‭vendor record/invoice ‬ ‭X‬

‭Must be‬
‭board‬

‭approved‬
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‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Terminates benefits for‬
‭employee‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles bank balances‬
‭to the general ledger‬
‭account (if different for‬
‭payroll accounts)‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles employee‬
‭payroll records to the‬
‭control account/ master‬
‭payroll list‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reviews general ledger‬
‭and payroll and benefits‬
‭information/documentatio‬
‭n periodically for‬
‭reasonableness,‬
‭completeness and‬
‭appropriateness‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Journal Entry Functions:‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭Comment‬
‭s‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Initiates journal entries‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Prepares journal entries‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Approves journal entries‬ ‭X‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Inputs journal entries‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Files journal entry back-up‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Review appropriateness of‬
‭journal entries‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reviews general ledger and‬
‭journal entry‬
‭information/documentation‬
‭periodically for reasonableness,‬
‭completeness and‬
‭appropriateness.‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Financing Account Functions‬ ‭A‬ ‭B‬ ‭C‬ ‭D‬ ‭E‬ ‭F‬ ‭G‬ ‭H‬ ‭I‬ ‭Comment‬
‭s‬

‭A‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Authorize financing‬
‭transactions ‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Access online financing‬
‭accounts‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭C‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Issue a check from a‬
‭financing account‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Record financing transactions‬
‭into the general ledger‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬
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‭R‬ ‭1.‬ ‭Change computer master files‬
‭affecting financing‬
‭information‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭Re‬
‭c‬

‭1.‬ ‭Reconciles financing‬
‭statements to the general‬
‭ledger ‬

‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬ ‭X‬

‭23‬
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MUTUAL AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE DISPUTES 

 
The parties to this Mutual Agreement to Arbitrate Disputes (the “Agreement”) wish to resolve, fairly and 
efficiently, any dispute which may arise between them and mutually agree as follows: 
 
In consideration of the undersigned employee’s (“Employee”) employment with Elite Academic Academy 
(the “Company”) and the mutual promises contained below, Employee and his/her heirs, executors and/or 
assigns (collectively, the “Employee”) and the Company, including any of its current and former owners, 
managers, directors, officers, shareholders, employees, agents, predecessors, successors, representatives, 
affiliated or related entities (“Company Parties,” who are intended third party beneficiaries of this Agreement) 
(collectively, the “Parties”, or each individually, “Party”) both knowingly and voluntarily agree that binding 
arbitration before a single, neutral arbitrator shall be the exclusive remedy for any and all disputes or claims 
that have existed in the past, currently exist, and/or may arise between them in the future.  
 

A) Covered Claims.  This Agreement broadly covers all claims between the Parties (subject to Section D below) 
including, but not limited to, claims for: (a) misclassification, wages, meal period and/or rest break 
premiums, penalties, including, without limitation, wage statement, late payment, civil and/or waiting time 
penalties, paid time off, expenses, benefits and/or other compensation; (b) breach of contract; (c) wrongful 
termination; (d) unfair competition and/or misappropriation of trade secrets; (e) discrimination and/or 
harassment, subject to Section D; (f) retaliation; and (g) any other claims arising out of the Parties’ 
employment relationship (including application for employment) or separation of the employment 
relationship, or for violation of any federal, state, local, or other government law, statute, regulation, rule, or 
ordinance including, without limitation, the California Labor Code, the applicable Industrial Welfare 
Commission Wage Order, California Business and Professions Code, the Fair Labor Standards Act, the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the California Family Rights Act, the Family Medical Leave 
Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination 
in Employment Act, and the Fair Credit Reporting Act (collectively, “Covered Claims”). 

 
B) Class, Collective, and Multi-Party Action Waiver (“Waiver”). Covered Claims must be arbitrated on 
an individual basis only. No arbitrator has authority to join or consolidate claims or to proceed with 
arbitration on a class, collective, or multi-party basis, including under California’s Private Attorneys General 
Act of 2004 (“PAGA”) (to the extent Employee is seeking to represent others).  Any disputes concerning the 
applicability or validity of this waiver shall be decided by the arbitrator. As to any Covered Claim, each 
Party waives the right to a jury or bench trial and also waives the right to bring, maintain, participate in, or 
receive money from any class, collective, and/or other multi-party proceeding, whether in arbitration or 
otherwise.  The Company and Employee agree to arbitrate PAGA claims on an individual basis only (“PAGA 
Waiver”).  The Parties also agree that any non-individual PAGA claims will be stayed and not pursued in 
court until after the Arbitrator, and not any court, issues a final and written determination as to Employee’s 
status as an “aggrieved employee.” The Arbitrator is without authority to preside over any PAGA claim by 
Employee on behalf of any other employee or joined by or consolidated with another person’s PAGA claim. 
This PAGA Waiver will be severable from this Agreement if there is a final judicial determination that it is 
invalid, unenforceable, unconscionable, void or voidable.  In such case, the PAGA action must be litigated 
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in a civil court of competent jurisdiction—not in arbitration—but the portion of the PAGA Waiver that is 
enforceable will be enforced in arbitration.  
 
C) Knowing and Voluntary Nature of Agreement. The Parties, by signing this Agreement, represent and 
warrant that they have carefully read and fully understand this Agreement, that they have been afforded 
sufficient opportunity to review this Agreement with any advisors of their choice, that they are fully 
competent to manage their own business affairs and to enter into this Agreement, and that they have signed 
this Agreement knowingly, freely, and voluntarily.   
 
D) Excluded Claims. Notwithstanding the broad scope of Covered Claims, this Agreement does not 
cover any claims that are by law non-arbitrable (and only to the extent the law is not preempted) such as: 
(i) claims for workers’ compensation benefits; (ii) claims for unemployment insurance benefits; (iii) sexual 
harassment and sexual assault disputes arising under federal, state or local law, unless Employee elects to 
arbitrate these claims; (iv) proceedings before the Workers’ Compensation Appeals Board, the 
Employment Development Department, or the National Labor Relations Board; or (v) claims brought 
directly by the U.S. Department of Labor, the Department of Fair Employment and Housing, and/or the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission. If any claim or proceeding listed as an example above is no 
longer deemed non-arbitrable under applicable law, its inclusion in the list shall not be controlling and the 
claim shall be arbitrated pursuant to this Agreement. If any part of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
applicable law, the law shall govern, and that part of this Agreement shall be reformed and construed to the 
maximum extent possible in conformance with applicable law. The arbitrator shall decide any issues of 
arbitrability. 
 

E) Notice of Claim. A demand for arbitration must be in writing and sent by certified or registered mail, 
return receipt requested and obtained, or by service as authorized for the commencement of a civil action, 
and made within the applicable statute of limitations period. The demand must describe the nature of the 
controversy and the remedy sought. To initiate arbitration, Employee must deliver the written demand for 
arbitration to the Company at 43414 Business Park Dr., Temecula, CA 92590 , Attn: Human Resources 
Department. For the Company or any third-party beneficiary of this Agreement to initiate arbitration, it 
must deliver the written demand for arbitration to Employee at the last known address recorded in 
Employee’s personnel records. The party initiating arbitration also must, within the time period required 
under the applicable statute(s) of limitations, submit the written demand for arbitration to the arbitration 
service listed in Section F (or to another arbitration service provider that the Parties mutually agree to use). 
The Company may change the address for delivery of the demand for arbitration with advanced written 
notice.   
 

F) Rules and Place of Arbitration. Unless the Parties agree to an alternative, the arbitration shall be 
administered by JAMS ADR Services (“JAMS”). Arbitration will occur within 45 miles of where 
Employee is or was last employed by the Company under JAMS’s then current Employment Arbitration 
Rules, except where these rules contradict this Agreement or applicable law. (A current copy of the JAMS 
rules is available at www.jamsadr.com or from Human Resources upon request). The arbitrator can order 
the same remedies that a judge could order in a court of law. The Parties shall be entitled to conduct 
reasonable discovery, including, without limitation, conducting depositions of and requesting documents 
from each other and third parties. The arbitrator shall have the power to subpoena relevant documents for 
review by a party prior to the arbitration hearing as well as subpoena relevant documents for production at 
the arbitration hearing. If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, JAMS’s rules will govern selection. The 
arbitrator’s written award shall: (i) issue within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of evidence; (ii) state the 
reasons to support the decision; and (iii) be based on governing law and evidence cited. 
 
G) Arbitration Fees and Costs. Except for the equivalent court filing fees, the Company will be 
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responsible for any fees unique to arbitration, including the arbitrator’s fees. Each Party shall pay its own 
costs and attorneys’ fees, if any, except that the arbitrator shall award attorneys’ fees and costs in 
accordance with applicable law. 
 
H) Governing Law. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement and Employee’s employment with the 
Company evidence a transaction involving interstate commerce. Thus, notwithstanding applicable 
substantive state law, any arbitration conducted pursuant to this Agreement shall be governed by the FAA, 
9 U.S.C. §§ 1-16. Otherwise, California law shall govern to the extent not inconsistent with the FAA. 
 

I) Sole and Entire Agreement as to Dispute Resolution; Severability. This Agreement contains the entire 
agreement between the Parties with respect to alternative dispute resolution, which can only be modified in 
a writing signed by the Employee and an authorized officer of the Company. The Parties intend that this 
Agreement be limited to those claims that may legally be subject to a pre-dispute arbitration agreement under 
applicable law after applying FAA preemption principles. A court or arbitrator construing this Agreement 
may therefore modify or interpret it to render it enforceable. In the event that any provision of this Agreement 
is found to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such provision shall be severed from the Agreement 
and the remaining portions of the Agreement shall be given full force and effect.  
 

J) Effective Date; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement is effective as of the date of Employee’s 
signature below. Scanned signatures and electronic signatures (such as DocuSign) shall be valid and 
enforceable and shall have the same legal effect as a handwritten signature. By issuing this Agreement, 
the Company agrees to be bound with or without its signature.  This Agreement shall survive any 
termination of Employee’s employment. 
 
 
BY SIGNING BELOW, THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT EACH HAS RECEIVED AND HAS 
HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO READ THIS AGREEMENT AND KNOWINGLY AND 
VOLUNTARILY WAIVES THE RIGHT TO CLASS, COLLECTIVE, REPRESENTATIVE AND 
OTHER MULTI-PARTY PROCEDURES, AND THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OR JUDGE FOR 
ANY COVERED CLAIM.   
 

  _____   
Employee Name       Signature       Date 
 

  _____    
Meghan Freeman       Signature       Date 
CEO 
Elite Academic Academy 




